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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014

OR

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission file number 1-13610

CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Girart

Maryland 75-6446078
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organizatiol Identification No.)

17950 Preston Road, Suite 600
Dallas, Texas 75252
(Address of Principal Executive Offict (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area @) 349-3200

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registere
Common stock, $0.001 par value per s Nasdaq Global Marke

Securities registered pursuant to SectR(g) of the ActNone

Indicate by check mark if the registramaiwel-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e08#turities Act. Ye:Od

No [x



Indicate by check mark if the registranhot required to file reports pursuant to Sectidror Section 15(d) of the Act. Yed No

Indicate by check mark whether the regigt(1) has filed all reports required to be filgdSection 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exche
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastiags. Yeskxl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the regigthas submitted electronically and posted oedtporate Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted @auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation5¢8232.405 of this chapter) during the precedi@grbnths
(or for such shorter period that the registrant veagiired to submit and post such files). Y&@s  No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure ofiaiguent filers pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiK is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant's knowledgeleffinitive proxy or information statements incorgted by reference in Part 11l of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 104K.

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a large accelerated filer, an accelerated & non-accelerated filer, or a smaller repgrtin
company. See definition of "large accelerated fileaccelerated filer* and "smaller reporting comypain Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
(Check one):

Large Accelerated filetd Accelerated filerO Non-Accelerated fileild Smaller reporting companigl

(Do not check if a
smaller reporting compan'

Indicate by check mark whether the regidtis a shell company (as defined by Rule 12bib@fAct.) YesO No

As of June 30, 2014, the aggregate masdele of the voting common stock held by raffikates of the registrant, computed by refere
to the average high and low sales prices on the&tp&lobal Market as of the close of business oe 30, 2014, was approximately
$41.6 million. Registrant does not have any nomgptiommon equities.

As of March 1, 2015, the registrant hatstanding 97,581,598 shares of common stock, dae&0.001 per share.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information required by Items 10, 12, 13 and 14 of Part Ill of this Annual Reportearm 10-K will be found in the Company's
definitive proxy statement for its 2015 Annual Magtof Stockholders, to be filed pursuant to Retiofal4A under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, and such informationderiporated herein by this reference.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains certain forwardkow statements within the meaning of Section 27#e Securities Act of 1933 (the
"Securities Act") and Section 21E of the Securifieshange Act of 1934, which are intended to beeoed by the safe harbors created thereby
These statements include the plans and objectivesioagement for future operations, including plang objectives relating to future growth
of our business and availability of funds. Suciwiard-looking statements can be identified by the afsforward-looking terminology such as
"may," "will," "expect,” "intend," "might," "belieg," "anticipate," "estimate," "could," "would" "ctnue," "pursue,"” or "should" or the negat
thereof or other variations or similar words orgd®es. The forward-looking statements expressedliad herein are based on current
expectations that involve numerous risks and uatits identified in this Form 10-K, including, twout limitation, the risks identified under
the caption "ltem 1A. Risk Factors." Assumptionatiag to the foregoing involve judgments with respto, among other things, future
economic, competitive and market conditions andriubusiness decisions, all of which are diffiarlimpossible to predict accurately and
many of which are beyond our control. Although vedidwe that the assumptions underlying the forwaaking statements are reasonable, an
of the assumptions could be inaccurate and, thexefioere can be no assurance that the forwardrdgaitatements expressed or implied in thit
Form 10-K will prove to be accurate. In light okthignificant uncertainties inherent in the forwérdking statements expressed or implied
herein, the inclusion of such information should Ine regarded as a representation by us or any péngon that our objectives and plans will
be achieved. Readers are cautioned not to plaageuetiance on forward-looking statements. Forwaaking statements speak only as of the
date they are made. We do not undertake to uplete to reflect changes that occur after the datg éne made, except to the extent required
by applicable securities laws.

PART |
ltem 1. Business
Business Overview

The principal business of CIM CommercialidtrCorporation and its subsidiaries (which maydserred to in this Form 10-K as "we,"
"us,"” "our," "our company", "CIM Commercial" or ti€ompany") is to acquire, own, and operate Classé creative office properties in
vibrant and improving urban communities throughtbeet United States. These communities are locatadeias that include traditional
downtown areas and suburban main streets, which high barriers-to-entry, high population densityproving demographic trends and a
propensity for growth. We believe that the critinedss of redevelopment in such areas createsv@ositiernalities, which enhance the valu
substantially stabilized assets in the area. Wievethat these assets will provide greater rettivas similar assets in other markets, as a rest
of the improving demographics, public commitmenmig aignificant private investment that charactetimse areas.

We are managed by affiliates of CIM Groug. ("CIM Group" or "CIM"). CIM Group is a vertitlg-integrated, full-service investment
manager with multi-disciplinary expertise and inike research, acquisition, investment, developnfieance, leasing, and management
capabilities. CIM Group is headquartered in Los @leg, California and has offices in Oakland, Catifa; Bethesda, Maryland; Dallas, Texas;
and New York, New York. See "ltem 1—Business—Owerwand History of CIM Group", "—CIM Urban Partneisthgreement” and "—
Investment Management Agreement".

We seek attractive risk-adjusted returnsiilizing the CIM platform which has generated atipr returns across multiple market cycles
by focusing on improved asset and community peréoree, and capitalizing on market inefficiencies distiessed situations. Over time, we
seek to expand our real estate holdings in commesrtiirgeted by CIM Group for investment, suppoltgdIM Group's broad real estate
investment capabilities, as part of our plan tadently grow market value and earnings.

1




Table of Contents

We invest primarily in substantially stabéld real estate and real estate-related asset®tbin areas that CIM has targeted for
opportunistic investment. These areas includetioadil downtown areas and suburban main streetghwiave high barriers to entry, high
population density, improving demographic trendd ampropensity for growth. CIM believes that th#ical mass of redevelopment in such
areas creates positive externalities, which enh#regalue of substantially stabilized assets éndiea. CIM targets investments in diverse
types of real estate assets, including officejlrdta-rent and for-sale multifamily residentidlotel, parking, and signage through CIM's
extensive network and its current opportunistiestment activities.

On July 8, 2013, PMC Commercial Trust ("PK@Gmmercial”), entered into a merger agreement"{tterger Agreement”) with CIM
Urban REIT, LLC ("CIM REIT"), an affiliate of CIM @up, and subsidiaries of the respective partiflg. REIT, a private commercial REIT,
was the owner of CIM Urban Partners, LP ("CIM UrBaihe transaction (the "Merger") was completedwarch 11, 2014 (the "Acquisition
Date").

Furthermore, on April 28, 2014, we filedtisles of Amendment (the "Reverse Split Amendmetad'@ffectuate a one-for-five reverse
stock split of our common stock ("Common Stockfjeetive April 29, 2014. Pursuant to the reversektsplit, each five shares of Common
Stock issued and outstanding immediately priohtodffective time of the reverse stock split weseverted into one share of Common Stock.
All per share and outstanding share informatiomfizefore the Reverse Split Amendment included hdras been presented to reflect the
reverse stock split unless otherwise noted.

The Merger Agreement provided for the bastncombination of CIM REIT's wholly owned subsigjaCIM Urban, and PMC
Commercial. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Uibatners I, LLC ("Urban 1I"), an affiliate of CINREIT, received 4,400,000 shares of
newly-issued PMC Commercial common stock and apprately 65,000,000 shares of newly-issued PMC Coroialepreferred stock.
Following the Merger and subsequent increase iraathorized number of shares, each share of peefstock was converted into 1.4 share
PMC Commercial common stock, resulting in the issgaof 95,440,000 shares of PMC Commercial comrtarksn the aggregate in
connection with the Merger, representing approxalya®7.8% of PMC Commercial's outstanding shareaimon stock.

All shares of PMC Commercial common stdtit twere outstanding immediately prior to the ¢lgsdf the Merger continue to remain
outstanding following the Acquisition Date. In afiloin, stockholders of record of PMC Commercialret tlose of the business day prior to the
Acquisition Date received a special cash dividenh$2Y.50 per share of common stock plus that pta{partion of PMC Commercial's regular
quarterly cash dividend accrued through the ActjaisiDate, each of which was paid March 25, 2014.

Upon completion of the Merger, PMC Commalrbiecame the parent of CIM Urban. PMC Commerelaorporated from Texas to
Maryland on April 28, 2014 and, on the same dagnged its name from "PMC Commercial Trust" to "Gdmmercial Trust Corporation.”

The Merger was accounted for as a revargeisition under the acquisition method of accaumtvith CIM Urban considered to be the
accounting acquirer based upon the terms of theydtekgreement. Based on the determination that Gtlvan was the accounting acquirer in
the transaction, CIM Urban allocated the purchage o the fair value of PMC Commercial's assets lgabilities as of the Acquisition Date.

In order to allow CIM Commercial to increass focus in Class A and creative office promsrtiour board of directors (the "Board of
Directors") approved a plan for the legacy lendinginess (the "lending business") that, when coreg)evill result in the deconsolidation of
the lending segment. Accordingly, as of Decembei2814, the lending segment is held for sale.

As of December 31, 2014, our portfolio detesl of 33 assets, all of which are fee simplgprties except one leasehold property. As of
December 31, 2014, our 24 office properties, totgali
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approximately 5.6 million rentable square feet,av@5.1% occupied; our multifamily properties, cosga of 930 units, were 92.8% occupied;
and our hotels, which have a total of 1,070 rodmas, revenue per available room ("RevPAR") of $991he year ended December 31, 2!
Our office portfolio contributed approximately 7@Mf revenue from continuing operations for therysaded December 31, 2014, while our
hotel portfolio contributed approximately 21.9%dasur multifamily portfolio contributed approximéges.1%.

Our office, multifamily and hotel assets #&cated in 11 U.S. markets. The breakdown by segrmarket and submarket, as of
December 31, 2014, is as follows:

Overview of our Portfolio as of December 31, 2014

Office and
Retail
Rentable Multi -
Square family Hotel

Property Market Sub-Market Feet Units Rooms
Office
BB&T Center Charlotte, NC Uptown 567,57¢ — —
1 Kaiser Plazi Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 531,56 — —
2101 Webster Stre: Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 472,63( — —
980 9th Stree Sacramento, C/ Downtown/Midtown 449,63! — —
211 Main Stree San Francisco, C. S Financial Distric 415,12( — —
370 L'Enfant Promenac District of Columbiz Southwes 407,32: — —
999 N Capitol Stree District of Columbiz Capitol Hill 321,54 — —
899 N Capitol Stree District of Columbiz ~ Capitol Hill 314,31° — —
800 N Capitol Stree District of Columbiz Capitol Hill 311,69( — —
1901 Harrison Stret Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 272,16: — —
830 1st Stree District of Columbis Capitol Hill 247,33" — —
1333 Broadwa! Oakland, CA City Center 239,82: — —
2100 Franklin Stree Oakland, CA Lake Merritt 216,66¢ — —
11620 Wilshire Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ West Los Angele 192,71¢ — —
Penn Fielc Austin, TX South 182,33( — —
4750 Wilshire Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ Mid-Wilshire 143,36: — —
7083 Hollywood Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ Hollywood/Sunse 82,18( — —
260 Townsent San Francisco, C. South of Marke 65,76( — —
11600 Wilshire Boulevar Los Angeles, C/ West Los Angele 54,83: — —
Civic Centet Orange County, C/ Central 37,11¢ — —
Lindblade Media Cente Los Angeles, C/ West Los Angele 32,42¢ — —
Total Office (21 Properties) 5,558,10! — —
Other Ancillary Properties within Office

Portfolio
901 N Capitol Street(1 District of Columbiz  Capitol Hill — — —
1010 8th St Parking Garage & Ret Sacramento, C; Downtown/Midtown 31,13¢ — —
2353 Webster Street Parking Gari Oakland, CA Lake Merritt — — —
Total Ancillary Office (3 Properties) 31,13: — —
Total Office incl. Other Ancillary 5,589,24. — —

(24 Properties)
Multifamily Portfolio
4649 Cole Avenu Dallas, TX Oaklawn — 334 —
Memorial Hills Houston, TX Montrose/River Oak — 30¢ —
47 E 34th Stree New York, NY Midtown West — 11C —
3636 McKinney Avenur Dallas, TX Central Dallas — 10 —
3839 McKinney Avenut Dallas, TX Central Dallas — 75 —
Total Multifamily (5 Properties) — 93( —
Hotel Portfolio
Sheraton Grand Hot Sacramento, C; Downtown/Midtown — — 50¢
LAX Holiday Inn Los Angeles, C/ LAX — — 40¢
Courtyard Oaklan: Oakland, CA City Center — — 162
Total Hotel (3 Properties) — — 1,07(
Other Ancillary Properties within Hote

Portfolio
Sheraton Grand Hotel Parking Garage ¢ Sacramento, CA Downtown/Midtown 9,457 — —

Retail
TOTAL PORTFOLIO (33 Properties) 5,598,69! 93( 1,07(

1) 901 N Capitol Street is a 39,696 square foot patkind located between 899 and 999 N Capitolesti&'e are entitled to develop a building with 270,172
square feel
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Segments

We operate in four business segmentshéijacquisition, redevelopment, ownership, and mamagt of office real estate; (ii) multifamily
real estate; (iii) hotels; and (iv) lending opewas, which was added in connection with the Mengdfdarch 2014 and is classified as held for
sale at December 31, 2014. Information relatedutdbaisiness segments for the years ended Decerhp20B4, 2013 and 2012 is set forth in
Note 18 to our consolidated financial statementsaim 15 of this repor

Business Objectives and Growth Strategies

Our objective is to achieve superior loag returns relative to the risk that we are uradaéng. We intend to achieve this objective by
continuing to deploy the investment processesGiistt Group has developed during 21 years as an fav@surban markets and identifying
opportunities to invest at prices below intrinsadues.

We intend to drive portfolio growth througlcombination of acquisition and asset managesieategies, which are designed to increase
cash flows and asset value.

Our investment strategy is centered ardidd's community qualification process. We beliekis tstrategy provides us with a significant
competitive advantage when making urban real estaéstments. The qualification process generalkgs between six months and five years
and is a critical component of CIM's investmentleaton. CIM examines the characteristics of a mati& determine whether the district
justifies the extensive efforts CIM undertakesemiewing and making potential investments in italied communities ("Qualifier
Communities"). Qualified Communities generally fallo one of two categories: (i) transitional urlshstricts and (ii) wellestablished, thrivin
urban areas (typically major central businessidis) Qualified Communities are distinct distrigthich have dedicated resources to becon
are currently vibrant communities where peopleloan work, shop and be entertained—all within viagkdistance or close proximity to
public transportation. These areas also generalkg igh barriers to entry, high population densityproving demographic trends and a
propensity for growth. In addition to the urbaniaatof North America in the last 21 years due ® ginowing preference for an urban lifestyle,
today's economic environment has further fueledigrowth due to the need for efficient solutiamsnieet continued population growth and
limited natural resources. CIM believes that a waajority of the risks associated with making r@sdet investments are mitigated by
accumulating local market knowledge of the commuwitere the investment lies. CIM typically spendm#icant time and resources
qualifying targeted investment communities priontaking any acquisitions. Since 1994, CIM Group dnaalified 97 communities and has
deployed capital in 48 of these Qualified CommusitiAlthough we may not invest exclusively in Qfi@i Communities, it is expected that
most of our investments will be identified throuis systematic process.

CIM seeks to maximize the value of its istmeents through active asset management. CIM hassxe in-house research, acquisition,
investment, development, financing, leasing angh@rty management capabilities, which leveragegepdinderstanding of urban communi
to position properties for multiple uses and to e operating income. As a fully integrated owaad operator, CIM's asset management
capabilities are complemented by its in-house ptgpeanagement capabilities. Property managersapesgnnual capital and operating
budgets and monthly operating reports, monitorltesund oversee vendor services, maintenance gihldanprovement schedules. In
addition, they ensure that revenue objectives ak Iease terms are followed, receivables are aelk preventative maintenance programs al
implemented, vendors are evaluated and expensesmt®lled. CIM's Asset Management Committee (#heset Management Committee")
reviews and approves strategic plans for each ime¥, including financial, leasing, marketing, peaty positioning and strategic and
disposition plans. In addition, the Asset Managen@mmmittee reviews
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and approves the annual business plan for eacleipypncluding its capital and operating budgdiM@ organizational structure provides for
investment and asset management continuity througt-disciplinary teams responsible for an assatfthe time of the original investment
recommendation through the implementation of tlets business plan, and any disposition activities

Competitive Advantages

We believe that CIM Group's experiencednieand integrated and multi-disciplinary organiaaticoupled with its community-focused
and disciplined urban real estate investment philbg, results in a competitive advantage that bene$. Additionally, CIM's investment
strategy is complemented by a number of other ctithy@eadvantages including its use of low leveragederwriting approach, disciplined
capital deployment, and strong network of relatiops. CIM's competitive advantages include:

. Vertically-Integrated Organization and Team

CIM is managed by its senior management team, wikicbhmprised of its three founders, Shaul KubahRid Ressler and Avi
Shemesh, and includes seven other principals. CidMigsis vertically-integrated and organized inteesefunctional groups
including Investments, Development, Property Managygt, Financial Reporting, Compliance, Operatiamg] Internal Audit.

To support CIM's organic growth and related invesitrplatforms, CIM has invested substantial time @sources in building a
strong and integrated team of over 235 experiepcef@ssionals. Each of CIM Group's departmentsasaged by seasoned
professionals and CIM continues to develop therestt® team of senior management, which represkatsdxt generation of
CIM's leaders. In addition to developing a corerted principals and senior level management, Cld piaactively managed |
growth through career development and mentorirgptt the mid and junior staffing levels, and hasdiahead of its needs,
thus ensuring appropriate management and staffinigsfinvestment activities.

CIM leverages its deep operating and industry égpee of CIM's principals and professionals, ad aglkheir extensive
relationships, to source and execute opportunistéhilized, and infrastructure investments. Easle$tment opportunity is
overseen by a dedicated team comprised of an girsiincipal (Richard Ressler, Avi Shemesh, Stkkawda or Charles E.
Garner Il, our Chief Executive Officer), a teamddsice president level and above), associate piesidents and associates, as
necessary, who are responsible for managing threstment from sourcing through underwriting, acdiaisj development (if
required), asset management, and disposition. Aopthis process, the team draws upon CIM's esitenin-house expertise in
legal matters, finance, development, leasing, andgyty management. Each dedicated investmentiteporposefully staffed
with professionals from multiple CIM offices, regéess of the location of the asset being evaluaed result, all investment
professionals work across a variety of Qualifiedr@wunities and CIM's knowledge base is shared aalbs$ its offices.

. Community Qualification

Since inception, CIM's proven community qualificatiprocess has served as the foundation for itssiment strategy. CIM
targets high barrier-to-entry markets and submankéh high population density and applies rigoroesearch to qualify for
potential investments. Since 1994, CIM has qualiig communities in high barrier-tmtry markets and has deployed capit:
48 of these Qualified Communities. CIM examinesdharacteristics of a market to determine whetheristrict justifies the
extensive efforts its investment professionals utadte in reviewing and making potential investmentgs Qualified
Communities. Qualified Communities generally falid one of two categories: (i) underserved/tramsél urban districts
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that have dedicated resources to become vibraahuwwrbmmunities and (ii) well-established, thrivimipan areas (typically
major central business districts) where marketeshave dropped below intrinsic values (i.e., ltarga values to which CIM
expects market values to recover).

As more fully described in "—Principles," once argounity is qualified, CIM continues to differentatself by applying
various business principles including: (i) prodooh-specific—CIM has extensive experience invesiting diverse range of
property types, including retail, residential, offj parking, hotel, signage, and mixed-use, whiecesgCIM the ability to execute
and capitalize on its urban strategy effectively;,Jommunity-based tenanting—CIM's investmenttstgg focuses on the entire
community and the best use of assets in that cortynaavning a significant number of key propertiasan area better enables
CIM to meet the needs of national retailers antteftenants and thus optimize the value of thesleastate properties; (iii) local
market leadership with North American footprint—CHhvhintains local market knowledge and relationshafisng with a
diversified North American presence, through itS@xalified Communities (thus, CIM has the flexityilto invest in its
Qualified Communities only when the market enviremnmeets CIM's investment and underwriting stathg)aiand

(iv) investing across the capital staclciM has extensive experience investing acrossdpéal stack including equity, preferi
equity, debt and mezzanine investments, givingatftexibility to structure transactions in effinieand creative ways.

. Investment Discipline

CIM's investment strategy relies on its sound bessrplan and value creation execution to produoagteturns, rather than
financial engineering. CIM Group's underwritingitsfinvestments is performed both on a leveragedusteveraged basis.
Additionally, CIM has generally not utilized recaeeror cross-collateralized debt due to its conseevanderwriting standards.

CIM employs multiple underwriting scenarios whemlenating potential investment opportunities. CINbGp generally
underwrites investments utilizing long-term averagi capitalization rates for similar product tgpnd long-term average
interest rates. Where possible, these long-termages cross multiple market cycles, thereby mitiggthe risk of cyclical
volatility. CIM's "long-term average" underwritinig based on its belief, reinforced by its expereéetitough multiple market
cycles, that over the life of any given fund thahanages, such fund should be able to exit itsstmaents at long-term historical
averages. CIM also underwrites a "current marke¢'tacenario, which generally utilizes current satkat specific exit
assumptions and interest rates, in order to refletitipated investment results under current ntarkeditions. CIM believes
that utilizing multiple underwriting scenarios efebCIM to assess potential returns relative tiowighin a range of potential
investment outcomes.

Investment Strategy

Our investment strategy is to continuenteest in Class A and creative office propertiesibrant and improving urban communities
throughout the U.S. in a manner that will allowtoisncrease the value of our assets and to growem@nue and cash flow in order to enhance
the dividends paid to stockholders. By employirgimailar investment strategy to that which CIM hassistently utilized to target stabilized
real estate assets, our objective is to utilize ‘€ldktensive knowledge of Qualified Communitiesdntify investment opportunities at prices
below intrinsic values and achieve superior retuetative to the risk which we are undertaking.

6
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2014 Acquisitions

Acquisitions during 2014, funded with preds from drawdowns on our unsecured credit fagdljtconsisted of the following:

Asset Date of Number Rentable Purchase
Property Type Acquisition of Buildings Square Feel Price
(in 000s)
4750 Wilshire Boulevard,
Los Angeles, CA(1 Office April 18, 201« 1 143,36: $ 44,93¢
Lindblade Media Center
Los Angeles, CA(2 Office  October 21, 201 3 32,42¢ $ 18,50(

Q) 100% fee-simple interest in an office buildimgjlt in 1984 and renovated in 2014, located & ¥id-Wilshire submarket
of Los Angeles, California.

(2) 100% fee-simple interest in a portfolio of creatdféice buildings located in the West Los Angelabmarket of Los
Angeles, California. Two of the buildings were il 1930 and the third was built in 1957. The Bugs were renovate
in 2010.

Financing Strategy

We have substantial borrowing capacity, wildikely finance our future activities througimy of the following methods: (i) offerings of
common shares, preferred shares, senior unseceradties, and other equity and debt securiti€sth@ use and potential expansion of our
existing revolving credit lines including the uddtee credit line we obtained in September 201theruse of a new credit line; (iii) the addition
of senior recourse or non-recourse debt using tagpiisitions as well as existing investmentsaaieral; and/or (iv) the sale of existing
investments. We expect to maintain leverage lethelsare comparable to those of other commercaenty Real Estate Investment Trusts
(each, a "REIT") engaged in business strategie#asito our own.

Risk Management

As part of its risk management strategW @lill continually evaluate our investments andiaaly manage the risks involved in its
business strategies. CIM's investment professiomidllprovide asset management oversight by clogsaiyitoring the performance of our
investments relative to market and industry benekaand internal underwriting assumptions usingatiknowledge of local markets provic
by CIM's in-house asset management, property mamage and leasing professionals. In-house propeaiyagement capabilities include
monthly and annual budgeting and reporting as asllendor services management, property mainterzamtteapital expenditures
management. Management seeks to ensure that revbjastives are met, lease terms are followed jvabées are collected, preventative
maintenance programs are implemented, vendorssateated and expenses are controlled. CIM's Assatdgement Committee oversees the
asset management of investments, and consistdvié @ur most senior investment professionals: $Kaba, Richard Ressler, Avi Shemesh
and our Chief Executive Officer, Charles E. Gaih¢the "Oversight Principals"), each of whom hase@sive experience in investment,
development, asset and property management aridde&sery investment is directly overseen by ar@ight Principal, who is ultimately
responsible for the performance of the investmEné Oversight Principals work with each CIM depatmto ensure that every investment
benefits from the full range of CIM's real estatpertise. CIM believes that empowering its mosssead investment professionals to bring
their breadth of experience to bear directly orestinents will optimize investment returns.
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The Oversight Principals meet informallyafrequent basis, generally weekly, to review disduss the performance of investments, an
meet formally at least annually to review and apprstrategic plans for the investments, includfiancial and operational analyses, operz
strategies and agreements, tenant composition anketing, asset positioning, market conditionsdfiigy the asset, hold/sell analyses and
timing considerations, and the annual businessfpla@ach investment, including its capital andragiag budget.

The size, composition, and policies of Asset Management Committee may be changed fromttrtime.
Regulatory Matters
Environmental Matters

Environmental laws regulate, and imposkiliisx for, releases of hazardous or toxic substanato the environment. Under some of these
laws, an owner or operator of real estate is or b&alyable for costs related to soil or groundwatantamination on, in, or migrating to or from
its property. In addition, persons who arrangetlierdisposal or treatment of hazardous or toxistuizes may be liable for the costs of
cleaning up contamination at the disposal sitehSaws often impose liability regardless of whettier person knew of, or was responsible
the presence of the hazardous or toxic substahaésdused the contamination. The presence ofraamination resulting from, any of these
substances, or the failure to properly remediaenttmay adversely affect our ability to sell ortrear property or to borrow using such
property as collateral. Third parties may also melkens against owners or operators of properbepérsonal injuries and property damage
associated with releases of hazardous materialpaff our efforts to mitigate these risks, wpitglly engage third parties to perform
assessments of potential environmental risks whkialuating a new acquisition of property.

Americans with Disabilities Act of 199

Under the Americans with Disabilities A¢tl®90 (the "ADA"), all public accommodations muséet federal requirements related to
access and use by disabled persons. Although wevbehat our properties substantially comply vathsent requirements of the ADA, we
have not conducted an audit or investigation obablur properties to determine our complianc@né or more of our properties or future
properties is not in compliance with the ADA, thea would be required to incur additional coststindpthe property into compliance. We
cannot predict the ultimate amount of the costomfigliance with the ADA. If we incur substantial tof comply with the ADA, our business,
financial condition, results of operations, casiwflor ability to satisfy our debt service obligatsoor to pay dividends could be materially
adversely affected.

Competition

We compete with other investors engagdtiéracquisition, development, and management bestate and real estate-related
investments. Our competitors include other REIfisurance companies, pension funds, private equitys, sovereign wealth funds, hedge
funds, mortgage banks, investment banks, commeyaigts, savings and loan associations, specialnéie companies, and other private and
institutional investors and financial companieg fharsue strategies similar to ours. Some of ourpmtitors may be larger than us and have
greater access to capital and other resources apdhave other advantages over us. In addition, sfroar competitors may have higher risk
tolerances or lower profitability targets than wkjch could allow them to pursue new business raggressively than us. We believe that our
relationship with CIM Group gives us a competitadvantage that allows us to operate more effegtivethe markets in which we conduct «
business.
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Overview and History of CIM Group

CIM is a privately held California domiaddimited partnership, specializing in private agueal estate and infrastructure investments.
CIM Group was founded in 1994 by Shaul Kuba, RidiRRessler and Avi Shemesh and has assets undegemeat ("AUM") of
approximately $18.7 billion as of September 30,28 TIM has systematically developed its urban investliscipline over the past 21 years.
CIM Group's three founding principals have workegether since inception and continue to direcbiliiginess of CIM and are actively
involved in the day-to-day management along witreseother principals of CIM Group's leadership te@M Group's successful track record
is anchored by CIM's community-oriented approachrtan investing as well as a number of other caitiygeadvantages including its use of
low leverage, underwriting approach, disciplinegitd deployment, vertically-integrated capabilti@nd strong network of relationships.

CIM is a premier full service urban realads and infrastructure fund manager with in-haesearch, acquisition, investment,
development, finance, leasing and management dajeabiCIM Group is headquartered in Los Angelfealifornia and has offices in Oakland,
California; Bethesda, Maryland; Dallas, Texas; Alav York, New York. CIM has over 500 employees]uding more than 235 profession:
CIM has generated strong risk-adjusted returnssaarwltiple market cycles by focusing on improvesied and community performance, and
capitalizing on market inefficiencies and distressguations.

Principles

As described in "—Business Objectives amoWgh Strategies" and "—Competitive Advantagesg' ctbmmunity qualification process is
one of CIM Group's core competencies, which dematest a disciplined investing program and strategttook on urban communities. Once
a community is qualified, CIM Group believes it tiones to differentiate itself through the followibusiness principles:

. Product Non-Specific: CIM has extensive experigngesting in a diverse range of property typesluding retail, residential,
office, parking, hotel, signage, and mixed-use,cvtgives CIM the ability to execute and capitabireits urban strategy
effectively. Successful investment requires sabecthe right markets coupled with providing theéhtigroduct. CIM's experien:
with multiple assets types does not predispose GHvlp to select certain asset types, but insteadres that we deliver a
product mix that is consistent with the markettpuieements and needs. Additionally, there is a gngwrend towards
developing mixed-use real estate properties inrurbarkets which requires a diversified investméatfprm to successfully
execute.

. Community-Based Tenanting: CIM's investmerdatsigy focuses on the entire community and theusesof assets in that
community. Owning a significant number of key prdjes in an area better enables CIM to meet thdsieEnational retailers
and office tenants and thus optimizes the valubede real estate properties. CIM believes thabitsmunity perspective gives
it a significant competitive advantage in attragtianants to its retail, office and mixed-use prtps and creating synergies
between the different tenant types.

. Local Market Leadership with North American Footyri CIM maintains local market knowledge and rielahips, along with
diversified North American presence, through its

1 For CIM Group's private funds and CIM's strategictpership accounts, AUM includes total gross asaetair value as of
September 30, 2014 (including the shares of susfta®wned by joint venture partners), as welloamsmitted but as-yet unfunded
capital commitments as of September 30, 2014. RdrCommercial Trust, AUM is based on managemerstsreate of the fair value
total gross assets as of September 30, 2014.
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97 Qualified Communities. Thus, CIM has the flekibito invest in its Qualified Communities only wh the market
environment meets CIM's investment and underwrisitagndards. CIM does not need to invest in a gde@nmunity or product
type at a specific time due to its broad proprietapeline of communities.

. Investing Across the Capital Stack: CIM hasegive experience investing across the capitak stetuding equity, preferred
equity, debt and mezzanine investments, givingatftexibility to structure transactions in effinieand creative ways.

CIM Urban Partnership Agreement

Our subsidiary, CIM Urban, is governed Hivirban's partnership agreement (the "CIM Urbartri®aship Agreement"). The general
partner of CIM Urban, Urban Partners GP, LLC ("Cllvban GP"), is an affiliate of CIM Group and has fhll, exclusive and complete right,
power, authority, discretion and responsibility teglsin or assumed by a general partner of a linpethership under the Delaware Revised
Uniform Limited Partnership Act and as otherwiseviied by law and is vested with the full, exclesand complete right, power and
discretion to operate, manage and control theraftdiCIM Urban, subject to the terms of the Clivbain Partnership Agreement.

Removal of General Partne

The class A members of CIM REIT, upon a-thiods vote of the interests of such members, mayove and replace CIM Urban GP as
the general partner of CIM Urban if (a) certainlaffes and related parties of CIM Urban GP ceasain at least 85% of the class A
membership units of CIM REIT that they have acalie (b) any two of Shaul Kuba, Richard RessleAdrShemesh cease to be actively
engaged in the management of the general partner.

Amendments

Subject to certain limited exceptions, adraents of the CIM Urban Partnership Agreement meagdopted only with the consent of the
majority in interest of the class A members of GR&IT who are not affiliates of CIM Urban GP.

Liability for Acts and Omission:

None of CIM Urban GP or any of its affikat members, stockholders, partners, managerseidfidirectors, employees, agents and
representatives will have any liability in damage®therwise to any limited partner, any invesiar€IM REIT or CIM Urban, and CIM Urbe
will indemnify such persons from and against ang alh liabilities, obligations, losses, damages)gites, actions, judgments, suits,
proceedings, costs, expenses and disbursementy &fral which may be imposed on, incurred by oedesl against such persons in any way
relating to or arising out of any action or inaation the part of such persons when acting on belh&fM Urban or any of its investments,
except for those liabilities that result from symgrsons' fraud, gross negligence, willful miscondudreach of the terms of the CIM Urban
Partnership Agreement or any other agreement batageh person and CIM Urban or its affiliates.

Investment Management Agreement

CIM Urban and CIM Urban REIT Management.L(tRe "Advisor"), each an affiliate of CIM REIT @€IM Group, are parties to an
Investment Management Agreement pursuant to whith @ban engaged the Advisor to provide investrrahtisory services to CIM Urban.
The Advisor manages CIM Urban's investments in estdte and other assets, including debt, equiyegnity-related interests in real estate,
securities and investments (including cash), arsdtia power and authority to determine, and withdiscretion to place orders in respect of,
the purchase, retention
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and disposition of such investments and to exeagteements relating thereto in accordance witlnthestment objectives, policies and
restrictions set forth in the CIM Urban Partnershgreement.

The Advisor is entitled to receive from Cliban, as compensation for the Advisor's managéesermices, an annual management fee,
payable quarterly in arrears, in an amount thatised on the daily average gross fair value of Olgln's investments during such quarter as
follows:

Daily Average Gross Fair

Value of Investments Quarterly
From Greater of To and Including Fee Percentage
$ — 8 500,000,00 0.250(%
500,000,00 1,000,000,00 0.237¢
1,000,000,00 1,500,000,00 0.225(
1,500,000,00 4,000,000,00 0.212¢
4,000,000,00 20,000,000,0C 0.100(

For the years ended December 31, 2014, a0d2012, the Advisor earned asset managemendf&23,223,000, $21,767,000 and
$20,924,000.

The Advisor is responsible for the paymafrall costs and expenses relating to the gengeation of its business, including
administrative expenses, employment expenses dice ekpenses. All costs and expenses incurretidptvisor on behalf of CIM Urban are
borne by CIM Urban. In addition, CIM Urban will ichnify the Advisor against losses, claims, damagdiabilities, and reimburse the
Advisor for its legal and other expenses, in eadedncurred in connection with any action, progegdr investigation arising out of or in
connection with CIM Urban's business or affairg;ept to the extent such losses or expenses resuitffaud, gross negligence or willful
misconduct of, or any violation of securities lamother intentional criminal wrongdoing or a breadtihe terms of the Investment
Management Agreement by, the Advisor. The Advisitiiimdemnify CIM Urban against any losses, clairdamages or liabilities to which
CIM Urban becomes subject in connection with anytenarising out of or in connection with CIM UrbBsubusiness or affairs that results from
the Advisor's fraud, gross negligence, willful niaduct or breach of the Investment Management Agege.

Nothing in the Investment Management Agreenlimits or restricts the right of any partneffjaer or employee of the Advisor to engage
in any other business or to devote his time arehttin in part to any other business. Nothing mltivestment Management Agreement limits
or restricts the right of the Advisor to engagainy other business or to render services of any tirany other person.

The Investment Management Agreement witlaim in effect until CIM Urban is dissolved or CltWtban and the Advisor otherwise
mutually agree.

Master Services Agreement

On March 11, 2014, we entered into the BlaServices Agreement (the "Master Services Agre€meith CIM Service Provider, LLC
(the "Manager"), an affiliate of CIM Group, purstidamwhich the Manager agrees to provide or arrdagether service providers to provide
management and administration services to us ("Basé@ce"). Pursuant to the Master Services Agreemee appointed an affiliate of CIM
Group as the manager ("Urban GP Manager") of ClMaddrGP. Under the Master Services Agreement, we [imse service fee (the "Base
Service Fee") to the Manager equal to $1,000,00¢ger (subject to an annual escalation by a spedifflation factor beginning on Januan
2015), payable quarterly in arrears. The Base Beifvee began to accrue on March 11, 2014 and was@d based on the number of days
during the first quarter in which the Master Seegid\greement was in effect. For the year ended bkee31, 2014, the Manager earned
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a Base Service Fee of $806,000. In addition, putstaethe terms of the Master Services AgreembéetManager may receive compensation
for performing certain services for us and our glibses that are not covered under the Base Semée. During the year ended December 31
2014, such services performed by the Manager iedw@tcounting, tax, reporting, internal audit, legampliance, risk management, IT,
human resources and corporate communications. Tdreader's compensation is based on the salaridsesuadits of the employees of the
Manager and/or its affiliates who performed thesmwises (allocated based on the percentage ofdpaat on our affairs and the affairs of our
subsidiaries). For the year ended December 31,,2044xpensed $1,193,000 for such services. AtiDbee 31, 2014, $725,000 was due to
the Manager.

As of January 1, 2015, all of our employeewed to CIM SBA Staffing, LLC, an affiliate of @I Group ("CIM SBA"), except for two of
our executives, who became jointly employed bynts @M SBA and their employment agreements witleargtinue in full force and effect.
connection with this, on January 1, 2015, we edtér® a Staffing and Reimbursement Agreement @itd SBA and our subsidiary, PMC
Commercial Lending, LLC, which provides that CIM &SRiill provide personnel and resources to us aiad we will reimburse CIM SBA for
the costs and expenses of providing such persamuetesources.

Other Services

CIM Management, Inc. and certain of itsliafies (collectively, the "CIM Management Entitigsall affiliates of CIM REIT, provide
property management, leasing, and developmentcasrto CIM Urban. The CIM Management Entities ednm@perty management fees,
which are included in rental and other propertyratieg expenses, totaling $5,284,000, $4,828,0@0%4n1 71,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Qibvan also reimbursed the CIM Management Ent#i&869,000, $5,082,000 and
$2,726,000 during the years ended December 31, 20148 and 2012, respectively, for the cost of ibmsersonnel incurred on behalf of CIM
Urban, which is included in rental and other prtyeperating expenses. The CIM Management Engttesed leasing commissions of
$1,904,000, $537,000 and $744,000 for the yearesdeBbeécember 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectiwbligh were capitalized to deferred
charges. In addition, the CIM Management Entitesed development management fees of $566,000,Ck8B4nd $973,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsgtivhich were capitalized to investments in reghtes

Lending Segment
Overview

The lending segment represents the realesknding platform conducting business as PMC i@ermial Trust, formerly the business of
PMC Commercial, which was combined with our regéatesbusiness through the Merger completed on tdniisition Date. In order to allow
CIM Commercial to increase its focus in Class A arghtive office properties, our Board of Directapgproved a plan for the lending business
that, when completed, will result in the deconsatiioh of the lending segment. Accordingly, the tsaad liabilities of the lending segment
have been reflected as held for sale in our cotstd December 31, 2014 balance sheet; the redulssoperations are included in the
consolidated statements of operations and compsaleimcome as income from operations of assetsfbelsale, included in discontinued
operations, and its cash flows are included incthresolidated cash flows for the period from the éisijion Date through December 31, 2014.

Through our lending segment, we are a natilender that primarily originates loans to snhaisinesses, principally in the limited service
hospitality industry. We identify loan originati@pportunities through personal contacts, interettrrals, attendance at trade shows and
meetings, direct mailings, advertisements in tyaglaications and other marketing methods. We aéstetate
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loans through referrals from real estate and |loakdys, franchise representatives, existing borrepwlawyers and accountants.

Information on our loans receivable at Daber 31, 2014 was as follofdollars in thousands)

Loans receivable, ni $ 189,05:

Weighted average contractual interest 5.8%
Weighted average yield to matur 8.€%
Average yield(1 10.C%
Variable-rate based loar 86.5%
Loans delinquent greater than 30 d 0.1%
Weighted average contractual maturity in ye 15.¢

Hospitality industry concentratic 94.5%

(1)  The calculation of average yield divides our ingtiiacome, prepayment fees and other loan relaies fidjusted
by the provision for loan losses, by the weighteerage loans receivable outstanding on an annddtiasis

In addition to our retained portfolio débed above, we service $96.5 million of aggregatecipal balance remaining on secondary
market loan sales.

From the Acquisition Date to December 31142 we funded $51.0 million of loans and receipddcipal payments of $49.4 million
including principal prepayments of $39.1 million.

SBA 7(a) Programn

Our SBA lending subsidiary, First WesteBLE, Inc. ("First Western"), is licensed as a snhaisiness lending company ("SBLC") that
originates loans through the Small Business Adnrati®n's ("SBA") 7(a) Program ("SBA 7(a) Program")

The SBA maintains a Preferred Lender Progrdnerein it grants Preferred Lender Program ("BldRdtus to certain lenders originating
SBA 7(a) Program loans based on achievement ddinestandards in lending which are regularly maeiticby the SBA. First Western has
been granted national PLP status and originatéls,ssel services small business loans. As a Pexfdrender, First Western is authorized to
place SBA guarantees on loans without seeking @B review and approval. Being a national len&? status allows First Western to
expedite loans since First Western is not requingatesent applications to the SBA for concurreniew and approval.

We continue to focus our lending activitytbe origination of SBA 7(a) Program loans duthtr profitability. We utilize the SBA 7(a)
Program to originate small business loans, primaelcured by real estate, and then sell the govarhguaranteed portion to investors.

The SBA 7(a) Program is the SBA's primaxgn program. In general, the SBA reduces riskernidérs by guaranteeing major portions of
qualified loans made to small businesses. Thislesdénders to provide financing to small businesgleen funding may otherwise be
unavailable or not available on reasonable terms.

Under the SBA 7(a) Program, the SBA typicguarantees 75% of qualified loans over $150,00& eligibility requirements of the SBA
7(a) Program vary by the industry of the borrowed affiliates and other factors. In order to opei@d an SBLC, a licensee is required to
maintain a minimum regulatory capital (as defingd3BA regulations) of the greater of (1) 10% ofdtgstanding loans receivable and other
investments or (2) $1.0 million, and is subjectéotain other regulatory restrictions such as changontrol provisions. First Western is
periodically examined and audited by the SBA tedaine compliance with SBA regulations.
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New Commercial Loan:

To take advantage of the expertise of Gl have begun to originate commercial real estated for properties that are primarily locatec
in CIM Group's Qualified Communities. We are tanggtinvestments between $20 million and $100 milleith a focus on developing a
diversified pool of loans. These loans are typjcaliort duration (five years or less, inclusiveerfension options), floating rate and are
expected to be:

. limited and/or non-recourse junior (mezzaninaote or 2nd lien) and senior construction loams; o

. limited and/or non-recourse junior (mezzanin@ole or 2nd lien) and senior acquisition, bridgeepositioning loans.
We intend to participate a portion of thexns with, and/or syndicate a portion of thesaoto, one or more institutional investors.
Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 33 empleyai of whom moved to CIM SBA on January 1, 208%;ept for two of our executives,
who became jointly employed by us and CIM SBA amelrtemployment agreements with us continue infrtte and effect. See "ltem 1
Business—Master Services Agreement."

Offices
We are headquartered in Dallas, Texas emgravided office space in Los Angeles, California
Available Information

Our corporate information websiteng/w.cimcommercial.comThe information on our website is not part ostAnnual Report on
Form 10-K. However, on the Investors Relation sactf this website the public can access free afgd our annual, quarterly and current
reports, changes in the stock ownership of ourctbire and certain executive officers and other dumnits filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") as soon as reasonaftyigable after the filing dates. Further, the S&R&intains an internet site that contains
reports, proxy and information statements and atifermation regarding our filings aww.sec.gov

We have adopted a written code of ethias @ipplies to all directors, officers and employeethe Company, the Advisor and the
Manager, including our principal executive offi@rd senior financial officer, in accordance witlct8m 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 and the rules of the SEC promulgated thereuiitie code of ethics, which we call our Code o$iBass Conduct and Ethics, is available
on our corporate websiteww.cimcommercial.conm the section entitled "Corporate Overview"—"Cargte Governance." In the event that
we make changes in, or provide waivers from, tloigions of this code of ethics that the SEC rezguirs to disclose, we intend to disclose
these events on our corporate website in suchosedti the Corporate Governance section of ouramaite website, we have also posted the
charter for our Audit Committee, as well as our &wmance Principles.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

The following information should be read in conjtioe with Part Il, Item 7, "Management's Discussamd Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" and the Cadatéd Financial Statements and related notes irt RPaltem 8, "Financial Statements a
Supplemental Data" of this Form 10-K. A wide raféactors could materially affect our future deyinents and performance. In addition to
the factors described elsewhere in this report, agement has identified the following important ¢astthat could cause actual results to di
materially from those reflected in forward-lookiaatements or from our historical results. Thesgdes, which are not all-inclusive, could
have a material impact on our asset valuationsultssof operations or financial condition and cowi$o impair our ability to maintain
dividend distributions at current or anticipatedséds. This discussion of risk factors includes nfamyard-looking statements. For cautions
about relying on forward-looking statements, plesfer to the section entitled "Forward-Looking ®taents" at the beginning of this Report
immediately prior to Item 1.

Risks Related to Our Real Estate Business
Our operating performance is subject to risks assed with the real estate industry.

Real estate investments are subject towarnisks and fluctuations and cycles in value @ewland, many of which are beyond our con
Certain events may decrease cash available falatids, as well as the value of our properties. & kgsnts include, but are not limited to:

. adverse changes in economic and socioeconomic taoms]i

. vacancies or our inability to rent space on favigadrms;

. adverse changes in financial conditions of buysgers and tenants of properties;

. inability to collect rent from tenants;

. competition from other real estate investors wigmi§icant capital, including but not limited tohwr real estate operating

companies, publicly-traded REITs and institutioinalestment funds;

. reductions in the level of demand for officetdi@nd apartment community space and changeg irethtive popularity of
properties;

. increases in the supply of office, hotel and aparthrtcommunity space;

. fluctuations in interest rates and the availabitifycredit, which could adversely affect our alilibr the ability of buyers and

tenants of properties, to obtain financing on fabde terms or at all;

. dependence on third parties to provide leasingsdyage, property management and other services@stiect to certain of our
investments;
. increases in expenses, including insurance dastsr costs, utility prices, real estate asseassrend other taxes and costs of

compliance with laws, regulations and governmepdities, and our inability to pass on some ooathese increases to our
tenants; and

. changes in, and changes in enforcement of, lags)atons and governmental policies, including heiit limitation, health,
safety, environmental, zoning, real estate taxeifgidand state laws, governmental fiscal policied the ADA.

In addition, periods of economic slowdownecession, rising interest rates or declining aednfor real estate, or the public perception
that any of these events may occur, could reswdtgeneral decline in rents or an increased incelef defaults under existing leases. If we
cannot operate our properties so as to meet camdial expectations, our business, financial camditresults of
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operations, cash flow or ability to satisfy our tisbrvice obligations or to pay dividends couldchieterially adversely affected.
There can be no assurance that we canvacbig economic objectives.

A significant portion of our properties, by aggretgmnet operating income and square feet, are lodaite California and the District of
Columbia. We are dependent on the California anatBistrict of Columbia real estate markets and ecaomes, and are therefore suscepti
to risks of events in those markets that could adhety affect our business, such as adverse marketditions, changes in local laws or
regulations and natural disasters.

Because our properties in California (aadipularly, in the San Francisco Bay area, inglgdDakland, California and San Francisco,
California (the "San Francisco Bay Area")) and Ehstrict of Columbia represent a significant pomtiof our portfolio by aggregate net
operating income and square feet, we are exposgi@aber economic risks than if we owned a morgygahically diverse portfolio. We are
susceptible to adverse developments in the Calgqand particularly, in the San Francisco Bay Aiad the District of Columbia economic
and regulatory environments (such as businessflagofdownsizing, industry slowdowns, relocatiofi®osinesses, increases in real estate ar
other taxes, costs of complying with governmerggutations or increased regulation and other fafts well as natural disasters that occur i
these areas (such as earthquakes, floods andestrgts). In addition, the State of California igasded as more litigious and more highly
regulated and taxed than many states, which mayceedemand for office, lodging and apartment sjpa€alifornia. Any adverse
developments in the economy or real estate maikélsalifornia (and particularly, in the San FramcidBay Area) or the District of Columbia,
or any decrease in demand for office, lodging grattanent space resulting from the California (aadipularly, in the San Francisco Bay
Area) or the District of Columbia regulatory or mess environments, could have a material advdfset®n our business, financial condition,
results of operations, cash flow or ability to sfgtiour debt service obligations or to pay dividend

We may be adversely affected by any significantu&ibns in federal government spending, which codidve a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of opdrans, cash flow or ability to satisfy our debt s#&e obligations or to pay dividends.

Some of our properties are occupied byrtenthat are U.S. federal government agenciesgwifgant reduction in federal government
spending could decrease the likelihood that théyramew their leases with us. Further, economitditions in the District of Columbia are
significantly dependent upon the level of fedemlgrnment spending in the region as a whole. Iretlent of a significant reduction in federal
government spending, there could be negative eciencmanges in the District of Columbia which coaldiversely impact the ability of our
tenants to perform their financial obligations under leases or the likelihood of their lease resmswAs a result, such a reduction in federal
government spending could have a material advéfset @n our business, financial condition, resok®perations, cash flow or ability to
satisfy our debt service obligations or to pay divids.

Capital and credit market conditions may adversaffect demand for our properties and the overallahability and cost of credit.

In periods when the capital and credit mtglexperience significant volatility, demand for properties and the overall availability and
cost of credit may be adversely affected. No asm@smcan be given that the capital and credit madmditions will not have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operations, cash flow or ability téisf& our debt service obligations or to pay
dividends.
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In addition, we could be adversely affeddgdsignificant volatility in the capital and crédaarkets as follows:

. the tenants in our office properties may experiendeterioration in their sales or other revenuexperience a constraint on !
availability of credit necessary to fund operatiombich in turn may adversely impact those tenatisity to pay contractual
base rents and tenant recoveries. Some tenanttenmaipate their occupancy due to an inability tempe profitably for an
extended period of time, impacting our ability taintain occupancy levels;

. constraints on the availability of credit to &mms, necessary to purchase and install improvespxiures and equipment and to
fund business expenses, could impact our abiligrécure new tenants for spaces currently vacagxisting office properties
properties under development; and

. any joint venture or other co-investment partnenda experience difficulty obtaining financing inet future for the same
reasons discussed above. Their inability to olfiaancing on acceptable terms, or at all, couldatiegly impact our ability to
acquire additional properties.

Adverse economic conditions could have an adverf§ece on the office, lodging and apartment commuiei$ industries

The United States has been recovering fignost-recessionary slow-growth environment, whiak experienced historically high levels
of unemployment or underemployment. Relative udety over the depth and duration of the economéovery may have a negative impact
on the office, lodging and apartment communitiekisiries. There is some general consensus amongrais that the economy in the Uni
States emerged from a recessionary environmer@ida,2out high unemployment or underemployment kehalve only begun to subside
recently. As a result, our office, lodging and apent properties, among other things, may expeeieaductions in revenue resulting from
lower rental rates and occupancy levels. Accordinglir financial results could be impacted by tbhermmic environment, and future financial
results and growth could be further harmed untilae expansive and consistent national economic@maent is prevalent. A continued
weaker than anticipated economic recovery, or@meb a recessionary national economic environpentld result in low or decreased levels
of business and consumer travel, negatively impgdtie lodging industry. Moreover, in the evenanbther recession, the office and
apartment communities industries could experierdections in rental rates, occupancy levels, ptgpaluations and increases in operating
costs such as advertising and turnover expenseh.&ueconomic outcome could also negatively impactenants' future growth prospects
and could adversely affect our financial conditimsults of operations, cash flow, ability to sfgtisur debt service obligations and to pay
dividends.

Investments in office buildings that have governmdanants are subject to the risks associated veitimducting business with the U.:
federal government

Investments in office buildings that hawwgrnment tenants are subject to risks associatbdanducting business with the U.S. federal
government. Congressional action to reduce budgstanding by the United States could limit or i@lthe funding of government agencies
or other organizations. Adverse developments armoditions affecting government tenants could ceddemand for space or force such
tenants to curtail operations, which could reguless rent to us and, accordingly, could have @@ adverse effect on our results of
operations. The risks of conducting business with.S. federal government also include the risgiwf and criminal fines and the risk of
public scrutiny of our performance at high profiees.
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The U.S. Government's "green lease" policies mayadsely affect us.

In recent years the U.S. Government hdguted "green lease" policies which allow a gowveemt tenant to require leadership in energy
and environmental design for commercial interiors,EED®-CI, certification in selecting new premgser renewing leases at existing
premises. In addition, the Energy IndependenceSamudirity Act of 2007 allows the General Servicesxdstration to give preference to
buildings for lease that have received an "Enetgy"$abel. Obtaining such certifications and |abelay be costly and time consuming, but
failure to do so may result in our competitive digantage in acquiring new or retaining existing gyovnent tenants.

Changes in the United States and state governmerattguirements for leased space may adversely affisct

Some of our current rents come from govenminbenants. Government agencies have been sdekimgease their space utilization under
their leases, including reducing the amount of sgjf@otage per employee at leased properties, wiashreduced the demand for government
leased space. If a significant number of such eveatur, our income and cash flow may materiallglide and our ability to make or sustain
regular distributions to our stockholders may lupgrdized.

Tenant concentration increases the risk that casbw could be interrupted.

We are, and expect that we will continubdo subject to a degree of tenant concentratigerédin of our properties or across multiple
properties. In the event that a tenant occupyisigjaificant portion of one or more of our propesta whose rental income represents a
significant portion of the rental revenue at suobperty or properties were to experience finangi@hkness or file bankruptcy, it would more
negatively impact our financial condition and réswlf operations.

We have incurred indebtedness and expect to indgn#icant additional indebtedness on a consoliddtbasis, which may affect our ability
to pay dividends, may expose us to interest ratetflation risk and may expose us to the risk of aeit under our debt obligations.

As of December 31, 2014, our total constéd indebtedness was approximately $650.6 miliimoiusive of debt associated with assets
held for sale. We expect to incur significant aidaial indebtedness, including through the use anergial expansion of our existing unsect
credit facility or the use of one or more new crédcilities, to fund future acquisitions and dey@hent activities and operational needs. The
degree of leverage could make us more vulnerakdedimwvnturn in business or the economy generally.

Payments of principal and interest on beings may leave us with insufficient cash resoutossperate our properties and/or pay
distributions. The incurrence of substantial outdiag indebtedness, and the limitations imposedurydebt agreements, could have signifit
other adverse consequences, including the following

. our cash flows may be insufficient to meet our iegfuprincipal and interest payments;

. we may be unable to borrow additional funds as eeéex on favorable terms, which could, among othimgs, adversely affect
our liquidity for acquisitions or operations;

. we may be unable to refinance our indebtednessatrity or the refinancing terms may be less fabterdhan the terms of our
existing indebtedness;

. we may be forced to dispose of one or more ofpooperties, possibly on disadvantageous terms;

. we may violate restrictive covenants in our dédxtuments, which would entitle the lenders to kage our debt obligations;
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. we may default on our obligations and the lendemmartgagees may foreclose on our properties akelfgassession of any
collateral that secures their loans; and

. our default under any of our indebtedness withs:default provisions could result in a default dimen indebtedness.

If any one of these events were to occur baisiness, financial condition, results of operes, cash flow or ability to satisfy our debt
service obligations or to pay dividends could beemally adversely affected. In addition, any fdosure on our properties could create taxabl
income without accompanying cash proceeds, whicifidcadversely affect our ability to meet the REi$tdbution requirements imposed by
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedCie").

Increases in interest rates could increase the ambaf our debt payments and adversely affect ousledlow and ability to pay dividend

We may incur indebtedness that bears ist@tea variable rate. In addition, from time toéi we may pay mortgage loans or finance anc
refinance our properties in a rising interest Eteironment. Accordingly, increases in intereseésatould increase our interest costs, which
could have an adverse effect on our financial dliresults of operations, cash flow, abilitystatisfy our debt service obligations and to pay
dividends. In addition, if rising interest ratesisa us to need additional capital to repay ourlitetiness, we may need to liquidate one or motr
of our investments at times that may not permilization of the maximum return on such investmeRt®longed interest rate increases also
could negatively impact our ability to make investits with positive economic returns.

We may be unable to refinance our indebtedness aturity or the refinancing terms may be less favita than the terms of our current
indebtedness.

Upon maturity of indebtedness incurred bythere is no assurance that replacement finameinde obtained or, if it is obtained, that
interest rates and other terms would be as faver@bthe original indebtedness. Inability to refic@indebtedness on favorable terms may
compel us to attempt to dispose of one or moregstigs, including any properties that may be satbsesuch debt, on terms less favorable
than might be obtained at a later date. In addiifcemy secured indebtedness matured before rafing could be procured, the lender could
foreclose on the applicable collateral and we magtiter losses as a result of that foreclosurethieurlenders may require insurance against
terrorist acts, particularly for large propertiasurban areas, and the unavailability of such i#sce may make it difficult to finance or
refinance investments.

We may be unable to renew leases or lease vacditeo$pace.

As of December 31, 2014, 13.4% of the faletaquare footage of our office portfolio was &atale for lease. As of December 31, 2014,
15.3% of the occupied square footage in our officafolio was scheduled to expire in 2015. Localremmic environment may make the
renewal of these leases more difficult, or renaway occur at rental rates equal to or below exgstamtal rates. As a result, portions of our
office properties may remain vacant for extendetbpe of time. In addition, we may have to offebstantial rent abatements, tenant
improvements, concessions, early termination rightselow-market renewal options to attract nevates or retain existing tenants. The
factors described above could have an adverset eifiecur financial condition, results of operatipoash flow, ability to satisfy our debt
service obligations and to pay dividends.

Short-term leases in our multifamily portfolio may expesis to the effects of declining market rents.

Substantially all of our leases in our rifathily portfolio are for a term of one year or$eJherefore, our rental revenues are impacted b
declines in market rents more quickly than if ades were for longer terms.
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Our operating performance is subject to risks asisbed with the lodging industry.

The success of our hotel properties depkmdsly on the property operators' ability to @dapdominant trends in the lodging industry as
well as disruptions such as greater competitiveguees, increased consolidation, industry overlngldlependence on consumer spending
patterns and changing demographics, the introductimew concepts and products, availability oblalprice levels and macroeconomic and
microeconomic conditions. The success of a pagidubtel brand, the ability of a hotel brand tdifuny obligations to operators of our
business, and trends in the lodging industry mégcabur income and cash available for dividends.

The performance of the lodging industry hissorically been closely linked to the performart the general economy and, specifically,
growth in U.S. gross domestic product. The lodgirdystry is also sensitive to business and perdtisafetionary spending levels. The lodc
industry could experience a significant declinedacupancy and average daily rates due to a reduictibusiness and/or leisure travel. Genera
economic conditions, increased fuel costs, natlisalsters and terrorist attacks are a few fachatsdould affect an individual's willingness to
travel.

We face significant competition.

Our office portfolio competes with a numloédevelopers, owners and operators of office estdte, many of which own properties
similar to ours in the same markets in which owpgerties are located. If our competitors offer gpatcrental rates below current market rates,
or below the rental rates we currently charge enaits, we may lose existing or potential tenamtisvee may be pressured to reduce our rent:
rates below those we currently charge or to offerarsubstantial rent abatements, tenant improvesnpeatly termination rights or below-
market renewal options in order to retain tenarttsmour tenants' leases expire. As a result obatlye foregoing factors, the market price of
our Common Stock, our business, financial condjtiesults of operations, cash flow and/or abilitysatisfy our debt service obligations or to
pay dividends could be materially adversely affdcte

Our hotel portfolio competes for guestsnaily with other hotels in the immediate vicin§ our hotels and secondarily with other hotels
in the geographic market of our hotels. An incrdagbe number of competitive hotels in a partic@eea could have a material adverse effect
on the occupancy, average daily rate and revenuavaélable room of our hotels in that area.

There are numerous housing alternativesctirapete with our apartment communities in atingctesidents. These include other
apartment communities and single-family homes déihatavailable for rent in the markets in which ¢bexmunities are located. If the demand
for our apartment communities is reduced or if cetiiprs develop and/or acquire competing apartrnemtmunities, rental rates may drop,
which may have a material adverse effect on oanfinal condition and results of operations. We &se competition from other real estate
investment funds, businesses and other entitiseiacquisition, development and operation of apamt communities. This competition may
result in an increase in costs and prices of apartrrommunities that we acquire and/or develop.

We may be unable to complete acquisitions that vadogifow our business and, even if consummated, we fiadl to successfully integrate
and operate acquired properties.

We plan to acquire additional propertie®agortunities arise. Our ability to acquire prdjesr on favorable terms and successfully
integrate and operate them is subject to the fatigwignificant risks:

. we may be unable to acquire desired propergeatlse of competition from other real estate ireswith better access to less
expensive capital, including other real estate ajirey companies, publicly-traded REITs and invesinfiends;
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. we may acquire properties that are not accretiv®itaesults upon acquisition, and we may not stgfoly manage and lease
those properties to meet our expectations;

. competition from other potential acquirers may #gigantly increase purchase prices;
. acquired properties may be located in new mankdtere we may face risks associated with a lackarket knowledge or
understanding of the local economy, lack of busimetationships in the area and unfamiliarity witbal governmental and

permitting procedures;

. we may be unable to generate sufficient cash frperations or obtain the necessary debt or equignfting to consummate an
acquisition on favorable terms or at all;

. we may need to spend more than anticipated ambtunmske necessary improvements or renovationsqois properties;

. we may spend significant time and money on gakacquisitions that we do not consummate;

. we may be unable to quickly and efficiently gptate new acquisitions into our existing operations

. we may suffer higher than expected vacancy rate#or lower than expected rental rates; and

. we may acquire properties without any recounseyith only limited recourse, for liabilities agat the former owners of the
properties.

If we cannot complete property acquisitionsfavorable terms, or operate acquired propetti@seet our goals or expectations, our
business, financial condition, results of operatjarash flow or ability to satisfy our debt servitdigations or to pay dividends could be
materially adversely affected.

We may be unable to successfully expand our operatiinto new markets.

Each of the risks applicable to our abiliyacquire and successfully integrate and opgraigerties in the markets in which our propertie:
are located are also applicable to our abilityaquire and successfully integrate and operate ptiepen new markets. In addition to these
risks, we may not possess the same level of faritylizvith the dynamics and market conditions oftagr new markets that we may enter,
which could adversely affect our ability to expantb those markets. We may be unable to build nifségnt market share or achieve a desirec
return on our investments in new markets. If welarsuccessful in expanding into new markets, itccadversely affect our financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow, apilit satisfy our debt service obligations and tg gizidends.

Our stockholders will not have any approval rightsgarding expansion strategies or specific futurevestments.

We have expanded and may continue to expandperations into new real estate-related aigsyiincluding, without limitation,
(i) originating and/or investing in a variety ol products, including, but not limited to, mezranlioans, commercial real estate loans and
other types of loans and/or (ii) real estate dgualent activities to create substantially stabilipedperties. See "Item 1—Business—Lending
Segment—New Commercial Loans." Stockholders witlhreove any approval rights with respect to expansteategies or future investments.
Stockholders will therefore be relying on our Adbrisvith respect to future investments to be madasyf we are unsuccessful in expanding
into new real-estate activities, it could adversafect our financial condition, results of opeoats, cash flow, ability to satisfy our debt service
obligations and to pay dividends.
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We may make investments outside of the United Statéhich would subject us to additional risks thaty affect our operations favorably
unfavorably.

We may invest some of our capital outsifithe United States. Our investments in foreignntoas will be affected favorably or
unfavorably by changes in exchange rates due ttgabland economic factors, including inflatione@use not.S. companies are not subj
to uniform accounting, auditing and financial repag standards, practices and requirements comiganath those applicable to U.S.
companies, there may be different types of, anagtayuality, information available about non-U.Smgmnies and their assets. This may affec
our ability to underwrite and evaluate proposedstmnents in foreign countries or to obtain appwadprfinancial reports relating to such
investments. In addition, with respect to certanrdries, there may be an increased potentialdoupt business practices, or the possibility o
expropriation or confiscatory taxation, politicalsocial instability, or diplomatic developmentsiticould affect our investments in those
countries. Moreover, individual economies will difffavorably or unfavorably from the U.S. economgiuch respects as growth of gross
national product, rate of inflation, changes inrency rates and exchange control regulations apititaeinvestment. As a result of the factors
described in this paragraph, any investments matde of the United States may be subject to hdrigegree of risk; there can also be no
assurance that any such investments will genegtilens comparable to investment made in the UrStates.

We are subject to risks and liabilities unique it venture relationships.

We may contemplate acquisitions of propsrthrough joint ventures and sales to institutafsartial ownership of properties that we
wholly own. Joint venture investments involve cirtasks, including for example:

. disputes with joint venture partners might affeer ability to develop, operate or dispose of@pprty;
. the refinancing of unconsolidated joint ventdedbt may require additional equity commitments onpart;
. joint venture partners may control or shareaierépproval rights over major decisions or migintdneconomic or other business

interests or goals that are inconsistent with augifess interests or goals that would affect oilitylo operate the property;

. we may be forced to fulfill the obligations of arjbventure or of joint venture partners who defawl their obligations includin
those related to debt or interest rate swaps; and

. there may be conflicts of interests because out j@nture partners may have varying interest sisctiifferent need for

liquidity, different assessments of the marketfedént tax objectives or ownership of competingiiasts in properties in our
markets.

The occurrence of one or more of the foregevents could adversely affect our businesgyiiml condition, results of operations, cash
flow or ability to satisfy our debt service obligats or to pay dividends.

We may become exposed to risks associated withestpgevelopment.

We may engage in development and redevedapactivities with respect to certain of our pndj@s. To the extent that we do so, we will
be subject to certain risks, including, withoutitiation:

. the availability and pricing of financing on farable terms or at all;
. the availability and timely receipt of zoningdaother regulatory approvals;
. contractor and subcontractor disputes, striledmr disputes or supply disruptions; and
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. the cost and timely completion of construction lagéng risks beyond our control, such as weathdaloor conditions, or
material shortages).

These risks could result in substantialnticgpated delays or expenses and, under certainrostances, could prevent completion of
development activities once undertaken, any of Wwiimuld have a material adverse effect on our lesgsiffinancial condition, results of
operations, cash flow or ability to satisfy our tisérvice obligations or to pay dividends.

Real estate investments are generally illiquid, awd may not be able to sell our properties whendesire.

Our real estate investments are relatidéficult to sell quickly. Return of capital andalzation of gains, if any, from an investment
generally will occur upon disposition or refinarafehe underlying property. We may be unable tdizeaur investment objectives by sale or
other disposition or refinance at attractive prigéhin any given period of time or may otherwiseumable to complete any exit strategy. In
particular, these risks could arise from weaknesw ieven the lack of an established market faoagrty, changes in the financial condition or
prospects of prospective purchasers, changesionahbr international economic conditions, suclhesrecent economic downturn, and
changes in laws, regulations or fiscal policieguoEdictions in which the property is located. th@rmore, certain properties may be adversely
affected by contractual rights, such as rightsrst bffer.

We may be unable to secure funds for our future gpterm liquidity needs, which could adversely impacir business and results of
operations.

Our long-term liquidity needs will consgeimarily of funds necessary to acquire properdied pay for development or repositioning of
properties, non-recurring capital expenditures, r@ficiancing of indebtedness. We may not have @efft funds on hand or may not be able tc
obtain additional financing to cover all of thesad-term cash requirements, although it shoulddtechthat we do not currently have any
significant property development or repositioningjpcts planned. The nature of our business, amdetfjuirements imposed by REIT rules
we distribute a substantial majority of our REIXdhle income on an annual basis in the form ofddimds, may cause us to have substantial
liquidity needs over the long-term. We will seeksttisfy our long-term liquidity needs through célslwvs from operations, long-term
borrowings, debt and/or equity issuances and/dheaaextent appropriate, property dispositions.seheurces of funding may not be available
on attractive terms or at all. If we cannot obtadlditional funding for our long-term liquidity necur investments may generate lower cash
flows or decline in value, or both, which may causeo reduce our dividend or sell assets at a winen we would not otherwise do so.

Potential losses may not be covered by insurat

Our business operations in California, Néak, North Carolina, Texas and the District of @obia are susceptible to, and could be
significantly affected by, adverse weather condgiand natural disasters such as earthquakesntsjiaurricanes, wind, blizzards, floods,
landslides, drought and fires. These adverse weatmalitions and natural disasters could causef&ignt damage to the properties in our
portfolio, the risk of which is enhanced by the cemtration of our properties, by aggregate netatpey income and square feet, in California
and the District of Columbia. Our insurance may lmmtidequate to cover business interruption oefosssulting from adverse weather or
natural disasters. We do not maintain insuranceusrproperties for earthquakes, except for thosepiperties for which such insurance
coverage is contractually required. In additiorr, imsurance policies include customary deductibled limitations on recovery. As a result, we
may be required to incur significant costs in therg of adverse weather conditions and naturaktBss. We may discontinue part or all of any
insurance coverage on some or all of our propeirti¢ise future if the
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cost of premiums for any of these policies in auigment exceeds the value of the coverage discdfmtehe risk of loss.

Furthermore, we may not carry insurancec@tain losses, including, but not limited to,des caused by war or certain environmental
conditions, such as mold or asbestos. In additantitle insurance policies may not insure for tiuerent aggregate market value of our
portfolio, and we do not intend to increase oue filsurance coverage if the market value of outfplio increases. As a result, we may not
have sufficient coverage against all losses thatnag experience, including from adverse title ckitfiiwe experience a loss that is uninsured
or that exceeds policy limits, we could incur sfgraint costs and lose the capital invested in tmaabed properties as well as the anticipated
future cash flows from those properties.

In addition, our properties may not be dblbe rebuilt to their existing height or sizelagir existing location under current land-use laws
and policies. In the event that we experience atamltial or comprehensive loss of one of our prisggrwe may not be able to rebuild such
property to its existing specifications and otheevnay have to upgrade such property to meet dwoeie requirements.

Terrorism and other factors affecting demand for oproperties could harm our operating results.

The strength and profitability of our busés depends on demand for and the value of ouegiep. Future terrorist attacks in the United
States, such as the attacks that occurred in New afad the District of Columbia on September 1X)26@nd in Boston on April 15, 2013, and
other acts of terrorism or war may have a negatngact on our operations. Terrorist attacks inlinited States and elsewhere may result in
declining economic activity, which could harm thenthnd for and the value of our properties. In @alljthe public perception that certain
locations are at greater risk for attack, such a@mairports, ports, and rail facilities, may demse the demand for and the value of our
properties near these sites. A decrease in denid make it difficult for us to renew or re-leamgr properties at these sites at lease rates
equal to or above historical rates. Such terratisicks could have an adverse impact on our buseem if they are not directed at our
properties.

In addition, the terrorist attacks of Sepber 11, 2001 have substantially affected the alaity and price of insurance coverage for
certain types of damages or occurrences, and surance policies for terrorism include large deitiles and co-payments. Although we
maintain terrorism insurance coverage on our plwotfthe lack of sufficient insurance for thesedgf acts could expose us to significant
losses and could have a negative impact on ouatpas.

Because we own real property, we are subject teesive environmental regulation which creates untanty regarding future
environmental expenditures and liabilities.

Environmental laws regulate, and imposeility for, releases of hazardous or toxic subsgarioto the environment. Under some of these
laws, an owner or operator of real estate mayai#difor costs related to soil or groundwater caiation on or migrating to or from its
property. In addition, persons who arrange fordisposal or treatment of hazardous or toxic sulsstamay be liable for the costs of cleaning
up contamination at the disposal site.

These laws often impose liability regardle§ whether the person knew of, or was responéilnjeéhe presence of the hazardous or toxic
substances that caused the contamination. Thenmesé, or contamination resulting from, any ofshesubstances, or the failure to properly
remediate them, may adversely affect our abilitgeth or rent our property or to borrow using tmeperty as collateral. In addition, persons
exposed to hazardous or toxic substances may sperfsonal injury damages. For example, some lay®se liability for release of or
exposure to ashestesntaining materials. In other cases, some of coperties may have been impacted by contaminatam past operatior
or from off-site sources. As a result, in connettigth our current or former ownership, operation,
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management and development of real properties, ayela potentially liable for investigation and ¢lap costs, penalties and damages undel
environmental laws.

Although most of our properties have badrjected to preliminary environmental assessmé&ntsyn as Phase | assessments, by
independent environmental consultants that idetfyain liabilities, Phase | assessments areduhiit scope, and may not include or identify
all potential environmental liabilities or riskssagiated with a property. Unless required by applie law, we may decide not to further
investigate, remedy or ameliorate the liabilitiesctbsed in the Phase | assessments.

Further, these or other environmental sisidiay not identify all potential environmentablidies or accurately assess whether we will
incur material environmental liabilities in the dué. If we do incur material environmental liabi@g in the future, we may face significant
remediation costs, and we may find it difficultsell any affected properties.

Compliance with the ADA and fire, safety and othergulations may require us to make unanticipatedpexditures that could significantly
reduce the cash available for dividends.

Our properties are subject to regulatiodasrfederal laws, such as the ADA, pursuant to kit public accommodations must meet
federal requirements related to access and useshlyldd persons. Although we believe that our ptgesubstantially comply with present
requirements of the ADA, we have not conductedwatitar investigation of all of our properties tetdrmine our compliance. If one or mor
our properties or future properties is not in caamte with the ADA, we might be required to takmeglial action, which would require us
incur additional costs to bring the property intampliance. Noncompliance with the ADA could alssul¢in imposition of fines or an award
damages to private litigants.

Additional federal, state and local lawsoainay require modifications to our propertiesestrict our ability to renovate our properties.
cannot predict the ultimate amount of the costamhgliance with the ADA or other legislation.

In addition, our properties are subjectadous federal, state and local regulatory reeguéets, such as state and local earthquake, fire a
life safety requirements. If we were to fail to qaghwith these various requirements, we might ingovernmental fines or private damage
awards. If we incur substantial costs to complyhvfite ADA or any other regulatory requirements, lnusiness, financial condition, results of
operations, cash flow or ability to satisfy our tlsérvice obligations or to pay dividends couldierially adversely affected. Local
regulations, including municipal or local ordinasceoning restrictions and restrictive covenantsased by community developers may
restrict our use of our properties and may requéréo obtain approval from local officials or commity standards organizations at any time
with respect to our properties, including priorguiring a property or when undertaking renovaiohany of our existing properties.

We face risks associated with security breache®tigh cyber attacks, cyber intrusions or otherwises, well as other significant disruptions
of our Advisor's and Manager's information technodfy (IT) networks and related systems.

We face risks associated with security tinea, whether through cyber attacks or cyber imtnssover the Internet, malware, computer
viruses, attachments to e-mails, persons insid@xanization or persons with access to systenidarmir organization, and other significant
disruptions of our Advisor's or Manager's IT netkgand related systems. The risk of a securitydirea disruption, particularly through cyt
attack or cyber intrusion, including by computeckers, foreign governments and cyber terrorists,demerally increased as the number,
intensity and sophistication of attempted attacdid iatrusions from around the world have increagagr. Advisor's and Manager's IT networks
and related systems are essential to the operaitionr business and our ability to perform day-&y-@perations (including managing our
building systems), and, in some cases, may be
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critical to the operations of certain of our tersarithere can be no assurance that efforts to niaithi security and integrity of these types c
networks and related systems will be effectivehat aittempted security breaches or disruptionsavoat be successful or damaging. A
security breach or other significant disruptiondtving our Advisor's or Manager's IT networks aethated systems could adversely impact ou
business, financial condition, results of operatjarash flow or ability to satisfy our debt servitdigations or to pay dividends.

Changes in accounting standards may adversely intpag financial condition and/or results of operains.

We are subject to the rules and regulatadrie U.S. Financial Accounting Standards BodFA\SB") related to generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP"). Various changes¥AAP are constantly being considered, some of wbaiid materially impact our
reported financial condition and/or results of @tiens. Also, to the extent publicly traded comparin the United States would be required in
the future to prepare financial statements in ataoce with International Financial Reporting Staddq'IFRS") instead of the current GAAP
in the United States, this change in accountingdsteds could materially impact our reported finahcondition and/or results of operations.

Risks Related to Our Lending Business
Commercial mortgage loans expose us to a high degrérisk associated with investing in real estate.

The performance and value of our loans dép@pon many factors beyond our control. Commekredd estate has experienced cyclical
performance and significant fluctuations in thetplhat impacts the value of our real estate caltditeed loans. The ultimate performance and
value of our loans are subject to risks associaitdthe ownership and operation of the propenibgch collateralize our loans, including the
property owner's ability to operate the propertthveiufficient cash flow to meet debt service reguients. The performance and value of the
properties collateralizing our loans may be advugraffected by:

. changes in national or regional economic conditions

. changes in real estate market conditions debanges in national, regional or local economiaditions or property market
characteristics;

. competition from other properties;

. changes in interest rates and the condition ofléi# and equity capital markets;

. the ongoing need for capital repairs and improveasen

. increases in real estate tax rates and other apgetpenses (including utilities);

. adverse changes in governmental rules and fisdigigm acts of God, including earthquakes, hunresaand other natural

disasters; acts of war or terrorism; or a decr@atiee availability of or an increase in the coinsurance;

. adverse changes in zoning laws;
. the impact of environmental legislation and ctiemze with environmental laws; and
. other factors that are beyond our control ordtwetrol of the commercial property owners.

In the event that any of the propertiesarlyihg our loans experience any of the foregoimgngs or occurrences, the value of, and return
on, such loans may be negatively impacted. Moreaxerprofitability may be negatively impacted.
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There are significant risks in lending to small binesses.

Our loans receivable included in assetd fa#l sale consist primarily of loans to smallvattely-owned businesses. There is typically no
publicly available information about these busiesssherefore, we must rely on our own due diligetacobtain information in connection w
our investment decisions. Our borrowers may nottmeeincome, cash flow and other coverage tegisally imposed by banks. A borrower's
ability to repay its loan may be adversely impadigdumerous factors, including a downturn iniitdustry or other negative local or macro-
economic conditions. Deterioration in a borrowénancial condition and prospects may be accomphioyedeterioration in the collateral for
the loan. In addition, small businesses typicadipehd on the management talents and efforts opersmn or a small group of people for their
success. The loss of services of one or more sktpersons could have an adverse impact on thataper of the small business. Small
companies are typically more vulnerable to custopneferences, market conditions and economic dawstand often need additional capital
to maintain the business, expand or compete. Thaesers may have an impact on the ultimate recowéur loans receivable from such
businesses. Loans to small businesses, therefimayé a high degree of business and financial rgkich can result in substantial losses and
accordingly should be considered speculative.

Longer term loans and our real estate owned ("RECéJe typically illiquid and their value may decreas

Our commercial real estate loans and retate acquired through foreclosure are typicaliguld investments. Therefore, we will be
unable to vary our portfolio promptly in responsehanging economic, financial and investment doois. As a result, the fair market value
of these investments may decrease in the futuréassds may result. The illiquid nature of our leamay adversely affect our ability to dispt
of such loans at times when it may be advantagepnscessary for us to liquidate such investments.

We have a concentration of investments which magatvely impact our financial condition and resultsf operations.

Substantially all of our revenue from tbading segment is generated from loans collatemliz hospitality properties. At December 31,
2014, our loans were 95% concentrated in the halgpitndustry. Any factors that negatively impaleé hospitality industry, including
recessions, severe weather events (such as h@sidalizzards, floods, etc.), depressed commeneddlestate markets, travel restrictions,
bankruptcies or other political or geopolitical at& could have an adverse effect on our finar@atition and results of operations.

Establishing loan loss reserves entails significgatdgment and may negatively impact our resultsopferations.

We have a quarterly review process to ifleahd evaluate potential exposure to loan losEbs.determination of whether significant
doubt exists and whether a loan loss reserve isssacy requires judgment and consideration ofabis fand circumstances existing at the
evaluation date. Additionally, further changestte tacts and circumstances of the individual boemythe limited service hospitality industry
and the economy may require the establishmentdifiadal loan loss reserves and the effect to esults of operations would be adverse. If
our judgments underlying the establishment of oanlloss reserves are not correct, our resultp@fations may be negatively impacted.

Whenever our borrowers experience significgerating difficulties and we are forced to ldate the collateral underlying the loans,
losses may be relatively substantial.

27




Table of Contents
The loans we originate are subject to delinquenfiyreclosure and loss, any or all of which could rgsin losses.

Our legacy commercial real estate loansl@ads originated pursuant to the SBA 7(a) loargam are collateralized by incompeeducing
properties (primarily limited service hospitalityoperties) and typically have personal guaran@es.commercial real estate mortgage loans
are secured by commercial properties, collaterdligeproperties which may be income producing gpécally do not have personal
guaranties. In addition, our legacy commercial essthte loans and loans originated pursuant t8B#e 7(a) Program are predominately to
operators of limited service hospitality propertiAs a result, these operators are subject to askeciated with the hospitality industry,
including recessions, severe weather events, degfemmmercial real estate markets, travel restnigt bankruptcies or other political or
geopolitical events.

Our real estate loans are subject to a$ldelinquency and foreclosure. The ability of arbwer to repay a loan secured by an income-
producing property typically is dependent primatilyon the successful operation of such properheratan upon the existence of indepen
income or assets of the borrower. If the net opegahcome of the property is reduced, the borrésvahility to repay the loan may be impail
Net operating income of an inco-producing property can be affected by, among dtfiags: tenant mix, success of tenant businesses,
property management decisions, property locati@hcamdition, competition from comparable types wfgerties, changes in laws that incre
operating expense or limit rents that may be ctiirgey need to address environmental contaminatitime property, the occurrence of any
uninsured casualty at the property, changes immalti regional or local economic conditions andfeecific industry segments, declines in
regional or local real estate values, declineggianal or local rental or occupancy rates, in@eas interest rates, real estate tax rates ara
operating expenses, changes in governmental mnglgslations and fiscal policies, including enviraemtal legislation, acts of God, terrorism,
social unrest and civil disturbances.

In the event of any loan default, we wilap a risk of loss of principal to the extent of a@eficiency between the value of the collateral
and the principal and accrued interest on the laduich could have a material adverse effect oncash flow from operations. In the event of
the bankruptcy of a borrower, the loan to suchdeer will be deemed to be collateralized only te #xtent of the value of the underlying
property at the time of bankruptcy (as determingdhle bankruptcy court). If a borrower defaultsaore of our commercial real estate loans
the underlying property collateralizing the loannisufficient to satisfy the outstanding balanceéhaf loan, we will suffer a loss. In addition to
losses related to collateral deficiencies, durhgfbreclosure process we may incur costs relatéiuet protection of our collateral including
unpaid real estate taxes, legal fees, franchise fiegurance and operating shortfalls to the extenproperty is being operated by a court-
appointed receiver.

Foreclosure and bankruptcy are complexsamdetimes lengthy processes that are subject ter&leghd state laws and regulations. An
action to foreclose on a property is subject to ynafrthe delays and expenses of other lawsuitseifdefendant raises defenses or
counterclaims. In the event of a default by a negty, these restrictions, among other things, nmpete our ability to foreclose on or sell the
mortgaged property or to obtain proceeds sufficiemepay all amounts due to us on the mortgage Barrowers have the option of seeking
Federal bankruptcy protection which could delayftiteclosure process. In conjunction with the bapkey process, the terms of the loan
agreements may be modified. Typically, delays anftreclosure process will have a negative impaaiwr results of operations and/or
financial condition due to direct and indirect costcurred and possible deterioration of the valugne collateral.

28




Table of Contents

We operate in a competitive market for investmepportunities and future competition for our commeed real estate collateralized loans
may limit our ability to originate or dispose of otarget loans and could also affect the yield biese investments.

We are in competition with a number of gesi for the types of commercial real estate cefklized loans that we plan to originate. Those
entities include, among others, REITs, specialtgriice companies, savings and loan associationks ba financial institutions. Many of
these competitors are substantially larger and bawmsiderably greater financial, technical and retinlg resources than we do. Several other
mortgage REITs have recently raised, or are exgdoteaise, significant amounts of capital, and ro@ate competition for investment
opportunities. Some of these competitors may hdwewvar cost of funds and access to funding soutttatsmay not be available to us. In
addition, many of our competitors may not be sulfj@¢he operating constraints associated with Rfgldlification or maintenance of
exclusions from registration under the Investmemin@any Act. Furthermore, competition may furtherifiour ability to generate desired
returns. Due to this competition, we may not be a@bltake advantage of attractive investment oppdiés from time to time, and can offer no
assurance that we will be able to identify and miakestments that are consistent with our investrobjective. We cannot assure you that the
competitive pressures we face will not have a naltadverse effect on our business, financial diowliand results of operations.

We may be subject to lender liability claims.

In recent years, a number of judicial diecis have upheld the right of borrowers to sueitlegéhstitutions on the basis of various evolv
legal theories, collectively termed "lender liatyili Generally, lender liability is founded on theemise that a lender has either violated a duty
whether implied or contractual, of good faith aai flealing owed to the borrower or has assumesheeg of control over the borrower
resulting in the creation of a fiduciary duty owtedhe borrower or our other creditors or stocklkodd We cannot assure prospective investors
that such claims will not arise or that we will st subject to significant liability if a claim diis type did arise.

We may enter into hedging transactions that coubtpese us to contingent liabilities in the future dradversely impact our financial
condition.

Subject to maintaining our qualificationaREIT, we may enter into hedging transactions¢bald require us to fund cash payments in
certain circumstances (e.g., the early terminatiotme hedging instrument caused by an event afudebr other early termination event, or the
decision by a counterparty to request margin stesiit is contractually owed under the terms ef ledging instrument). The amount due
would be equal to the unrealized loss of the opeapspositions with the respective counterparty emald also include other fees and charges
These economic losses will be reflected in ourltesi operations, and our ability to fund theségatiions will depend on the liquidity of our
assets and access to capital at the time, ancetitbto fund these obligations could adversely impacfinancial condition.

In addition, certain of the hedging instents that we may enter into could involve riskgsithey often are not traded on regulated
exchanges, guaranteed by an exchange or our ddavirse, or regulated by any U.S. or foreign gawemtal authorities. We cannot assure
you that a liquid secondary market will exist fadging instruments that we may enter into in thier; and we may be required to mainta
position until exercise or expiration, which cousdult in significant losses.

Furthermore, we intend to record any déneaand hedging transactions we enter into in edaace with GAAP. However, we may
choose not to pursue, or fail to qualify for, he@geounting treatment relating to such derivatha@ruments. As a result, our operating results
may suffer because losses, if any, on these demvitstruments may not be offset by a changeérfaiir value of the related hedged
transaction or item.
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Curtailment of our ability to utilize the SBA 7(adprogram by the Federal government could adverseffget our results of operations.

We are dependent upon the Federal governimenaintain the SBA 7(a) Program. There can bassurance that the program will be
maintained or that loans will continue to be gutead at current levels. In addition, there can®assurance that First Western will be able to
maintain its status as a Preferred Lender or tleatam maintain our SBA 7(a) license.

If we cannot continue originating and sgjlgovernment guaranteed loans at current levelsould experience a decrease in future
servicing spreads and earned premiums. From tirtienthe SBA has reached its internal budgeteddiand ceased to guarantee loans for &
stated period of time. In addition, the SBA mayraits rules regarding loans or Congress may ddgjsiation or fail to approve a budget
that would have the effect of discontinuing, redigcavailability of funds for, or changing loan prams. Non-governmental programs could
replace government programs for some borrowersthieuterms might not be equally acceptable. Iferesanges occur, the volume of loans to
small businesses that now qualify for governmemtrgnteed loans could decline, as could the pradfiitabf these loans.

First Western has been granted national fafeis and originates, sells and services smaihbss loans and is authorized to place SBA
guarantees on loans without seeking prior SBA reaad approval. Being a national lender, PLP staliosvs First Western to expedite loans
since First Western is not required to presentiepidns to the SBA for concurrent review and apptoThe loss of PLP status could adver:
impact our marketing efforts and ultimately loaigoration volume which could negatively impact oesults of operations.

We may not be able to successfully deconsolidatelending segment, which may result in an adverdéeet to our business or the way our
company is perceived.

Our Board of Directors approved a plantfa lending business that, when completed, willltéa the deconsolidation of the lending
segment. We are currently incurring costs and esgenelating to the plan. However, we cannot asgauuehat we will be able to successfully
consummate the deconsolidation of the lending saegamecurrently contemplated under the plan apprdyeour Board of Directors or at all.
As a result, our failure to deconsolidate the lagdiegment could have an adverse effect on ounéssior the way our company is perceived
to analysts, investors or others.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure
Failure to qualify as a REIT would have significaradverse consequences to us and the value of cuskst

If we fail to qualify as a REIT for federacome tax purposes, we would be taxed as a catipar We believe that we are organized and
qualified as a REIT and intend to operate in a reaitmat will allow us to continue to qualify as EIR. However, we cannot assure you tha
are qualified as such, or that we will remain dfiedi as such in the future. This is because qealifbn as a REIT involves the application of
highly technical and complex provisions of the Caddo which there are only limited judicial andraistrative interpretations and involves
the determination of facts and circumstances niitedynwithin our control. Future legislation, newgulations, administrative interpretations ot
court decisions may significantly change the taxslar the application of the tax laws with resgeagualification as a REIT for federal incol
tax purposes or the federal income tax consequericesch qualification.

If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we couldde serious tax consequences that could subskanéidlice our funds available for payment of
dividends for each of the years involved because:

. we would not be allowed a deduction for dividemaid to stockholders in computing our taxabl®ine and could be subject to
federal income tax at regular corporate rates;
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. we also could be subject to the federal alternatit@dmum tax and possibly increased state and l@o@s;

. unless we are entitled to relief under statutovmions, we could not elect to be subject to Bedaas a REIT for four taxable
years following the year during which we are didiieal; and

. all dividends would be subject to tax as ordyriacome to the extent of our current and accuredlaarnings and profits
potentially eligible as "qualified dividends" subjeo the applicable income tax rate.

Any such corporate tax liability could hébstantial and would reduce our cash availabledimgng other things, our operations and
distributions to stockholders. In addition, if walfto qualify as a REIT, we would no longer beuiegd to pay dividends. As a result of these
factors, our failure to qualify as a REIT could kan adverse effect on our financial conditionsyiteof operations, cash flows, ability to
satisfy our debt service obligations and to payddinds.

To maintain our REIT status, we may be forced tortmw funds during unfavorable market conditions.

To qualify as a REIT, we generally mustrilisite to our stockholders at least 90% of ourtagable income each year, excluding net
capital gains, and we will be subject to regulaipooate income taxes to the extent that we disteiless than 100% of our net taxable income
each year. In addition, we will be subject to ad8adeductible excise tax on the amount, if anywhich distributions paid by us in any
calendar year are less than the sum of 85% of mlimary income, 95% of our capital gain net incaame 100% of our undistributed income
from prior years. In order to maintain our REITtetaand avoid the payment of income and excisesfaxe may need to borrow funds to meet
the REIT distribution requirements even if the tipeavailing market conditions are not favorabletfarse borrowings. These borrowing needs
could result from, among other things, differenicesming between the actual receipt of cash amtlsion of income for federal income tax
purposes, or the effect of non-deductible capitpkaditures, the creation of reserves or requisdat dr amortization payments. These source
however, may not be available on favorable ternmat @il. Our access to thighrty sources of capital depends on a number tdrfgancluding
the market's perception of our growth potential, @aurent debt levels, the market price of our Camrtock, and our current and potential
future earnings. We cannot assure you that wehaille access to such capital on favorable ternteatdsired times, or at all, which may ca
us to curtail our investment activities and/or teptbse of assets at inopportune times, and cowd &a adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations, cash flow, apiti satisfy our debt service obligations and tg gizidends.

Complying with REIT requirements may affect our pitability and may force us to liquidate or forgotlerwise attractive investments.

To qualify as a REIT, we must continuallisfy tests concerning, among other things, thereaand diversification of our assets, the
sources of our income and the amounts we distritoubeir stockholders. We may be required to ligtada forgo otherwise attractive
investments in order to satisfy the asset and irct@sts or to qualify under certain statutory fgli@visions. We also may be required to make
distributions to stockholders at disadvantageausgior when we do not have funds readily availtdldistribution. As a result, having to
comply with the distribution requirement could cawss to: (i) sell assets in adverse market corditi¢i) borrow on unfavorable terms; or
(iii) distribute amounts that would otherwise bedsted in future acquisitions, capital expenditunesepayment of debt. Accordingly,
satisfying the REIT requirements could have an estveffect on our business results, profitabilitg ability to execute our business plan.
Moreover, if we are compelled to liquidate our istreents to meet any of these asset, income oitdigan tests, or to repay obligations to our
lenders, we may be unable to comply with one oramdithe requirements
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applicable to REITs or may be subject to a 100%otarny resulting gain if such sales constituténinited transactions.
Dividends payable by REITs do not qualify for theduced tax rates available for some dividen

Income from "qualified dividends" payabteU.S. stockholders that are individuals, trusid estates are generally subject to tax at
preferential rates. Dividends payable by REITSs, éxsv, generally are not eligible for the preferairtix rates applicable to qualified dividend
income. Although these rules do not adversely affexztaxation of REITs or dividends payable by RElto the extent that the preferential
rates continue to apply to regular corporate gieditlividends, investors who are individuals, tsusmtd estates may perceive investments in
REITs to be relatively less attractive than investis in the stocks of non-REIT corporations that gi@idends, which could materially and
adversely affect the value of the shares of REN®uding the per share trading price of our samgi

The power of the Board of Directors to revoke ouER election without stockholder approval may cauadverse consequences to our
stockholders

Our organizational documents permit ourf@az Directors to revoke or otherwise terminate B&IT election, without the approval of
our stockholders, if the Board of Directors deterasi that it is not in our best interest to quadifya REIT. In such a case, we would become
subject to U.S. federal, state and local incomeotarur net taxable income and we would no longereguired to distribute most of our net
taxable income to our stockholders, which have emtveonsequences on the total return to our stdeéiso

Our ownership of and relationship with our taxabREIT subsidiaries will be limited, and a failure toomply with the limits would
jeopardize our REIT status and may result in themigation of a 100% excise ta:

Subject to certain restrictions, a REIT noayn up to 100% of the stock of one or more tax&H&T subsidiaries. A taxable REIT
subsidiary may earn income that would not be quialifincome if earned directly by the parent REBbth the subsidiary and the REIT must
jointly elect to treat the subsidiary as a taxd®e T subsidiary. A corporation of which a taxablEIR subsidiary directly or indirectly owr
more than 35% of the voting power or value of tteels will automatically be treated as a taxable RElbsidiary. Overall, no more than 25%
of the value of a REIT's assets may consist okstosecurities of one or more taxable REIT sulasids. A taxable REIT subsidiary generally
will pay income tax at regular corporate rates oy taxable income that it earns. In addition, @iveable REIT subsidiary rules limit the
deductibility of interest paid or accrued by a taleaREIT subsidiary to its parent REIT to assued the taxable REIT subsidiary is subject to
an appropriate level of corporate taxation. Theswlso impose a 100% excise tax on certain triopadetween a taxable REIT subsidiary
and its parent REIT that are not conducted on arsaength basis.

Our taxable REIT subsidiaries are subjectdrmal corporate income taxes. We continuouslgitoothe value of our investments in
taxable REIT subsidiaries for the purpose of emgucompliance with the rule that no more than 25% e value of our assets may consist of
taxable REIT subsidiary stock and securities (wlischpplied at the end of each calendar quartég.aggregate value of our taxable REIT
subsidiary stock and securities is less than 25#%ef¥alue of our total assets (including our tédedXEIT subsidiary stock and securities) as of
December 31, 2014. In addition, we will scrutingkof our transactions with our taxable REIT sdlmiies for the purpose of ensuring that
they are entered into on arm's-length terms inraaavoid incurring the 100% excise tax describdve. There are no distribution
requirements applicable to the taxable REIT subsiel and after-tax earnings may be retained. T¢arde no assurance, however, that we
will be able to comply with the 25% limitation omoership of taxable REIT subsidiary stock and séegron an
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ongoing basis so as to maintain REIT status ovtddaapplication of the 100% excise tax imposedateriain non-arm's-length transactions.
Certain provisions of Maryland law could inhibit cnges in control.

Certain provisions of the Maryland Gené&atporation Law ("MGCL") may have the effect of ibiting a third party from making a
proposal to acquire us or impeding a change ofrobahder circumstances that otherwise could pmwadr stockholders with the opportunity
to realize a premium over the then-prevailing magkiece of our Common Stock, including:

. "business combination" provisions that, subjedinitations, prohibit certain business combinatitve$ween us and an
"interested stockholder" (defined generally as persson who beneficially owns 10% or more of thengpower of our shares
or an affiliate thereof) for five years after the@shrecent date on which the stockholder becoméstarested stockholder, and
thereafter impose special appraisal rights andiapgtockholder voting requirements on these coivns; and

. "control share" provisions that provide that "cohshares" of our company (defined as shares whiblen aggregated with
other shares controlled by the stockholder, erttitiestockholder to exercise one of three incrgasinges of voting power in
electing directors) acquired in a "control sharguasition" (defined as the direct or indirect aaition of ownership or control «
"control shares") have no voting rights excepti® éxtent approved by our stockholders by theraéftive vote of at least two-
thirds of all the votes entitled to be cast onrfadter, excluding all interested shares.

We have elected to opt out of these promssiof the MGCL, in the case of the business coatlzin provisions of the MGCL, by
resolution of our Board of Directors, and in theeaf the control share provisions of the MGCL spiant to a provision in our bylaws.
However, our Board of Directors may by resolutiteceto repeal the foregoing opt-outs from the bess combination provisions of the
MGCL and we may, by amendment to our bylaws, opbithe control share provisions of the MGCL in theire.

Our charter, bylaws, the partnership agesgrfor our operating partnership and Maryland &so contain other provisions that may
delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a chafgerdrol that might involve a premium price forrddommon Stock or otherwise be in the |
interest of our stockholders.

We are controlled by an affiliate of CIM Group.

Urban I, an affiliate of CIM Group, bengflly owns shares of our Common Stock that, togettith shares held by another affiliate of
CIM Group, currently represents approximately 98 @he total voting power of the Company. For@ag as affiliates of CIM Group
continue to own a significant percentage of ouclst&€IM Group will be able to significantly influee the composition of our Board of
Directors and the approval of actions requiringktmlder approval. Accordingly, CIM Group will has@nificant influence with respect to «
management, business plans and policies, inclutim@ppointment and removal of our officers. Irtipatar, CIM Group will be able to cause
or prevent a change of control of the Company anrange in the composition of our Board of Directms could preclude any unsolicited
acquisition of the Company. The concentration ohekship could deprive you of an opportunity to reee premium for your shares of
Common Stock as part of a sale of the Company Bimdately might affect the market price of our CommStock.
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We are a "controlled company" within the meaning dlfie rules of the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC and, asesult, qualify for, and
currently rely on, exemptions from certain corpomgovernance requirements. You do not have the sanatections afforded to
stockholders of companies that are subject to suefuirements.

Affiliates of CIM Group control a majorityf the total voting power in the election of oureditors. As a result, we are a "controlled
company" within the meaning of the rules of the ND¥&) Stock Market LLC. Under these rules, a compahyhich more than 50% of the
voting power in the election of directors is helddn individual, group or another company is a toalled company” and may elect not to
comply with certain corporate governance requiragsiencluding the requirements that (i) a boardbeprised of a majority of "independent
directors," as defined under the rules of the NA®DStock Market LLC, (ii) a compensation committeedomprised entirely of independent
directors and (iii) nomination decisions be madkeziby independent directors constituting a majarf the independent directors in a vote in
which only independent directors participate, aoanination committee comprised entirely of indepentdlirectors.

As of December 31, 2014, we availed ouesebf these exemptions. As a result, our Boardifdibrs is not comprised of a majority of
independent directors, we do not have a compemsatimmittee, and our nomination decisions are nbgd®ur entire Board of Directors.
Accordingly, investors in our Common Stock do navé the same protections afforded to stockholdecsrmpanies that are subject to all of
the corporate governance requirements of the NAS3#dgk Market LLC.

Our future success depends on the Manager and thii8or, their respective key personnel and theicess to the investment professionals
of CIM Group. We may not find suitable replacementsuch key personnel or investment professionkdave the employment of the
Manager, the Advisor or other applicable affiliated CIM Group or if such key personnel or investmiprofessionals otherwise becor
unavailable to us.

We rely on the resources of the Managendaoage our day-to-day operations other than theatpas of CIM Urban, and CIM Urban
relies on the resources of the Advisor to managddy-to-day operations. We currently do not employ personnel (other than two
executives, who are jointly employed by us and @BR). We rely completely on the Manager to provwid@nagement and administration
services to us, and CIM Urban relies completelyrenAdviser to provide CIM Urban with investmenvesbry services.

Our executive officers also serve as ofiaa employees of the Manager and/or the Advisatleer applicable affiliates of CIM Group.
The Manager and the Advisor have significant diganeas to the implementation of investment andratireg policies and strategies on behalf
of us and CIM Urban. Accordingly, we believe that success depends to a significant extent upoaftbgs, experience, diligence, skill and
network of business contacts of the officers andpersonnel of the Manager, the Advisor and themépplicable affiliates of CIM Group. T
departure of any of these officers or key persoonnald adversely affect our financial conditiorsuks of operations, cash flow, ability to
satisfy our debt service obligations and to payddinds.

We also depend on access to, and the dieyeskill and network of, business contacts ofpttfessionals within CIM Group and the
information and deal flow generated by its investitrrofessionals in the course of their investnaert portfolio management activities. The
departure of any of these individuals, or of a gigant number of the investment professionalsrmgipals of CIM Group, could have an
adverse effect on our financial condition, resafteperations, cash flow, ability to satisfy oubtieervice obligations and to pay dividends. We
cannot assure you that we will continue to havessto CIM Group's investment professionals anftemation and deal flow.
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The Manager and the Advisor and certain of theirfédifites manage or otherwise provide services ta business and our subsidiaries'
businesses pursuant to the Master Services Agredraed the Investment Management Agreement. Notwidimgling the fact that these
agreements provide broad discretion and authoritydathe payment of fees to the Manager or the Advjss applicable, the Master Services
Agreement may be assigned by the Manager in certdioumstances without our consent and neither agneent may be terminated by t
except in the case of the Master Services Agreemianimited circumstances for cause, either or bodf which may have a material adverse
effect on us.

We and our lending subsidiaries are pattdhe Master Services Agreement pursuant to wiieiManager has the right to provide or
designate third parties to provide various managemed administrative services to us and all ofditect and indirect subsidiaries. We are
obligated to pay the Manager the Base Service éiethé provision of Base Services and market ratestiction fees for transactional and othe
services that the Manager elects to provide t¢?ussuant to the terms of the Master Services Ageaeénthe Manager has the right to provide
any transactional services to us that we wouldretise engage a third party to provide.

Pursuant to the terms of the Master Sesviigreement, the Manager may also recommend neiwdsassopportunities to us for our
approval and will make a recommendation as to wdrethch such new business should be internally geghar externally managed and if
externally managed, the external manager and thestef the management agreement. If the propostednat manager is to be the Manager,
our independent directors must approve the dectsiomake such new business externally managedhanetms of the applicable managen
agreement. If such new business is to be intermadilgaged, the Manager will oversee the hiring eéq@enel and the implementation of intel
management as a transactional service.

The Master Services Agreement continudslifiorce and effect until December 31, 2018, dimereafter will renew automatically each
year. We may generally only terminate the MasteviSes Agreement for the Manager's material bred¢he Master Services Agreeme
fraud, gross negligence or willful misconduct oinifcertain limited circumstances, a change of mf the Manager occurs that our
independent directors determine to be materiaftidental to us and our subsidiaries as a wholedd/eot have the right to terminate the
Master Services Agreement solely for the poor parémce of our operations or any investment madeshbyn the recommendation of the
Manager. In addition, CIM Urban does not have tgbtrto terminate the Investment Management Agregmader any circumstances.
Moreover, any removal of Urban GP Manager as managelM Urban GP pursuant to the Master Servicgse&ment or the CIM Urban
Partnership Agreement will not affect the rightdted Manager under the Master Services Agreemethieohdvisor under the Investment
Management Agreement. Accordingly, the Manager edtitinue to provide the Base Services and redbwd®ase Service Fee, and the
Manager or the applicable service provider will thame to provide the transactional services andivecrelated transaction fees, under the
Master Services Agreement, and the Advisor willtoare to receive the management fee under the imezg Management Agreement.

Further, the Master Services Agreement bwgssigned by the Manager without our consemitarcase of an assignment by the Manage
to an affiliate or an entity that is a successoough merger or acquisition of the business oMla@ager. In certain circumstances, including
the merger or other acquisition of the businesh®@Manager, the amount of fees being paid purdoahie agreements or the poor perform
by the Manager, we may desire to terminate oneareraof the management agreements. As a resuledintited termination rights under the
agreements, we may not have the right to termisiatd agreement(s), which could have a materialradwffect on us. See "ltem 1 Business—
Master Services Agreement."
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The Manager's and Advisor's fees are payable redass of our performance, which may reduce their emtive to devote time and resources
to our portfolio.

Pursuant to the Master Services AgreentieatManager is entitled to receive the Base Selwéee regardless of our performance, and is
also entitled to receive fees related to the promisf transactional and other services. The Advis@ntitled to receive an asset management
fee based upon the gross asset value of CIM Urbasgts, including any assets acquired by CIM Unbbéime future. See "ltem 1 Business—
Investment Management Agreement.” The Manager'stenddvisor's entitlement to substantial non-penfance based compensation might
reduce their incentive to devote their time andreffo seeking profitable opportunities for our fhalio.

The Advisor's fees are based on the gross assetevaf CIM Urban's assets, including any assets aigd by CIM Urban in the future. This
fee arrangement may lead the Advisor to recommeisttier investments regardless of their lo-term performance in an effort to maximize
its compensation.

The Advisor's fees are based on the gresstaalue of CIM Urban's assets, including angtasscquired by CIM Urban in the future,
which may provide incentive for the Advisor to istén assets that are riskier investments regasdietheir performance. Because these fees
are based on gross asset value, the Advisor wiktiewhen CIM Urban, or we on its behalf, incuebtor uses leverage. Consequently, the
Advisor may recommend investments that are notssaedy in the best interest of our stockholdersritier to maximize its compensation.

Each of the Manager and the Advisor undertakesservices to us under very broad mandates; in patie, the Advisor has broa
discretion with respect to CIM Urban's investmentmd the Board of Directors does not approve eaghdstment and financing decision
made by the Advisor, which may result in CIM Urbanmaking riskier investments than those currentlgraprising its investment portfolio.

The Manager, under the Master Services éxgent, and the Advisor, under the Investment Mamagé Agreement, have broad discre
and authority over our day-to-day operations anesiments. While our directors periodically revite performance of our businesses, they
do not review all decisions made by the Managerthadidvisor, including proposed investments orithplementation of other strategic
initiatives. In addition, in conducting reviewsar businesses, our directors may rely primarilyrdarmation provided to them by the
Manager or the Advisor, as the case may be. Thealjlarand the Advisor may cause us to enter intdfgignt transactions or undertake
significant activities that may be difficult or irapsible to unwind or exit by the time they are eseéd by our directors. Each of the Manager
and the Advisor has great latitude in the impleragon of our strategies, including determining tyy@es of assets that are proper investments
for us, which could result in investment returnatthre substantially below expectations or thatltés losses, which could have an adverse
effect on our financial condition, results of ogaras, cash flow, ability to satisfy our debt sesvbbligations and to pay dividends. Decisions
made and investments entered into by the Advisgr moafully reflect the best interests of our stioclkders.

The Advisor may change its investment process,lectenot to follow it, without stockholder conseat any time, which may adversely affect
our investments.

The Advisor may change its investment pss@nd philosophy without stockholder consent gttimme. In addition, there can be no
assurance that the Advisor will follow its investmerocess in relation to the identification andusition or origination of prospective
investments. Changes in the Advisor's investmentgss and/or philosophy may result in inferior, agother things, due diligence and
transaction standards, which may adversely affecperformance of our assets and investment piortfol
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The Advisor, the Manager and their respective afftes may engage in additional management or invesht opportunities which compete
with us and our subsidiaries, which could result decisions that are not in the best interests of stockholders.

The Investment Management Agreement wighAtlvisor and the Master Services Agreement wighMlanager do not prevent the Advi
and the Manager, as applicable, and their respeafiiliates from engaging in additional managen@rihvestment opportunities, some of
which could compete with us and our subsidiarié®e Advisor, the Manager and their respective affis may engage in additional
management or investment opportunities that haeelayping objectives with ours, and may thus fam#licts in the allocation of investment
opportunities to these other investments. Allocatibinvestment opportunities is at the discretbthe Advisor and/or the Manager and there
is no guarantee that this allocation would be niadke best interest of our stockholders.

There may be conflicts of interest in aditiog investment opportunities to CIM Urban andeottunds, investment vehicles and ventures
managed by the Advisor. For example, the Advisoresuly serves as the investment manager of CINUrban REIT), LLC and its parallel
funds (collectively, "CIM VI"), a private fund fored to invest in substantially stabilized real estaid real estatelated assets located in ur
areas that CIM Group has already qualified for gtreent. There is a significant overlap in the asaatl investment strategies between us ant
CIM VI, and many of the same investment personnklprovide services to both entities. Further, favisor and its affiliates may form fun
or sponsor investment vehicles and ventures that beerlapping objectives with CIM Urban and therefmay compete with CIM Urban for
investment opportunities. The ability of the Advisthe Manager and their officers and employeemgage in other business activities,
including the management of other investment vekisponsored by CIM Group, may reduce the timéthaésor and the Manager spend
managing our activities.

Certain of our directors and executive officers méce conflicts of interest related to positionsethhold with the Advisor, the Manager,
CIM Group and their affiliates, which could resulin decisions that are not in the best interest afrstockholders.

Some of our directors and executive officare also part-owners, officers and/or directbth® Advisor, the Manager, CIM Group and
their affiliates. As a result, they may owe fidugiauties to these various other entities and thgirity owners, which fiduciary duties may
from time to time conflict with the fiduciary dusdéhey owe to us and our stockholders. Furthesgtineultiple responsibilities may create
conflicts of interest for these individuals if thaye presented with opportunities that may bensféind our other affiliates. The individuals n
be incentivized to allocate investment opportusitie other entities rather than to us. Their lagalto other affiliated entities could result in
actions or inactions that are detrimental to owgifess, strategy and investment opportunities.

The business of CIM Urban is managed by Urban GP haer and we agreed in the Master Services Agreentemmppoint an affiliate of
CIM Group as the manager of the general partner 6fM Urban; in addition, the general partner of CIMJrban can be removed from that
position under certain circumstances as providedtire CIM Urban Partnership Agreemer.

Pursuant to the Master Services Agreememiigreed to appoint an affiliate of CIM Group laes imanager of the general partner of CIM
Urban. While currently that designated entity, UrlizaP Manager, is an affiliate of CIM Group, theas de no assurances that a different e
would not be appointed the manager of the genaraher of CIM Urban in the future. Moreover, we naajly remove the Urban GP Manager
as the manager of CIM Urban GP for "cause" (asddfin the Master Services Agreement). Removadldause" also requires the approval of
the holders of at least 66 3% of our outstanding shares (excluding for thisppge any shares held by the Manager and any
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affiliates of the Manager, except to the extenfegh in the immediately following sentence). Nittvgtanding the foregoing, CIM REIT has
the right to vote any of our shares that it ownhwespect to any vote held to remove the UrbarMaRager as the manager of the CIM
Urban GP; provided, however, if any such removag e held after the second anniversary of the &feSérvices Agreement, CIM REIT must
obtain voting instructions from certain of its naffiliated investors with respect to voting the sabeneficially owned by such non-affiliated
investors and CIM REIT must vote the number of ebdreneficially owned by each such non-affiliatedestor as so instructed by such non-
affiliated investor. Upon removal, a replacemennhager will be appointed by the independent directbinally, under the CIM Urban
Partnership Agreement, the general partner of CHolald may be removed under certain circumstancéstiét consent of 6%/ 3% of the

class A members of CIM REIT.

Subject to the limitations set forth in ty@verning documents of CIM Urban and the CIM Urkef, Urban GP Manager is given the
power and authority under the Master Services Ageee to manage, to direct the management, busamesaffairs of and to make all
decisions to be made by or on behalf of (1) CIMawrisP and (2) CIM Urban. Subject to the other tesfithe CIM Urban Partnership
Agreement, CIM Urban GP has broad discretion dverdperations of CIM Urban. Accordingly, while werindirectly all of the partnership
interests in CIM Urban, except as set forth inKtester Services Agreement and the rights spedificaterved to limited partners by the CIM
Urban Partnership Agreement and applicable lawwilldhave no part in the management and contrdCidfl Urban.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement contains proigss that give rights to certain unaffiliated memtseof CIM REIT to influence the
business and operations of CIM Urban; such memberay have interests that are adverse to our stocklbot and the exercise of such
rights may negatively impact the rights of our skidmwlders, or our business.

The CIM Urban Partnership Agreement requihe consent of a majority in interest of certaembers of CIM REIT in order to amend
the CIM Urban Partnership Agreement; the InvestriMamagement Agreement can be amended only witbdhsent of at least 68 3% of
the class A members of CIM REIT who are not affd&mof CIM Urban GP. As noted above, in certainatibns, upon a two-thirds vote of
certain members of CIM REIT, the CIM Urban GP mayrémoved and replaced. The refusal to permit amentof the CIM Urban
Partnership Agreement or the removal of the gengdher by the members of CIM REIT may adverselgact us.

The Manager's and the Advisor's liability is limiteunder the Master Services Agreement and the Inrent Management Agreement,
respectively, and we have agreed to indemnify thanlsiger against certain liabilities and CIM Urban tsagreed to indemnify the Advisor
against certain liabilities. As a result, we coudkperience poor performance or losses for whichther the Manager nor the Advisor would
be liable.

Pursuant to the Master Services AgreentieatiManager does not assume any responsibility ttlae to render the services called for
thereunder in good faith and will not be resporesfbl any action of our Board of Directors in fallmg or declining to follow its advice or
recommendations. Under the terms of the Masteri@snAgreement, neither the Manager nor any dfftBates providing services under the
Master Services Agreement will be liable to us, smlsidiary of ours party to the Master Servicesegent, any governing body of any such
entity, including any director or officer, or anfyaur or such subsidiaries' stockholders or pastfi@r acts or omissions pursuant to or in
accordance with the Master Services Agreement péxnereason of acts or omissions constitutingdrauillful misconduct, gross negligence
or violation of certain laws or any other intentébor criminal wrongdoing or breach of the Masten&ces Agreement. Moreover, the
aggregate liability of any such entities and pessoursuant to the Master Services Agreement isethppthe Base Fee and transaction fees
previously paid to the Manager in the two most néce

38




Table of Contents

calendar years. In addition, we have agreed tammify our Manager and any of its affiliates provigiservices under the Master Services
Agreement, any affiliates of the Manager and amgatiors, officers, stockholders, agents, subcotdraccontractors, delegates, members,
partners, shareholders, employees and other reyatises of each of them from and against all asticuits, investigations, proceedings or
claims except to the extent resulting from suclspe's fraud, willful misconduct, gross negligenceiolation of certain laws or any other
intentional or criminal wrongdoing or breach of taster Services Agreement.

Pursuant to the Investment Management Ageee, the Advisor is not liable to CIM Urban, CIMh&n GP or any manager or director of
CIM Urban GP for, among other things, (1) any acdmission performed or omitted by it or for anystx) damages or liabilities arising
therefrom, in the absence of fraud, gross negligewdI|ful misconduct or a breach of the Investmilainagement Agreement or (2) any losse:
due to the negligence of any employees, brokersthar agents of CIM Urban. In addition, CIM Urbizes agreed to indemnify the Advisor
against any losses, claims, damages or liabiliieghich it may become subject in connection wétimong other things, (1) any act or omissior
performed or omitted by it or for any costs, dansageliabilities arising therefrom, in the absentéraud, gross negligence, willful miscond
or a breach of the Investment Management Agreeore(®) any losses due to the negligence of any eyegls, brokers, or other agents of CIVM
Urban.

If we seek to internalize the management functigm®vided pursuant to the Master Services Agreemamd the Investment Manageme
Agreement, there is no assurance that we could feagreements with the Manager and the Advisor and @ould incur substantial cost
and lose certain key personnel.

At some point in the future, the board wédtors may determine that it is in our best ies¢to become self-managed by internalizing the
functions performed by the Manager and the Advésut to terminate the Master Services Agreementlamthvestment Management
Agreement. However, we do not have the unilatéghlt to terminate the Master Services Agreement@indl Urban does not have the
unilateral right to terminate the Investment Mamagat Agreement, and neither the Manager nor thassdwould be obligated to enter into
an internalization transaction with us. There isassurance that a mutually acceptable agreememthese entities as to the terms of the
internalization could be reached. In addition, ¢bsts that we would incur in any such internalaatransaction are uncertain and could be
substantial.

Further, if we were to internalize thesenagement functions, certain key employees may ecbime our employees but may instead
remain employees of the Manager and the Advisthair respective affiliates, especially if the mgement functions are internalized but the
Manager and the Advisor are not acquired by usindhility to manage an internalization transactionld effectively result in us incurring
excess costs and suffering deficiencies in oulasice controls and procedures or our internalroboter financial reporting. These
deficiencies could cause us to incur additionats;end management's attention could be diverted fost effectively managing our
investments, which could result in us incurring nii@pated costs in connection with any interndlaatransaction.

If we were deemed an investment company under theektment Company Act, applicable restrictions abubake it impractical for us tc
continue our business as contemplated and couldéawn adverse effect on our business.

We are not an investment company undehthestment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the2&tment Company Act") and intenc
conduct our operations so that we will not be dekmeinvestment company. However, if we were tdéemed an investment company,
restrictions imposed by the Investment Company ictuding limitations on the nature of investmeatsl ability to transact with affiliates,
could make it impractical for us to continue ousimess as contemplated. In addition, the Invest@entpany Act imposes certain
requirements on companies deemed to be
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within its regulatory scope, including registratias an investment company, adoption of a speafim fof corporate structure and compliance
with certain burdensome reporting, record keepioging, proxy, disclosure and other rules and ragioihs. In the event of the characterization
of us as an investment company, the failure by satisfy such regulatory requirements, whethea imely basis or at all, would, under
certain circumstances, also have a material adedfset on us.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not kable to accurately report our financie
results.

An effective system of internal control o¥i@ancial reporting is necessary for us to previdliable financial reports, prevent fraud and
operate successfully as a public company. As gartioongoing monitoring of internal controls, wayndiscover material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in our internal contrdigt we believe require remediation. If we discougech weaknesses, we will make efforts to
improve our internal controls in a timely mannenyfsystem of internal controls, however well deeidjiand operated, is based in part on
certain assumptions and can only provide reasonabteabsolute, assurance that the objectiveseofybtem are met. Any failure to maintain
effective internal controls, or implement any neegg improvements in a timely manner, could haweaterially adverse effect on our busines:
and operating results, or cause us to not meateparting obligations, which could affect our atyilio remain listed with the NASDAQ Global
Market. Ineffective internal controls could alsaisa investors to lose confidence in our reporteanftial information, which would likely ha
a negative effect on the trading price of our sidiest

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Future sales of our common shares may cause our kedprice to drop significantly, even if our busiss is doing well.

Urban Il is entitled to registration righssibject to certain limitations, with respect to securities pursuant to the Registration Rights a
Lockup Agreement dated March 11, 2014 between ddban Il (the "Registration Rights and Lockup égment"). Urban Il is entitled to
require us, on up to eight occasions, to registeieuthe Securities Act our common shares it reckin connection with the Merger

In accordance with lockup provisions in@ddn the Registration Rights and Lockup Agreemérban 1l is not permitted to engage in
public sales of our common shares it received imeation with the Merger until after the 12-montmaersary of the consummation of the
Merger without restriction, provided that thesenieBons do not apply with respect to public sadésip to 40 million common shares with the
prior approval of a majority of the independentdaiors. There are no lockup restrictions applicéblerivate sales or transfer of such shares.

Following the expiration of the lockup mésions, there may be significant pam-demand by CIM REIT to sell our common sharesit
holds. A large volume of sales of our common shaoesdd decrease the prevailing market price ofammmon shares and could impair our
ability to raise additional capital through theesaf equity securities in the future. Even if astabtial number of sales of our common share
not occur, the mere perception of the possibilftthese sales could depress the market price of@mamon shares and have a negative effect
on our ability to raise capital in the future.
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We cannot assure you that we will be able to payidénds.
Our ability to maintain payment of dividenith our stockholders may be impacted by varioa®fa, including the following:

. we may not have enough capital resources taspely dividends due to changes in our cash requiresneapital spending plans,
cash flow or financial position;

. decisions on whether, when and in which amounisake any future dividends will remain at all tinesdirely at the discretion
of the Board of Directors, which reserves the righthange our dividend practices at any time anaify reason; and

. we may desire to retain cash to maintain or aaprany credit ratings we have or may obtain inftitere.

There can be no assurance that the futuidetids declared by our Board of Directors wilt ddfer materially from historical dividend
levels. Our stockholders have no contractual oemlgal right to dividends that have not beenated.

Future issuances of shares of stock could dilutésting stockholders' interests.

We may satisfy our liquidity needs througmong other things, one or more equity issuari®es."ltem 1 Business—Financial Strategy"
and "ltem 7 "Management's Discussion and AnalysErancial Conditions and Results of Operation"-gtlidity and Capital Resources—
Sources and Uses of Funds." Our charter authoosizeBoard of Directors to issue additional shafeS@mmon Stock, preferred stock, or ot
equity securities without stockholder approval. Augh issuance could dilute our existing stockhaldaterests.

Market interest rates may have an effect on theusabf our Common Stock

If market interest rates go up, prospeagtivechasers of shares of our common stock may éxpeigher dividend rate on our Common
Stock. Higher market interest rates would not, heeveresult in more funds for us to pay in dividsrashd, to the contrary, would likely
increase our borrowing costs and potentially dexwdands available for dividends. Thus, higher retinkterest rates could cause the market
price of our Common Stock to go down.

Changes in market conditions could adversely affémt market price of our Common Stock.

As with other publicly traded equity seties, the value of our Common Stock depends orouanmarket conditions, which may change
from time to time. In addition to the current ecorio environment and future volatility in the set¢i&s and credit markets, the following ma
conditions may affect the value of our Common Stock

. the general reputation of REITs and the attractgsrof our equity securities in comparison to o#fipiity securities, including
securities issued by other real estate-based cdegan

. our financial performance;

. general stock and bond market conditions;

. government action or regulation, including chanigesx law;

. increases in market interest rates, which may il@agktors to expect a higher annual yield fromdistributions in relation to tt

price of our shares;
. changes in federal tax laws;

. our ability to re-lease space as leases expire;
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. strategic actions by us or our competitors, suchcgsiisitions or restructurings;
. changes in our credit ratings; and
. any negative change in the level of our dividentherpartial payment thereof in common shares.

The market value of our Common Stock iseddgsimarily upon the market's perception of owvgh potential and our current and
potential future earnings and cash dividends amatapital structure. Consequently, our Common Stoal trade at prices that are higher or
lower than our net asset value per share of Conttock. If our future earnings or cash dividendslass than expected, the market price of

our Common Stock could diminish.

There is a limited trading market for our Common @&tk and as a result, our share price is subjecgteater volatility and you may not be
able to resell your shares at or above the price ypay for them.

Although our common shares are listed fadihg on the NASDAQ Global Market, the volume rafding in our common shares has been
lower than many other companies listed on the NADB&obal Market as approximately 98.2% of our Comr&tock are presently owned by
Urban Il and affiliates of CIM and are thereford traded. See "—We are controlled by an affiligt€tvi Group." A public trading market
with depth, liquidity and orderliness depends anghesence in the market of willing buyers andesglbf our common shares at any given t
This presence depends on the individual decisibimssestors and general economic and market canditover which we have no control.
Limited trading volume may subject our common shaoegreater price volatility and may make it diffit for investors to sell shares at a price
that is attractive to them.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

As of December 31, 2014 our investmentsisted of (i) 21 office properties comprising appnaately 5.6 million rentable square feet,
(ii) five multifamily properties comprising 930 usgj (iii) three hotels comprising 1,070 rooms, tiwee parking garages, two of which have
street level retail space, and (v) one developrsiéat Each of our properties is suitable and adedfiom its intended use. The following tables
contain descriptive information about all of ouoperties as of December 31, 2014.

Office Portfolio Summary as of December 31, 2014

Office
Annualized
Rent Per
Rentable Annualized Occupied
Square % % Rent Square
Property Market Feet Occupied Leased(1) (in 000s)(2) Foot
BB&T Center Charlotte, NC 567,57¢ 68.2% 68.2%% 8,76t $ 22.61]
1 Kaiser Plazi Oakland, CA 531,56« 91.(% 93.% 17,657 36.5(C
2101 Webster
Streel Oakland, CA 472,63( 81.9% 84.(% 15,03¢ 38.8¢
980 9th Stree  Sacramento, C/ 449,63! 83.4% 86.2% 11,42; 30.47
211 Main
Streel San Francisco, C. 415,12( 100.(% 100.(% 11,90¢ 28.6¢
370 L'Enfant
Promenadt District of Columbiz 407,32: 89.(% 89.(% 18,57¢ 51.2¢
999 N Capitol
Streel District of Columbit 321,54 84.(% 84.(% 11,93 44.1¢
899 N Capitol
Streel District of Columbit 314,31° 52.2% 55.(% 8,591 52.3¢
800 N Capitol
Streel District of Columbiz 311,69( 93.2% 96.1% 13,12¢ 45.1¢
1901 Harrison
Streel Oakland, CA 272,16: 99.4% 99.4% 9,127 33.7¢
830 1st Stree  District of Columbiz 247,33 100.(% 100.(% 10,49: 42.4z
1333 Broadwa Oakland, CA 239,82: 82.% 83.5% 5,97¢ 30.17
2100 Franklin
Streel Oakland, CA 216,66t 83.5% 85.(% 6,73( 37.2(
11620 Wilshire
Boulevard  Los Angeles, C/ 192,71¢ 84.5% 91.%% 4,96 30.5(
Penn Fielc Austin, TX 182,33( 91.1% 93.% 4,531 27.2¢
4750 Wilshire
Boulevard  Los Angeles, C/ 143,36: 100.(%  100.(% 3,64¢ 25.4¢
7083
Hollywood
Boulevard  Los Angeles, C/ 82,18( 96.2% 96.2% 2,81¢ 35.61
260 Townsen( San Francisco, C, 65,76( 89.5% 89.7% 3,41°¢ 58.0z
11600 Wilshire
Boulevard  Los Angeles, C/ 54,83: 78.5% 82.71% 1,97¢ 45.8¢
Civic Centet Orange County, C/ 37,11¢ 100.(% 100.(% 757 20.4(
Lindblade
Media
Center Los Angeles, C/ 32,42¢ 100.(% 100.(% 1,028 31.5¢
Total Office
(21 Propertit 5,558,10! 85.t% 87.C%% 172,48: $ 36.2i
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Other Ancillary Properties within Office Portfolio

Annualized
Rentable Rent Per
Square % Annualized Occupied
Feet % Leased Rent Square
Property Market (Retail) Occupied (Retail)(1) (in 000s)(3) Foot
901 N Capitol District of
Streel Columbia N/A(4) N/A N/A N/A N/A
2353 Webster
Street Parking
Garage Oakland, CA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
1010
8th Street Par
Garage &
Retail Sacramento, C, 31,13¢ 9.9% 9.5%$ 21 $ 6.81
Total Ancillary
Office
(3 Properties) 31,13: 9.£% 9.5%$ 21 $ 6.81
Total Office including Other Ancillary
Annualized
Rent Per
Rentable Annualized Occupied
Square % % Rent Square
Feet Occupied Leased(1) (in 000s)(2)(3) Foot
Total Office
including
Other
Ancillary
(24 Propertit 5,589,24. 85.1% 86.€0% 172,50 $ 36.2¢

Q) Based on leases signed as of December 31, 2014.

(2) Represents gross monthly base rent, as of Dece®ih@014, multiplied by twelve. This amount refeetiital cash rent
before abatements. Where applicable, annualizeédcheenbeen grossed up by adding annualized expeinsieursement
base rent.

) Represents gross monthly contractual rent uredeil (1010 8th Street Parking Garage & Reta#dses commenced as of
December 31, 2014), multiplied by twelve. This amoeflects total cash rent before abatements.

(4) 901 N Capitol Street is a 39,696 square foot partkind located between 899 and 999 N Capitolebtid/e are entitled
to develop a building with up to 270,172 squaré.1

44




Table of Contents

Office Portfolio Detail by Property, Market, and Submarket as of December 31, 2014

Annualized Annualized
Square % % Cash Rent  Cash Rent Per
Location Footage Occupied Leased(1) (in 000s)(2) Occupied SF
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA
Oakland, CA
Lake Merritt
1 Kaiser Plazi 531,56+ 91.(% 93.8% $ 17,65 $ 36.5(
2101 Webster Stre: 472,63( 81.9% 84.(% 15,03¢ 38.8¢
1901 Harrison Stre¢ 272,16: 99.2% 99.%% 9,127 33.7¢
2100 Franklin Stree 216,66¢ 83.£% 85.(% 6,73( 37.2(
Total Lake Merritt 1,493,02 88.(% 90.4% 48,54¢ 36.7:
City Center
1333 Broadway 239,82: 82.6% 83.5% 5,97¢ 30.1%
Total Oakland, CA 1,732,84. 87.1% 89.5% 54,52« 35.8¢
San Francisco, CA
South Financial District
211 Main Stree 415,12( 100.(% 100.(% 11,90¢ 28.6¢
South of Market
260 Townsent 65,76( 89.£% 89.7% 3,41t 58.07
Total San Francisco, CA 480,88( 98.t% 98.6% 15,320 32.3%
Sacramento, CA
Downtown/Midtown
980 9th & 1010 8th Stre 480,76t 78.6% 81.4% 11,44¢ 30.2¢
Total Sacramento, CA 480,76! 78.6% 81.4% 11,44¢ 30.2¢
TOTAL NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 2,694,49 88.(% 89.1% $ 81,29 $ 34.25
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
Los Angeles, CA
West Los Angele
11620 Wilshire Boulevar 192,71 84.5% 91.9% $ 4967 $ 30.5(
11600 Wilshire Boulevar 54,83: 78.5% 82.7% 1,97¢ 45.8¢
Lindblade Media Cente 32,42¢ 100.(% 100.(% 1,027 31.5¢
Total West Los Angele 279,97¢ 85.1% 91.(% 7,96t 33.4:
Mid-Wilshire
4750 Wilshire Boulevar 143,36: 100.(% 100.(% 3,64¢ 25.4¢
Hollywood/Sunset
7083 Hollywood Boulevar 82,18( 96.5% 96.2% 2,81¢ 35.61
Total Los Angeles, CA 505,51¢ 91.2% 94.2% 14,43. 31.3:
Orange County, CA
Central
Civic Center 37,11¢ 100.(% 100.(% 757 20.4(
TOTAL SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 542,63! 91.8% 94.8% $ 15,18t $ 30.5(
MID -ATLANTIC
Washington, DC
Capitol Hill
999 N Capitol Stree 321,54 84.(% 84.(% $ 11,93 $ 44.1¢
899 N Capitol Stree 314,31 52.2% 55.(% 8,591 52.3¢
800 N Capitol Stree 311,69( 93.2% 96.1% 13,12¢ 45.1¢
830 1st Stree 247,33 100.(% 100.(% 10,49: 42.4:
Total Capitol Hill 1,194,88 81.% 82.8% 44,14: 45.4:
Southwest
370 L'Enfant Promenac 407,32: 89.(% 89.(% 18,57¢ 51.2¢
Total Washington, DC 1,602,20' 83.5% 84.2% 62,72! 47.0(
Charlotte, NC
Uptown
BB&T Center 567,57¢ 68.2% 68.2% 8,76¢ 22.61]
TOTAL MID -ATLANTIC 2,169,78 79.2% 80.2% $ 71,48t $ 41.5]
SOUTHWEST
Austin, TX
South
Penn Fielc 182,33 91.1% 93.8% $ 4531 $ 27.2¢
TOTAL SOUTHWEST 182,33( 91.1% 93.8% $ 4531 $ 27.2¢
TOTAL PORTFOLIO 5,589,24. 85.1% 86.6%0$ 17250: $ 36.2¢
1) Based on leases signed as of December 31, 2014.
) Represents gross monthly base rent, as of Dece3iib@014, multiplied by twelve. This amount refietital cash rent before abatements. Where apf#icab

annualized rent has been grossed up by adding bzediaxpense reimbursement to base |
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Multifamily Portfolio Summary as of December 31, 204

Monthly

Annualized Rent Per

% Rent Occupied

Property Market Units Occupied(1) (in 000s)(2) Unit

4649 Cole Avenu Dallas, TX 334 88.9%3% 487C $ 1,36¢
Memorial Hills Houston, TX 30¢ 92.2% 6,12¢ 1,79
47 E 34th Stree New York, NY 11C 100.(% 5,52¢ 4,18¢
3636 McKinney Avenuu Dallas, TX 10z 98.1% 1,99¢ 1,64
3839 McKinney Avenu Dallas, TX 75 94.7% 1,35¢ 1,59(
Total Multifamily (5 Properties) 93C 92.8%%$ 19,87 $ 1,91¢

(1) Based on number of units occupied as of Decemhe2(®BH.

(2) Represents gross monthly base rent under leaseseored as of December 31, 2014, multiplied by tevelhis amount
reflects total cash rent before concessi

Hotel Portfolio Summary as of December 31, 2014

Revenue
Per
% Available
Property Market Rooms Occupied(1) Room(1)
Sheraton Grand Hot: Sacramento, C/ 503 75.%% $ 105.9¢
LAX Holiday Inn Los Angeles, C/ 40t 89.2% 83.0¢
Courtyard Oaklan: Oakland, CA 162 80.2% 121.3:
Total Hotel (3 Properties) 1,07( 81.2% $ 99.61
Other Ancillary Properties within Hotel Portfolio
Rentable
Square % % Annualized Rent
Feet Occupied Leased (Parking and Retail)
Property Market (Retail) (Retail) (Retail)(2) (in 000s)(3)
Sheraton Grand Hotel
Parking
Garage & Retai Sacramento, C, 9,45% 100.(% 100.%$ 1,99¢
Total Ancillary Hotel
(1 Property) 9,45: 100.(% 100.(%$ 1,99¢

Q) Represents trailing 12-month occupancy and RevPAS ®ecember 31, 2014. Occupancy represents atupoms
divided by available rooms, and RevPAR represarasirrevenue divided by available rooms.

(2) Based on leases signed as of December 31, 2014.
3 Represents gross monthly contractual rent unddinmpand retail leases commenced as of Decembét@@¥, multipliec

by twelve. This amount reflects total cash renbbefbatements. Where applicable, annualized senbéen grossed up
by adding annualized expense reimbursement toreas:
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Office Portfolio—Top 10 Tenants by Annualized RenthRevenue as of December 31, 2014

Credit Rating Annualized % of
(S&P / Moody's / % of Rental Annualized
Lease Square  Square Revenue(l] Rental

Tenant Property Fitch) Expiration Feet Feet (in 000s) Revenue
U.S. Federal

Government

Agencies Various AA+ /[ Aaa/AAA 2015-2026 1,119,18 20.(% $ 50,03 29.(%
Kaiser Foundation 1 Kaiser Plaza/

Health Plan, Inc. 2101 Webste A+ /-] A+ 2023 & 202 432,29 7.7% 16,58¢ 9.€%
Charles

Schwab & Co., | 211 Main Stree AlA2/A 2018 415,12 7.4% 11,90¢ 6.9%
The District of

Columbia 899 N Capitol Stree  AA/Aa2/AA 2015 & 202: 164,02 2.% 8,591 5.C%
Wells Fargo Bank

N.A. 1901 Harrison Stre A+ /ALl A+ 2018 147,52( 2.€% 4,937 2.2%
Farmers 4750 Wilshire

Group, Inc. Boulevard AA-/Aa3/ A+ 2019 143,36: 2.€% 3,64¢ 2.1%
Branch Banking &

Trust Compan) BB&T A-IA2 | A+ 2018 140,96- 2.5% 3,092 1.8%
Pandora 2100 Franklin Stree

Media, Inc.

2101 Webste —/-1- 2020 134,30t 2.4% 4,852 2.8%

SSB Realty, LLC

(State Street 980 9th Stree A+ /Al AA- 2015 100,41¢ 1.8% 3,67: 2.1%
Swinerton

Incorporatec 260 Townsent /== 2018 & 202 57,09 1.C% 3,25¢ 1.9%
Total for Top Ten

Tenants 2,854,28! 51.1%$ 110,57 64.1%
All Other Tenant: 1,905,10: 34.1% 61,92¢ 35.%
Vacant 829,85: 14.8% — 0.C%
Total for Portfolio 5,589,24; 100.(% $  172,50: 100.(%
1) Represents gross monthly base rent, as of Dece3ib@014, multiplied by twelve. This amount refietital cash rent before abatements. Where apf#icab

annualized rent has been grossed up by adding Bretiaxpense reimbursement to base |

Office Portfolio—Diversification by NAICS code as & December 31, 2014

Annualized % of Total 'I'/:’Jt(iafl
Rent Annualized Square Square

NAICS Code (in 000s)(1) Rent Footage Footage
Public Administratior $ 64,60 37.5% 1,472,113 26.2%
Finance and Insurant 32,31 18.7% 1,116,09! 20.(%
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Servi 26,62( 15.4% 752,45 13.5%
Health Care and Social Assistar 20,67¢ 12.% 538,49¢ 9.6%
Information 5,98¢ 3.5% 173,44 3.1%
Real Estate and Rental and Leas 4,247 2.5% 172,41 3.1%
Educational Service 3,35¢ 1% 123,58 2.2%
Constructior 3,352 1.€% 65,26¢ 1.2%
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreati 2,67¢ 1.€% 68,98: 1.2%
Manufacturing 2,29: 1.52% 64,17¢ 1.1%
Accommodation and Food Servic 2,19¢ 1.2% 66,96¢ 1.2%
Other Services (except Public Administrati 1,44t 0.£% 48,52« 0.2%
Management of Companies and Enterpr 75C 0.4% 19,13¢ 0.2%
Retail Trade 72C 0.4% 28,43: 0.5%
Administrative and Support and Waste

Management and Remediation Servi 45C 0.2% 18,28¢ 0.2%
Wholesale Trad 40E 0.2% 16,11: 0.2%
Utilities 29C 0.2% 11,73¢ 0.2%
Transportation and Warehousi 11& 0.1% 3,14: 0.2%
Vacant — 0.C% 829,85: 14.8%

TOTAL PORTFOLIO $ 172,50: 100.(% 5,589,24. 100.(%

Q) Represents gross monthly base rent, as ofrbeee31, 2014, multiplied by twelve. This amourfteets total cash rent
before abatements. Where applicable, annualizecheenbeen grossed up by adding annualized expeinsieursement 1
base rent
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Office Portfolio—Lease Expiration as of December 312014

% of

Square Feet % of Annualized Annualized Annualized
of Expiring Square Feet Base Rent Rent Rent Per
Year of Lease Expiration Leases Expiring (in 000s)(1) Expiring Square Foot
2015 727,59¢ 15.% $ 28,821 16.7% $ 39.62
2016 313,40t 6.€% 13,08¢ 7.6% $ 41.7¢
2017 388,95: 8.2% 12,88¢ 7.5% $ 33.1¢
2018 912,15( 19.2% 26,77: 15.5% $ 29.3¢
2019 436,25: 9.2% 13,44° 7.6% $ 30.82
2020 331,45¢ 7.C% 10,83¢ 6.2% $ 32.6¢
2021 446,19( 9.4% 19,92¢ 11.6% $ 44.6]
2022 295,84! 6.2% 10,64 6.2% $ 35.9¢
2023 173,43! 3.€% 7,41°¢ 4% $ 42.7¢
2024 38,07¢ 0.8% 1,22: 0.7% $ 32.0¢
Thereaftel 696,02¢ 14.5% 27,43 15.¢% $ 39.41
Total Occupied 4,759,39: 100.(% $ 172,50: 100.% $ 36.2¢
Vacant 829,85!
Total Portfolio 5,589,24.

Q) Represents gross monthly base rent, as ofrbeee31, 2014, multiplied by twelve. This amourfteets total cash rent
before abatements. Where applicable, annualizecheenbeen grossed up by adding annualized expeinsieursement 1
base rent
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Office Portfolio—Historical Occupancy

December 31

2014 Occupancy Rates(1
Rentable

Property Square Feet 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

BB&T Center 567,57¢ 94.(% 90.(% 94.€%0 82.7% 68.5%
1 Kaiser Plazi 531,56« 90.5% 93.2% 89.(% 90.8% 91.(%
980 9th & 1010 8th Stre: 480,76¢ 86.€% 85.% 81.2% 77.6% 78.€%
2101 Webster Stre: 472,63( 79.% 87.% 92.9%  82.t% 81.9%
211 Main Stree 415,12( 100.% 100.(% 100.% 100.(% 100.(%
370 L'Enfant Promenac 407,32: 98.7% 82.5% 91.1% 88.7% 89.(%
999 N Capitol Stree 321,54« 0.C% 47.€% 52.6% 83.1% 84.(%
899 N Capitol Stree 314,31 51.€% 59.5% 62.7% 51.1% 52.2%
800 N Capitol Stree 311,69 100.(% 100.% 97.2% 94.&% 93.2%
1901 Harrison Stre 272,16: 83.(% 84.1% 86.€% 87.(% 99.4%
830 1st Stree 247,33° 100.(% 100.% 100.(% 100.% 100.(%
1333 Broadway 239,82: 72.8%  79.5% 80.7% 72.1% 82.6%
2100 Franklin Stree 216,66t 17.5% 42.2% 54.&% 73.1% 83.5%
11620 Wilshire Boulevar 192,71¢ 85.1% 73.4% 66.4 65.52% 84.5%
Penn Fielc 182,33( 76.1% 78.1%  90.€%0 90.7% 91.1%
4750 Wilshire Boulevard(z 143,36: N/A N/A N/A N/A 100.(%
7083 Hollywood Boulevar 82,18( 8850 28.(% 92.9%  96.2% 96.5%
260 Townsen 65,76( 100.% 100.(% 100.% 100.(% 89.5%
11600 Wilshire Boulevar 54,83 94.1% 85.(% 78.2% 74.1% 78.5%
Civic Center 37,11¢ 100.(% 100.% 100.(% 100.% 100.(%
Lindblade Media Center(: 32,42¢ N/A N/A N/A N/A 100.(%
Total Weighted Average 5,589,24. 79.5% 82.2% 85.(% 84.(% 85.1%

Q) Historical occupancies for Office properties aredzhon leases commenced as of December 31 of esaahidal year.
(2) 4750 Wilshire Blvd was acquired on April 18, 2014.

3) Lindblade Media Center was acquired on OctobeQ14.
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Office Portfolio—Historical Annualized Rents

December 31

. 20tl‘t1)| Annualized Rent Per Occupied Square Foot(1

entanle

Property Square Feet 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
BB&T Center 567,57¢ $ 205( $ 22.31 $ 225t $ 22.2( $ 22.6]
1 Kaiser Plazi 531,56¢ 36.6¢ 35.4( 36.6¢ 37.1¢ 36.5(
980 9th & 1010 8th Stre: 480,76¢ 30.3¢ 31.0¢ 31.7¢ 31.1: 30.2¢
2101 Webster Stre: 472,63( 34.5¢ 34.3¢ 37.6¢ 38.1( 38.8¢
211 Main Stree 415,12( 28.6F 28.72 28.6¢ 28.7¢ 28.6¢
370 L'Enfant Promenac 407,32: 48.4¢ 49.1¢ 51.21 51.41 51.2¢
999 N Capitol Stree 321,54« — 41.6¢ 42.0¢ 42.2¢ 44.1¢
899 N Capitol Stree 314,31 40.3: 48.9¢ 46.91 50.22 52.3¢
800 N Capitol Stree 311,69( 41.1% 41.4: 42.6¢ 46.01 45.1¢
1901 Harrison Stres 272,16: 30.5¢ 31.1¢ 31.21 33.2( 33.7¢
830 1st Stree 247,33 36.4: 39.0(¢ 39.8¢ 40.7: 42 .4;
1333 Broadwa) 239,82: 27.2¢ 30.22 29.62 28.8¢ 30.17
2100 Franklin Stree 216,66t 38.2¢ 38.52 38.6¢ 40.9¢ 37.2(
11620 Wilshire Boulevar 192,71¢ 34.5¢ 37.7¢ 35.7¢ 35.6¢ 30.5(
Penn Fielc 182,33( 20.0¢ 20.6¢ 23.9¢ 25.2¢ 27.2¢
4750 Wilshire Boulevard(z 143,36 N/A N/A N/A N/A 25.4f
7083 Hollywood Boulevar 82,18( 32.3¢ 31.5¢ 32.5¢ 35.37 35.61
260 Townsent 65,76( 29.8¢ 31.0¢ 31.71 32.4¢ 58.0:
11600 Wilshire Boulevar 54,83: 40.8¢ 42 .17 43.7¢ 43.97 45 8¢
Civic Center 37,11¢ 18.0C 18.5¢ 20.4:2 20.17 20.4(
Lindblade Media Center(: 32,42¢ N/A N/A N/A N/A 31.5¢
Total Weighted Average 5589,24; $ 31.01 $ 34.27 $ 35.3¢ $ 36.1( $ 36.2¢

(1)  Annualized Rent Per Occupied Square Foot represantsalized gross rent divided by total occupiathse feet as of
December 31 of each historical year. This amouteats total cash rent before abatements. Wherkcapje, annualized
rent has been grossed up by adding annualized sgpeimbursement to base rent.

(2) 4750 Wilshire Blvd was acquired on April 1812.

3) Lindblade Media Center was acquired on OctobefR14
Multifamily Portfolio—Historical Occupancy and Annu alized Rents

Occupancy Rates(1

Property Units 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
4649 Cole Avenu 334 92.2% 95.5% 92.2% 93.1% 88.9%
Memorial Hills 30¢ 93.8% 96.4% 96.% 91.9% 92.2%
47 E 34th Stree 11C N/A 100.(% 100.(% 100.%% 100.(%
3636 McKinney Avenus 103 97.1% 94.2% 97.1% 97.1% 98.1%
3839 McKinney Avenus 75 100.9% 97.2% 98.71% 94.%  94.7%
Total Weighted Average 93( 94.1% 96.%  95.6% 94.1% 92.&%
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Monthly Rent Per Occupied Unit(2)

Property Units 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
4649 Cole Avenu 334 $ 1,045 $ 1,10¢ $ 1,18 $ 1,282 $ 1,36¢
Memorial Hills 30¢ 1,71( 1,81¢ 1,74( 1,77¢ 1,79
47 E 34th Stree 11C N/A 3,63¢ 3,712 3,88( 4,18¢
3636 McKinney Avenui 10¢ 1,381 1,48¢ 1,47: 1,52¢ 1,647
3839 McKinney Avenui 75 1,33¢ 1,39( 1,47¢ 1,52¢ 1,59(
Total Weighted Average 93C $ 1,36 $ 1,717 $ 1,741 $ 1,81¢ $ 1,91¢

Q) Historical occupancies for Multifamily propes are based on leases commenced as of Decembge&adh historical
year and were calculated using units and not scfeate

(2) Represents gross monthly base rent, as of Dece®ibdihis amount reflects total cash rent beforaeahants

Multifamily Properties Overview as of December 312014

Monthly
Rent
Rentable Annualized Per
Square Year Year Rent Occupied %
Property Location Units Footage Built ~ Acquired  (in 000s)(2) Unit Occupancy(l
4649 Cole
Avenue Dallas, TX 334 283,43{ 199/ 201C $ 4,87($ 1,36¢ 88.%
Houston,
Memorial Hills TX 30¢€ 297,40 200¢ 201C 6,12¢ 1,79 92.2%
New York,
47 E 34th Stree NY 11C  81,70: 200¢ 2011 5,52¢ 4,18¢ 100.(%
3636 McKinney
Avenue Dallas, TX 105 98,33 200¢ 201c 1,99¢ 1,64 98.1%
3839 McKinney
Avenue Dallas, TX 75 68,817 200¢€ 201( 1,35¢ 1,59( 94.7%
Total/Weighted
Average ~93C 829,691 92.8%

(1) Based on number of units occupied as of Decemhe2(®BH.

(2) Represents gross monthly base rent under leaseseored as of December 31, 2014, multiplied by tevelhis amount
reflects total cash rent before concessi

Hotel Portfolio—Ownership, Franchise and Managements of December 31, 2014

Hotel Location Franchise Hotel Owner/Lessor Lessee Manager
Oakland, CA Courtyard  CIM Urban Partners, L.k N/A  RIM Hospitality
Sacramento, C; Sherator CIM Urban Partners, L.LF  N/A Starwooc
Los Angeles, C/ Holiday Inn  CIM Urban Partners, L.k N/A  RIM Hospitality
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Hotel Properties—Historical Occupancy Rates, Averag Daily Rates and Revenue per Available Room/Suites of December 31, 2014

Occupancy (%)(1)(2)
Hotel Location Franchise Rooms 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Sacramento, C; Sherator 50 67.(% 71.2% 73.(% 75.52% 75.2%
Los Angeles, CA(3 Holiday Inn 405 N/A N/A N/A 69.(% 89.2%
Oakland, CA Courtyard 162 69.% 72.% 77.% 79.(% 80.2%
Los Angeles, CA(4 16C  71.2% N/A N/A N/A N/A
Weighted Average 123C 68.3% 71.6% 74.2% 75..% 81.2%

Average Daily Rate (Price) Per Room/Suite ($)(2)(t

Hotel Location Franchise Rooms 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Sacramento, C; Sherator 503 $ 129.1: $ 129.8! $ 130.8: $ 129.4¢ $ 140.7:
Los Angeles, CA

3) Holiday Inn 40k N/A N/A N/A 82.2¢ 93.0¢
Oakland, CA Courtyard 162 109.3: 115.2: 122.9¢ 131.8: 151.27
Los Angeles, CA

4) 16C 118.6" N/A N/A N/A N/A
Weighted

Average 1230 $ 123.0¢ $ 126.2: $ 128.8. $ 124.7( $ 122.5;

Revenue Per Available Room/Suite ($)(2)(¢

Hotel Location Franchise Rooms 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Sacramento, C, Sherator 50 $ 86.45 $ 92.61 $ 955/ $ 97.7¢ $ 105.9¢
Los Angeles, CA(: Holiday Inn 40t N/A N/A N/A 56.7¢ 83.0¢
Oakland, CA Courtyard 162 76.3¢ 83.3¢ 95.57 104.1: 121.3:
Los Angeles, CA(¢ 16C 84.5] N/A N/A N/A N/A
Weighted Average 1,23 $ 84.0¢ $ 90.3¢ $ 9555 $ 94.06¢ $ 99.6]

Q) Occupancy percentage represents occupied rdivided by available rooms.

(2) Represents trailing 12-months occupancy, Ayefaaily Rate and Revenue per Available Room &egember 31.

3 CIM Urban was the lender to the LAX Holiday Inn ameld the first mortgage secured by the propertit arsubsidiary
of CIM Urban submitted the highest bid at a forsal@ auction that took place on October 8, 2013sabhdequently took
possession of the LAX Holiday Inn. The 2013 metpossented above are for a partial year and représe values for
CIM Urban's period of ownership only.

(4) CIM Urban sold the 160 room hotel located in LogAales, California on December 17, 2010. The 2010icsepresente
above are for a partial year and represent theesdtur CIM Urban's period of ownership only.

(5)  Average daily rate represents room revenue divijedccupied rooms.

(6) Revenue per available room represents room rewvéinigeed by available room:
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Property Indebtedness as of December 31, 2014

Outstanding

Principal Balance Due At

Balance Interest Maturity Maturity Date Prepayment/
Property (in 000s) Rate Date (in 000s) Defeasance
Penn Fielc $ 12,44 5.5€% 07/01/201! $ 12,28¢ Q)
11620 Wilshire Boulevar 33,73¢ 5.06% 09/01/201! 33,06¢ (2)
370 L'Enfant Promenac 26,78: 7.66% 12/01/201! 25,32« 3)
211 Main Stree 32,07( 6.65% 07/15/201! 21,13¢ (4)
4649 Cole Avenu 24,39¢ 5.3% 03/01/202. 21,49( (5)
3636 McKinney Avenut 9,69¢ 5.3% 03/01/202. 8,54( (6)
3839 McKinney Avenu 6,43: 5.3 03/01/202. 5,66¢ )
Memorial Hills 30,29: 5.1¢% 06/05/202. 26,23: (8)
830 1st Stree 46,00( 4.5(% 01/05/202 42,00¢ 9)
Total/Weighted Average $ 221,84 5.5¢% $ 195,75:

1)

)

®3)

(4)

(®)

(6)

()

(8)

9)

Loan is prepayable but is subject to a prepaynemefjual to the interest that would have beenauthé month in whic
the prepayment occurred. If the loan is prepaidrga April 1, 2015 an additional prepayment feeado the greater of
(a) one percent (1%) of the amount prepaid ori{@)amount by which the present value of all unpaiiacipal and
interest payments exceeds a specified threshaldesLoan may also be defeased until June 1, 2015.

Loan may not be prepaid. Loan may be defeasedytiran.

Loan is prepayable but is subject to a prepaynmemefjual to the difference between (a) the presdae of all remaining
payments of principal and interest and (b) the amofiprincipal being prepaid, but in no event sta prepayment fee
be less than one percent (1%).

Loan is prepayable but is subject to a pregatrfee equal to the greater of (a) one percen) (% e outstanding
principal balance of the note or (b) modified yieldintenance.

Loan is prepayable but if prepaid prior to Augukt 3020 is subject to a prepayment fee equal tgtbater of (a) one
percent (1%) of the principal being prepaid oryigld maintenance.

Loan is prepayable but if prepaid prior to Augukt 3020 is subject to a prepayment fee equal tgibater of (a) one
percent (1%) of the principal being prepaid oryigld maintenance.

Loan is prepayable but if prepaid prior to Agg31, 2020 is subject to a prepayment fee equihkt greater of (a) one
percent (1%) of the principal being prepaid oryigld maintenance.

Loan is prepayable but is subject to a prepaynemefjual to the greater of (a) one percent (1%)eprincipal amount
being prepaid multiplied by the quotient of the l@nof months until maturity divided by the termtioé note or (b) the
present value of the loan less the amount beinggie

Loan is prepayable but is subject to a premtrfee equal to the greater of (a) one percenj (f%e principal amount
being prepaid multiplied by the quotient of the l@nof months until maturity divided by the termtioé note or (b) the
present value of the loan less the principal amdued interest being prepa

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not currently involved in any maikpending or threatened legal proceeding norutcknowledge, is any material legal
proceeding currently threatened against us, ottar toutine
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litigation arising in the ordinary course of busiaeln the normal course of business we are peatidiparty to certain legal actions and
proceedings involving matters that are generaltydiental to our business. While the outcome ofd¢Hegal actions and proceedings cannot be
predicted with certainty, in management's opintbme,resolution of these legal proceedings and r&tigll not have a material adverse effect
on our consolidated financial position, result®pérations or cash flows.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

PART Il
ltem 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases CEquity Securities
Marketplace Designation, Sales Price Information ad Holders

Commencing with the Merger on March 11,£04ur common shares have been traded on the NASGIaRQal Market currently under
the symbol "CMCT". The following table sets forfbr the periods indicated, the high and low saléses as reported on the NASDAQ Global
Market and the regular dividends per share declayaas for each such period.

Regular

Quarterly

Dividends
Quarter Ended High Low Per Share
December 31, 201 $ 247(C $ 14.7¢ $ 0.2187!
September 30, 201 $ 23.4¢ $ 14.71 $ 0.2187!
June 30, 2014(1 $ 2350 $ 21.4f $ 0.2389(
March 31, 2014(1)(2)(z $ 242F $ 17.0: $ 0.1985
December 31, 2013(: N/A N/A $ 0.2z
September 30, 2013( N/A N/A  $ 0.4¢
June 30, 2013(: N/A N/A $ 0.2z
March 31, 2013(3 N/A N/A  $ 0.21

(1)  The regular quarterly dividend per share amountsaldnclude PMC Commercial's pre-Merger dividendshe
special dividend paid to PMC Commercial's pre-Mesjeckholders; however, these amounts do inclhde t
dividends paid on the shares of preferred stoaleid$o Urban Il in the Merger on an as convertesisha

(2)  The special dividend to PMC Commercial's pre-Megjeckholders was in the amount of $27.975 peresbfr
common stock (which includes the $27.50 per shhoemmon stock special dividend plus $0.475 pra padrtion
of PMC Commercial's regular quarterly cash dividetbnsistent with stock exchange policy for extdiaary
dividends, our Common Stock continued to be qubtad the time of the merger without giving effeatthe
special dividend through the dividend payment dafter which the shares were traded on adigidend basis. A
a result of this policy, purchasers of our Commuwck after the record date (the date of the merged)prior to
the "ex" date were entitled to receive a redeemahle bill" equal in value to the special dividei@r purposes «
determining the high and low prices of our Commuock, we have reduced the quoted market price &y th
amount of the due bill from the merger date uhi@ €:-dividend date
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(3)  The quoted high and low price is for the periodrfrthe Acquisition Date of the Merger with PMC Comnoial
(March 11, 2014) until March 31, 2014. Dividend amts for the calendar quarters in 2013 and foffiteequarte
of 2014 through the Acquisition Date (March 11, 2Ddepresent distributions by CIM Urban in respedts
limited partnership interests. These amounts haea lconverted to per common share amounts basi on
number of our common shares issued to Urban henMierger and issued to Urban Il upon conversiahef
preferred shares issued to Urban Il in the Mer

On March 9, 2015, there were approxima®&§ holders of record of our common stock, exclgditockholders whose shares were held
by brokerage firms, depositories and other instinél firms in "street name" for their customerheTast reported sales price of our common
stock on March 9, 2015 was $17.26.

1.8% of our shares of Common Stock as aofckl®, 2015 are held by non-affiliated stockholders
Our stockholders are entitled to receiwédginds when and as declared by the Board of [irect
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information¢cember 31, 2014 with respect to our common shaither under options or in respect of
restricted stock awards, that may be issued undstireg equity compensation plans, all of which &&een approved by our stockholders.

@ (b) ©
Number of common
shares remaining
available for future

Number of common issuances under equity
shares to be issued upon Weighted average compensation plans
exercise of outstanding exercise price of (excluding shares
Plan Category options outstanding options reflected in column (a))
Equity incentive plan 17,05( $ 20.4¢ 225,06

Effective January 31, 2015, all 17,050 tartding options were forfeited in accordance wlit plan.

Performance Graph

The information below is not deemed to &a@ititing material” or to be "filed" with the SE®@ subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act")aothe liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchanget,fand will not be deemed to be
incorporated by reference into any filing under 8ezurities Act or the Exchange Act, except toekient the Company specifically
incorporates it by reference into such a filing.

The line graph below compares the percenthgnge in the cumulative total stockholder reammmur Common Stock with the cumulat
total return of the S&P 500, the FTSE NAREIT EqUREIT Index and a peer group relating to our poiperations as a mortgage REIT (the
"Prior Period Peer Group"). The FTSE NAREIT EqQUREIT Index is a free-float adjusted, market capttlon-weighted index of U.S. Equity
REITs. The Index includes all tax-qualified REIT&glwmore than 50 percent of total assets in quialifyeal estate assets other than mortgage
secured by real property. During 2014, as a refuhie Merger, we transitioned from a mortgage Rilan equity REIT. Our Prior Period P
Group consists of all publicly traded investmennpanies that have the primary focus of mortghgeked security REITs and specialty fine
REITs listed on the NYSE, NYSE MKT and the NASDA® which coverage is provided by SNL Financial L€ thee period from
December 31, 2009 through December 31, 2014. Alkme assume an investment of $100 on
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December 31, 2009 and the reinvestment of dividenlls stock price performance shown on the graploti:mecessarily indicative of future
price performance.

Total Return Performance
225
—#— CIM Commercial Trust Corporation
200 +
—— S&P 500
- —a&— FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT
1 <+
g —@— Prior Peer Group Index
s
150
b
-
=
125
100
75 I I I |
12131109 12/3110 12/31/11 12/3112 12/3113 12/3114
Period Ending
Index 12/31/09 _12/31/10 _12/31/11 _12/31/12 _12/31/13 _12/31/14
CIM Commercial Trust Corporatic  100.0C 121.8¢ 108.9¢ 119.3¢ 153.4! 121.0(
S&P 500 100.0C 115.0¢ 117.4¢ 136.3( 180.4¢« 205.1¢
FTSE NAREIT Equity REIT 100.0C 127.9¢ 138.57 163.6( 167.6: 218.1¢
Prior Peer Group Inde 100.0C 124.3¢ 121.2¢ 144.87 139.8t 162.9(

Source: SNL Financial Lt
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities and UseRroceeds
None.
Repurchases of Common Stock
None.
Iltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following is a summary of our Seleckédancial Data as of and for each of the five yéatbe period ended December 31, 2014. Th
following data should be read in conjunction witlr consolidated financial statements and the rnb&®to and "ltem 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations" appearing elsewhere inRbisn 10-K.
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The selected financial data presented below has de®ved from our audited consolidated financiatements.

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)

Total revenue $ 256,15. $ 235,81: $ 232,51! $ 213,29: $ 210,66:
Total expense 249,11: 221,13 212,71t 206,98 205,11°
Bargain purchase ga 4,91¢ — - — —
Income from continuing operatiol 11,96( 14,67¢ 19,791 6,30¢ 5,54¢
Income from discontinued

operations(1 12,63¢ — - — 8,12(
Net income 24,59¢ 14,67¢ 19,797 6,30¢ 13,66¢
Net income attributable |

noncontrolling interest (220) (213 (20¢) (187) (137)

Net income attributable 1

stockholder $ 24376 $ 14,46¢ $ 19,58¢ $ 6,12 $ 13,52¢
Funds from operations (FF( $ 93,64 $ 83,320 $ 89,74( $ 75,111 $ 78,35]
Dividends(2) $ 8504¢ $ 104,03' $ 72,98 $ 68,52 $ 62,06:
Dividends per share(: $ 0.8¢ $ 1.0¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.7: $ 0.65
Weighted average number of
common shares outstanding
Basic 97,17 95,44( 95,44( 95,44( 95,44(
Diluted 97,17¢ 95,44( 95,44( 95,44( 95,44(
At December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(In thousands)
Total asset $ 2,094,68 $ 1,834,447 $ 1,870,71: $ 1,916,000 $ 1,888,41:
Debt 608,71: 395,10! 345,63: 324,53 241,58:
Equity 1,359,81 1,376,48. 1,466,07. 1,519,52 1,581,54

Q) The income from discontinued operations ferykar ended December 31, 2014 is related to tiginlg segment which
was acquired in March 2014 in connection with ther§er and is classified as held for sale as of Déee 31, 2014. The
income from discontinued operations for the yealeghDecember 31, 2010 represents the activityhott@l property that
was sold in December 2010.

(2) Dividends in 2014 do not include PMC Commdrsipre-Merger dividends or the special dividenitiga PMC
Commercial's stockholders; however, these amounisaiude the dividends paid on the shares of prediestock issued
to Urban Il in the Merger on an as converted basiidends in 2010 through the Acquisition Date f®lall, 2014)
represent distributions by CIM Urban in respecit®fimited partnership interests. Dividends in ftear ended
December 31, 2013 include five distributions.

) Unaudited Pro Forma, as if the shares issued umoadquisition occurred on January 1, 2(
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Firsu@ondition and Results of Operations includeswnforward-looking statements.
For cautions about relying on such forwelooking statements, please see "Forward-LookirgeBtents" at the beginning of this Report
immediately prior to Item 1. All references to @wmmon Stock and related per share data have bdjestad in this Report to reflect the
reverse stock split.

Executive Summary
The Merger

On July 8, 2013, PMC Commercial, enterad the Merger Agreement with CIM REIT, an affiliai€ CIM Group, and subsidiaries of the
respective parties. The Merger Agreement providedhe business combination of CIM REIT's whollyred subsidiary, CIM Urban, and
PMC Commercial. Pursuant to the Merger Agreemeriiabl I, an affiliate of CIM REIT received 4,400@6hares of newly-issued PMC
Commercial common stock and approximately 65,0aDg}ares of newly-issued PMC Commercial prefertecks Following the Merger and
subsequent increase in our authorized number oéshaach share of preferred stock was converted.id shares of PMC Commercial
common stock, resulting in the issuance of 95,4 ghares of common stock in the aggregate in atiomewith the Merger, representing
approximately 97.8% of PMC Commercial's outstandihgres of common stock.

All shares of PMC Commercial common std@kt were outstanding immediately prior to the e¢lgsaf the Merger continue to remain
outstanding following the Acquisition Date. In afimin, stockholders of record of PMC Commercialre tlose of the business day prior to the
Acquisition Date received a special cash dividen$27.50 per share of PMC Commercial common stde& fhat pro-rata portion of PMC
Commercial's regular quarterly cash dividend aattheough the Acquisition Date, each of which waglpMarch 25, 2014.

Furthermore, on April 28, 2014, we file@tReverse Split Amendment to effectuate a oneier+everse stock split of our Common
Stock, effective April 29, 2014. Pursuant to theerse stock split, each five shares of Common Sixiked and outstanding immediately prior
to the effective time of the reverse stock spliteveonverted into one share of Common Stock. Adighare and outstanding share information
included herein from before the Reverse Split Anmeedt has been presented to reflect the reversk spdic unless otherwise noted.

The Merger was completed on March 11, 2Qphn completion of the Merger, PMC Commercial lmeeahe parent of CIM Urban. PV
Commercial reincorporated from Texas to Marylandpnil 28, 2014 and, on the same day, changedaitsenfrom "PMC Commercial Trust"
to "CIM Commercial Trust Corporation.”

The Merger was accounted for as a revargeisition under the acquisition method of accaumtvith CIM Urban considered to be the
accounting acquirer based upon the terms of thgydtekgreement. In order to allow CIM Commercialrtorease its focus in Class A and
creative office properties, our Board of Directapproved a plan for the lending business that, vdoempleted, will result in the
deconsolidation of the lending segment. Accordintiig lending segment is held for sale; the asseddiabilities of our lending segment that
are held for sale in accordance with the planrsekided in the consolidated balance sheet as ofibker 31, 2014 as assets and liabilities
associated with assets held for sale, the restits operations are included in the consolidatatkesnents of operations and comprehensive
income as income from operations of assets helddia, and its cash flows are included in the cidested cash flows for the period from the
Acquisition Date through December 31, 2014.
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Business Overvie\

Our principal business is to acquire, oamg operate Class A and creative office propentietbrant and improving urban communities
throughout the United States. These communitietoaeted in areas that include traditional downt@meas and suburban main streets, which
have high barriers-to-entry, high population dgnsiproving demographic trends and a propensitygfowth. We believe that the critical
mass of redevelopment in such areas creates mosiiernalities, which enhance the value of sulislfnstabilized assets in the area. We
believe that these assets will provide greatermstthan similar assets in other markets, as atr@stine improving demographics, public
commitment, and significant private investment tttedracterize these areas.

Our real estate business is managed bffiiate of CIM Group. CIM Group is an integratefdlll-service real estate and infrastructure
fund manager with multi-disciplinary expertise anéhouse research, acquisition, investment, deveéoy, finance, leasing, and management
capabilities. CIM Group is headquartered in Los @éleg and has offices in Oakland, California; Betlae®laryland; Dallas, Texas; and New
York, New York.

We seek attractive risk-adjusted returngxploiting the power of the CIM Group platform. @time, we seek to expand our real estate
holdings in communities targeted by CIM Group foréstment, supported by CIM Group's broad reatestaestment capabilities, as part of
our plan to prudently grow market value and earging

Properties

As of December 31, 2014, CIM Urban's inmestts consisted of (i) 21 office properties conipgof approximately 5.6 million rentable
square feet, (i) five multifamily properties conging of 930 units, (iii) three hotels comprising19070 rooms, (iv) three parking garages, two
of which have street level retail space, and (\@ development site.

Strategy

Our investment strategy is centered ardihd’'s community qualification process. We beliekss tstrategy provides us with a significant
competitive advantage when making urban real estaéstments. The qualification process generalkgs between six months and five years
and is a critical component of CIM's investmentleation. CIM examines the characteristics of a ratitk determine whether the district
justifies the extensive efforts CIM undertakesaxiewing and making potential investments in ita@ied Communities. Qualifie
Communities generally fall into one of two categsri(i) transitional urban districts and (ii) weBtablished, thriving urban areas (typically
major central business districts). Qualified Comities are distinct districts which have dedicatesources to become or are currently vibrant
communities where people can live, work, shop andrtertained—all within walking distance or clgseximity to public transportation.
These areas also generally have high barrierstig, dngh population density, improving demograptiends and a propensity for growth. In
addition to the urbanization of North America ir tlast 21 years due to the growing preferencerfarrban lifestyle, today's economic
environment has further fueled urban growth duth¢éoneed for efficient solutions to meet continpegulation growth and limited natural
resources. CIM believes that a vast majority ofribles associated with making real asset investsnam mitigated by accumulating local
market knowledge of the community where the investities. CIM typically spends significant time amedources qualifying targeted
investment communities prior to making any acquaisi. Since 1994, CIM Group has qualified 97 comitiesand has deployed capital in 48
of these qualified communities. Although we may ineest exclusively in Qualified Communities, itdégpected that most of our investments
will be identified through this systematic process.
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CIM seeks to maximize the value of its istmeents through active asset management. CIM haasxe in-house research, acquisition,
investment, development, financing, leasing angh@ry management capabilities, which leverageeepdinderstanding of urban communi
to position properties for multiple uses and to immaze operating income. As a fully integrated owaad operator, CIM's asset management
capabilities are complemented by its in-house ptgpeanagement capabilities. Property managersapesgnnual capital and operating
budgets and monthly operating reports, monitorltesund oversee vendor services, maintenance gihldanprovement schedules. In
addition, they ensure that revenue objectives @k lease terms are followed, receivables are delk preventative maintenance programs a
implemented, vendors are evaluated and expensesmt®lled. CIM's Asset Management Committee n@giand approves strategic plans for
each investment, including financial, leasing, nedirlg, property positioning and strategic and disjian plans. In addition, the Asset
Management Committee reviews and approves the &hasiess plan for each property, including itsitzd and operating budget. CIM's
organizational structure provides for investment asset management continuity through multi-digtipl teams responsible for an asset fron
the time of the original investment recommendattbmugh the implementation of the asset's busipkss and any disposition activities.

Lending Segmen

We will continue to deploy a portion of axapital to our real estate lending platform thitowgr wholly owned subsidiary (d/b/a PMC
Commercial Trust) that originates and servicesdaarder the U.S. SBA 7(a) Guaranteed Loan Progsawedl as through other lending
programs which allow us to achieve attractive ddjusted returns on its loans.

To take advantage of the expertise of Gild,have begun to originate commercial real estated for properties that are primarily locatec
in CIM Group's Qualified Communities. We are tamggtinvestments between $20 million and $100 millaith a focus on developing a
diversified pool of loans. These loans are typjcaliort duration (five years or less, inclusiveerfension options), floating rate and are
expected to be:

. limited and/or non-recourse junior (mezzanine, terar 2nd lien) and senior construction loans; or

. limited and/or non-recourse junior (mezzanine, kerar 2nd lien) and senior acquisition, bridgeepasitioning loans.
We intend to participate a portion of thiemms with, and/or syndicate a portion of thesam#oto, one or more institutional investors.
Funds from Operations ("FFO")

We believe that FFO is a widely recogniaed appropriate noBAAP measure of the performance of a REIT andithaffrequently use
by security analysts, investors and other intedegteties in the evaluation of REITs, many of whichsent FFO when reporting their results.
FFO represents net income (loss), computed in dacge with GAAP, excluding gains (or losses) fraies of real estate, real estate
depreciation and amortization (other than amoiitmabf deferred financing costs), and after adj@stta for non-controlling interests. We
calculate FFO in accordance with the standardbksttad by the National Association of Real Estateestment Trusts ("NAREIT").

Like any metric, FFO should not be usethasonly measure of our performance because itidesldepreciation and amortization and
captures neither the changes in the value of @irestate properties that result from use or maretitions nor the level of capital
expenditures and leasing commissions necessargitttaim the operating performance of our properadsof which have real economic effect
and could materially impact our operating resutther REITs may not calculate FFO
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in accordance with NAREIT, accordingly, our FFO nmepg be comparable to those other REITs' FFO. TasreFFO should be considered
only as a supplement to net income as a measuner @gferformance and should not be used as a supptdmor substitute measure for cash
flow from operating activities computed in accordanvith U.S. GAAP. FFO should not be used as a ureas our liquidity, nor is it
indicative of funds available to fund our cash readcluding our ability to pay dividends.

The following table sets forth a recontitia of net income to FFO:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net income attributable to stockhold: $ 24,37¢ $ 14,46¢ $ 19,58¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 69,04" 68,64+ 69,94
Net income attributable to noncontrolli
interests 22C 21% 20¢
FFO $ 93,64! $ 83,32 $ 89,74(

FFO increased to $93,645,000, or 12.4%tHeryear ended December 31, 2014, compared t8FBB00 for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The increase was primarilybattable to income of $12,638,000 from the operatioithe lending segment acquired on
the Acquisition Date, the recognition of the bangaiirchase gain of $4,918,000, a decrease in thosaosts of $3,500,000 and an increas
$4,797,000 in hotel operating income primarily doi¢he operations of the LAX Holiday Inn, which Cltftban acquired through foreclosurt
October 2013 being reflected as a non-performinggage note receivable during part of the year éidkecember 31, 2013. These increases
were partially offset by an increase of $4,337,00€orporate general and administrative expensesjaease of $3,455,000 in asset
management fees and other fees to related pattes;rease of $5,126,000 in multifamily net opagaihcome, mainly due to a non-recurring
tax abatement we have agreed to refund at our Nenk property, an increase of $1,144,000 in inteegpiense from higher debt levels, and a
decrease of $1,469,000 in office net operatingrimezomainly due to increases in real estate taxeéeatalifornia properties, a portion of whi
we expect to be reimbursed by tenants, and anaseri electricity expense at the District of Cdhigrproperties.

FFO decreased to $83,323,000, or 7.2%hfoyear ended December 31, 2013, compared to 48900 for the year ended December 31
2012. The decrease was primarily due to a decrfek® 346,000 in hotel net operating income dukeAX Holiday Inn being reflected as a
non-performing mortgage note receivable during phathe year ended December 31, 2013, and an apgtaitel from October 8, 2013 to
December 31, 2013, and an increase in transaatisis of $4,431,000, which mainly represents cadétded to the Merger and costs associate
with the LAX Holiday Inn hotel foreclosure in Octeb2013, partially offset by an increase of $920,B0office net operating income, mainly
due to increased occupancy at an office propertigarDistrict of Columbia.

Rental Rate Trend:

Office Rental Rates: The following table sets forth the annualizedtmper occupied square foot across our officef@atas of the
specified periods:

As of December 31
2014 2013 2012

Annualized rent per occupied square foo $ 36.28 $ 36.12 $ 35.4:

(1) Represents gross monthly base rent under leasea@oced as of the specified periods, multipliedveglve. This
amount reflects total cash rent before abateméntsl
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abatements for the twelve months ended Decembe&03#, 2013 and 2012 were approximately $7,312,000,
$14,665,000 and $16,049,000, respectively. Whepécgble, annualized rent has been grossed up dingd
annualized expense reimbursements to base renuafined rent for certain office properties includest
attributable to retail

Over the next four quarters, we expecem expiring cash rents as set forth in the tabi@be

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
2015 2015 2015 2015
Expiring Cash Rents:
Expiring square feet(1 434,64¢ 28,70z 185,10¢ 79,14(
Expiring rent per square
foot(2) $ 408t $ 2561 $ 37.9C $ 41.9;

(1) Al month-to-month tenants are included in the exygj leases in the first quarter listed.

(2) Represents gross monthly base rent, as of Dece®iih@014, under leases expiring during the peradsre,
multiplied by twelve. This amount reflects totakbarent before abatements. Where applicable, aizedalent has
been grossed up by adding annualized expense reserhants to base re

Multifamily Rates:  The following table sets forth the monthly r@et occupied unit across our multifamily portfolay the specified

periods:

As of December 31
2014 2013 2012

Monthly rent per occupied unit(; $ 1,91¢ $ 1,81€ $ 1,741

(1) Represents gross monthly base rent under leaségtesspecified period, divided by occupied unftsis amount
reflects total cash rent before concessi

Occupancy Rates: The following table sets forth the occupandgsaacross our office and multifamily real estaigfplios, as of the

specified periods:

As of December 31
2014 2013 2012

Office portfolio 85.1% 84.2% 85.2%
Multifamily portfolio 92.8% 94.1% 95.6%

Hotel Statistics: The following table sets forth the occupanaserage daily rate and RevPAR for the hotel portfédir the specified

periods:

For the Years Ended December 3]

2014 2013 2012
Rental Rate Trend<——Hotel Statistics(1)
Occupancy 81.2% 75.2% 74.2%
ADR $ 1225. $ 124.7( $ 128.8:
RevPAR $ 9961 $ 94.0¢ $ 955¢
(1) The year ended December 31, 2013 informaticludes LAX Holiday Inn, of which CIM Urban took ggession through

foreclosure in October 2013, starting in Octobet 2|
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Secondary Market Loan Sale

Our lending division, which is reflectedlasld for sale at December 31, 2014, sells loansyant to the SBA 7(a) Program. The SBA
guaranteed portion of these loans are sold in legjaltransactions to either dealers in governmeatanteed loans or institutional investors as
the loans are fully funded. These government gueeahportions of loans may be sold for (1) a casmpum and the minimum 1% SBA
required servicing spread, (2) significant futueevicing spread and no cash premium or (3) futergising spread and a cash premium of 1
We are required to permanently treat certain oftfoeeeds received from these legally sold portafisans (those loans sold solely for future
servicing spread and those loans sold for a casmipm of 10% and future servicing spread) as selcoioerowings (debt) for the life of the
loan included in the accompanying consolidatedrzaasheet as liabilities associated with assetsfbekale and 100% of the loan is included
in assets held for sale.

Results of Operations
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 201 Year Ended December 31, 2013

Overview

Years Ended

December 31, Change
2014 2013 3$ %
(dollars in thousands)

Total revenue $ 256,15. $ 235,810 $ 20,34( 8.€%
Total expense $ 249,11: $ 221,13 $ 27,977 12.7%
Bargain purchase ga $ 491t $ — $ 4,91¢ —
Income from operations of assets

held for sale $ 12,63t $ — $ 12,63¢ —
Net income $ 2459 $ 14,67¢ $ 9,91¢ 67.%

Net income increased during the year emsrember 31, 2014 primarily due to income of $18,680 from the operations of the lending
segment acquired on the Acquisition Date, the naitimgp of the bargain purchase gain of $4,918,@0ated to the Merger, a decrease in
transaction costs of $3,500,000 and an increa$d, 97,000 in hotel operating income primarily do¢he operations of the LAX Holiday In
which CIM Urban acquired through foreclosure in @er 2013 being reflected as a nmerforming mortgage note receivable during pathe
year ended December 31, 2013. These increasepaialy offset by an increase of $4,337,000 inpcoate general and administrat
expenses, an increase of $3,455,000 in asset ntaragéees and other fees to related parties, &dserof $5,126,000 in multifamily net
operating income, mainly due to a naturring tax abatement we have agreed to refundradilew York property, an increase of $1,144,0(
interest expense from higher debt levels, and eedse of $1,469,000 in office net operating incomainly due to increases in real estate t:
at the California properties, a portion of which @ect to be reimbursed by tenants, and an ineiieaslectricity expense at the District of
Columbia properties.

CIM Commercial operates in four segmentfice®, hotel, multifamily and lending. The lendisggment is classified as held for sale at
December 31, 2014 and included in discontinuedatjmers. Set forth and described below are summeggnent results for our three segments
for the specified periods.
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Summary Segment Resul

Years Ended

December 31 Change
2014 2013 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Revenues:

Office properties $ 179,33¢ $ 175,14« $ 4,19« 2.4%
Hotel 56,09¢ 40,68( 15,41¢ 37.%
Multifamily 20,71¢ 19,98¢ 73C 3.7%
Expenses:

Office properties 74,64 68,98 5,66: 8.2%
Hotel 39,69¢ 29,07¢ 10,61¢ 36.5%
Multifamily 14,40: 8,54¢ 5,85¢ 68.52%

Revenues

Office Properties Revenue: Revenues include rental revenues from offioperties, expense reimbursements and lease teromnat
income. Total office property revenues increase#il{i9,338,000, or 2.4%, for the year ended Decei®be?014 compared to $175,144,000
for the year ended December 31, 2013, primarilytduevenues related to the office properties aeglin April and October 2014, and
revenue increases at certain properties in the=gamcisco Bay Area and metro Washington D.C. a#fset by a decrease at the North
Carolina office property due to early terminatidradarge tenant in April 2014.

Hotel Revenue: Total hotel revenue increased to $56,096,0087®%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 coedda
$40,680,000 for the year ended December 31, 20i8iricrease is primarily due to the operation$iefltAX Holiday Inn, which CIM Urban
acquired through foreclosure in October 2013, bedfigcted as an operating hotel during the yededrbDecember 31, 2014, versus a non-
performing mortgage note receivable during pathefyear ended December 31, 2013, and an opetaiiegfrom October 8, 2013 to
December 31, 2013. Additionally, our hotel propestin Sacramento and Oakland, California experidRe/PAR growth during the year
ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year éhglsginber 31, 2013 primarily due to increased rates.

Multifamily Revenue: Total multifamily revenue increased to $20,009, or 3.7%, for the year ended December 31, 20i#pared to
$19,989,000 for the year ended December 31, 20i8irncrease is primarily due to increased ratesiaNew York property and one of our
Dallas properties. We expect multifamily revenuewat New York property to decrease during the yemted December 31, 2015, as our
corporate housing tenant is terminating its leaddarch 2015 and we expect to re-lease the propertgdividual units.

Expenses

Office Properties Expenses: Total expenses increased to $74,647,000, &b 8@ the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to
$68,984,000 for the year ended December 31, 20i8irncrease is primarily due to expenses relat¢idetoffice properties acquired in April
and October 2014, an increase in real estate taxbg California properties, and an increaseentdkity expense at the District of Columbia
properties.

Hotel Expenses: Total hotel expenses increased to $39,6948086.5%, for the year ended December 31, 2014 aosopto
$29,075,000 for the year ended December 31, 20i8irncrease is primarily due to the LAX Holiday Jnvhich CIM Urban acquired through
foreclosure in October 2013, being reflected aseerating hotel during the year ended Decembe2@14, versus a
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non-performing mortgage note receivable during phathe year ended December 31, 2013, and an apgtadtel from October 8, 2013 to
December 31, 2013. Additionally, our hotel propéntysacramento, California had increased variabtscassociated with higher occupancy
during the year ended December 31, 2014 comparextgear ended December 31, 2013.

Multifamily Expenses: Total multifamily expenses increased to $14,80Q, or 68.5%, for the year ended December 314 20inpare:
to $8,546,000 for the year ended December 31, Z¥gincrease is primarily due to an increase ah estate taxes and legal costs in 2014 at
our New York property, primarily due to a $4,473)(Xxpense related to a non-recurring payment we hgreed to make in connection with
the refund of tax abatements we received duringéhi®d of our ownership in which the property voaing leased by a corporate housing
operator, which was settled in February 2015.

Interest Expense: Interest expense that has not been allocateelgments of $19,073,000 for the year ended Deaedih@014
represents a $1,144,000 increase from $17,929¢@i00é€ year ended December 31, 2013. Increasesétexpense from higher debt levels,
incremental credit facility borrowings during theay ended December 31, 2014 and from amortizafideferred loan costs related to the
credit facilities terminated and repaid in full$®ptember 2014 was partially offset by lower indeexpense from amortizing fixed-rate
mortgages as a result of the repayment of apprdgign&75,909,000 in fixed rate mortgages in Sepm2013. Outstanding borrowings under
our credit facility during the year ended DecemBkr2014 were at lower interest rates compareldaanterest rates on the fixed rate
mortgages that were repaid in September 2013.

General and Administrative: General and administrative expenses that havbeen allocated to segments increased to $5d6300
the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $0026or the year ended December 31, 2013. Theaseris primarily due to public
company expenses, offset by a dimee gain of $1,166,000 relating to the settlemadrd contractual obligation that reduced expensend the
year ended December 31, 20

Transaction Costs: Transaction costs totaling $1,563,000 for tearyended December 31, 2014 represent a $3,500¢@08ase from
$5,063,000 for the year ended December 31, 2018 cohts incurred during the year ended Decembe2@®1 are associated with the Merger
including due diligence costs, reimbursement of P@t&@nmercial's acquisition-related costs, legal arwbunting expenses, as well as costs
related to the foreclosure of the LAX Holiday Inm@ctober 2013. The costs incurred during the geded December 31, 2014 are mainly
associated with the Merger, the acquisition oftthe office properties in April and October 2014daransaction costs related to the lending
segment held for sale.

Asset Management Fees and Other Fees t@fRel Parties: Asset management fees totaled $23,223,00tiéoydar ended
December 31, 2014 compared to $21,767,000 fore¢he gnded December 31, 2013. Management feeslantatad based on a percentage of
the gross fair value of CIM Urban's investmentsichtare appraised in the fourth quarter of each.yiEge higher fees reflect a net increase in
the fair value of the real estate investments basettie December 31, 2013 appraised values, asawélcremental capital expenditures and
acquisitions during 2014. In addition, pursuanthi® Master Services Agreement entered into on tguikition Date, CIM Commercial pays a
Base Service Fee equal to $1,000,000 per yeare@tiiiojannual escalation by a specified inflatiactdr beginning on January 1, 2015) to the
Manager, a related party. Fees to the Manageeth®&806,000 for the year ended December 31, 20hpaced to $0 for the year ended
December 31, 2013. In addition, pursuant to thesesf the Master Services Agreement, the Managgrreweive compensation for perform
certain services for CIM Commercial and its sulzgids that are not covered under the Base SereieeHor the year ended December 31,
2014, we expensed $1,193,000 for such services.
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Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization expense increts&69,047,000, or 0.6%, for the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to $68,644,000 foyehe ended December 31, 2013. The increase indapom and amortization expense
compared to the year ended December 31, 2013nmply due to depreciation expense associated adtlitional capital expenditures,
depreciation from LAX Holiday Inn, which CIM Urbaacquired through foreclosure in October 2013, &wedacquisition of the office
properties in April and October 2014, offset by @ased amortization of certain in place lease walue

Discontinued Operations

Income from operations of assets held fates Represents revenues and expenses from ountesdgment, including interest income
on loans and other loan related fee income of 4TBOMO, offset by expenses of $6,272,000 whichubielgeneral and administrative expense:
interest expense, and provision for income taxés.[&@nding operations are reflected beginning enfttquisition Date through December 31,
2014.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 201 Year Ended December 31, 2012

Overview

Years Ended

December 31, Change
2013 2012 $ %
(dollars in thousands)
Total revenue $ 23581 $ 232,511 $ 3,30( 1.4%
Total expense $ 221,13: $ 212,71« $ 8,41¢ 4.C%
Net income $ 1467¢ $ 19,797 $ (5,11f (25.9%

Net income decreased during the year ebadegmber 31, 2013 primarily due to a decrease @4%3000 in hotel net operating income
due to LAX Holiday Inn being reflected as a nonfpening mortgage note receivable during part ofytear ended December 31, 2013, and a
operating hotel from October 8, 2013 to Decembe2813, an increase in transaction costs of $404®1 which mainly represents costs
related to the Merger and costs associated withA¥eHoliday Inn hotel foreclosure in October 2018fset by an increase of $929,000 in
office net operating income, mainly due to increlagecupancy at an office property in the Distritc€olumbia, and a decrease in depreciation
and amortization of $1,299,000 due to certain aition-related intangible assets that became fuifyprtized in 2013.

Set forth and described below are summegynent results for our segments for the specifextbds.

Summary Segment Resul

Years Ended

December 31, Change
2013 2012 $ %
(dollars in thousands)

Revenues;

Office properties $ 175,14 $ 172,58. $ 2,561 1.5%
Hotel 40,68( 41,08¢ (406) (1L.0%
Multifamily 19,98¢ 18,84+ 1,14¢ 6.1%
Expenses:

Office properties 68,98« 67,352 1,632 2.4%
Hotel 29,07t 26,13t 2,94C 11.2%
Multifamily 8,54¢ 7,751 79t 10.2%
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Revenues

Office Properties Revenue: Revenues include rental revenues from officperties, expense reimbursements and lease teromnat
income. Total office property revenues increasedilif,144,000, or 1.5%, for the year ended Decei@be?2013 compared to $172,583,000
for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarilytduan increase in revenue from an office propertye District of Columbia, which
experienced higher occupancy.

Hotel Revenue: Total hotel revenue decreased to $40,680,00D.086, for the year ended December 31, 2013 cozdptar$41,086,000
for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decreasinarily due to lower interest income on a nerfiprming note receivable from LAX
Holiday Inn during 2013. CIM Urban foreclosed oe tiotel in October 2013, and for the period fromober 2013 through December 2013,
LAX Holiday Inn is reflected as an operating hofghis decrease was partially offset by increasedmee from our hotel properties in
Sacramento and Oakland, California, which expegdraccupancy and RevPAR growth during the yearebdeember 31, 2013 compare(
the year ended December 31, 2012.

Multifamily Revenue: Total multifamily revenue increased to $19,98®, or 6.1%, for the year ended December 31, 20h¥ared to
$18,844,000 for the year ended December 31, 20iRircrease is primarily due to increased revernra fwo of our multifamily properties
Texas, which achieved increased rental rates cadgarthe 2012 period. Revenue also benefitted fraraw retail lease at our multifamily
property in New York.

Expenses

Office Properties Expenses: Total expenses increased to $68,984,000, &b Xdr the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to
$67,352,000 for the year ended December 31, 20iQircrease is primarily due to increased reatestes at our District of Columbia
properties.

Hotel Expenses: Total hotel expenses increased to $29,075@80D1.2%, for the year ended December 31, 2013 aocsapto
$26,135,000 for the year ended December 31, 20iirncrease is primarily due to the LAX Holiday Jnvhich CIM Urban acquired through
foreclosure in October 2013, being reflected aserating hotel for the period from October 201®tiygh December 2013, versus a mortgage
note receivable for the year ended December 312.28dditionally, our hotel properties in Sacrameata Oakland, California had increased
variable costs associated with higher occupancindguhe year ended December 31, 2013 comparecttpeiér ended December 31, 2012.

Multifamily Expenses: Total multifamily expenses increased to $8,8@8, or 10.3%, for the year ended December 31, 20@®ared
to $7,751,000 for the year ended December 31, ZMRincrease is primarily due to higher real estax expense in the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended Dere3thh2012.

Interest Expense: Interest expense that has not been allocatsegments of $17,929,000 for the year ended Deaedih@013
represents a $927,000 decrease from $18,856,0@0efgrear ended December 31, 2012. The reductioriérest expense was primarily due to
the lower interest rate on our borrowings underlim@s of credit outstanding during 2013 versusitiierest rates on the fixed rate mortgage
approximately $75,909,000 that were outstandingnduhe year ended December 31, 2012 that werédr@ap&eptember 2013.

General and Administrative: General and administrative expenses that havbeen allocated to segments totaled $1,126,00Héo
year ended December 31, 2013, consistent with 31002 for the year ended December 31, 2
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Transaction Costs: Transaction costs totaling $5,063,000 for tearyended December 31, 2013 represent a $4,43ih@@@se from
$632,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012cd$ies incurred during the year ended December(Bi3 ihclude $1,393,000 of tax, legal,
and other costs associated with the foreclosutkeoEAX Holiday Inn and $3,670,000 of costs assedawvith the Merger, which are primarily
comprised of due diligence costs, reimbursemeMEC Commercial's acquisitiorelated costs, legal and accounting expenses.raihsdctiol
costs for the year ended December 31, 2012 areiat=s with the conversion of a loan to equity i@ of our District of Columbia office
properties.

Asset Management Fees and Other Fees t@fRel Parties: Asset management fees totaled $21,767,00tiéoydar ended
December 31, 2013 compared to $20,924,000 forehe gnded December 31, 2012. Management feeslantatad based on a percentage of
the gross fair value of CIM Urban's investmentsichiltare appraised in the fourth quarter of each.yde higher fees reflect a net increase in
the fair value of the real estate investments basettite December 31, 2012 appraised values, asawéicremental capital expenditures and
acquisitions during the year ended December 313201

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization expense decreas$68,644,000, or 1.9%, for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to $69,943,000 foyehe ended December 31, 2012. The decrease indikga and amortization expense
compared to the year ended December 31, 2012nwaply due to certain acquisitiaelated assets that became fully depreciated i8,2ffise
by an increase in depreciation associated withtiaddil capital expenditures during the year endeddmnber 31, 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Func
Credit Facilities

In February 2012, CIM Urban entered intauasecured revolving line of credit with a bankdigate, which allowed for maximum
borrowings of $100,000,000. Borrowings under the lof credit were limited by certain borrowing baséculations. Outstanding advances
under the line of credit bore interest at (i) tlasdrate, as defined, plus 0.75% to 1.50% or ¢ijdon InterBank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus
1.75% to 2.50%, depending on the maximum conseliikgverage ratio, as defined, until August 2003Aligust 2013, the unsecured
revolving line was amended, and outstanding adwauander the line bore interest at (i) the base estelefined, plus 0.25% to 0.85% or
(i) LIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.85%, depending on theximaum consolidated leverage ratio, as defined. lirfeeof credit was also subject to an
unused commitment fee of 0.25% or 0.35% dependinip® amount of aggregate unused commitments. Sgoémber 31, 2013,
$100,000,000 was outstanding under the line oficréhis line of credit was terminated and repaiddll in September 2014.

In August 2013, CIM Urban entered into dweotunsecured revolving line of credit with a bagkdicate. The line of credit provided an
additional $125,000,000 of borrowing capacity tas increased to $150,000,000. CIM Urban amendetirté of credit in April 2014 to
further increase the maximum aggregate borrowipgcity under the revolving credit facility to $2000,000. Borrowings under the revolving
line were limited by certain borrowing base caltiolas. Outstanding advances under the line boegzdst at (i) the base rate, as defined, plus
0.25% to 0.85% or (ii) LIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.85%pednding on the maximum consolidated leverage, rasialefined. The line of credit was
also subject to an unused commitment fee of 0.26@:35% depending on the amount of aggregate ure@aditments. As of December 31,
2013, $64,000,000 was outstanding under the lireadfit. This line of credit was terminated andaién full in September 2014.
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In September 2014, we entered into an $BBOO00 unsecured credit facility with a bank sgatk consisting of a $450,000,000 revolver
a $325,000,000 term loan and a $75,000,000 deldyead-term loan. The credit facility can be increate$1,150,000,000, under certain
conditions. We are subject to certain financialmenance covenants and a minimum property ownecsmgition. Outstanding advances
under the revolver bear interest at (i) the base pus 0.20% to 1.00% or (ii) LIBOR plus 1.20%2t600%, depending on the maximum
consolidated leverage ratio. Outstanding advancdsiuhe term loans bear interest at (i) the baise plus 0.15% to 0.95% or (ii) LIBOR plus
1.15% to 1.95%, depending on the maximum conse@litikgverage ratio. The revolver is also subjeent@nused commitment fee of 0.15% or
0.25% depending on the amount of aggregate unusachitments. The delayed draw term loan is alsoesuitdp an unused line fee of 0.25%.
The credit facility matures in September 2016 ammides for two one-year extension options undeia@e conditions. As of February 28,
2015 and December 31, 2014, $380,000,000, and 338000, respectively, was outstanding under taditcfacility and $470,000,000, and
$490,000,000, respectively, was available for fifoorrowings. Proceeds from the unsecured credlitfawere used for acquisitions, general
corporate purposes and to repay $323,000,000 adieunder our unsecured credit facilities.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, CIM Comna¢i@nd CIM Urban, respectively, were in compliamngth all of their respective financial
covenants.

Our intention is to use the $75,000,00@&yged-draw term loan portion of the unsecured crfeditity to pay off mortgages of $72,959,000
as of December 31, 2014, that are maturing duting/ear ending December 31, 2015.

We have substantial borrowing capacity, aildikely finance our future activities througimy of the following methods: (i) offerings of
common shares, preferred shares, senior unsecradt®s, and other equity and debt securiti®stié use and potential expansion of our
existing revolving credit lines including the udette credit line we obtained in September 201theruse of a new credit line; (iii) the addition
of senior, recourse or non-recourse debt usingetarcquisitions as well as existing investmentsadigteral; and/or (iv) the sale of existing
investments. We expect to maintain leverage lethelsare comparable to those of other commercagnty REITs engaged in business
strategies similar to our own.

Our long-term liquidity needs will consgtimarily of funds necessary to acquire properdied to pay for development or repositioning of
properties, non-recurring capital expenditures r@fidancing of indebtedness. We may not have safftdunds on hand or may not be able to
obtain additional financing to cover all of thesadterm cash requirements. The nature of our busim@ssthe requirements imposed by RI
rules that we distribute a substantial majoritpof REIT taxable income on an annual basis in éhe fof dividends, may cause us to have
substantial liquidity needs over the long-term. Wik seek to satisfy our long-term liquidity neeitisough cash flows from operations, long-
term borrowings, debt and/or equity issuances antt/dhe extent appropriate, property dispositiditeese sources of funding may not be
available on attractive terms or at all. If we cainobtain additional funding for our long-term lidity needs, our investments may generate
lower cash flows or decline in value, or both, vwhinay cause us to reduce our dividend or sell asget time when we would not otherwise
So.

Cash Flow Analysis

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2014 tbd Year Ended December 31, 2013

As a REIT, our cash flows from operations typically used to fund our dividends.

Our cash and cash equivalents, inclusiveash associated with assets held for sale, to$@@b52,000 and $16,796,000 at December 3:
2014 and 2013, respectively. Our cash flows from
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operating activities are primarily dependent ugmndccupancy level of our real estate assetsetitalrrates achieved through our leases, and
the collectability of rent and recoveries from ¢emants. Our cash flows from operating activitiesaso impacted by fluctuations in operating
expenses and other general and administrative. ddstash provided by operating activities toté$66,806,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to $61,827,000 forehe gnded December 31, 2013. The increase is ntielyo an increase in segment net
operating income of $2,677,000, when adjusted 4,475,000 accrual related to a non-recurring gaytrve have agreed to make in
connection with the refund of tax abatements weived during the period of our ownership in whibh property was being leased by a
corporate housing operator, which was settled by 2015, as well as lower uses of working @it 2014 compared to 2013 for deferred
leasing costs, other liabilities, and due to relgtarties.

Our cash flows from investing activitieg @rimarily related to property acquisitions antbsaexpenditures for development and
redevelopment projects, capital expenditures atitth, mspect to 2014, the cash flows from the legdiagment held for sale. Net cash used in
investing activities was $60,301,000 for the yeatezl December 31, 2014 compared to $22,183,000dorear ended December 31, 2013,
which increased primarily due to use of funds Far &cquisition of the office properties acquired\pril and October 2014 of $63,436,000, an
increase in loans funded, offset by principal aille on loans, and by cash and cash equivalentsraddn the Merger of $3,185,000.

Our cash flows from financing activitieg® arenerally impacted by borrowings and capitalés, net of dividends and distributions. Net
cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesr@ased to $4,251,000 for the year ended Decembh&03% from ($54,362,000) for the year
ended December 31, 2013. We used funds from fingrativities during the year ended December 31420imarily to pay distributions of
$144,334,000 in the aggregate ($85,048,000 to @arnd stockholders and $59,286,000 for the aitigni®f PMC Commercial) compared to
partner distributions of $104,035,000 for the yeaded December 31, 2013. We had net borrowingkisive of borrowings of the lending
segment held for sale, of $156,265,000 for the geded December 31, 2014 compared to $50,302,0@bdyear ended December 31, 2013.
Additionally, deferred loan costs of $5,774,000 evpaid during the year ended December 31, 201ted:ta the $850,000,000 credit facility,
compared to $395,000 during the year ended Dece®ihex013. During the year ended December 31, 20&4lso paid $1,850,000 to rede
class B shares of subsidiary REITSs.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2013 tbd Year Ended December 31, 2012

As a REIT, our cash flows from operations typically used to fund our dividends.

Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $88)D0 and $31,514,000 at December 31, 2013 ar?| 284pectively. Net cash provided by
operating activities totaled $61,827,000 for tharyended December 31, 2013 compared to $66,71400e year ended December 31, 2012
The decrease is primarily due to an increase imsaetion costs of $4,431,000, which mainly represeosts related to the Merger and costs
associated with the LAX Holiday Inn hotel foreclosun October 2013.

Net cash used in investing activities wa®,$83,000 for the year ended December 31, 201®ared to $29,010,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The decrease is mainly duenterltevels of both acquisition and capital expamditspending in 2013 compared to 2012.
Additionally, restricted cash decreased in 201, ureleases of tax and other impound accourdasasult of the repayment of approximately
$75,909,000 in fixed rate mortgages in Septemb#820

Net cash used in financing activities irsed to $54,362,000 for the year ended Decemb@03B, from $52,427,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The 2013 period reflects higképroceeds from the unsecured line of creditdvarrgs, which was partially offset by t
repayment of mortgage debt. The increase in casth insfinancing activities also reflects increapadner
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distributions during 2013 of $104,035,000, as comagpao $72,987,000 during 2012. The 2013 periotliges payment of five distributions
versus four payments in the 2012 period.

Summarized Contractual Obligations, Commitments andContingencies
The following summarizes our contractudigations at December 31, 2014:

Payments Due by Perioc
Contractual Obligations Total 2015 2016- 2017 2018- 2019 Thereafter
(in thousands)

Debt:
Mortgages payabl $221,84° $ 77,0568 $ 8,99 $ 2581¢ $ 109,97
Other principal(1, 387,07( — 360,00( — 27,07(

Secured borrowings, included
liabilities associated with

assets held for sale( 38,73¢ 1,22¢ 2,58( 2,76¢ 32,16¢
Interest and fees
Debt(3) 50,22t 9,31( 9,83¢ 4,47: 26,60¢
Other Contractual Obligations
Borrower advance 5,15¢ 5,15¢ — — —
Executive employment
agreements(4 83¢ 83¢ — — —
Tenant improvemen 19,721 19,72 — — —
Loan commitment 22,91( 22,91( — —
Operating leases(! 131,74¢ 61€ 1,492 1,11C 128,52¢

Total contractual cash obligatio $ 878,25 $ 136,83: $ 382,90 $ 34,161 $ 324,35:

Q) Represents junior subordinated notes and unsécredit facility.

(2) Principal payments are generally dependent wash flows received from the underlying loanst €stimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentise underlying loans. Our estimate will diffesrh actual amounts
to the extent we experience prepayments and/orligaitations or charge-offs. No payment is duesgslpayments are
received from the borrowers on the underlying loans

3) Excludes premiums and discounts. For the nageg payable, the interest expense is calculasstitmn the current
effective interest rate on the related debt. Forumsecured credit facility, we use the currenabeaé outstanding through
maturity date, and is calculated using the variables in effect at December 31, 2014.

(4) Represents minimum payments required under exexatiyployment agreements.

(5) Represents future minimum lease payments undesprmating leases for office space and under thengrtease for one
of the projects

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2014, we did not have dfpalance sheet arrangements.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates and Rec#ly Issued Accounting Pronouncements

The discussion and analysis of our hissbfimancial condition and results of operationbased upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordeitit&AAP. The preparation of financial statementaccordance with GAAP requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefited amounts of assets and liabilities and is&abure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and therteg amounts of revenues and
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expenses during the reporting period. While weevelithat our estimates are based on reasonablaptisns and judgments at the time they
are made, some of our assumptions, estimates dgcthgnts will inevitably prove to be incorrect. Asesult, actual results could differ from
our estimates, and those differences could be rahter

We believe the following critical accourgipolicies, among others, affect our more signiftasstimates and assumptions used in
preparing our consolidated financial statements.aFdiscussion of recently issued accounting liteea see Note 3 to the consolidated finar
statements included in this Form 10-K.

Investments in Real Estai

We apply the acquisition method to all aceplireal estate investments. The purchase comsiderof the real estate is recorded at fair
value to the acquired tangible assets, consistiimgapily of land, site improvements, and buildimgdaenant improvements, and identified
intangible assets and liabilities, consisting & #alue of above-market and below-market leasésy oalue of in-place leases, and value of
tenant relationships and acquired ground leassgdbia each case on their fair values. Loan premiimthe case of above-market rate loans,
or loan discounts, in the case of below-marketdpare recorded based on the fair value of anyslagsumed in connection with acquiring the
real estate.

The fair value of the tangible assets ohequired property is determined by valuing thepprty as if it were vacant, and the "as+ifeant’
value is then allocated to land (or acquired gragade if the land is subject to a ground leas)jraprovements, and building and tenant
improvements based on management's determinatiire o€lative fair values of these assets. Managedetermines the as-if-vacant fair
value of a property using methods similar to thased by independent appraisers. Factors consitygrethnagement in performing these
analyses include an estimate of carrying costsduhie expected lease-up periods considering dumarket conditions and costs to execute
similar leases. In estimating carrying costs, manant includes real estate taxes, insurance aed opferating expenses, and estimates of o
rental revenue during the expected leaggeriods based on current market demand. Manageaats® estimates costs to execute similar lei
including leasing commissions, legal, and otheatesl costs.

In allocating the purchase consideratiothefidentified intangible assets and liabilitiéso acquired property, above-market, below-
market, and in-place lease values are recordedl fmasthe present value (using an interest rateréfigicts the risks associated with the leases
acquired) of the difference between (i) the coritralcamounts to be paid pursuant to the in-plagsds and (ii) management's estimate of fair
market lease rates for the corresponding in-pleasds measured over a period equal to the remaiomzancelable term of the lease, and for
below-market leases, over a period equal to thiaiterm plus any below-market fixed-rate renep@iiods. Acquired above-market and
below-market leases are amortized and recordezhtalrand other property income over the initiainte of the prospective leases.

The aggregate value of other acquired gitde assets, consisting of in-place leases arghtaelationships, is measured by the estimate
cost of operations during a theoretical lease-upgéeo replace in-place leases, including loseraes and any unreimbursed operating
expenses, plus an estimate of deferred leasing ¢ssiuns for in-place leases. The value of in-pleeses is amortized to expense over the
remaining noncancelable periods of the respectizsds. If a lease is terminated prior to its stakpiration, all unamortized amounts relating
to that lease are written-off.

For hotels, an intangible value was asslgneexpected revenues from advance bookings, whék calculated based on discounted
income, and to franchise affiliation, which werdcctated based on the difference between the mgqied income in the year of acquisition
and an estimate of income without the franchise.
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Costs related to the acquisition of praperare expensed as incurred. Improvements anacepents are capitalized when they exten
useful life, increase capacity, or improve thecidfincy of the asset. Ordinary repairs and maintemane expensed as incurred.

Investments in real estate are evaluatethfpairment on a quarterly basis or whenever essenthanges in circumstances indicate th¢
carrying amount of an asset may not be recover®aeoverability of assets to be held and used essored by a comparison of the carrying
amount to the future net cash flows, undiscountetiveithout interest, expected to be generated bwfiset. If such assets are considered to k
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is maabby the amount by which the carrying amount efahsets exceeds the estimated fair
value of the assets. The estimated fair value @fset group identified for step two testing sdolaon either the income approach with marke
discount rate, terminal capitalization rate andakrate assumptions being most critical, or onstles comparison approach to similar
properties. Assets to be disposed of are repottétedower of the carrying amount or fair valuesd costs to sell.

Estimates regarding the allocation of pasghprice and the evaluation of impairment reggigeificant judgment, and some of these
estimates involve complex calculations. These assests have a direct impact on our results of djpeisas the allocations and evaluations
impact the amount and timing of depreciation andrization expense we reflect in our consolidafedricial statements.

Loans Receivabli

Our loans receivable included in assetd f@lsale at December 31, 2014 are carried at timgimortized principal balance less
unamortized acquisition discounts and premiumsajmet! loan discounts and loan loss reserves. Rosloriginated under the SBA 7(a)
Program, we sell the portion of the loan that iargnteed by the SBA. Upon sale of the SBA guaranteetion of the loans which are
accounted for as sales, the unguaranteed portitiredban retained by us is valued on a fair vélasis and a discount is recorded as a
reduction in basis of the retained portion of thenl.

At the Acquisition Date, the carrying valofeour loans was adjusted to estimated fair markkte and acquisition discounts of
$33,907,000 were recorded, which are being acctetederest income, included in income from opierat of assets held for sale, using the
effective interest method. As of December 31, 2@t4uisition discounts of $26,495,000 remain tlaatehnot yet been accreted to income.

A loan receivable is generally classifischan-accrual (a "Non-Accrual Loan") if (i) it isgt due as to payment of principal or interest fo
a period of 60 days or more, (ii) any portion af than is classified as doubtful or is chargedoofiii) the repayment in full of the principal
and/or interest is in doubt. Generally, loans d&&rged-off when management determines that webwilinable to collect any remaining
amounts due under the loan agreement, either thrbggidation of collateral or other means. Intéi@some, included in discontinued
operations, on a Non-Accrual Loan is recognizeeitimer the cash basis or the cost recovery basis.

On a quarterly basis, and more frequefilydicators exist, we evaluate the collectabitfyour loans receivable. Our evaluation of
collectability involves judgment, estimates, aneaew of the ability of the borrower to make piiped and interest payments, the underlying
collateral and the borrowers' business models atuld operations in accordance with Accounting &ats Codification ("ASC") 450-20,
Contingencies—Loss Contingencjesd ASC 310-1(Receivables For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 @t Ao impairments
on our loans receivable were recorded. We estahlgneral loan loss reserve when available infoomandicates that it is probable a loss
occurred based on the carrying value of the paotfrhd the amount of the loss can be reasonalimatstd. Significant judgment is required in
determining the general loan loss reserve, incly@stimates of the likelihood of default and thiénested fair value of the collateral. The
general loan loss reserve includes those loanghwhay have negative characteristics which haveetbecome
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known to us. In addition to the reserves estabfisiheloans not considered impaired that have bealuaed under a specific evaluation, the
general loan loss reserve uses a consistent métgydo determine a loss percentage to be apphidoiain balances. These loss percentages ¢
based on many factors, primarily cumulative aneénétoss history and general economic conditions.

The evaluation of the collectability of daans receivable is highly subjective and is basqghrt on factors that could differ materially
from actual results in future periods. If thesades change, we may recognize an impairment los&hacould be material.

Accounts Receivabl

Accounts receivable are carried net ofali@vances for uncollectible amounts. Managemegtsrmination of the adequacy of these
allowances is based primarily upon evaluation efdrical loss experience, individual receivablesrent economic conditions, and other
relevant factors. The allowances are increase@aredsed through the provision for bad debts. dfestimates of collectability differ from the
cash received, the timing and amount of our repagenue could be impacted.

Revenue Recognitio

All leases are classified as operatingdsasd minimum rents are recognized on a straiighthlasis over the terms of the leases when
collectability is reasonably assured and the tehasttaken possession or controls the physicabfuse leased asset. The excess of rents
recognized over amounts contractually due pursigetiite underlying leases is recorded as defernatd Ifehe lease provides for tenant
improvements, we determine whether the tenant imgments, for accounting purposes, are owned btetient or us. When we are the owner
of the tenant improvements, the tenant is not clamei to have taken physical possession or haveotofi the physical use of the leased asse
until the tenant improvements are substantially gleted. When the tenant is considered the own#reofmprovements, any tenant
improvement allowance that is funded is treateimheantive. Lease incentives paid to tenants afedied in other assets and amortized as a
reduction to rental revenue on a straight-line baser the term of the related lease.

Reimbursements from tenants, consistirgnodunts due from tenants for common area maintenaeal estate taxes, insurance, and «
recoverable costs, are recognized as revenue jpetfied the expenses are incurred. Tenant reiminasts are recognized and presented on a
gross basis when we are the primary obligor witipeet to incurring expenses and with respect tingathe credit risk.

In addition to minimum rents, certain leapeovide for additional rents based upon varyieggcentages of tenants' sales in excess of
annual minimums. Percentage rent is recognized lessees' specified sales targets have been met.

We derive parking revenues from leases thitld party operators. Our parking leases profidedditional rents based upon varying
percentages of tenants' sales in excess of annomhoms. Parking percentage rent is recognized tegsee's specific sales targets have beet
met.

Hotel room sales are recognized upon daigupancy. Other hotel revenues are recognizedras@ upon facility use or food and
beverage consumption.

Interest income included in our discontitheperations is comprised of interest earned onsl@ad our short-term investments and the
accretion of net loan origination fees and discsulmterest income on loans is accrued as earrtidha accrual of interest suspended when
the related loan becomes a Non-Accrual Loan.
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Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT uhégprovisions of the Code. To the extent we duédir taxation as a REIT, we generally will
not be subject to a federal corporate income tagwrtaxable income that is distributed to our kbmdders. We may, however, be subject to
certain federal excise taxes and state and logastan our income and property. If we fail to giyadis a REIT in any taxable year, we will be
subject to federal income taxes at regular corpaiaties (including any applicable alternative munimtax) and will not be able to qualify as a
REIT for four subsequent taxable years. In ordeetoain qualified as a REIT under the Code, we reatsfy various requirements in each
taxable year, including, among others, limitationsshare ownership, asset diversification, sour€@scome, and the distribution of at least
90% of our taxable income within the specified timaccordance with the Code.

We have wholly-owned taxable REIT subsig®("TRS's") which are subject to federal incomrees. The income generated from the
taxable REIT subsidiaries is taxed at normal cafmorates. Deferred tax assets and liabilitieseregnized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the finandialesnent carrying amounts of existing assets ainilities and their respective tax bases.

We have established a policy on classificabf penalties and interest related to auditsusffederal and state income tax returns. If
incurred, our policy for recording interest and @iéies associated with audits will be to recordmsiems as a component of general and
administrative expense or discontinued operatiBegsalties, if incurred, will be recorded in genenadl administrative expense or discontinuec
operations and interest paid or received will morded in interest expense or income, respectieelgdjscontinued operations in the
consolidated statements of operations and compsareimcome.

ASC 740Income Taxesprovides guidance for how uncertain tax positisinguld be recognized, measured, presented, acidshsd in
the financial statements. ASC 740 requires theuayin of tax positions taken or expected to benak the course of preparing our tax rett
to determine whether the tax positions are "mdwyithan not" of being sustained by the applicableauthority. Tax positions not deemed to
meet the more-likely-thanet threshold would be recorded as a tax benegpense in the current period. We have reviewleapain tax yeal
and concluded that the application of ASC 740 tesuh no material effect to our consolidated ficiahposition or results of operations.

Discontinued Operation:

We classify assets as held for sale whewn theet the necessary criteria, which includen{ahagement commits to and actively embarks
upon a plan to sell the assets, (2) the assets $old are available for immediate sale in the#spnt condition, (3) the sale is expected to be
completed within one year under terms usual antbmery for such sales and (4) actions requiredbtoptete the plan indicate that it is
unlikely that significant changes to the plan Wil made or that the plan will be withdrawn. We dedithat we meet these criteria when the
plan for sale has been approved by the Board afdbirs; there are no known significant contingencétated to the sale and management
believes it is probable that the sale will be costgadl within one year.

Assets held for sale are recorded at tiveld@f cost or estimated fair value less cost tb Revenues and expenses of assets that are hel
for sale are presented as discontinued operataralfperiods presented in the consolidated statésnof operations and comprehensive
income.
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Dividends

Our stockholders are entitled to receiwédginds when and as declared by the Board of @irectn determining our dividend policy, the
Board of Directors considers many factors includimgt not limited to, expectations for future eags, REIT taxable income (loss) and
maintenance of REIT status, the economic environiraed portfolio performance. Consequently, thed#wid rate on a quarterly basis does nc
necessarily correlate directly to any individuadtéa. There can be no assurance that the futurdetids declared by our Board of Directors
not differ materially from historical dividend leige

During the year ended December 31, 201K, Giban paid a distribution of $16,100,000 prioithe Acquisition Date ($0.1685 per share
of Common Stock, as converted).

On March 24, 2014, we declared a commorestiizidend of $0.05 per share of Common Stockapdeferred dividend of $0.0403 per
share of preferred stock ($0.0285 per share of Cam&tock, as converted), all of which were paidvarch 28, 2014.

On April 28, 2014, we declared a dividendHe aggregate amount of $1,964,000 to the pegfestockholders ($0.0302 per share of
preferred stock and $0.0215 per share of CommorkSas converted) in connection with the conversibshares of preferred stock to shares
of Common Stock, which was paid on June 27, 2014.

On June 12, 2014, we declared a commorestigidend of $0.21875 per share of Common Stodkhvwvas paid on June 27, 2014.

On September 12, 2014, we declared a conghare dividend of $0.21875 per share of CommookSidich was paid on September 29,
2014.

On December 9, 2014, we declared a comraregividend of $0.21875 per share of Common Sidukh was paid on December 29,
2014.

On March 6, 2015, we declared a commonestismidend of $0.21875 per share of Common Starketpaid on March 27, 2015 to
stockholders of record on March 20, 2015.

In addition, dividends of $59,286,000 (®7A per share of common stock) were paid to the RM@mercial stockholders in connection
with the Merger, which includes the $27.50 per sfircommon stock special dividend plus the $0@rtbrata portion of PMC Commercial's
regular quarterly cash dividend.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The fair value of our mortgages payableeissitive to fluctuations in interest rates. Digged cash flow analysis is generally used to
estimate the fair value of our mortgages payalsmgirates ranging from 3.92% to 4.12% at DecerBhe014 and 4.85% to 5.00% at
December 31, 2013. Mortgages payable with bookesatf $223,808,000 and $231,105,000 as of Decegihet014 and 2013, respectively,
have a fair value of approximately $231,806,000 $2@!1,250,000, respectively.

Our future income, cash flows and fair esluelevant to financial instruments are dependponh prevalent market interest rates. Market
risk refers to the risk of loss from adverse charigenarket prices and interest rates. We are exptwmsmarket risk in the form of changes in
interest rates and the potential impact such cleangg have on the cash flows from our floating okt or the fair values of our fixed rate
debt. At December 31, 2014 and 2013 (excluding prera and discounts on assumed mortgages and ingltité debt associated with assets
held for sale), $221,847,000 (or 34.3%) and $22B(HI0 (or 58.2%) of our debt was fixed rate morgglans, and $425,809,000 (or 65.7%)
and $164,000,000 (or 41.8%) was floating rate lwirngs. Based on the level of floating rate debstartding at December 31, 2014 and 2013
a 12.5 basis point change in LIBOR would result in
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an annual impact to our earnings of approximat832$000 and $205,000, respectively. We calculagrest rate sensitivity by multiplying the
amount of floating rate debt by the respective gean rate. The sensitivity analysis does not tat@ consideration possible changes in the
balances or fair value of our floating rate debt.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia
The information required by this Item 8igted in Part IV, Item 15(a) of this report.

Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotemts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation Of Disclosure Controls And Procedures

As of December 31, 2014, we carried outaduation, under the supervision and with theigiggtion of our management, including our
Principal Executive Officer and Principal FinandiXficer, regarding the effectiveness of the desigd operation of our disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) &ddl%(e) under the Exchange Act at the end of &g covered by this report. Based on
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer andeElrinancial Officer concluded, as of that timeatt our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective in ensuring that information reqdite be disclosed by us in the reports that isfde submits to the SEC under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and repwithdh the time periods specified by the SEC'esudnd forms and include controls and
procedures designed to ensure the information redo be disclosed by the Company in such re@eascumulated and communicated to
management, including our Chief Executive Officed @aur Chief Financial Officer, as appropriateatiow timely decisions regarding requit
disclosure.

Management's Report On Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management is responsible for establishimg maintaining adequate internal control overrfaial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. Our internal control oweaurficial reporting is designed to provide reasaomalskurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip
We reviewed the results of management's assessvitarthe Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

Management assessed the effectiveness @dmpany's internal control over financial repagtas of December 31, 2014. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfotlle Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission imternal
Control—Integrated Framework (2013Based on their assessment, management deterthitess of December 31, 2014, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting was etfee based on those criteria.

The effectiveness of the Company's intecoalrol over financial reporting as of Decembey &114 has been audited by BDO USA, LLP
("BDO"), an independent registered public accounfirm as stated in their report which appearsinere
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Report of Independent Registered Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders

CIM Commercial Trust Corporation
Dallas, TX

We have audited CIM Commercial Trust Cogpion and its subsidiaries' internal control oveaficial reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria established in Internal Contraltegrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committ&&ponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). CIM ContiarTrust Corporation's management is responsiisienaintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assesat of the effectiveness of internal control ofileancial reporting, included in the
accompanying Item 9A, Management's Report on late@ontrol Over Financial Reporting. Our resporigipis to express an opinion on the
company's internal control over financial reportbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigéfénternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreuch other procedures as we considered necesghgy/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide redderassurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repagtincludes those policies and procedures thatdftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituref®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawvaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, CIM Commercial Trust Corption maintained, in all material respects, effextnternal control over financial reporting
of December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheet of CIM Commercial T@poration as of December 31, 2014, and the tladasolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, equity, and flasfs for the year ended December 31, 2014 andeport dated March 16, 2015 expres
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, CA
March 16, 2015
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Limitations On The Effectiveness Of Controls

Our management, including our Chief Exeau®fficer and Chief Financial Officer, does nopegt that our disclosure controls or our
internal controls will prevent all error and fraudcontrol system, no matter how well designed aperated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the control system'stolgeavill be met. Further, the design of a contydtem must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of contnoist be considered relative to their costs. Becafifee inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@ssurance that all control issues and instaotfraud, if any, have been detected. Thes
inherent limitations include the realities thatgaeents in decision making can be faulty, and thaakdowns can occur because of simple errc
or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented byiritlividual acts of some persons, by collusiotwaf or more people, or by management
override of the controls. The design of any systémontrols is based in part upon certain assumptabout the likelihood of future events, .
there can be no assurance that any design wilesdcinn achieving its stated goals under all patéfdture conditions. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiafeterioration in the degree of compliance wihaziated policies or procedures.
Because of the inherent limitations in a cost effeccontrol system, misstatements due to errdraard may occur and not be detected.

Changes In Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our intewratol over financial reporting that occurred dgrthe quarter ended December 31, 2014 tha
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART III
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

Information required by this Item regardihg Company's directors and executive officerd, @rporate governance, including
information with respect to beneficial ownershipaging compliance, will appear in the Proxy Stagetwe will deliver to our stockholders in
connection with our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stocktesk. Such information is incorporated herein gremce. Information relating to the
registrant's Code of Business Conduct and Ethaisapplies to its employees, including its seniiarficial officers, is included in Part | of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K under "ltem 1. BUSINESAwailable Information."

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item vdlpear in the Proxy Statement we will deliver to stockholders in connection with our 2015
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Such informatiomisorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information required by this Item redjag security ownership of certain beneficial ovsnend management will appear in the Proxy
Statement we will deliver to our Stockholders imeection with our 2015 Annual Meeting of Stockheoklé&Such information is incorporated
herein by reference. Information relating to seatsiauthorized for issuance under the Companyigyecompensation
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plans is included in Part Il of this Annual RepontForm 10-K under "Item 5. Market for Registra@@mmon Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities."

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this Item vélbpear in the Proxy Statement we will deliver to gtockholders in connection with our 2015
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Such informatiomisorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item vélbpear in the Proxy Statement we will deliver to gtockholders in connection with our 2015
Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Such informatiomisorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(@ 1. Financial Statemer
Page
Number
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfiings F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&12013 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaleimcome for the Years
Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Equity for the Yearsdbdwer 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012 F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2014,
2013 and 201. F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements E-8
2. Financial Statement Schedules
The following financial statement schedutasthe Registrant are filed as a part of thisor&p
A. Schedule I—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation; F-46
B. Schedule I—Mortgage Loans on Real Estal F-48

Note: Other schedules are omitted becatidfe@bsence of conditions under which they ageired or because the required information
is given in the financial statements or notes titere

3. Exhibits
The following documents are included omimorated by reference in this Annual Report oma0-K:

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among CIMadrBEIT, LLC, CIM Merger
Sub, LLC, PMC Commercial Trust and Southfork Mer§ab, LLC dated July 8, 2013
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to thgiReant's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 8, 2013

2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 28, 2Qityween PMC Commercial Trust ¢
PMC Commercial Merger Sub, Inc. (incorporated Hgnmence to Appendix C to the
Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statement on Scheddlg filed with the SEC on April 14,
2014).

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of PMC ConeciaEMerger Sub, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to the exhibits to tlegiRrant's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on May 9, 201

3.1(d Articles of Amendment (Name Change) (incorporatgdeierence to the exhibits to the
Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014

3.1(t) Articles of Amendment (Reverse Stock Split) (inamated by reference to the exhibits to



the Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014
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3.1(¢) Articles of Amendment (Par Value Decrease) (ipooated by reference to the exhibits to

3.2

4.1

4.4

+10.]

+*10.2

+10.2

+10.¢

10.5

10.¢

the Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2hte Registrant's Current Report on
Form &K filed with the SEC on May 2, 2014

Purchase Agreement among PMC Commercial Trust, Pkéferred Capital Trust-A and
Taberna Preferred Funding I, Ltd. dated March D®5Xincorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaorfo@rm 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 200t

Junior Subordinated Indenture between PMC Commieroist and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association as Trustee dated MagH2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporform 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 200¢

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among PMC @oomh Trust, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, National Association, Chase Bank USA, Natigkssociation and The
Administrative Trustees Named Herein dated March?DB5 (incorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaorfo@rm 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 200&

Preferred Securities Certificate (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordharterly period ended March 31,
2005).

Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Note due 2035o(porated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporform 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 200¢

2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeesto Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 20

First Amendment to PMC Commercial Trust 2005 IncenPlan.

Amended and Restated Executive Employment ConiritictJan F. Salit dated August 30,
2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he Registrant's Current Report on
Form &K filed with the SEC on August 30, 201.

Amended and Restated Executive Employment ContvitictBarry N. Berlin dated
August 30, 2013 (incorporated by reference to ExAib.2 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form-K filed with the SEC on August 30, 201

Consent to Assignment and Limited Waiver to Agreenaad Plan of Merger, dated as of
November 20, 2013, by and among PMC CommercialtT&is Urban REIT, LLC,
Southfork Merger Sub, LLC, and CIM Merger Sub, LItfie terms of which were
acknowledged and agreed to by a hew subsidiaryddroy CIM Urban REIT, LLC, Urbe
Partners Il, LLC (incorporated by reference to Bxth10.1 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form-K filed with the SEC on November 22, 201

Memorandum and Agreement of Settlement dated darafary 28, 2014 by and among
Hoak & Co., Hoak Public Equities, L.P., PMC Commalrd@rust, Southfork Merger
Sub, LLC, CIM Urban REIT, LLC, and the other pastithereto (incorporated by refere
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current ReporfForm 8-K filed with the SEC on
January 30, 2014
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10.7

10.€

10.¢

10.1(

10.11

10.1z

10.1:

10.1¢

*10.15

*10.1€

*10.17

*21.1

*23.1

*23.2

*24.1

Rule 10b5-1 Purchase Plan dated January 29, 304Ad among PMC Commercial Trust,
CIM Service Provider, LLC and Merrill Lynch, Pierdeenner and Smith Incorporated
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to tregRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on January 30, 201

Settlement Agreement dated as of January 28, 20b#dh among PMC Commercial Trt
CIM Urban REIT, LLC, Southfork Merger Sub, LLC, RERedux LP, and the other
parties thereto (incorporated by reference to Ekhil.3 to the Registrant's Current Report
on Form i-K filed with the SEC on January 30, 201

Master Services Agreement dated March 11, 201sbyaanong PMC Commercial Trust,
certain of its subsidiaries, and CIM Service Prevjd.LC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current ReporFomm 8-K filed with the SEC on

March 11, 2014)

Registration Rights and Lockup Agreement dated Mark, 2014 by and among Urban
Partners Il, LLC and PMC Commercial Trust (incoiqted by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
the Registrant's Current Report on For-K filed with the SEC on March 11, 201«

Service Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2014 noyaanong CIM Commercial Trust
Corporation and CIM Service Provider, LLC, undex Master Services Agreement dated
March 11, 2014, by and among PMC Commercial Traestain of its subsidiaries, and
CIM Service Provider, LLC (incorporated by refererio Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed with the SEC on August 11, 201

Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors afficers of CIM Commercial Trust
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit9lto the Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 1-Q filed with the SEC on August 11, 201

Credit Agreement, dated as of September 30, 20thdng CIM Commercial Trust
Corporation, each guarantor party thereto, eadeleparty thereto, Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, and JPMorgan ChaaekB N.A. as Syndication Age
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thregiRtrant's Current Report on Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on October 1, 201

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as nfidey 14, 2015, among CIM
Commercial Trust Corporation, each Lender partyetteand Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent (incorporated by referenceéesdnibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current
Report on Form-K filed with the SEC on January 16, 201

Staffing and Reimbursement Agreement, dated aarofaly 1, 2015, by and among CIM
SBA Staffing, LLC, PMC Commercial Lending, LLC atdM Commercial Trust
Corporation.

Investment Management Agreement, dated as of Mag@ib, between CIM Urban
Partners, L.P. and CIM Urban REIT Management,

Second Amended and Restated Agreement and Limaedd?ship of CIM Urban
Partners, L.P., dated as of December 22, 2005n8yamong CIM Urban Partners GP, Inc.
and CIM Urban REIT, LLC

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of BDO USA, LLF

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LL

Powers of Attorney (included on signature pa
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*31.1 Section 302 Officer Certificati—Chief Executive Office
*31.2 Section 302 Officer Certificati—Chief Financial Office
*32.1 Section 906 Officer Certificati—Chief Executive Office
*32.2 Section 906 Officer Certificati—Chief Financial Office

*101 Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Rafjon S-T:

* Filed herewith.
+ Management contract or compensatory |
(b) Exhibits

The exhibits listed in Item 15(a)3 are irpmrated by reference or attached hereto.
() Excluded Financial Statements
Not Applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, ribgistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION

Dated: March 16, 2015 By: /sl CHARLES E. GARNER Il

Charles E. Garner Il
Chief Executive Office

Dated: March 16, 2015 By: /s/ DAVID THOMPSON

David Thompson
Chief Financial Officel

POWERS OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, thatle@erson whose signature appears below constanttappoints Charles Gari
and David Thompson and each of them severallyphier true and lawful attorney-in-fact with povedrsubstitution and resubstitution to sign
in his or her name, place and stead, in any archahcities, to do any and all things and exeawyeaad all instruments that such attorney may
deem necessary or advisable under the Securitidsaige Act of 1934 and any rules, regulations agdirements of the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission in connection with this AnriR@port on Form 10-K and any and all amendmentddeais fully for all intents and
purposes as he or she might or could do in peesuhhereby ratifies and confirms all said attorreyfact and agents, each acting alone, and
his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfdllyor cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidny the following persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datéisated.

Signature Title Date
=lgnature Jdile 2ate

[s/ CHARLES E. GARNER Il Chief Executive Officer (Principal

Executive Officer)

March 16, 2015
Charles E. Garner

/s/ DAVID THOMPSON Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal March 16, 2015
David Thompsor Accounting Officer)

/sl DOUGLAS BECH

Director March 16, 2015
Douglas Becl
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Signature

/sl ROBERT CRESCI

Robert Cresc

/sl KELLY EPPICH

Kelly Eppich

/sl FRANK GOLAY

Frank Golay

/sl SHAUL KUBA

Shaul Kube

/sl RICHARD RESSLER

Richard Ressle

/sl AVRAHAM SHEMESH

Avraham Shemes

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Title
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March 16, 2015
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Reports of Independent Registered Public Accountingirms

Board of Directors and Stockholders
CIM Commercial Trust Corporation
Dallas, TX

We have audited the accompanying conselitialance sheet of CIM Commercial Trust Corponagind its subsidiaries (the "Compan
as of December 31, 2014, and the related consetidsiatements of operations, comprehensive incequity, and cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2014. In connection with ouitafidhe consolidated financial statements, weehalgo audited the financial statement
schedules listed in the accompanying index. Thesedlidated financial statements and schedulethareesponsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementssahddules based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit also includes examininga ¢@st basis, evidence supporting the amounts igokbsures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well agatirg the overall presentation of the
financial statements and schedules. We believeotivadudit provides a reasonable basis for ouriopin

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of CIM
Commercial Trust Corporation and its subsidiarie®ecember 31, 2014, and the results of its opmratand its cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2014, in conformity with accountingpgiples generally accepted in the United State&roérica.

Also, in our opinion, the financial statamhechedules, when considered in relation to thlséchl@nsolidated financial statements taken as
whole, present fairly, in all material respect® thformation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), CIM
Commercial Trust Corporation's internal control iofieancial reporting as of December 31, 2014, Hasecriteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework (2013) issued by then@ittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tregd@ammission (COSO) and our
report dated March 16, 2015 expressed an unqudhbifiénion thereon.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, CA
March 16, 2015
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To the Board of Directors of CIM Commercial Trugirforation
Dallas, TX

We have audited the accompanying conselitiblance sheet of CIM Urban Partners, LP arsllisidiaries (the "Partnership") as of
December 31, 2013, and the related consolidatéehsests of operations, comprehensive income, eciity cash flows for each of the two
years in the period ended December 31, 2013. Glitsaalso included the 2013 and 2012 financialrimfation included in Schedule Ill listed
the Index at Item 15. These financial statemendsfimancial statement schedule are the resportyiloiithe Partnership's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on theritial statements and financial statement schedwidedon our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Partnership is not required ¥e haor were we engaged to perform, an audit ahtesnal control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigramdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Partnpisimternal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such consolidated finansi@tements present fairly, in all material respettte financial position of CIM Urban
Partners, LP and its subsidiaries as of Decemhe2(13, and the results of its operations andashdlows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2013, in conformity \&itbounting principles generally accepted in thetdééhStates of America. Also, in our
opinion, the 2013 and 2012 financial informationlirded in Schedule Ill, when considered in relatmthe basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, present fairly imatkerial respects the information set forth therein

As noted in Note 2 to the consolidatedriitial statements, on March 11, 2014, the Partnersierged with CIM Commercial Trust
Corporation (formerly PMC Commercial Trust). Thesimess combination was accounted for as a reveesgem with the Partnership as the
accounting acquirer.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
Los Angeles, California
March 16, 2015
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2@hd 2013
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31

2014 2013
ASSETS
Investments in real est—net $ 1,715,993 $ 1,682,16!
Cash and cash equivalel 17,61¢ 16,79¢
Restricted cas 8,861 6,672
Accounts receivab—net 10,75¢ 9,30:
Deferred rent receivable and char—net 97,63( 87,60¢
Other intangible asse—net 20,43: 22,28.
Other asset 14,65 9,65:
Assets held for se—net 208,79¢ —
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,094,68 $ 1,834,447
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Debt $ 608,71: $ 395,10!
Accounts payable and accrued expei 35,51 26,10¢
Intangible liabilitie—net 8,651 8,80(
Due to related partie 9,18¢ 6,807
Other liabilities 23,00¢ 21,17:
Liabilities associated with assets held for ¢ 49,79 —
Total liabilities 734,86¢ 457,99:
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 14
EQUITY:
Common stock, $0.001 and $0.05 par value; 200,000a0d
20,000,000 shares authorized; 97,688,863 and ©4@0@hares
issued; and 97,581,598 and 4,400,000 shares oditstpat
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti' 98 22C
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, none and 65,028 Bares
outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respéc — 65C
Additional paic-in capital 1,824,38 1,772,82
Distributions in excess of earnin (460,62) (399,95
Stockholders' equity before treasury st 1,363,85 1,373,73
Less: Treasury stock, at cost, 107,265 sharesamulisty at
December 31, 2014 (4,909 —
Total stockholders' equit 1,358,95! 1,373,73
Noncontrolling interest 861 2,74F
Total equity 1,359,811 1,376,48.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 2,094,68 $ 1,834,47

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income
for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31

2014

2013

2012

REVENUES:

Rental and other property incor $ 240,89. $ 223,30: $ 217,90(

Expense reimbursemer 10,95 9,55¢ 9,19¢

Interest and other incon 4,307 2,95 5,41¢

256,15: 235,81: 232,51

EXPENSES

Rental and other property operat 126,87- 105,16: 99,58¢

Asset management fees and other fees to relatdds 25,22 21,767 20,92«

Interest 19,07: 17,92¢ 18,85¢

General and administrati\ 7,33: 2,56¢ 2,77:

Transaction cosl 1,56: 5,06: 632

Depreciation and amortizatic 69,04’ 68,64+ 69,94

249,11: 221,13 212,71¢

Bargain purchase gain (Note 4,91¢ — —
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATION¢ 11,96( 14,67¢ 19,797
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Income from operations of assets held for 12,63¢ — —
INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATION: 12,63¢ — —
NET INCOME 24,59¢ 14,67¢ 19,797

Net income attributable to noncontrolling intere (220) (219) (20§)
NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO STOCKHOLDERS $ 24378 $ 14,466 $ 19,58¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 24376 $ 14,46¢ $ 19,58¢
BASIC INCOME PER SHARE

Continuing operation $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.21

Discontinued operatior $ 0.1: — —

Net income $ 0.2t $ 0.1t $ 0.21
DILUTED INCOME PER SHARE

Continuing operation $ 0.1z $ 0.1t $ 0.21

Discontinued operatior $ 0.1: — —

Net income $ 0.2t $ 0.1t $ 0.21
WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES

OUTSTANDING:

Basic 97,17 95,44( 95,44(

Diluted 97,17¢ 95,44( 95,44(

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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BALANCES,
DECEMBER &
2011

Contributions

Distributions

Net income

BALANCES,
DECEMBER &
2012

Contributions

Distributions

Net income

BALANCES,
DECEMBER 2
2013

Distributions pre
merger

Contributions
from
noncontrolling
interests

Distributions to
noncontrolling
interests

Redemption of
Class B share:
of subsidiary
REITs

Reverse
acquisition
capital
transactior

Conversion of
preferred stocl
to common
stock

Change in par
value

Exercise of stocl
options

Stock based
compensation
expense

Retirement of
fractional
shares

Common
dividends
($0.70625 per
share)

Preferred
dividends
($0.0705 per
share)

Net income

BALANCES,
DECEMBER &
2014

CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Equity

for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

(In thousands, except per share data)

Common Preferred
Additional Distributions
Common Stock  Preferred Stock Treasury Noncontrolling

Stock Par Stock Par Paid-in In Excess Total

Outstanding Value Outstanding Value Capital  Of Earnings  Stock Interests Equity
4,400,00' $ 22C 65,028,57 $ 65C $1,772,78''$ (256,980 % —$ 2,84¢ $1,519,52
— — — — — (72,98) — (25¢)  (73,24Y
— — — — — 19,58¢ — 20€ 19,79
4,400,001 22C 65,028,57 65C 1,772,78: (310,38¢) — 2,79¢ 1,466,07:
— — — — 32 — — 32
— — — — — (104,03 — (26€) (104,30
_ — — — — 14,46¢ — 21: 14,67¢
4,400,001 22C 65,028,57 65C 1,772,82 (399,95 — 2,74% 1,376,48
— — — — — (16,100) — — (16,100
— — — — — — — 1C 10
— — — — — — — (269) (264)
— — — — — — — (1,850) (1,85()
2,119,24. 111 — — 49,40( — (4,902 — 44,61(
91,039,99 91C (65,028,57) (650) (260) — — — —
— (1,147 — — 1,14 — — — —
14,50( — — — 201 — — — 201
8,00( — — — 1,07¢ — — — 1,07¢
y - = = ) = = = €]
— — — — — (64,367) — — (64,367)
— — — — — (4,58%) — — (4,58%)
— — — — — 24,37¢ — 22( 24,59¢
97,581,59 $ 98 — $ — $1,824,38. $  (460,62)% (4,90)$ 861 $1,359,81

F-6

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 201

(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 2459 $ 14,67¢ $19,79
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashidea by operating activitie:
Deferred rent and amortization of intangible asdithilities and lease inducemel (5,187) (12,140 (15,94
Depreciation and amortizatic 69,04% 68,64« 69,94
Bargain purchase ga (4,919 — —
Gain on settlement of a contractual obligal (1,166 — —
Straight line rent, belo-market ground lease and amortization of intangaiskeet: 1,892 1,86¢ 1,86¢
Amortization of deferred loan cos 2,16¢ 784 657
Amortization of premiums and discounts on ¢ (1,192) (828) (80€)
Unrealized premium adjustme 1,692 — —
Amortization and accretion on loans receiv—net (5,09¢ — (810
Bad debt expens 594 15& 79
Deferred income taxe (58) — —
Stocl-based compensatic 1,07¢ — —
Loans funded, held for sa (32,40 — —
Proceeds from sale of guaranteed Ic 22,89: — —
Principal collected on loar 4,45( — —
Other operating activit (460) — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Accounts receivable and interest receive (2,02¢) (1,099 (2,28)
Other asset (5,850 (5,309 8,36¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 1,72¢ 6,017 (5,88%)
Deferred leasing cos (9,759 (11,530 (7,70¢)
Other liabilities 2,400 (159 (1,26%)
Due to related partie 2,37¢ 74z 70&
Net cash provided by operating activit 66,80¢ 61,827 66,71«
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to investments in real esti (24,759 (24,349 (27,93)
Acquisition of real estate properti (63,43¢) — (2,050
Loans fundec (18,569 — —
Cash and cash equivalents acquired in connectitimtihé merge 3,18¢ — —
Principal collected on loar 44,92¢ — —
Restricted cas (3,109 2,15¢ (23
Other investing activit 1,45¢ — —
Net cash used in investing activiti (60,307) (22,1879 (29,010
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of mortgages payal (6,472) (83,699 (8,099
Proceeds from unsecured credit facili 554,70( 134,00( 30,00(
Payment of unsecured credit facilit (393,400 — —
Payment of principal on secured borrow—government guaranteed log (4,450 — —
Proceeds from secured borrowi—government guaranteed loe 5,881 — —
Payment of deferred loan co: (5,779 (395) (1,089
Payment of dividend (68,949 — —
Payment of special dividend and dividend assumedtduisition (59,28¢) — —
Distributions pr-merger (16,100 (104,03) (72,98)
Contributions — 32 —
Contributions from noncontrolling interes 10 — —
Redemption of class B shares of subsidiary RI (1,850 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common st 201 — —
Retirement of fractional shares of common si ®3) — —
Noncontrolling interests' distributiol (264) (26€) (25€)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 4,25] (54,367 (52,42))
Cash balances included in assets held for (9,937) — —
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS 81¢ (14,719 (14,729
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of perioc 16,79¢ 31,51« 46,23’
End of perioc $ 17,61 $ 16,79¢ $ 31,51«
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATIO!
Cash paid during the period for inter $ 19,397 $ 18,30 $ 18,80¢
Federal income taxes pe $ 691 $ — $ =
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING ANONANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Additions to investments in real estate includeddnounts payable and accrued expe $ 761 $ 349 $ 4,32¢
Stock issued in connection with merger (Nott $ 4461 $ — $ —
Additions to deferred loan costs included in ac¢syrayable and accrued exper $ 34 $ — $

Foreclosure on note receivable included in investmi real estate and other intangible
assets (Note ¢ $ — $ 40,100 $ —




The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements as of Bember 31, 2014 and 2013
and for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ap@12

1. ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS

CIM Commercial Trust Corporation ("CIM Corergial" or the "Company") or together with its wlyebwned subsidiaries, (which,
together with CIM Commercial may be referred tdwas," "us" or "our") primarily acquires, owns, angerates Class A and creative office
properties in vibrant and improving urban commusitihroughout the United States. These commuiteeocated in areas that include
traditional downtown areas and suburban main stredtich have high barriers to entry, high popolailensity, improving demographic trei
and a propensity for growth. We also obtain incdrom the yield and other related fee income eaoredur investments from our lending
activities, which have principally been to borrowér the hospitality industry. As discussed in Not¢he lending segment is held for sale at
December 31, 2014. We were originally organizetid83 as PMC Commercial Trust ("PMC Commercial”)exas real estate investment
trust.

On July 8, 2013, PMC Commercial entered mtnerger agreement (the "Merger Agreement") @iti Urban REIT, LLC ("CIM REIT")
and subsidiaries of the respective parties. CIMTRE&hs a private commercial REIT and was the owh& bl Urban Partners, LP ("CIM
Urban"). The transaction (the "Merger") was comgdedn March 11, 2014 (the "Acquisition Date"). TMerger was accounted for as a revers:
acquisition under the acquisition method of accimgnivith CIM Urban considered to be the accounteguirer based upon the terms of the
Merger Agreement. Based on the determination tiet drban was the accounting acquirer in the tratisacCIM Urban allocated the
purchase price to the fair value of PMC Commeciabsets and liabilities as of the Acquisition Date

On April 28, 2014, PMC Commercial's chaktexs amended to increase the authorized share@sfion stock of PMC Commercial from
100,000,000 to 1,000,000,000 shares (20,000,00@@d800,000 after giving effect to the reverselstplit described below) and PMC
Commercial changed its state of incorporation (EReincorporation™) from Texas to Maryland by meafs merger of PMC Commercial with
and into a newly formed, wholly-owned subsidiaryriand corporation. On April 28, 2014, we changed mame from "PMC Commercial
Trust" to "CIM Commercial Trust Corporation.” Ousramon stock ("Common Stock") is currently tradedioe NASDAQ Global Market
(symbol "CMCT").

On April 28, 2014, we filed Articles of Amdment (the "Reverse Split Amendment") to effe@wmbne-for-five reverse stock split of the
Common Stock, effective April 29, 2014. Pursuanti® reverse stock split, each five shares of Com8tock issued and outstanding
immediately prior to the effective time of the rese stock split were converted into one (1) sh&@ammon Stock. Fractional shares of
Common Stock were not issued as a result of thersevstock split; instead, holders of pre-splitekaf Common Stock who otherwise would
have been entitled to receive a fractional sha@arimon Stock received an amount in cash equaktpitoduct of the fraction of a share
multiplied by the closing price of the Common St¢ak adjusted for the one-for-five reverse stodit)spn connection with and immediately
following the filing of the Reverse Split Amendmetite Company filed Articles of Amendment (the "Ratue Amendment") to decrease the
par value of the Common Stock issued and outstgrtdi$0.001 per share, effective April 29, 2014saguent to the effective time of the
Reverse Split Amendment. All per share and outsta@nshare information has been presented to refhecteverse stock split.

CIM Commercial has qualified and intendsdatinue to qualify as a Real Estate Investmeus{T{'REIT"), as defined in the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements as of Bember 31, 2014 and 2013
and for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 aR@12 (Continued)

2. MERGER

The Merger Agreement provided for the besicombination of CIM REIT's wholly owned subsigj&CIM Urban and PMC
Commercial. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, filiagé of CIM REIT received 4,400,000 shares ofvheissued PMC Commercial
common stock and approximately 65,000,000 shareswfy-issued PMC Commercial preferred stock. Ruithg the Merger and subsequent
increase in our authorized number of shares, daafe ©f preferred stock was converted into 1.4eshaf PMC Commercial common stock,
resulting in the issuance of 95,440,000 shareswingon stock in the aggregate in connection withMleeger, representing approximately
97.8% of PMC Commercial's outstanding shares ofrmomstock.

All shares of PMC Commercial common stddit were outstanding immediately prior to the e¢igsdf the Merger continued to remain
outstanding following the Acquisition Date. In afiloin, stockholders of record of PMC Commercialret tlose of the business day prior to the
Acquisition Date received a special cash dividenh$2Y.50 per share of common stock plus that pta{partion of PMC Commercial's regular
quarterly cash dividend accrued through the ActjaisiDate, each of which was paid March 25, 2014.

The Merger was accounted for as a revargeisition under the acquisition method of accaumtvith CIM Urban considered to be the
accounting acquirer based upon the terms of thedtekgreement. Based on the determination that Gtlvan was the accounting acquirer in
the transaction, CIM Urban allocated the purcha&ee fio the fair value of PMC Commercial's assets labilities as of the Acquisition Date.

Accordingly, the accompanying financiattstaents include (1) the historical financial infation for CIM Urban for all periods
presented, (2) the assets and liabilities of PM@@ercial acquired on March 11, 2014 and still owaedeld by us in the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014 and (3¢$uts of PMC Commercial's operations and cashsfliovthe consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income and cash ftawke period from the Acquisition Date throughdember 31, 2014. The equity of CIM
Commercial is the historical equity of CIM Urbartroactively restated to reflect the number of sharfestock issued by PMC Commercial
pursuant to the Merger Agreement. In connectioh e reverse acquisition, for purposes of presgraguity for CIM Commercial, the
historical stockholders of PMC Commercial were dedno have been issued 2,119,244 shares of Comtook &,226,509 shares of
Common Stock, less 107,265 shares of treasury ystocthe Acquisition Date.

Consideration Transferred—The fair value of the consideration transferrethim reverse acquisition is determined based onuheber
of shares of stock the accounting acquirer woulgeha issue to the stockholders of the accountaougimee in order to provide the same rati
ownership in the combined entity following the cdetipn of the Merger, and was determined to beotitstanding stock of PMC Commercial
as of the Acquisition Date. The fair value of tlemsideration transferred was based on the mosabielmeasure, which was determined to be
the market price of PMC Commercial stock as ofAbquisition Date. The computation of the fair vahfahe
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements as of Bember 31, 2014 and 2013
and for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 aR@12 (Continued)

2. MERGER (Continued)
consideration transferred, based on the market pfi®@MC Commercial stock on the Acquisition Dageas follows:

(in thousands,

except per

share data)
PMC Commercial common stock outstand 2,11¢
Equity consideration price per share of commonks $ 21.0¢
Fair value of the equity considerati 44,61(
Payment in ca—special divident 58,27¢
Total purchase pric $ 102,88

Purchase Price Allocation—As CIM Urban was the accounting acquirer in theitess combination, it has allocated the purchaise
PMC Commercial's individually identifiable assetgjaired and liabilities assumed based on theimed#d fair values on the Acquisition Date.
A bargain purchase gain was recorded as of theiditigm Date in the amount equal to the excesseffair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired over the total purchase price.

The following table summarizes the allogatof the purchase price:

(in thousands)
Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 3,18t
Loans receivabl 207,14(
Accounts receivable and interest receive 75&
Other asset 5,39¢
Intangible assel 2,957
Total assets acquire 219,43.
Liabilities
Debt 99,84¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 7,39¢
Special dividend liability and dividend payal 59,28t
Other liabilities 3,374
Total liabilities assume 169,90!
Net identifiable assets acquir 49,52¢
Bargain purchase ga (4,919
Net purchase pric $ 44,61(

In order to allow CIM Commercial to increaiss focus in Class A and creative office progartiour board of directors (the "Board of
Directors") approved a plan for the lending bussniasit, when completed, will result in the decoiulsdion of the lending segment. As a result,
the lending segment is held for sale at Decembg2@14 (see Note 7).
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements as of Bember 31, 2014 and 2013
and for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 aR@12 (Continued)

2. MERGER (Continued)

Based on an arrangement with PMC Commeréatain legal and due diligence expenses retatéte Merger incurred by PMC
Commercial during a certain period of time werentgirsed by CIM Urban. For the years ended Dece®ibe2014 and 2013, Merger related
costs of $467,000 and $3,670,000, respectivelyinateded in transaction costs.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information—The following unaudited pro forma consolidatedutesfor the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 assume the Merger wgsle®d as of January 1, 2013:

Year Ended
December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands, excep
per share amounts)

Pro forma revenues(# $ 256,15 $ 235,81
Pro forma net incom $ 19,08: $ 22,83
Pro forma basic earnings per sh $ 0.2C $ 0.2:
Pro forma diluted earnings per sh $ 0.2C $ 0.2

(A)  Unaudited pro forma revenues including revenues fitee acquired assets included in discontinuedatioers
were $278,398,000 and $256,534,000 for the yeataceBecember 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti

The unaudited pro forma amounts includehibtorical operating results of CIM Urban and Pi@G&mmercial prior to the Merger, with
adjustments directly attributable to the Mergere Timaudited pro forma results for the year endeteBer 31, 2014 exclude transaction cost
of $3,046,000, a one-time gain of $1,166,000 relatethe settlement of a contractual obligatiord #ive $4,918,000 bargain purchase gain
recorded on the Acquisition Date.

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatior—The accompanying consolidated financial statemesng been prepared in accordance with accountingiples
generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP").

Principles of Consolidation—The consolidated financial statements includesit@unts of CIM Commercial and its subsidiaries. Al
intercompany transactions and balances have beeimaled in consolidation.

Investments in Real Estate—Real estate acquisitions are recorded at codtthe @cquisition date. Costs related to the adtiprisof
properties are expensed as incurred. Investmenéairestate are stated at depreciated cost. Dapioecand amortization are recorded on a
straight line basis over the estimated useful lag$ollows:

Buildings and improvemen 15- 40 years
Furniture, fixtures, and 3 -5years
equipmen
Tenant improvements Shorter of the useful lives or the

terms of the related leas
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CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements as of Bember 31, 2014 and 2013
and for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 aR@12 (Continued)

3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Improvements and replacements are capgthlizhen they extend the useful life, increase dgpar improve the efficiency of the asset.
Ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensedaséal.

Investments in real estate are evaluatetifpairment on a quarterly basis or whenever esenthanges in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverRaeoverability of assets to be held and used &ssored by a comparison of the carrying
amount to the future net cash flows, undiscountetveithout interest, expected to be generated byasset. If such assets are considered to k
impaired, the impairment to be recognized is maasby the amount by which the carrying amount efdhsets exceeds the estimated fair
value of the assets. The estimated fair value®btiset group identified for step two testing selolon either the income approach with marke
discount rate, terminal capitalization rate andakrate assumptions being most critical, or onstles comparison approach to similar
properties. Assets to be disposed of are repottétbdower of the carrying amount or fair valuesd costs to sell. No impairment of long-lived
assets was recognized during the years ended Dec&hp2014, 2013 and 2012.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—-Cash and cash equivalents include short-termdiquiestments with initial maturities of three miosior
less.

Restricted Cash—The mortgage loan and hotel management agreementisle for depositing cash into restricted acceuaserved for
property taxes, insurance, and capital expenditures

Loans Receivable—Our loans receivable included in assets helddte are carried at their unamortized principal hedaless
unamortized acquisition discounts and premiumsajmet! loan discounts and loan loss reserves. Rosloriginated under the Small Business
Administration's ("SBA") 7(a) Guaranteed Loan Peogr("SBA 7(a) Program") we sell the portion of than that is guaranteed by the SBA.
Upon sale of the SBA guaranteed portion of thedoahich are accounted for as sales, the unguarchptaéon of the loan retained by us is
valued on a fair value basis and a discount (thetdiRed Loan Discount") is recorded as a redudtidrasis of the retained portion of the loan.

At the Acquisition Date, the carrying valofeour loans was adjusted to estimated fair markkte and acquisition discounts of
$33,907,000 were recorded, which are being acctetaderest income, included in income from operat of assets held for sale, using the
effective interest method. Acquisition discount$26,495,000 remain as of December 31, 2014 whagke not yet been accreted to income.

A loan receivable is generally classifischan-accrual (a "Non-Accrual Loan") if (i) it isgt due as to payment of principal or interest fo
a period of 60 days or more, (ii) any portion af than is classified as doubtful or is chargedeoffiii) if the repayment in full of the principal
and/or interest is in doubt. Generally, loans d&&ged-off when management determines that webilinable to collect any remaining
amounts due under the loan agreement, either thribqigidation of collateral or other means. Intéiasome, included in discontinued
operations, on a Non-Accrual Loan is recognizeaitimer the cash basis or the cost recovery basis.

We recognized interest income and feesa@le the LAX Holiday Inn of $316,000 and $3,0300dor the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, respectively. The note paid interest
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monthly at the London InterBank Offered Rate ("LIBQ plus 2.35%, with a LIBOR floor of 4.75%. Fortlyear ended December 31, 2012,
and for the period from January 1, 2013, to Oct@&@013, the interest rate was 7.10%. The noteawgsired at a discount of $6,015,000,
which was amortized from the note acquisition tigtothe original maturity date of the note, Augus2@12. Discount amortization of
$810,000 was recorded in interest and other indomihe year ended December 31, 2012. On Octoh2083, we submitted the highest bid at
a foreclosure auction and took possession of th& hétel. The mortgage note's investment basis veasterred to the property components a
their relative fair values upon title transfer (déate 4). Due to the borrower's default, which mpdecipal exposure likely but not yet certain,
from February 2013 to October 2013, we accountethi®note under the nonaccrual method.

On a quatrterly basis, and more frequefilydicators exist, we evaluate the collectabitfyour loans receivable. Our evaluation of
collectability involves judgment, estimates, an@aew of the ability of the borrower to make piipad and interest payments, the underlying
collateral and the borrowers' business models atuld operations in accordance with Accounting &ats Codification ("ASC") 450-20,
Contingencies—Loss Contingencjesd ASC 310-1(Receivables For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 @t Ao impairments
on our loans receivable were recorded. We estahligneral loan loss reserve when available infooméndicates that it is probable a loss
occurred based on the carrying value of the paotimhd the amount of the loss can be reasonalimastd. Significant judgment is required in
determining the general loan loss reserve, inclyéstimates of the likelihood of default and thiénested fair value of the collateral. The
general loan loss reserve includes those loanghwhay have negative characteristics which haveeiobecome known to us. In addition to
the reserves established on loans not considerneairnied that have been evaluated under a spec#it&tion, the general loan loss reserve use
a consistent methodology to determine a loss p&agerto be applied to loan balances. These losepges are based on many factors,
primarily cumulative and recent loss history andegal economic conditions.

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable are carried net of the allavearfor uncollectible amounts. Management's deteatioin of
the adequacy of these allowances is based primgyidy evaluation of historical loss experiencejvitdial receivables, current economic
conditions, and other relevant factors. The allovesrare increased or decreased through the pnov@idad debts. The allowance for
uncollectible accounts receivable was $388,000$&J000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respdctiv

Deferred Rent Receivable and Charges-Deferred rent receivable and charges consist fefridel rent, deferred loan costs and deferrec
leasing costs. Deferred rent receivable is $530#Pand $49,543,000 at December 31, 2014 and 284f3ectively. Deferred loan costs, wh
represent legal and third-party fees incurred imneetion with our borrowing activities, are cap#ad and amortized to interest expense on a
straight line basis over the life of the relatedripapproximating the effective interest methodieBred loan costs of $7,521,000 and $3,666
are presented net of accumulated amortization gf481000 and $1,538,000 at December 31, 2014 ah8, 28spectively. Deferred leasing
costs, which represent lease commissions and dittestt costs associated with the acquisition oftes, are capitalized and amortized on a
straight line basis over the terms of the relatedés.
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Deferred leasing costs of $55,145,000 and $50,006a0e presented net of accumulated amortizatidi6f917,000 and $14,241,000 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Noncontrolling Interests—Noncontrolling interests represent the interastearious properties owned by third parties. Dutimg year
ended December 31, 2014, we paid $1,850,000 t@nedtass B shares of subsidiary REITSs.

Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of Invetments in Real Estate—We apply the acquisition method to all acquireal estate
investments. The purchase consideration of theetate is recorded at fair value to the acquisedible assets, consisting primarily of land,
site improvements, and building and tenant impromets, and identified intangible assets and liaedjtconsisting of the value of abonerke
and below-market leases, other value of in-plaasds, and value of tenant relationships and aatjgne@und leases, based in each case on the
fair values. Loan premiums, in the case of aboveketaate loans, or loan discounts, in the cadsetdw-market loans, are recorded based on
the fair value of any loans assumed in connectiith &cquiring the real estate.

The fair value of the tangible assets ohequired property is determined by valuing thepprty as if it were vacant, and the "as+ifeant’
value is then allocated to land (or acquired gragade if the land is subject to a ground leas®)jraprovements, and building and tenant
improvements based on management's determinatiire o€lative fair values of these assets. Managedetermines the as-if-vacant fair
value of a property using methods similar to thased by independent appraisers. Factors consitdgrathnagement in performing these
analyses include an estimate of carrying costsduhie expected lease-up periods considering dumarket conditions and costs to execute
similar leases. In estimating carrying costs, manant includes real estate taxes, insurance aed opferating expenses, and estimates of o
rental revenue during the expected leaggeriods based on current market demand. Manageaats® estimates costs to execute similar lei
including leasing commissions, legal, and otheatesl costs.

In allocating the purchase consideratiothefidentified intangible assets and liabilitiésao acquired property, above-market, below-
market, and in-place lease values are recordedl fmasthe present value (using an interest rateréfigicts the risks associated with the leases
acquired) of the difference between (i) the coritralcamounts to be paid pursuant to the in-plagsds and (ii) management's estimate of fair
market lease rates for the corresponding in-pleasds measured over a period equal to the remaiomzancelable term of the lease, and for
below-market leases, over a period equal to thiainerm plus any below-market fixed-rate renep@iiods. Acquired above-market and
below-market leases are amortized and recordezhtalrand other property income over the initiainte of the prospective leases.

The aggregate value of other acquired gitde assets, consisting of in-place leases arahtenrelationships, is measured by the estimate
cost of operations during a theoretical lease-upgéeo replace in-place leases, including loseraes and any unreimbursed operating
expenses, plus an estimate of deferred leasing ¢ssiuns for in-place leases. The value of in-pleeses is amortized to expense over the
remaining noncancelable periods of the respectizsds. If a lease is terminated prior to its stakpiration, all unamortized amounts relating
to that lease are written-off.
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For hotels, an intangible value was asslgneexpected revenues from advance bookings, whék calculated based on discounted
income, and to franchise affiliation, which werdccéated based on the difference between the mgtqied income in the year of acquisition
and an estimate of income without the franchisezahte bookings were $0 and $190,000 at Decemb&034, and 2013, respectively.
Franchise affiliation fees were $955,000 and $1,33®at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelyaAce bookings are amortized over
one to three years, and the franchise affiliatemis amortized over 10 years. The franchise atffifin fee is fully amortized once the hotel is nc
longer affiliated with the franchise.

A tax abatement intangible asset was rextbfdr a property acquired in 2011, based on anoappfor a property tax abatement, due to
the location of the property. The tax abatemerangible is amortized over eight years. Tax abaténvas $2,502,000 and $3,053,000 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Revenue Recognitior-All leases are classified as operating leaseswnanum rents are recognized on a straight-linesbaser the
terms of the leases when collectability is reastynasisured and the tenant has taken possessi@miols the physical use of the leased asset
The excess of rents recognized over amounts canélhcdue pursuant to the underlying leases iended as deferred rent. If the lease
provides for tenant improvements, we determine hdrethe tenant improvements, for accounting purpcse owned by the tenant or us.
When we are the owner of the tenant improvemehéstenant is not considered to have taken phygasgession or have control of the
physical use of the leased asset until the temapitavements are substantially completed. Whenetharit is considered the owner of the
improvements, any tenant improvement allowanceithfainded is treated as incentive. Lease incesfpad to tenants are included in other
assets and amortized as a reduction to rental veven a straight-line basis over the term of theted lease. Lease incentives of $8,850,000
and $8,337,000 are presented net of accumulatediaatmn of $2,072,000 and $1,151,000 at Decer8ie2014 and 2013, respectively.

Reimbursements from tenants, consistirgnodunts due from tenants for common area maintenaeal estate taxes, insurance, and «
recoverable costs, are recognized as revenue ipetfied the expenses are incurred. Tenant reimimensts are recognized and presented on a
gross basis when we are the primary obligor witipeet to incurring expenses and with respect tingathe credit risk.

In addition to minimum rents, certain leapeovide for additional rents based upon varyiagentages of tenants' sales in excess of
annual minimums. Percentage rent is recognized lessees' specified sales targets have been rokeidéd in rental and other property
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2013,&91 2012, is $230,000, $99,000 and $162,000ectsply, of percentage rent.

We derive parking revenues from leases thitld party operators. Our parking leases profidedditional rents based upon varying
percentages of tenants' sales in excess of annomhums. Parking percentage rent is recognized tegsee's specific sales targets have beet
met. Included in rental and other property reverfaethe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ah?l, 20$1,562,000, $1,096,000 and
$931,000, respectively, of parking percentage rent.
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Hotel room sales are recognized upon daigupancy. Other hotel revenues are recognizedras@ upon facility use or food and
beverage consumption.

Interest income included in our discontahegperations is comprised of interest earned onsl@ad our short-term investments and the
accretion of net loan origination fees and discsuimterest income on loans is accrued as earribdhg accrual of interest suspended when
the related loan becomes a Non-Accrual Loan.

Premiums and Discounts on Debt-Premiums and discounts on debt are accreted ortiaawbon the effective interest method or on a
straight-line basis over the respective term ofitla@ to interest expense, which approximates tieeteve interest method.

Stock-Based Compensation PlarsWe have options outstanding and issue restridtaces under stock-based compensation plans
described more fully in Note 9. We use fair valaeagnition provisions to account for all awardsnged, modified or settled.

Earnings per Share ("EPS")—EPS is computed by dividing net income by the Wwiid-average number of shares outstanding. Dilute
EPS includes the dilutive effect, if any, of stdzksed compensation awards.

Distributions to Stockholders—Distributions to stockholders are recorded onekelividend date.

Discontinued Operations—We classify assets as held for sale when they theatecessary criteria, which include: a) managgeme
commits to and actively embarks upon a plan totkellassets, b) the assets to be sold are avaitabltamediate sale in their present condition
c) the sale is expected to be completed withinyase under terms usual and customary for such aalgsl) actions required to complete the
plan indicate that it is unlikely that significacttanges to the plan will be made or that the pléiroe withdrawn. We believe that we meet
these criteria when the plan for sale has beeroapdrby the Board of Directors, there are no kneignificant contingencies related to the :
and management believes it is probable that theeveidlbe completed within one year.

Assets held for sale are recorded at tiveld®f cost or estimated fair value less cost tb Revenues and expenses of assets that are hel
for sale are presented as discontinued operataralfperiods presented in the consolidated statésnof operations and comprehensive
income.

Income Taxes—We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under thvagions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 nasraled (the
"Code"). To the extent we qualify for taxation aRRIT, we generally will not be subject to a fede@porate income tax on our taxable
income that is distributed to our stockholders. M&y, however, be subject to certain federal exeises and state and local taxes on our
income and property. If we fail to qualify as a REh any taxable year, we will be subject to Fetlereome taxes at regular corporate rates
(including any applicable alternative minimum taxyd will not be able to qualify as a REIT for fmubsequent taxable years. In order to
remain qualified as a REIT under the Code, we rsatssfy various requirements in each taxable yiralyding, among others, limitations on
share ownership, asset diversification, sourcésasime, and the distribution of at least 90% of @able income within the specified time in
accordance with the Code.
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We have wholly-owned taxable REIT subsig®("TRS's") which are subject to federal incomrees. The income generated from the
taxable REIT subsidiaries is taxed at normal cafmorates. Deferred tax assets and liabilitieseregnized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the finandialesnent carrying amounts of existing assets ainilities and their respective tax bases.

We have established a policy on classificabf penalties and interest related to auditsusffederal and state income tax returns. If
incurred, our policy for recording interest and @iéies associated with audits will be to recordmsiems as a component of general and
administrative expense or discontinued operatiBegalties, if incurred, will be recorded in genenadl administrative expense or discontinuec
operations and interest paid or received will rorded in interest expense or interest income gasgely, or discontinued operations in the
consolidated statements of operations and compsareimcome.

ASC 740Income Taxesprovides guidance for how uncertain tax positisinguld be recognized, measured, presented, acidshsd in
the financial statements. ASC 740 requires theuati@n of tax positions taken or expected to benak the course of preparing our tax rett
to determine whether the tax positions are "mdwyithan not" of being sustained by the applicableauthority. Tax positions not deemed to
meet the more-likely-thanet threshold would be recorded as a tax benepense in the current period. We have reviewleapain tax yeal
and concluded that the application of ASC 740 tesuh no material effect to our consolidated ficiahposition or results of operations.

Consolidation Considerations for Our Invesnents in Real Estate—ASC 810-10Consolidation, addresses how a business enterprise
should evaluate whether it has a controlling irgeie an entity through means other than votingteghat would require the entity to be
consolidated. We analyze our investments in rdate@ accordance with this accounting standadktermine whether they are variable
interest entities, and if so, whether we are tlmagry beneficiary. Our judgment with respect to mwuel of influence or control over an entity
and whether we are the primary beneficiary of aalde interest entity involves consideration ofigas factors, including the form of our
ownership interest, our voting interest, the sizew investment (including loans), and our abitityparticipate in major policy-making
decisions. Our ability to correctly assess ouri@fice or control over an entity affects the presé@nt of these investments in our consolidated
financial statements.

Use of Estimates—The preparation of consolidated financial stateimé@nconformity with GAAP requires management take certain
estimates and assumptions that affect the repartemlints of assets and liabilities, disclosure otiogent assets and liabilities at the date ©
consolidated financial statements, and the rep@medunts of revenues and expenses during the mep@eriod. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Concentration of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that subject us to cregk donsist primarily of cash and cash equivalémes.
have our cash and cash equivalents on depositwgthquality financial institutions. Accounts atohanstitution are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. Mansnt routinely assesses the financial strengits ¢énants and, as a consequence,
believes that its accounts receivable credit righosure is limited.
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Our properties are located throughout thied States. The majority of our revenues areezhfrom properties located in the Washing
D.C. metro area and California. We are subjecisksrincidental to the ownership and operationashmercial real estate. These include,
among others, the risks normally associated witingks in the general economic climate in the conitesnin which we operate, trends in the
real estate industry, change in tax laws, inteastlevels, availability of financing, and the gutial liability under environmental and other
laws.

Fair Value Measurements—The fair value of our financial assets and lidlgi are disclosed in Note 12.

We determine the estimated fair value éfficial assets and liabilities utilizing a hierardf valuation techniques based on whether the
inputs to a fair value measurement are considerée bbservable or unobservable in a marketplaoe hierarchy for inputs used in measuring
fair value is as follows:

Level 1 Inputs—Quoted prices in active markets for identical &sse liabilities
Level 2 Inputs—Observable inputs other than quoted prices irvacgtiarkets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 3 Inputs—Unobservable inputs

In certain cases, the inputs used to medsirvalue may fall into different levels of tfer value hierarchy. In such cases, for disclosure
purposes, the level within which the fair value sw@ament is categorized is based on the lowestilgwet that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

We disclose the fair value of our debt. iéeermine the fair value of mortgage notes payabéejunior subordinated notes by performing
discounted cash flow analyses using an appropmatiet discount rate. We calculate the market distoate for our mortgage notes payable
by obtaining period-end treasury rates for magsithat correspond to the maturities of our detitthan adding an appropriate credit spread.
These credit spreads take into account factors asiciur credit standing, the maturity of the delbtether the debt is secured or unsecured, ar
the loan-to-value ratios of the debt. The carryiafyie of our secured borrowinggevernment guaranteed loans approximates fair \adube’
are based on current market interest rates.

We disclose the fair value of our loansreable. We determine the fair value of loans readglie subject to credit risk by performing a
present value analysis for the anticipated futaghdlows taking into consideration the lack ofditreisk using an anticipated prepayment rate.

The carrying amounts of our cash and casiivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivablegeured credit facilities, accounts payable,
and accrued expenses approximate their fair valuego their short-term maturities at December2814 and 2013.

Segment Information—Segment information is prepared on the same llaagiur management reviews information for opereti
decision-making purposes. We operate in four bssisegments: (i) the acquisition, redevelopmentesship, and management of office real
estate; (i) multifamily real estate; (iii) hotelsnd (iv) lending operations, which was added imnaztion with the Merger and is classified as
held for sale at December 31, 2014. The productedo office segment primarily
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include rental of office space and other tenantises, including tenant reimbursements, parking, storage space rental. The products for ou
multifamily segment include rental of apartmentd ather tenant services. The products of our temgiment include revenues generated from
the operations of hotel properties, rental incomeegated from a garage located directly acrosstthet from one of the hotels, and an
investment in a note receivable secured by a lpotglerty, for the period from January 1, 2013 téoBer 8, 2013, and for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The income from our lending segnwhich includes income from the yield and ottedated fee income earned on our
loans receivable, included in discontinued openatio

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements|in April 2014, the Financial Accounting StandaRtsard (the "FASB") issued
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2014-BBssentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205) Broperty, Plant, and Equipment
(Topic 360). Reporting Discontinued Operations &isiclosures of Disposals of Components of an Entibych amends the definition of a
discontinued operation and requires entities twigdmadditional disclosures about disposal transastthat do not meet the discontinued-
operations criteria. The revised guidance is eiffeghrospectively to all disposals (or classifioas as held for sale) that occur in annual pe
(and interim periods therein) beginning on or aBecember 15, 2014, with early adoption permitieities are prohibited from applying the
new ASU to any component, equity method investmamacquired business that is classified as helddte before the adoption date. We earl
adopted this guidance during the second quart20d4, and the adoption did not have a material @npa our consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 20B4Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 886¢h outlines a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accognftor revenue arising from contracts with custerard supersedes most current revenue
recognition guidance, including the guidance o estate de-recognition for most transactions.gednlic entities, the ASU is effective for
annual reporting periods (including interim repogtiperiods within those periods) beginning aftec&ueber 15, 2016. Early application is not
permitted. Entities have the option of using eithdull retrospective or a modified approach togdbe guidance in the ASU. The modified
approach provides entities relief from having tstate and present comparable prior-year finantagéément information; however, entities will
still need to evaluate existing contracts as ofdéie of initial adoption under the ASU to deterenivhether a cumulative adjustment is
necessary. We are currently in the process of atialythe impact of adoption of the new accountinglance on our consolidated financial
statements.
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In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No.£20% Presentation of Financial Statements—Going Con¢8tbtopic 205-40yvhich
requires an entity's management to evaluate whétkez are conditions or events, when considerddeimggregate, that raise substantial d
about the entity's ability to continue as a goingaern within one year after the date the finanstialements are issued. The ASU is effective
for the annual reporting period ending after Decenib, 2016, and for annual and interim periodscihiter. Early application is permitted.
The adoption of this guidance is not expected telmamaterial impact on our consolidated finansfatements.

4. ACQUISITIONS

The fair value of real estate acquireceorded to (1) the acquired tangible assets, domgisf land; land improvements; building and
improvements; furniture, fixtures, and equipmeatiant improvements; and (2) identified intangildseds and liabilities, consisting of the v:
of above- and below-market leases and the valuepifaice leases and tenant relationships, if aaget in each case on their respective fair
values. Loan premiums, in the case of above-mastetloans, or loan discounts, in the case of betasket rate loans, are recorded based or
the fair value of any loans assumed in connectiith &quiring the real estate. Above-market groleades are recorded based on the
respective fair value of the ground leases.

We acquired an office property in 2005dpproximately $120,800,000, paying approximatel¥,880,000 in cash and assuming two
mortgage loans totaling $79,800,000. The $41,0@¢28h portion of the purchase price was paid bkimgga) an approximately $1,000,000
equity investment in the existing property owned @) a loan to the existing property owner of apgmately $40,000,000, which was
converted to equity in 2012. We currently direayn 100% of the property. Prior to the conversimeduity in December 2012, the office
property was included in our consolidated finanstatements as a variable interest entity.

In October 2013, we foreclosed on the LA#lidiay Inn, a select service hotel, and acquiré@@o fee-simple interest. A subsidiary of
CIM Commercial was the first-mortgage lender of tla¢e secured by the hotel. Built in 1973, thisshbais 405 rooms and is located in the
LAX submarket of Los Angeles, California.

Acquisitions, funded with proceeds fromwddawns on our unsecured credit facilities during£2@onsisted of the following:

Rentable
Asset Date of Number of Square Purchase
Property Type Acquisition Buildings Feet Price
(in thousands)
4750 Wilshire Boulevard, Los
Angeles, CA(1 Office April 18, 201+ 1 143,36. $ 44,93¢
Lindblade Media Center Los
Angeles, CA(2 Office  October 21, 201 3 32,42¢ $ 18,50(

Q) 100% fee-simple interest in an office building buil 1984 and renovated in 2014, located in the-Widshire submarket
of Los Angeles, Californie
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(2) 100% fee-simple interest in a portfolio of creatdféice buildings located in the West Los Angelabmarket of Los
Angeles, California. Two of the buildings were binl 1930 and the third was built in 1957. The 8ings were renovate
in 2010.

The income and expenses related to therfisstgage on the LAX Holiday Inn acquired by CiM@mercial through foreclosure in
October 2013 are included in the consolidated staies of operations and comprehensive income upto@atdate we took possession of the
hotel. The results of the operations of the prapeicquired have been included in the consolidstiéments of operations and comprehel
income from the date of acquisition. There werassets acquired or liabilities assumed during e gnded December 31, 2012. The fair
value of the assets acquired and liabilities assuimethe above-noted acquisitions during the yated December 31, 2014, and 2013,
respectively, are as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013
Acquisitions(1) Acquisition(1)
(in thousands)

Land $ 22,97t $ 15,66:
Land improvement 53¢ 43€
Buildings and improvemen 38,82: 20,25¢
Tenant improvemen 1,197 —
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme — 2,481
Advance booking — 251
Working capital — 1,01«
Acquired ir-place leases(- 2,39¢ —
Acquired belov-market leases(: (2,48¢) —
Note receivabl — (40,100
Net assets acquire $ 63,43¢ $ —

(1) The purchase price of the two acquisitions and_#h¥ Holiday Inn foreclosure completed during theaye ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, wereithaklly less than 5% and in aggregate less théf aDour
total assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 ctbaply.

(2) In-place leases have a weighted average amortizaénod of 5.1 years.

3) Below-market leases have a weighted average amortizag¢iood of 5.0 year:

Acquisition related expenses of $491,0G®eisited with the acquisitions of real estate ih2@ere expensed as incurred during the year
ended December 31, 2014. Foreclosure related eepei$1,393,000 related to the LAX Holiday Innefdosure were expensed as incurred
during the year ended December 31, 2013. Acquisititated costs of $632,000 associated with thgersion of the office property were
expensed as incurred during the year ended Dece3ibe012.

Abandoned project costs of $132,000 wepensged as incurred during the year ended Decemb@034.
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5. INVESTMENTS IN REAL ESTATE
Investments in real estate consist of dlewing:

December 31

2014 2013
(in thousands)
Land $ 354,038 $ 331,06
Land improvement 28,07: 27,53¢
Buildings and improvemen 1,501,60: 1,454,85.
Furniture, fixtures, and equipme 10,87¢ 12,13:
Tenant improvement 131,44t 118,28
Work in progres: 10,76 9,98
Investments in real este 2,036,79: 1,953,84
Accumulated depreciatic (320,85) (271,682

Net investments in real este $ 1,715,993 $ 1,682,16!

For the years ended December 31, 2014,,20182012 we recorded depreciation expense 0635800, $58,013,000, and $59,149,000
respectively.

6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A schedule of our intangible assets argilitees and related accumulated amortization acatetion as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
as follows:

Assets Liabilities
Acquired Acquired Acquired
Above- Acquired Franchise Below- Below-
Market In-Place Tax Affiliation Market Market
December 31, 201 Leases Leases Abatement Fee Ground Lease Leases
(in thousands)
Gross bhalanc $ 2402 $ 2268( $ 427 $ 3,93 $ 11,68t $ (20,33
Accumulated
amortization (2,039 (16,470 (1,777 (2,98)) (1,282) 11,67¢
$ 36 $§ 621C $ 250 $ 95t $ 10,40: $ (8,657)
Average useful life (in
years) 7 8 8 10 84 8
Assets Liabilities
Acquired Acquired Acquired
Above- Acquired Franchise Below- Below-
Market In-Place Tax Advance Affiliation Market Market
December 31, 201 Leases Leases Abatement Bookings Fee Ground Lease Leases
(in thousands)
Grossbalanc $ 4,14t $ 2259: $ 4,27 % 251 $ 3,93¢ $ 11,68t $ (20,487
Accumulated
amortization (3,180 (16,41) (1,220 (61) (2,587 (1,147) 11,681
$ 96t $ 6,18 $ 305 $ 19C $ 1,34¢ % 10,547 $ (8,800)
Average usefu
life (in years 7 7 8 1 1C 84 8
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6. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortization of the abowearket leases which decreased rental and otheegiyopcome was $602,000, $888,000 and $1,003,6¢
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 284k ctively. The amortization of the below-markeises included in rental and other
property income was $2,631,000, $3,058,000 and1¥3080 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d2012, respectively. The
amortization of in-place leases included in demamn and amortization expense was $2,368,000683)80 and $5,388,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsctimeluded in depreciation and amortization expgeissranchise affiliation fee
amortization of $394,000 for each of the years dridecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectivély.dfmortization of advance bookings
included in depreciation and amortization expenas $190,000, $61,000 and $0 for the years endedrileer 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Tax abatement amortization of $550 00 each of the years ended December 31, 20148 a@Ad 2012, respectively, and the
amortization of below-market ground lease obligatid $140,000 for each of the years ended DeceBihe2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively
are included in rental and other property operatixgenses.

A schedule of future amortization and atioreof acquisition related intangible assets aablilities as of December 31, 2014, is as
follows:

Assets Liabilities

Acquired Acquired Acquired

Above- Acquired Franchise Below- Below-

Market In-Place Tax Affiliation Market Market

Years Ending December 31 Leases Leases Abatement Fee Ground Lease Leases

(in thousands)

2015 $ 241 $ 1841 $ 551 $ 394 $ 14C $ (2,569
2016 88 1,34¢ 551 394 14C (2,509
2017 26 91t 551 167 14C (2,399
2018 8 66€ 551 — 14C (967)
2019 — 48¢ 29¢ — 14C (224
Thereafte — 954 — — 9,70 —

$ 365 $ 621C $ 250 $ 95t $ 10,40: $ (8,65))

7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

We have reflected the lending segment, wiias acquired in March 2014 as disclosed in Np@saeld for sale at December 31, 2014,
based on a plan approved by the Board to selethdihg business that, when completed, will resuthe deconsolidation of the lending
segment. In connection with our plan, we have espériransaction costs of $473,000 as incurred glthi@ year ended December 31, 2014.
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7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The following is a reconciliation of therndng amounts of assets and liabilities that dassified as held for sale on the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014:

December 31
2014
(in thousands)
Assets held for sa

Loans receivab—net $ 189,05:
Cash and cash equivalel 9,93
Restricted cas 91¢
Accounts receivable and interest receiv—net 73€
Other intangible asse 2,957
Other asset 5,19¢
Total assets held for s $ 208,79¢
Liabilities associated with assets held for s
Debt $ 41,90:
Accounts payable and accrued expel 2,70¢
Other liabilities 5,181
Total liabilities associated with assets held fale $ 49,79:

Loans receivable—net consist of the follogvi

December 31

2014
(in thousands)
Commercial mortgage loal $ 108,86«
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi 41,32¢
SBA 7(a) loans 38,70"
Loans receivabl 188,89
Deferred capitalized co—net 292
Loan loss reserve (139)
Net loans receivabl $ 189,05:

Commercial mortgage loans—Represents loans to small businesses collateddtigdirst liens on the real estate of the reldiasiness.

SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowgs—Represents the government guaranteed portioraaslavhich were sold with the
proceeds received from the sale reflected as setumeowings—government guaranteed loans. Theme edit risk associated with these
loans since the SBA has guaranteed payment ofriheigal.

SBA 7(a) loans—Represents the non-government guaranteed retporéidn of loans originated under the SBA 7(a) Paog and the
government guaranteed portion of loans that havgetdeen fully funded or sold.
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7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Debt consists of the following:

December 31
2014
(in thousands)
Secured borrowing principal on loans sold for aniten and
excess spreadvariable rate, reset quarterly, based on prime
with weighted average coupon rate of 3.9 $ 33,65¢
Secured borrowing principal on loans sold for excgwead,
variable rate, reset quarterly, based on primewéteweighted

average coupon rate of 1.5¢ 5,08¢
38,73¢

Premiums on loans sold for a premium and excesad 3,16z
Total Secured borrowinge—government guaranteed loan: $ 41,90:

Secured borrowings—government guaranteed dams—Represents sold SBA 7(a) Program loans whichraeged as secured
borrowings since the loan sales did not meet theadgnition criteria provided for in ASC 860-30ansfers and ServicingTo the extent
secured borrowings include cash premiums, thesaipmes are included in secured borrowings and ameiitas a reduction to interest expens
over the life of the loan using the effective iegrmethod and fully amortized when the loan isicm full.

Future principal payments on our debt (feaieie) at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Secured
Borrowings
Years Ending December 31 Principal(1)
(in thousands)

2015 $ 1,22¢
2016 1,26¢
2017 1,311
2018 1,35¢
2019 1,40i
Thereatftel 32,16¢
$ 38,73¢

(1) Principal payments are generally dependent updm fbass received from the underlying loans. Ouireate of
their repayment is based on scheduled principaingsgs on the underlying loans. Our estimate wifedifrom
actual amounts to the extent we experience prepatgna@d/or loan liquidations or chargfs. No payment is du
unless payments are received from the borrowetb®nnderlying loan:
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7. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The following is a reconciliation of thevemue and expenses classified as discontinuedtapes@an the consolidated statement of
operations and comprehensive income for the pematd December 31, 2014:

Period Ended
December 31,

2014(1)
(in thousands)

Revenue—lInterest and other incon $ 18,91(
Expenses:

Interest expens 1,17

General and administrati 4,472

Provision for income taxe 62:

Total Expense 6,272

Income from operations of assets held for $ 12,63¢

(1) For the period from the Acquisition Date, througbdember 31, 201
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Information on our debt is as follows:

Mortgage loan with a fixed interest rate of 7.6686 annum, with monthh
payments of principal and interest. The loan ha8-gear amortization
schedule with a $25,324,000 balance due on Deceipl815. The loa
iS nonrecourse

Mortgage loan with a fixed interest rate of 4.5086 annum, with monthh
payments of interest only for 10 years, and paymehinterest and
principal starting in February 2022. The loan h&g23,008,000 balanct
due on January 5, 2027. The loan is nonrecot

Mortgage loan with a fixed interest rate of 5.5686 annum, with monthh
payments of principal and interest. The loan h&8-gear amortization
schedule with a $12,288,000 balance due on J®@15. The loan is
nonrecourse

Mortgage loan with a fixed interest rate of 6.6586 annum, with monthh
payments of principal and interest. The loan haS-gear amortization
schedule with a $21,136,000 balance due on Jul2AB3. The loan is
nonrecourse

Mortgage loan with a fixed interest rate of 5.0686 annum, with monthh
payments of principal and interest, and a balafn&38,068,000 due or
September 1, 2015. The loan is nonrecou

Mortgage loans with a fixed interest rate of 5.3986 annum, with
monthly payments of principal and interest, ancdlatce of $35,695,0!
due on March 1, 2021. The loans are nonrecot

Mortgage loan with a fixed interest rate of 5.1886 annum, with monthh
payments of principal and interest, and a balaf&26,232,000 due or
June 5, 2021. The loan is nonrecour

Premiums and discounts on assumed mortg

Total Mortgages Payable

Junior subordinated notes with a variable interatst which resets quarte
based on the 90-day LIBOR plus 3.25%, with quayterterest only
payments. Balance due at maturity on March 30, 2!

Unsecured credit facilitie

Discount on junior subordinated no

Total Other
Total Debt
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December 31

2014

2013

(in thousands)

$ 26,78! $ 28,26
46,000 46,00(
12,44. 12,73
32,07C 34,75
33,73 34,58
40,52¢  41,17(
30,29: 30,81
221,84 ~ 228,31

1,96 2,78¢

223,80¢ _ 231,10
27,07( —
360,00( _ 164,00(
387,07( ~ 164,00(
(2,169 —
384,90( __ 164,00(

$ 608,71« $ 395,10!
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8. DEBT (Continued)
The mortgages payable are secured by d¥edsst on certain of the properties and assigrimehrents.
The junior subordinated notes may be redekeat par at our option.

In February 2012, CIM Urban entered intauasecured revolving line of credit with a bankdigate, which allowed for maximum
borrowings of $100,000,000. Borrowings under the lof credit were limited by certain borrowing baséculations. Outstanding advances
under the line of credit bore interest at (i) tlsdrate, as defined, plus 0.75% to 1.50% or [BAR plus 1.75% to 2.50%, depending on the
maximum consolidated leverage ratio, as definetl] Angust 2013. In August 2013, the unsecured héug line was amended, and
outstanding advances under the line bore intetdgtthe base rate, as defined, plus 0.25% to%.85 (ii) LIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.85%,
depending on the maximum consolidated leverage, rasi defined. The line of credit was also sultjgetn unused commitment fee of 0.259
0.35% depending on the amount of aggregate unusachitments. As of December 31, 2013, $100,000,089 eutstanding under the line of
credit. This line of credit was terminated and idpa full in September 2014.

In August 2013, CIM Urban entered into &sotunsecured revolving line of credit with a bagkdicate. The line of credit provided an
additional $125,000,000 of borrowing capacity tas increased to $150,000,000. CIM Urban amendedré of credit in April 2014 to
further increase the maximum aggregate borrowipgcity under the revolving credit facility to $2000,000. Borrowings under the revolving
line were limited by certain borrowing base caltiolas. Outstanding advances under the line boegdst at (i) the base rate, as defined, plus
0.25% to 0.85% or (ii) LIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.85%peénding on the maximum consolidated leverage, rasialefined. The line of credit was
also subject to an unused commitment fee of 0.26@35% depending on the amount of aggregate urnemadhitments. As of December 31,
2013, $64,000,000 was outstanding under the lireadfit. This line of credit was terminated andaiépn full in September 2014.

In September 2014, CIM Commercial entergd an $850,000,000 unsecured credit facility withank syndicate consisting of a
$450,000,000 revolver, a $325,000,000 term loanaa®d5,000,000 delayed-draw term loan. The creditify can be increased to
$1,150,000,000, under certain conditions. CIM Comuiagis subject to certain financial maintenanogenants and a minimum property
ownership condition. Outstanding advances underabelver bear interest at (i) the base rate, pla8% to 1.00% or (ii) LIBOR plus 1.20%
2.00%, depending on the maximum consolidated leeeratio. Outstanding advances under the term lbaasinterest at (i) the base rate, plus
0.15% to 0.95% or (ii) LIBOR plus 1.15% to 1.95%peénding on the maximum consolidated leverage.rétie revolver is also subject to an
unused commitment fee of 0.15% or 0.25% dependinip® amount of aggregate unused commitments. glaget draw term loan is also
subject to an unused line fee of 0.25%. The cffaditity matures in September 2016 and providesar one-year extension options under
certain conditions. As of December 31, 2014, $380,000 was outstanding under the credit facilitst $490,000,000 was available for future
borrowings. Proceeds from the unsecured credilitiaviere used for acquisitions, general corpoatgposes and to repay $323,000,000
outstanding under our unsecured credit facilitesDecember 31, 2014, the interest rate on ouraurse credit facility ranged from 1.31% to
1.37%.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, CIM Comnadrind CIM Urban, respectively, were in compliamgth all of their respective financial
covenants.
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8. DEBT (Continued)

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, accruedesteand unused commitment fees payable of $96400®%1,017,000, respectively, are
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Future principal payments on our debt (feaieie) at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Mortgages
Years Ending December 31 Payable Other(1) Total
(in thousands)
2015 $ 77,058 $ — $ 77,05t
2016 4,35¢ 360,00( 364,35¢
2017 4,642 — 4,642
2018 24,30( — 24,30(
2019 1,51¢ — 1,51¢
Thereafte 109,97 27,07( 137,04°

$ 221,84 $ 387,07( $ 608,91

(1) Represents the junior subordinated notes, and urestcredit facility
9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

On April 28, 2014, our stockholders appibtiee First Amendment to the PMC Commercial Trid&3Equity Incentive Plan (the "Plan
Amendment”) to increase the aggregate number oésted Common Stock thereunder from 100,000 to@®MDshares and increase the annua
limitation on restricted Common Stock grants tardlependent directors in the aggregate to 100r@8icted shares of Common Stock and tc
each executive officer to no more than 4,000 retettli shares of Common Stock during any fiscal yEae. plan terminates in June 2015. At
December 31, 2014, we had options outstanding wtdek-based compensation plans. The options vegriced as of the Acquisition Date.

Options—Option awards are granted with an exercise prigeakto the market price of Common Stock at the dégrant and vest
immediately upon grant with fivgear contractual terms. A summary of the statusuofstock options as of December 31, 2014 andhibage:
during the year ended are as follows:

2014
Number of Weighted
Shares Average
Underlying Exercise
Options Prices
Outstanding, March 11 (Acquistion Da 19,70 $ 13.9¢
Grantec 11,85( $ 23.1¢
Excercisec (14,500 $ 13.8:
Outstanding and exercisable, Decembe 17,05( $ 20.4¢
Weighted-average fair value per share of stockoogti
granted during the ye: $ 0.6¢€
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9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

The market price of our Common Stock atdbeioer 31, 2014 is greater than certain of our stpdion exercise prices (3,100 shares). Th
intrinsic value of these stock options outstanding exercisable at December 31, 2014 was approiyr,200.

The fair value of each stock option grangeéstimated on the date of grant using the BBcheles option-pricing model with the
following weighted-average assumptions:

Assumptions

Expected term (year: 3.C

Risk-free interest rat 0.94%
Expected dividend yiel 3.7¢%
Expected volatility 9.31%
Expected forfeiture rat 1.0(%

The expected term of the options grantedesents the period of time that the options apeeted to be outstanding and was based on
historical data. The risk-free rate was based erthhee-year U.S. Treasury rate correspondinge@xipected term of the options. We used

historical information to determine our expectethtitty and forfeiture rate. We recorded compeimaexpense of $8,000 during the year
ended December 31, 2014, respectively, relateldismption grant.

The following table summarizes informatetmout stock options outstanding at December 314:201

Options Outstanding and Exercisable

Weighted

Average Weighted

Remaining Average

Range of Number Contract Life Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstanding (in years) Price

$11.50 1,40( 2.44 $ 11.5(
$14.25 to $16.2 3,80( 1.0C $ 15.3¢
$23.16 11,85( 4.4% $ 23.1¢
$11.50 to $23.1 17,05( 3.51 $ 20.4¢

Effective January 31, 2015, all 17,050 tautding options were forfeited in accordance wlith plan.
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9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS (Continued)

Restricted Shares—A summary of our restricted shares as of DecerBbheP014 and the changes during the year endedfadlaws:

2014
Weighted
Average Grant
Number of Date Fair Value
Shares Per Share
Balance, March 11 (Acquisition Dat —
Granted 8,00C $ 21.42
Vested (66€) $ 22.5¢
Balance, December ¢ 7,332 $ 21.32

On March 11, 2014, we granted Common Stweards of 2,000 restricted shares of Common Stwelath of the independent member
the Board of Directors (6,000 in aggregate) whistai@s were effective upon the receipt of stockhodggproval of the Plan Amendment. The
shares of Common Stock vest based on a year ohconis service. Compensation expense related $e ttestricted shares of Common Stock
is being recognized over the vesting period. Wendked compensation expense of $95,000 for thegreded December 31, 2014 related to
these restricted shares of Common Stock.

We issued an aggregate of 2,000 restriedes of Common Stock to two of our executivecef§ on May 6, 2014. The restricted shares
of Common Stock vest based on two years of contiaservice with one-third of the shares of CommimtlSvesting immediately upon
issuance and one-third vesting at the end of ehtttemext two years. Compensation expense retatdtkbse restricted shares of Common
Stock is being recognized over the vesting peNgd.recognized compensation expense of $29,00biéoyear ended December 31, 2014
related to these restricted shares of Common Stock.

As of December 31, 2014, there was $48¢Q06tal unrecognized compensation expense retatsbares of Common Stock which will
recognized over the next twelve months. The eséchtdir value of restricted shares vested duriri2@as $15,000.

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ("EPS")

The computations of basic EPS are basemipweighted average shares outstanding. The bhasihted average common shares
outstanding was 97,173,000 for the year ended Deeefi, 2014. For the year ended December 31, 204 4liluted weighted average
common shares outstanding were increased by 3f@0@sto reflect the dilutive effect of stock opBoNot included in the computation of
diluted EPS were outstanding options to purchasg@sDlshares of Common Stock for the year endedleee31, 2014, because the options'
exercise prices were greater than the average matike of the shares.

For purposes of calculating basic EPSHentears ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, ap@t@tin®5,000,000 shares of preferred
stock issued in connection with the Merger wereiaesd to have been converted into 91,040,000 slod@smmon Stock. As of the
Acquisition Date, a subsidiary of CIM REIT had agpldo vote its 97.8% post-Merger ownership of Clbh@nercial in
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE ("EPS") (Continued)

favor of an increase in the number of authorize Clommercial shares of Common Stock to one bil{@®0,000,000 after giving effect to t
reverse stock split), thereby satisfying the caadifor the automatic conversion of these sharls.actual conversion of the shares of preft
stock to shares of Common Stock occurred on Aril2D14.

11. DIVIDENDS DECLARED

During the year ended December 31, 201K, Giban paid a distribution of $16,100,000 prioithe Acquisition Date ($0.1685 per share
of Common Stock, as converted).

On March 24, 2014, we declared a commonrestii@idend of $0.05 per share of Common Stockapdeferred dividend of $0.0403 per
share of preferred stock ($0.0285 per share of Com&tock, as converted) which were paid on MarcH2224.

On April 28, 2014, we declared a dividendHe aggregate amount of $1,964,000 to the pesfestockholders ($0.0302 per share of
preferred stock and $0.0215 per share of CommaotkSés converted) in connection with the conversibshares of preferred stock to shares
of Common Stock, which was paid on June 27, 2014.

On June 12, 2014, we declared a commorestigidend of $0.21875 per share of Common Stodkhvwvas paid on June 27, 2014.

On September 12, 2014, we declared a conghare dividend of $0.21875 per share of CommonkSidich was paid on September 29,
2014.

On December 9, 2014, we declared a comrareglividend of $0.21875 per share of Common Sidukh was paid on December 29,
2014.

On March 6, 2015, we declared a commonestismidend of $0.21875 per share of Common Starketpaid on March 27, 2015 to
stockholders of record on March 20, 2015.

In addition, dividends of $59,286,000 (&7& per share of Common Stock) were paid to the EM@mercial stockholders in connection
with the Merger, which includes the $27.50 per slefrCommon Stock special dividend plus the $0@brata portion of PMC Commercial's
regular quarterly cash dividend.
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12. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The estimated fair values of those finalioistruments which are not recorded at fair valnea recurring basis on our consolidated
balance sheets were as follows:

December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value Level

(in thousands)
Assets held for salt

Loans receivable subject to creditr $ 147,64 $ 154,25, $ — $ — 3
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject
secured borrowing 41,40 41,90: — — 3
Liabilities:

Secured borrowings—government
guaranteed loans, included in
liabilities associated with assets

held for sale 41,90: 41,90: — — 3
Junior subordinated not 24,90¢ 24,87 — — 3
Mortgages payabl 223,80t 231,80t 231,10¢ 231,25( 3
Unsecured credit facilitie 360,00( 360,00( 164,00( 164,00( 3

Management's estimation of the fair valtiew financial instruments is based on a LevehRiation in the fair value hierarchy establis
for disclosure of how a company values its finahicistruments. In general, quoted market pricemfextive markets for the identical financial
instrument (Level 1 inputs), if available, shoukl lsed to value a financial instrument. If quotedgs are not available for the identical
financial instrument, then a determination showddriade if Level 2 inputs are available. Level Ziiggnclude quoted prices for similar
financial instruments in active markets for ideatior similar financial instruments in markets the¢ not active (i.e., markets in which there
few transactions for the financial instruments, phiees are not current, price quotations vary sutimlly, or in which little information is
released publicly). There is limited reliable marikdéormation for our financial instruments and wdize other methodologies for valuation
purposes since there are no Level 1 or Level 2ehxt@tions available. Accordingly, Level 3 inpute aised to measure fair value.

In general, estimates of fair value mayedifrom the carrying amounts of the financial assad liabilities primarily as a result of the
effects of discounting future cash flows. Consitdéggudgment is required to interpret market daa develop estimates of fair value.
Accordingly, the estimates presented are madegaird in time and may not be indicative of the amsuve could realize in a current market
exchange.

Loans receivable subject to credit risk—Represents the government guaranteed portioraoklavhich were sold with the proceeds
received from the sale reflected as a liabilityoassted with assets held for sale on our consaiiablance sheet. There is no credit risk
associated with these loans since the SBA has giem payment of the principal. In order to deteethe estimated fair value of these loans
we use a present value technique for the antidpfateire cash flows taking into consideration thekl of credit risk using a prepayment rate of
15%.

SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to seea borrowings—Represents the government guaranteed portioraatlavhich were sold
with the proceeds received from the sale refleatedecured
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12. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

borrowings—government guaranteed loans (a liabdiggociated with assets held for sale on our cifadeltl balance sheet (Note 7)). There is
no credit risk associated with these loans sineeStBA has guaranteed payment of the principalrdieroto determine the estimated fair value
of our loans receivable, we use a present valldmtque for the anticipated future cash flows usiagain assumptions including a discount
based on current market interest rates takingantmunt the lack of credit risk and prepaymenteecdks.

Secured borrowings—government guaranteeddms—The fair value of secured borrowings—governmersrgateed loans
approximates current market interest rates. Indulde unamortized deferred cash premiums collemtetie sale of the government guarantee
portions of the related loans which are includeliabilities associated with assets held for sale.

Junior subordinated notes—The fair value of the junior subordinated notessimated based on current interest rates avaifabldebt
instruments with similar terms. Discounted caswfmalysis is generally used to estimate the falwer of our junior subordinated notes. The
rate used was 3.83% at December 31, 2014.

Unsecured credit facilities—The carrying amount is a reasonable estimatidaio¥alue as the interest rates on the unsecuesditc
facilities are variable and are at current markegreest rates.

Mortgage notes payable—The fair values of mortgage notes are estimateddan current interest rates available for detituments
with similar terms. The fair value of our mortgageyable is sensitive to fluctuations in interedes. Discounted cash flow analysis is
generally used to estimate the fair value of ourtgages payable, using rates ranging from 3.922018% and 4.85% to 5.00% at
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

13. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CIM Urban REIT Management, LP (the "Advi§oan affiliate of CIM REIT, provides asset managmt services to CIM Urban. For
these services, CIM Urban pays asset managementdofélee Advisor on a quarterly basis in arreah® fee is calculated as a percentage of tt
daily average gross fair value of our investmessilefined, as follows:

Daily Average Gross Fair

Value of CIM Urban's Investments Quarterly
From Greater of To and Including Fee Percentage
(in thousands)

$ — 3 500,00( 0.250%
500,00( 1,000,00t 0.237%

1,000,00! 1,500,00! 0.225%
1,500,00! 4,000,001 0.212%
4,000,001 20,000,00 0.100%

The Advisor earned asset management fe#83£23,000, $21,767,000 and $20,924,000 for ¢zesyended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively. At December 31, 2014 ari®28sset management fees of $5,867,000 and $8XLBespectively, were due to the
Advisor.
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13. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

CIM Management, Inc. and certain of itsliafies (collectively, the "CIM Management Entitigsall affiliates of CIM REIT, provide
property management, leasing, and developmentcasrtd CIM Urban. The CIM Management Entities ednm@perty management fees,
which are included in rental and other propertyratieg expenses, totaling $5,284,000, $4,828,0@0%4n1 71,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Qibvan also reimbursed the CIM Management Ent#ig869,000, $5,082,000 and
$2,726,000 during the years ended December 31, 20048 and 2012, respectively, for the cost of ib@sersonnel incurred on behalf of CIM
Urban, which is included in rental and other priyeperating expenses. The CIM Management Engttesed leasing commissions of
$1,904,000, $537,000 and $744,000 for the yearesdeBbeécember 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectiwbligh were capitalized to deferred
charges. In addition, the CIM Management Entitesed development management fees of $566,000,Ck8B4nd $973,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respsgtiveich were capitalized to investments in reghtes

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, fees payaideexpense reimbursements due to the CIM Managdemgities of $2,518,000 and
$1,445,000, respectively, are included in due kated parties. Also included in due to relatediparas of December 31, 2014 and 2013, was
$76,000 and $(64,000), respectively, due to (frdtm)CIM Management Entities and related parties.

On the Acquisition Date, pursuant to thenteof the Merger Agreement, CIM Commercial anditbsidiaries entered into the Master
Services Agreement (the "Master Services Agreemarithh CIM Service Provider, LLC (the "Manager") igsuant to which the Manager
provides or arranges for other service providegrtyide management and administration servic€td Commercial and its subsidiaries
following the Merger. Pursuant to the Master Sexsidgreement, CIM Commercial pays a base servieélie "Base Service Fee") to the
Manager equal to $1,000,000 per year (subject @nanal escalation by a specified inflation fatteginning on January 1, 2015), payable
quarterly in arrears. The Base Service Fee begaodmie on the Acquisition Date and was pro-ratesed on the number of days during the
first quarter in which the Master Services Agreetweas in effect. For the year ended December 314 2he Manager earned a Base Service
Fee of $806,000. In addition, pursuant to the tesfrthe Master Services Agreement, the Manager r@egive compensation for performing
certain services for CIM Commercial and its sulzgids that are not covered under the Base Sereieeduring the year ended December 31,
2014, such services performed by the Manager ieclatcounting, tax, reporting, internal audit, legampliance, risk management, IT,
human resources and corporate communications. Tr&ader's compensation is based on the salaridsesuadits of the employees of the
Manager and/or its affiliates who performed themwises (allocated based on the percentage ofgpaat on the affairs of CIM Commercial
and its subsidiaries). For the year ended DeceBihe2014, we expensed $1,193,000 for such senAdd3ecember 31, 2014, $725,000 was
due to the Manager.

As of January 1, 2015, all of our employeewed to CIM SBA Staffing, LLC, an affiliate of @I Group ("CIM SBA"), except for two of
our executives, who became jointly employed byng@IM SBA and their employment agreements witlcargtinue in full force and effect.
connection with this, on January 1, 2015, we edtér® a Staffing and Reimbursement Agreement @it SBA and our subsidiary, PMC
Commercial Lending, LLC, which provides that CIM SRiill provide personnel and resources to us aiad we will reimburse CIM SBA for
the costs and expenses of providing such persamuetesources.
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Loan Commitments—Commitments to extend credit are agreements thtem customer provided the terms establishelddrcontract
are met. Our outstanding loan commitments and apfgdo fund loans were $22,910,000 at Decembe2@14, the majority of which were
for prime-based loans to be originated by our SB&) Bubsidiary, the government guaranteed portiavhich is intended to be sold.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration daBisce some commitments are expected to expire witheing drawn upon, total
commitment amounts do not necessarily representedash requirements.

General—In connection with the ownership and operationeafl estate properties, we have certain obligationthe payment of tenant
improvement allowances and lease commissions inexdion with new leases and renewals. The Compadyattotal of $19,721,000 in future
obligations under leases to fund tenant improvemant other future construction obligations at Dawer 31, 2014.

Employment Agreements—We have employment agreements with two of our ekexofficers. Under certain circumstances, asrasl
within the agreements, the agreements providelfjosgverance compensation or change in control patsrio the executive officer in an
amount equal to 2.99 times the average of thahasé years annual compensation paid to the execatiicer and (2) death and disability
payments in an amount equal to two times and one, tiespectively, the annual salary paid to thewkee officer. In addition, to the extent
executive is employed by us on January 1, 2016sanl executive is not entitled to any disabilitgath or severance payments, the executive
would receive restricted share awards as a retebttaus which would vest immediately upon grantagaregate, the executive officers would
receive 105,000 share awards. We recorded compaemsaipense of $947,000 during the year ended DieeeB1, 2014 related to these share
awards. At December 31, 2014, there was $1,263)06flal unrecognized compensation expense reladinigese awards that will be
recognized during 2015.

Litigation —REIT Redux, L.P. et al v. PMC Commercial TrustaktOn October 9, 2013, a putative class actieahderivative lawsuit
was filed in the Dallas County Court at Law NonTJallas County, Texas against and purportedlyedrali of the PMC Commercial Trust
shareholders. The plaintiffs alleged, among othiergs, that the PMC Commercial Trust board breadisefitluciary duties by approving and
recommending the merger to the shareholders, gaitrmaximize value for the shareholders, engamifzad faith and self-dealing by
preferring transactions that further enriched thettmanagers at the expense of the shareholdémsoaspiring to deprive the shareholders of
their voting power and prerogatives. The complaligged that CIM REIT aided, abetted and inducedeibreaches of fiduciary duty.

PMC Commercial Trust and CIM REIT entenetbivarious agreements with the plaintiffs to eetitleir claims, which agreements were
effective as of January 28, 2014 and were apprbyetie court on April 4, 2014 (the "Settlement Agreent"). Under the terms of the
Settlement Agreement, the Manager entered intadarty plan (the "Trading Plan") designed to comityh Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 to provide for the purchasepfo 550,000 shares of CIM Commercial Common ISaagrices up to $25.00 per share.
The Trading Plan commenced on March 12, 2014 apatezkon August 10, 2014. Pursuant to the Tradiag,Rhe Manager acquired
approximately 254,000 shares of Common Stock. Aattiily, CIM Commercial agreed to be responsiblegimviding and administering
notice of the class action settlement to the membgethe
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14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

settlement class and pay for all reasonable costsried in providing such notice. As a result & settlement, CIM Commercial agreed to
payment of attorney's fees and expenses of plntbunsel of $772,000. In addition, pursuantterms of the Settlement Agreement, the
Manager purchased 100,000 shares of Common Stoc&dby REIT Redux and its other "reporting persatsi price of $25.00 per share in
August 2014.

At December 31, 2014, we recorded a ligbdf $4,475,000 at one of our multifamily investm® Prior to our acquisition of the propel
the former owners of the property enrolled the propin a property tax abatement program underi@ed?1a of the New York Real Prope!
Tax Law. At the time we acquired the property, pheperty was being used for corporate housing. Uikéscontinued from the time of
acquisition and terminated in March 2015. The NewkYState Attorney General's office recently defasd that the use of the property for
corporate housing was inconsistent with the taxeabant program. In cooperation with the New Yorat&tAttorney General, we agreed to
refund the tax abatements received during the gevimowned the property while it was being usecttoporate housing. This agreement doe:
not affect the ability of the property to receias ibatements in the future.

We are not currently involved in any othwaterial pending or threatened legal proceedingtonasur knowledge, is any material legal
proceeding currently threatened against us, ottar toutine litigation arising in the ordinary ceermf business. In the normal course of
business we are periodically party to certain legalons and proceedings involving matters thagereerally incidental to our business. While
the outcome of these legal actions and proceediagsot be predicted with certainty, in managemempi'sion, the resolution of these legal
proceedings and actions will not have a materigéesk effect on our consolidated financial positi@sults of operations or cash flows.

SBA Related—If the SBA establishes that a loss on an SBA guassd loan is attributable to significant technibaliciencies in the
manner in which the loan was originated, fundedasviced under the SBA 7(a) Program, the SBA ma¥ secovery of the principal loss
related to the deficiency from us. With respedhi® guaranteed portion of SBA loans that have Ilseth the SBA will first honor its guarantee
and then seek compensation from us in the evenatlwss is deemed to be attributable to techniefitiencies. Based on historical experiet
we do not expect that this contingency is probéblee asserted. However, if asserted, it could lavaterial adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi or cash flows.

Environmental Matters—In connection with the ownership and operationeaifl estate properties, we may be potentially éidbi costs
and damages related to environmental matters,dimguasbestos-containing materials. We have nat heéfied by any governmental
authority of any noncompliance, liability, or othdaim in connection with any of the propertiesg ave are not aware of any other
environmental condition with respect to any of pineperties that management believes will have @&n#htadverse effect on our consolidated
financial position, results of operations or casiws.

Rent Expense—The ground lease for a property provides for airemnual rent of $437,000, payable quarterly, witieases on June 1,
2015, and every five years thereafter based ogrimter of 15% or 50% of the increase in the Comsunice Index during a five-year
adjustment period. In addition, commencing on JLr2040 and June 1, 2065, the rent payable duniadpalance of the lease term shall be
increased by an amount equal to 10% of the rerdlgayduring the immediately

F-37




Table of Contents

CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements as of Bember 31, 2014 and 2013
and for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 aR@12 (Continued)

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

preceding lease year. The lease term is through31a2089. If the landlord decides to sell the égbroperty, we have the right of first
refusal.

Rent expense under this lease, which irdwgdraight line rent and amortization of acquivebw-market ground lease, was $1,752,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 an?l, 284pectively. We record rent expense on a $irdiite basis. Straight line rent liability
of $11,038,000 and $9,863,000 is included in oliadilities in the accompanying consolidated batasheets as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.

We lease office space in Dallas, Texas uadease which expires in May 2018. We recordetl égpense of $175,000, included in
discontinued operations, for the year ended DeceBihe2014.

Scheduled future noncancelable minimumdges/ments at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Years Ending December 31

(in thousands)

2015 $ 61€
2016 747
2017 74¢
2018 607
2019 507
Thereaftel 128,52¢

$ 13174

15. FUTURE MINIMUM LEASE RENTALS

Future minimum rental revenues under laTtgatoperating leases at December 31, 2014, exgudimant reimbursements of certain costs

are summarized as follows:

Governmental

Years Ending December 31 Tenants

Other

Tenants Total

(in thousands)

2015 $ 57,327 $ 102,76: $ 160,08!
2016 46,29 90,66: 136,95!
2017 41,09¢ 84,11 125,20t
2018 39,09: 64,58¢ 103,68(
2019 37,76( 53,39¢ 91,15¢
Thereafte! 117,36: 180,05. 297,41

$ 338,92 $ 575,570 $ 914,49t

16. CONCENTRATIONS

Tenant Revenue Concentrations-Rental revenues from the U.S. General ServicesiAidtration and other government agencies
(collectively, "Governmental Tenants"), which prinftyaoccupy properties located in Washington, D &&¢ounted for approximately 24.7%,
27.5% and 28.4% of our rental and other propetgime for the years ended December 31, 2014, 20d2@12, respectively. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, $7,168,000 and $5@96&.8spectively, was due from Governmental Tengets Note 15).
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16. CONCENTRATIONS (Continued)

Geographical Concentrations of Investments Real Estate—As of December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 we owned2and 19 office
properties, respectively, five multifamily propesi and three hotel properties (inclusive of orte neceivable at December 31, 2012), located
in four states and Washington, D.C.

Our revenues concentrations from propeftiethe years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ah?|, 20as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
California 60.4% 57.1% 58.(%
Washington, D.C. 24.7% 26.5 25.¢
Texas 7.7 8.1 7.€
North Caroling 5.1 6.1 6.5
New York 2.1 2.2 2.1

100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

Our real estate investments concentratiom fproperties as of December 31, 2014 and 203 sfollows:

December 31

2014 2013
California 52.2% 50.5%
Washington, D.C. 31.2 32.t
Texas 7.4 7.7
North Caroling 5. 5.€
New York 3.€ 3.7

17. INCOME TAXES

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT uh@eCode. To qualify as a REIT, we must meet abarof organizational and operational
requirements, including a requirement that we itiiste at least 90% of our taxable income to oucldiolders. As a REIT, we generally will
not be subject to corporate level Federal incometanet income that is currently distributed tocgholders.

We have wholly-owned TRS's which are sutf@federal and state income taxes. The incomergéed from the TRS's is taxed at norma
corporate rates. No current or deferred incometaxision was included in income from continuingeogtions.

The provision for income taxes resultsfiecive tax rates that differ from federal andtststatutory rates. A reconciliation of the
provision for income tax attributable to the TRiBsome from
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17. INCOME TAXES (Continued)
continuing operations computed at federal statutarys to the income tax provision reported infih@ncial statements is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Income/(loss) from continuing operations befo

income taxes for TRS $ 2,92t $ (1,08) $ (48))
Expected federal income tax provisi $ 99t (36€) (1639)
State income taxe 172 (62) (26)
Change in valuation allowan: (1,175 41€ 177
Other 8 11 12
Income tax provisiol $ — $ — $ —

The components of our net deferred taxtagsee as follows:

December 31
2014 2013
(In thousands)

Deferred tax asset

Net operating losse $ 1,89 $ 2,59¢
Secured borrowin—government guaranteed loe 1,07t —
Other 22t 327
Total gross deferred tax ass 3,19:¢ 2,92t
Valuation allowanct (1,80¢) (2,92%)
1,38¢ —

Deferred tax liabilities
Loans receivabl (681) —
Other (147) —
(82§) —
Deferred tax asset, n $ 557 % —

Reported as

Deferred tax asse $ — $ —
Assets held for sal 557 —
Deferred tax assets, r $ 557 % —

The net operating loss carryforwards atebatger 31, 2014 were generated by TRS's and aralleaio offset future taxable income of
these TRS's. The net operating loss carryforwaxgseefrom 2027 to 2033. The decrease in the valoallowance recorded in 2014 was
$1,175,000.

The periods subject to examination for fedieral and state income returns are 2009 thro0dB.2As of December 31, 2014, no reserves
for uncertain tax positions have been establisineldnse
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17. INCOME TAXES (Continued)
do not anticipate any material changes in the amolunnrecognized tax benefits recorded to occtiniwithe next 12 months.
18. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

In accordance with ASC Topic 28kgment Reportingour reportable segments consist of three typesmimercial real estate propert
namely, office properties, hotel properties (whittluded an investment in a note receivable sechyeal hotel property during the period from
January 1, 2013 to October 8, 2013, and for the geded December 31, 2012) and multifamily propsrtas well as a segment for our lending
operations, which is held for sale as of Decemiie£814. Management internally evaluates the opeygerformance and financial results of
the segments based on net operating income. Wédalsocertain general and administrative levelas, including public company
expenses, legal, accounting, and tax preparatetratie not considered separate operating segmahtra not allocated to the segments. The
reportable segments are accounted for on the sasig df accounting as described in Note 3.

We evaluate the performance of our segnzaged on net operating income for our real estgenent, defined as: rental and other
property income and tenant reimbursements lesspropnd related expenses, and excludes nonprapedine and expenses, interest
expense, depreciation and amortization, corposédad general and administrative expenses, angaction costs.
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18. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE (Continued)
The net operating income of our reportaglgments for the years ended December 31, 2013,£@12012, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Office properties

Revenue: $ 179,33¢ $ 175,14« $ 172,58:
Property expense
Operating 73,66¢ 67,90¢ 66,23(
General and administratiy 981 1,07¢ 1,122
Total property expense 74,647 68,98 67,35:
Segment net operating income—
office 104,69: 106,16( 105,23:
Hotel properties
Revenue: 56,09¢ 40,68( 41,08¢
Property expense
Operating 39,54 28,82¢ 25,95
General and administrati\ 15C 25C 184
Total property expenst 39,69« 29,07¢ 26,13¢
Segment net operating income—
hotel 16,40 11,60¢ 14,95:
Multifamily properties:
Revenue: 20,71¢ 19,98¢ 18,84
Property expense
Operating 13,66¢ 8,43: 7,407
General and administratiy 73¢ 114 344
Total property expenst 14,40: 8,54¢ 7,751
Segment net operating income—
multifamily 6,317 11,44 11,09:
Total segment net operating inco $ 127,41 $ 129,20¢ $ 131,27
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18. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE (Continued)
A reconciliation of segment net operatingame to net income for the years ended Decemhe&t(34, 2013 and 2012, is as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Total segment net operating inco $ 127,41 $ 129,20¢ $ 131,27
Interest (19,079 (17,929 (18,85¢€)
General and administrati (5,467) (1,12¢) (1,129)
Asset management fees and other fees t

related partie (25,227 (21,767 (20,929
Transaction cosl (1,567) (5,067) (632)
Depreciation and amortizatic (69,047 (68,644 (69,947)
Bargain purchase ga 4,91¢ — —
Income from continuing operatiol 11,96( 14,67¢ 19,797

Discontinued operatior
Income from operations of assets held fo

sale 12,63¢ — —
Net income from discontinued operatic 12,63¢ — —
Net income 24,59¢ 14,67¢ 19,79°
Net income attributable to noncontrolli

interests (220) (213) (20€)
Net income attributable to stockhold $ 2437¢ $ 14,46¢ $ 19,58¢

The condensed assets for each of the sagragiof December 31, 2014 and 2013, along withialagxpenditures and originations for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 doda@ws:

December 31
2014 2013
(in thousands)

Condensed asse

Office properties $ 1,534,611 $ 1,481,75
Hotel propertie: 174,67 174,26:
Multifamily properties 171,22t 173,98!
Lending assets held for s¢ 208,79¢ —
Non-segment asse 5,36¢ 4,472
Total asset $ 2,094,68 $ 1,834,447
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18. SEGMENT DISCLOSURE (Continued)

Year Ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Capital expenditures(1

Office properties $ 26,157 $ 20,52¢ $ 23,15
Hotel propertie: 1,481 2,01t 59¢
Multifamily properties 1,241 1,982 1,71¢
Total capital expenditure 28,87¢ 24,52( 25,47(
Originations from assets held for s 50,97 — —
Total capital expenditures and originatic $ 79,85( $ 24,52( $ 25,47(

(1) Represents additions and improvements to realecistagstments, excluding acquisitio
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19. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
The following is a summary of quarterlydirial information as of and for the years endeddb®er 31, 2014 and 2013.

Three months ended(1
March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31
(in thousands except per share date

2014(1)
Revenues from continuing operatic $ 62,597 $ 6518° $ 63,117 $ 65,25:
Bargain purchase ga 4,91¢ — — —
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 10,28¢ 4,17( 97t (3,469
Income from operations of assets held for

sale 93¢ 4,34« 3,30t 4,05¢
Net income 11,21° 8,561« 4,28( 587
Net income attributable to stockhold: 11,21¢ 8,39¢ 4,28t 47¢
Comprehensive incon 11,21¢ 8,39¢ 4,28t 47E

BASIC INCOME PER SHARE

Continuing operation $ 011 $ 00 $ 0.01 $ (0.09)
Discontinued operatior $ 001 $ 00t $ 0.0 $ 0.04
Net income $ 01z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04 $ —
DILUTED INCOME PER SHARE
Continuing operation $ 011 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.01 $ (0.09)
Discontinued operatior $ 001 $ 0.0t % 0.0 $ 0.04
Net income $ 01z $ 0.0¢ $ 0.04 $ —
Weighted average common shares
outstandin—basic 95,93¢ 97,57 97,58 97,58:
Weighted average common shares
outstandin—diluted 95,93¢ 97,57¢ 97,58:¢ 97,58:
2013
Revenues from continuing operatic $ 58,30¢ $ 59,83t $ 57,487 $ 60,18(
Income from continuing operatiol 5,822 4,80¢ 1,75¢ 2,29(
Net income 5,82 4,80¢ 1,75¢ 2,29(
Net income attributable to stockhold: 5,82¢ 4,69¢ 1,76 2,18(
Comprehensive incon 5,82¢ 4,69¢ 1,76t 2,18(
BASIC INCOME PER SHARE
Continuing operation $ 006 $ 0.0t $ 0.0z $ 0.0z
Net income $ 0.06 $ 0.0t $ 0.0z $ 0.0z
DILUTED INCOME PER SHARE
Continuing operation $ 0.0e $ 0.0t $ 0.0z $ 0.0z
Net income $ 006 $ 00t $ 0.0z $ 0.0z
Weighted average common shares
outstandin—basic 95,44( 95,44( 95,44( 95,44(
Weighted average common shares
outstandin—diluted 95,44( 95,44( 95,44( 95,44(

(1)  The prior quarter results have been reclassifiembtdorm to the current quarter presentation. Sipedy, results related
to properties sold or held for sale have been ssiflad into discontinued operatiot
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Schedule lll—Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciabin
December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Initial Cost Net Gross Amount at Which Carried
Improvements

Building (Write Offs) Building

Property Name and Since and Acc. YearBuilt/ Year of
City and State  Encumbrances Land Improvements Acquisition Land Improvements Total Deprec. Renovated Acquisition
Office
7083 Hollywooc

Boulevard  $ —$ 6,27¢$ 13,16:$ 3,14¢$ 6,27¢$ 16,30°$ 22,58!$% 4,271 1981 2005
Los Angeles,

CA
800 N Capitol

Street — — 109,94¢ (8,51%) — 101,43t 101,43t 23,03 1991 2005
Washington,

DC
370 L'Enfant

Promenad: 26,78: 33,93¢ 145,79t (6,450 33,93t 139,34t 173,28. 32,18 1987 2005
Washington,

DC —
260 Townsent —  7,57¢ 13,84: 724 7,57¢ 14,56 22,14: 5,651 1986 2006
San Franciscc

CA
830 1st Stree 46,000 18,09t 62,01° (1,39¢) 18,09t 60,61¢ 78,71 12,45( 2002 2006
Washington,

DC
BB&T Center —  7,70% 109,00t 5,627 7,70 114,63: 122,33! 28,13¢ 1977/1997 2007
Charlotte, NC
Civic Center — 1,35 5,49¢ 1467 1,35¢ 6,96 8,317  2,25¢ 1980/2004 2007
Santa Ana, C.
Penn Fielc 12,44  9,56¢ 18,59¢ 2,77¢  9,56¢ 21,367 30,93¢ 5,59¢ 1918/2001 2007
Austin, TX

19609 -

899 N Capitol 1973/1999 ¢

Streel — 34,64. 84,46¢ 9,76z 34,64: 94,22¢ 128,86¢ 18,94: 2011 2007
Washington,

DC

1969 -

999 N Capitol 1973/1999 ¢

Streel — 32,22 86,52¢ 9,86¢ 32,22: 96,39 128,61! 19,38! 2011 2007
Washington,

DC
901 N Capitol

Streel — 27,110 — — 27,110 — 27,11% — N/A 2007
Washington,

DC
1333 Broadwa) —  7,04¢ 41,57¢ 5,98t 7,04¢ 47,56 54,61: 7,572 1972/199% 2008
Oakland, CA
1901 Harrison

Streel — 3,83t 68,10¢ 5,23¢  3,83¢ 73,34% 77,18: 14,42¢ 1985 2008
Oakland, CA
2100 Franklin

Streel — 4,271 34,03: 12,69¢ 4,27 46,73: 51,00¢ 10,08¢ 2008 2008
Oakland, CA
2101 Webster

Streel — 4,752 109,81: 18,96 4,75 128,77° 133,52¢ 26,00¢ 1984 2008
Oakland, CA
2353 Webster

Street Parking

Garage — — 9,13¢ 51 — 9,18¢ 9,18¢  1,44¢ 1986 2008
Oakland, CA
1 Kaiser Plazi — 9,261 113,61 8,92¢ 9,261 122,54: 131,80 23,93! 1970/200¢ 2008
Oakland, CA
980 9th Stree —  3,38C 86,93¢ 4,55(  3,38( 91,48¢ 94,86¢ 15,58¢ 1992 2009
Sacramento,

CA
1010 8th Street

Parking

Garage &

Retail — 1,02 1,98( 9€ 1,02( 2,07¢ 3,09¢ 354 1992 2009
Sacramento,

CA
211 Main Stree 32,07( 14,36¢ 106,87! 1,47¢ 14,36« 108,35« 122,71¢ 20,80¢ 1973/199¢ 2009
San Francisct

CA
11600 Wilshire

Boulevard — 3,471 18,52 1,11¢ 3,47 19,63 23,11  2,45¢ 1955 2010
Los Angeles,

CA
11620 Wilshire

Boulevard 33,73« 7,672 51,99¢ 5,122 7,672 57,12 64,79:  6,90: 1976 2010
Los Angeles,

CA



4750 Wilshire
Boulevard — 16,63¢ 28,98¢ 5¢ 16,63¢ 29,04« 45,67: 61C 1984/201< 2014
Los Angeles,
CA
Lindblade 1930 &
Media Cente — 6,34z 11,56¢ —  6,34: 11,56¢ 17,91( 75 1957 /201C 2014
Los Angeles,
CA

Multifamily

3636 McKinney

Avenue 9,69¢  3,80¢ 11,077 357  3,80¢ 11,43¢ 15,24(  1,55¢ 2006 2010
Dallas, TX

3839 McKinney

Avenue 6,43:  1,67¢ 8,621 311 1,67¢ 8,932 10,61  1,21¢ 2006 2010
Dallas, TX

4649 Cole

Avenue 24,39¢ 17,48 16,35¢ 4,80¢ 17,48! 21,16: 38,64«  2,90i 1994 2010
Dallas, TX

Memorial Hills 30,29: 9,811 40,15( 50€ 9,811 40,65¢ 50,467  5,58¢ 2009 2010
Houston, TX

47 E 34th Stree — 30,61: 31,14¢ 31z 30,61: 31,457 62,06¢ 2,52% 2009 2011
New York,

NY

Hotel
Courtyard
Oakland —  4,38¢ 16,16¢ 1,17C  4,38¢ 17,33¢ 21,72:  3,51¢ 2002 2007
Oakland, CA
Sheraton Grand
Hotel — 3,49 107,44 (3,749  3,49: 103,69¢ 107,19! 18,17: 2001 2008
Sacramento,
CA
Sheraton Granc
Hotel
Parking &
Retail — 6,552 10,99¢ (41) 6,552 10,95¢ 17,507  1,92( 2001 2008
Sacramento,
CA
LAX Holiday
Inn — 15,66: 23,17 66C 15,66: 23,83 39,49F  1,28¢ 1973/201C 2008 /201
Los Angeles,
CA

$ 221,84 $354,03'$  1,597,13'$ 85,62 $354,03!$  1,682,75!$2,036,79 $320,85°
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The aggregate gross cost of property iredumbove for federal income tax purposes approxisnd2.1 billion as of December 31, 2014.
The following table reconciles the histaficost of total real estate held for investmeotfrJanuary 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Real Estate Asset:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,953,84/ $ 1,907,90. $ 1,895,12i
Additions:

Property acquisition 63,52¢ 38,83t —

Improvements 28,87¢ 24,52( 25,47(
Deductions: retiremen (9,467 (17,410 (12,695
Balance, end of peric $ 2,036,79- $ 1,953,84i $ 1,907,90:

The following table reconciles the accuntedadepreciation from January 1, 2012 to Decembe314:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance, beginning of peric $ (271,68) $ (231,08) $ (184,62
Additions: depreciatiol (58,63%) (58,019 (59,149
Deductions: retiremen 9,46 17,41( 12,69:
Balance, end of peric $ (320,85) $ (271,68) $ (231,08()
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Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
December 31, 2014
(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

Conventional Loans—States 2% or greate(1):

Principal
amount of
Size of Loans loan subject
Final Carrying to delinquent
Geographic Dispersion Number of Interest Maturity Amount of principal or
of Collateral Loans From To Rate(2) Date Mortgages "interest”
2.98%
to 1/21/15 -
Texas(3) 22 $ — $2,000 10.78% 8/16/31 $ 1518t $ —
3.23%
to 2/25/19 -
Virginia 8 $50C $3,90C 7.50% 7/22/33 13,26¢ —
3.23%
to 7/8/19 -
Arizona 7 $ 20C $3,10C 9.40%  5/2/33 9,84¢ —
3.11%
to 2/10/26 -
Michigan 6 $60C $2,90C 7.25% 5/10/33 7,244 —
3.73% 12/20/1€
to -
North Caroline 1C $ 30C $1,40C 9.85% 12/27/3% 7,11¢ —
3.23%
to 11/25/1¢
Ohio 5 $60C $1,80C 10.23% -4/21/2¢ 6,31( —
3.75%
to 1/20/15 -
Alabama 6 $20C $1,90C 9.50% 10/1/26 5,62( —
4.48%
to 2/2/18 -
Oregon 5 $10C $2,70C 9.90% 5/13/30 5,49( —
4.23%
to 3/15/15 -
Indiana 5 $30C $2,10C 8.25% 2/26/32 5,38 —
4.23%
to 6/22/20 -
Pennsylvanii 3 $60C $2,90C 10.25% 8/1/32 5,25¢ —
3.36%
to 11/1/25 -
Florida 4 $ 10C $1,80C 7.50% 2/5/33 4,04( —
3.73%
to 12/26/17
Georgia 6 $ 10C $1,20C 10.25% -12/1/2¢ 3,40¢ —
3.98%
to 3/22/22 -
California 4 $10C $1,40C 9.00% 12/13/2€ 3,17: —
4.23%
to 9/30/19 -
lowa 3 $30C $1,50C 6.95% 5/30/26 2,79¢ —
4.23%
to 6/27/16 -
Missouri 4 $20C $1,10C 8.25% 12/15/2F 2,57¢ —
2.73%
to 3/19/17 -
Other 1€ $ 10C $2,00C 9.78%  3/21/33 12,14 —
114 $ 108,86:(3)$ —

(1) There are two loans which are secured by seconsd tia the properties which are subordinated tdimidiens on the
properties.



(2)  Ourloans have both variable and fixed rates aradt. The carrying amount of mortgages with adffisate of interest we
$25,384,000. Certain loans at variable interestsrhtive interest rate floors which may be in effect

3 For Federal income tax purposes, the cosslmgiur mortgage loans on real estate was appaigign$131,266,000
(unaudited)
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SBA 7(a) Loans—States 2% or greate(l) :

Principal
Size of amount (_)f
Loans loans subject
Carrying to delinquent
Geographic Dispersion Number of Interest Rate Final Maturity Amount of principal or
of Collateral Loans From To (2) Date Mortgages(3) "interest”
5.25% to
Michigan 22 $ 1C $ 89C 6.00% 12/28/17- 4/2/40 $ 6,161 $ —
5.00% to
Ohio 22 $ 1C $ 71C 6.00% 10/16/20- 3/25/40 5,87: —
4.13% to
Texas(4) 28 $§ — $ 68C 6.00% 1/23/17- 10/31/3¢€ 3,32t —
Virginia 10 $ 15C $ 74C 6.00% 9/6/36- 11/12/39 3,05¢ —
5.25% to
Florida 10 $ 1C $ 65C 6.00% 6/19/19- 11/26/3¢ 2,55¢ —
Kentucky 6 $ 11C $ 53C 6.00% 4/9/35- 10/27/39 1,68¢ —
4.75% to
Indiana 9% — $ 37C 6.00% 11/19/19- 2/10/40 1,50¢ —
5.00% to
Wisconsin 7 $ 1C $ 38C 6.00% 4/23/20- 7/17/38 1,401 —
5.75% to
lllinois 5% 7C $ 38C 6.00% 9/17/35- 9/8/39 1,31¢ —
5.25% to
Missouri 6 $ — $ 46C 6.00% 4/16/18- 4/14/39 1,19¢ —
5.75% to
North Caroling 5 $ 10C $ 33C 6.00% 9/8/32- 5/6/38 1,19¢ —
5.75% to
Arizona 5% 3C $ 47C 6.00% 1/12/33- 3/31/39 94k —
4.92% to
lowa 4 $ 13C $ 50C 6.00% 12/22/35- 1/28/39 941 —
5.00% to
Alabama 4 $ 5C $ 49C 6.00% 7/27/25- 8/25/36 90: —
5.50% to
Tennesse 2 $ 33C $ 49C 6.00% 3/24/39- 4/14/39 811 —
5.13% to
Georgia 5% 6C $ 26C 6.00% 5/23/20- 9/8/39 76¢ —
4.75% to
Other(5) 32 8 — $ 57C 6.00% 6/15/16- 11/16/3¢ 4,29¢ —
Government guaranteed
portions(6) 3,61¢
SBA 7(a) loans, subject
secured borrowing(7) 38,73¢
182 $ 80,30%(8) $ —
1) Includes approximately $224,000 of loans not setbrereal estate. Also includes $242,000 of loaitls subordinate lien positions.
) Interest rates are variable at spreads over theeprate unless otherwise noted.
3) Excludes general reserves of $113,000.
4) Includes a loan with a face value of $48,000 afigeal interest rate of 6.00%. Also includes a ledth a face value of $68,000 and a fixed interast of 6.00%
5) Includes a loan with a face value of $466,000 amdlaation reserve of $26,000. Also includes a haith a face value of $334,000 and a fixed interata of
5.00%.
(6) Represents the government guaranteed portionss SB# 7(a) loans detailed above. As there is noafdoss to us related to these portions of therguateed
loans, the geographic information is not preseatei is not meaningful.
(@) Represents the guaranteed portion of loans which s@d with the proceeds received from the sdleated as secured borrowings.

8) For Federal income tax purposes, the cost basiardbans was approximately $39,445,000 (unaudited)
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Schedule IV—Mortgage Loans on Real Estate
December 31, 2014

(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at March 11, 2014( $ 207,14(
Additions during period
New mortgage loar 50,97:
Other—deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts 634
Othet—accretion of loan fees and discou 5,44:
Deductions during periot
Collections of principa (49,379
Foreclosure: (1,099
Cost of mortgages sold, r (24,527
Othe—bad debt expense, net of recove (142
Balance at December 31, 2C $ 189,05:

Q) In connection with the Merger, we acquired loarteieable which were recorded at fair val
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Exhibit 10.2

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST
2005 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (the “Amendment”) to the PMC Commercial Trust 2005 Equity Inceet®lan (the ‘Plan”) is
effective as of the date this Amendment is apprduethe shareholders of PMC Commercial Trust (t@®fmpany”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS , the Plan was originally adopted by the CompaBgard of Trust Managers (theBbard ") on March 5, 2005, and
approved by the shareholders of the Company on DUn2005 (unless otherwise defined herein, capitditerms defined in the Plan, when
used herein, shall have the respective meaningersiettherein);

WHEREAS , the Board now finds it desirable and in the litgtrest of the Company to amend the Plan, subjegpproval by the
shareholders of the Company, to (i) increase timebrau of Shares to be reserved and authorizeddoaise under the Plan by 1,000,000 St
to 1,500,000 Shares; and (i) increase the lintitatin the number of Restricted Shares that maydeg to all Independent Trust Managel
the aggregate during any fiscal year.

NOW THEREFORE , the Plan is hereby amended as follows:

1. Increase in Shares Issuable The first sentence of Section 3(a) of the Péaanmended as follows:

“The maximum number of Shares reserved and avail@blissuance under the Plan shall be 1,500,088eShsubject to
adjustment as provided in Section 3(b).”

2. Increase in Restricted Share Limitation. The final sentence of Section 6(a) of the Ptammended as follows:

“No more than 20,000 Restricted Shares may be egantall executive officers in the aggregate amanore than 500,000
Restricted Shares may be granted to all Indeperittest Managers in the aggregate during any figeat.”




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has caused this Amendment to be &by its duly authorized officer.

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST

By: /S/Jan F. Sal

Name: Jan. F. Sal
Title: President and Secrete




Exhibit 10.15
STAFFING AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
This Staffing and Reimbursement Agreement (the fedment), dated as of January 1, 2015, by and among CIM SB&isg, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company (* CIM SBA, PMC Commercial Lending, LLC, a Delaware limitedbiigy company, on behalf of itse
and its subsidiaries (collectively,* PMC Commettianding”), and CIM Commercial Trust Corporation, a Marydecorporation (* CMCT).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, CIM SBA desires to provide CMCT and PMOn@poercial Lending with personnel and resources toyaaut their
activities.

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:
AGREEMENT

1. Certain Definitions As used in this Agreement, the following termagdthe meanings set forth below:

“ Annual Expense Studyshall mean an annual analysis by a public acéogriirm of all expenses incurred by CIM SBA whiale
attributable to CMCT and PMC Commercial Lending anbject to reimbursement by CMCT and PMC CommeEt&ading, as the case may
be, under this Agreement.

“ GAAP " shall mean generally accepted accounting priesipl

2. Personnel and Resources to be Provided by CIM SBAM SBA will provide and make available to CMCiicaPMC Commercial
Lending and their respective affiliates personmel eesources as may be requested by CMCT or PMOnt&oaal Lending, as the case may
from time to time and agreed by CIM SBA. CIM SBAllwse commercially reasonable efforts to ensheg CMCT and PMC Commercial
Lending will have sufficient personnel and resoartecarry out their respective activities as caeldi on the date hereof, provided that CIM
SBA makes no representation or warranty about énsgmnel or resources that will be made availab@eMCT and PMC Commercial
Lending, including, without limitation, the abiks or performance of such personnel or whetheretb@urces are sufficient for their intended
purposes. CMCT and PMC Commercial Lending agraedach will (i) exercise independent judgmenteniding whether to accept resour
that will be made available by CIM SBA and (ii) upise, direct and control the work of CIM SBA’srpennel made available to it.
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3. Reimbursement of Expenses; Annual Expense StudiM SBA will allocate to each of CMCT and PMC i@mercial Lending in
accordance with GAAP the costs and expenses ofg@ingvpersonnel and resources to them, and ea€@ T and PMC Commercial Lendi
will reimburse CIM SBA for such allocable costs angbenses as provided in this Agreement, provibdat] with respect to personnel expen
the initial compensation level of the employee€t#l SBA shall be consistent with the past employtm@actices of CMCT and PMC
Commercial Lending, as the case may be. Such aastexpenses will include, without limitation,thee extent applicable and in each to the
extent allocable to service performed on beha®ICT and/or PMC Commercial Lending:

(a) actual employment expenses of CIM SBA's persorineluding, but not limited to, salaries, wages, nodlytaxes, and the
cost of employee benefits;

(b) rent, telephone equipment, utilities, office fuané and equipment and machinery (including computerthe extent
utilized), other office and administrative expenard any other overhead expenses of CIM SBA;

(c) out-of-pocket fees and expenses incurred by CIM 'SB&rsonnel in connection with the performancseices on behalf
of CMCT and PMC Commercial Lending; and

(d) costs, fees and expenses of third parties foraesviendered for CMCT and PMC Commercial Lendingtoyiders retaine
by CIM SBA's personnel.

Each of CMCT and PMC Commercial Lending agreegitmiburse CIM SBA for all costs and expenses puttstaatiis Agreement
monthly. CIM SBA shall prepare a written statemiemteasonable detail documenting the costs andresgseincurred by CIM SBA on behalf
of CMMT and PMC Commercial Lending during each nmpmind shall deliver such written statement to CMaditl PMC Commercial
Lending within 45 days after the end of each moitich of CMMT and PMC Commercial Lending shall pdlyamounts payable to CIM SBA
in cash within five (5) business days after thesijgicof the written statement without demand, dédaooffset or delay, The provisions of this
Section shall survive the expiration or earlientigration of this Agreement to the extent any expsrigave previously been incurred or are
incurred in connection with such expiration or taration.

On an annual basis, if CIM SBA, CMCT and PMC Conmerariending agree, or otherwise at the reque§&MECT upon a resolution
adopted by the independent members of the Boabdre€tors of CMCT, an Annual Expense Study willgeformed to review the annual
amount of expenses incurred by CIM SBA to deternttigeportion thereof that should be allocated to@Mand PMC Commercial Lending.
In the event that the amounts previously reimbuteediM SBA by CMCT or PMC Commercial Lending famasuch annual period differ
from the annual amount of reimbursable expensedlkstied by the Annual Expense Study, such aggregabunt will be adjusted or “trued
up” to cause the amount of expenses actually reiseolto be equal to the amount determined by theuAlnExpense Study. CMCT and PMC
Commercial Lending shall each bear fifty perce®) of the fees and expenses of the third pargimetl to perform such Annual Expense
Study.

From time to time, CMCT or PMC Commercial Lendiag,the case may be, may, in its sole discretitmeieadvance funds to CIM
SBA to allow it to pay for costs and expenses that




are eligible for reimbursement under this Agreentertb, on behalf of CIM SBA, pay costs or expensethird parties and/or employee
salaries or benefits of CIM SBA if such costs, enges, salaries and benefits are eligible for rensdment under this Agreement. CIM SBA
agrees that the advancement or payment by CMC™M& Eommercial Lending, as the case may be, undeStbction shall not affect the rig
of CMCT and PMC Commercial Lending under Sectiaf this Agreement with respect to the amounts s@aced or paid.

4. Records CIM SBA shall keep proper books of account agbrds relating to the expenses for which it souginibursement under
this Agreement, which books and records shall ladl@de (i) to inspection by CMCT, PMC Commerciariding or any government agency
having jurisdiction over CMCT, PMC Commercial Lengior any of their respective subsidiaries, axte® may be and (i) to be audited b
on behalf of CMCT upon resolution adopted by thdependent members of the Board of Directors of CMi@Each case upon reasonable
notice to CIM SBA during normal business hours.e Tbsts of any inspection or audit and out-of pobekeenses incurred by CIM SBA shall
be borne by CMCT or PMC Commercial Lending, asddse may be.

5. Term. The “initial term” of this Agreement shall berfa period from the date hereof through DecembeRB15, unless sooner
terminated pursuant to this Section. After th&ahterm, this Agreement shall automatically béeexled on an annual basis until terminated,
which may, during such period, be effected by eitiaty upon ninety (90) days’ prior written notilwethe other party.

In the event this Agreement is terminated purst@tttis Section, each of CMCT and PMC Commercialdieg shall pay CIM SBA
any and all amounts then due and payable to CIM 8Bder this Agreement in immediately available simdthin thirty (30) days of such
termination.

In the event this Agreement is terminated by CIMASBt CMCT’s or PMC Commercial Lending’s electid®iM SBA agrees that it
will use commercially reasonable efforts to hefmsition its employees who have been providingisesvo CMCT or PMC Commercial
Lending, as the case may be, under this Agreerodrgdome employees of CMCT or PMC Commercial Legdas the case may be.

6. Master Services AgreementThe parties hereto agree that to the extengtiseany inconsistency between the Master Services
Agreement, dated as of March 11, 2014 (as amemdedified or supplemented from time to time, the SM”"), by and among CIM Service
Provider, LLC, CMCT and the other parties theréte, MSA shall be deemed to have been amended $Agreement.

7. Binding Effect; Assignment This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of ahdll be binding on the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns. Other thawltoly/-owned subsidiary, no party may (i) assign its sgiereunder or (ii) delegate its du
under this Agreement, in each case other (y) thanduccessor organization that is the survivirdyein a merger or that acquires all or
substantially all of the assets of the applicataleypor (z) with the prior written consent of thimer parties to this Agreement.
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8. LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY

€) CIM SBA assumes no responsibilities under this Agrent other than to provide the personnel and ressuhat it has
agreed hereunder to provide to CMCT and PMC Comiaddrending, as the case may be (in each caseattjuest of CMCT and PMC
Commercial Lending, as the case may be). CMCTRME Commercial Lending agree that CIM SBA and ffdiaes and their members,
stockholders, directors, officers and employeekhaive no liability to CMCT or PMC Commercial Lendi under this Agreement except by
reason of acts or omissions constituting fraudsgegligence or willful misconduct.

(b) Each of CMCT and PMC Commercial Lending shall salggindemnify, reimburse (if necessary) and holMGBA, its
affiliates and their members, stockholders, dinestofficers, employees and agents harmless fradragainst any and all claims, losses,
damages, penalties, fines, forfeitures, liabilitésmands, charges, legal fees and expenses, jatiyar@ other costs and expenses of any
nature whatsoever in respect of or arising from@ajm, demand, defense or assertion based oroanded upon, or resulting from, acts or
omissions by CIM SBA pursuant to this Agreementlosy as the conduct against which the claim isenads not the result of fraud, gross
negligence or willful misconduct. Without limitati of the foregoing, it is the express intentiorhaf parties hereto that CIM SBA shall be
indemnified hereunder and held harmless from amaghagall of such claims, losses, damages, pesaftiees, forfeitures, liabilities, demands,
charges, legal fees and expenses, judgments aadautsts and expenses of any nature whatsoevetlgioe indirectly arising out of or
resulting from the sole or contributory negligenée€CIM SBA.

(c) CIM SBA shall indemnify, reimburse (if necessamladhold each of CMCT and PMC Commercial Lendingjrthespective
affiliates and their respective members stockhalddirectors, officers, employees and agents hasiitem and against any and all claims,
losses, damages, penalties, fines, forfeiturdsijitias, demands, charges, legal fees and expejuslgnents and other costs and expenses of
any nature whatsoever that each of CMCT and PMCr@arial Lending, their respective affiliates andithiespective members stockholders,
directors, officers, employees and agents may isaffencur, or which may be asserted against artherh, in respect of or arising from any
claim, demand, defense or assertion based on andeal upon, or resulting from, any acts or omissiminCIM SBA constituting fraud, gross
negligence or willful misconduct under this Agreeme

9. No Agency or Partnership The parties hereto agree that this Agreemeilt sbiacreate a partnership or joint venture amang of
the parties hereto.

10. Notices. No notices or any other communication shall ®ended given unless sent in the manner as spetiftts Section. All
notices and other communication hereunder willrberiting and will be deemed given (a) seventy-{wa) hours after dispatch if mailed by
registered or certified mail, (b) on dispatch #rsmitted by telex, telegraph, telecopy or otheamseof facsimile, or (c) on receipt if delivered
by any other means (including, without limitatiday, air courier) in any case to the parties at tilefing address (or at such other address
party as will be specified by like notice):

0] If to CIM SBA Staffing:

% The CIM Groug
4700 Wilshire Blvd.




Los Angeles, California 9001
Attention: David Thompso

Fax No.: (323) 44-8711

E-mail: dthompson@cimgroup.co

Copy to:

17950 Preston Road, Suite €
Dallas, Texas 7525
Attention: Jan Sal

Fax No.: (972) 34-3265
E-mail: J.Salit@pmctrust.co

(i) If to CMCT:

% The CIM Groug

4700 Wilshire Blvd.

Los Angeles, California 9001
Attention: David Thompso

Fax No.: (323) 44-8711

E-mail: dthompson@cimgroup.co

(iii) PMC Commercial Lending
17950 Preston Road, Suite €
Dallas, Texas 7525
Attention: Chief Financial Office
Fax No.: (972) 34-3265
E-mail: B.Berlin@pmctrust.cor

Any party may at any time give notice in writingttee other party of the change of its address fiopgses of this provision.

11. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement oe tlipplication thereof with respect to any partgicsumstance shall, to
any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, then #mainder of this Agreement, or the applicationhatt term or provision to parties or
circumstances other than those as to which itlid ingalid or unenforceable, shall not be affedtieereby, and each term and provision of this
Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to tHegtiextent permitted by law.

12. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and condtim@ccordance with the laws of the state of Dalaw

13. Amendments; CounterpartsThis Agreement shall not be amended, changedified, terminated or discharged in whole or intpar
except by an instrument in writing signed by baginties hereto or their respective successors @resor otherwise as provided herein. This
Agreement may be executed in one or more countstpach of which shall be deemed an original aiuif which shall constitute,
collectively, one and the same agreement. Delioéry




an executed counterpart signature page of thisefgeat by facsimile or electronic transmission shalkffective as delivery of a manually
executed counterpart hereof.

14, Headings The section headings herein have been insestazbfivenience of reference only and shall notdistued to affect the
meaning, construction or effect of this Agreement.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executedAlgieement effective as of the date first abovetemit

Solely with respect to Section 6 of this Agreem

CIM Service Provider, LLC

By: /s/ Eric Rubenfel(

Name: Eric Rubenfel
Title: Vice President & Secreta

CIM SBA STAFFING, LLC

By: /s/ Eric Rubenfel(

Name: Eric Rubenfel
Title: Vice President & Secreta

CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION

By: /s/ David Thompso

Name: David Thompso
Title: Chief Financial Office

PMC COMMERCIAL LENDING, LLC (on behalf of itself ahits
subsidiaries

By: /s/Jan F. Sali

Name: Jan F. Sal
Title: President, CEO & Secreta




Exhibit 10.16
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

AGREEMENT, made as of the 20th day of May, 200%ween CIM Urban Partners, L.P., a Delaware limpadnership (the
“Partnership”), and CIM Urban REIT Management, JrecCalifornia corporation (the “Adviser”Capitalized terms used but not defined he
shall have the meanings assigned to them in thed?ahip Agreement (as defined below).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Partnership desires to retain the gehio render investment advisory services to grnBrship, and the Adviser is
willing to render such services; and

WHEREAS, the Adviser is ready and willing to actimgestment adviser to the Partnership, subjeantbin accordance with the
provisions hereinafter set forth;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the gsuttereto agree as follows:
1. Appointment of Adviser

The Partnership hereby appoints the Adviser taadhvestment adviser to the Partnership for thegend on the terms set forth in
this Agreement. The Adviser accepts such appointrmed agrees to render the services herein gbtffarthe compensation herein provided.

The Adviser agrees to notify the Partnership of eéimynge in the ownership of the Adviser within asenable time after such change.
2. Duties of Adviser

€) Subject to the supervision of the &ahPartner of the Partnership, the Adviser ghalhage the Partnershipghvestments i
real estate and other assets, including debt,yegaoi equityrelated interests in real estate, securities amgstments (including cash), and sl
have the power and authority to determine, and fuittdiscretion to place orders in respect of, pliechase, retention and disposition thereof
and to execute agreements relating thereto, inrdanoe with the Partnership’s investment objecipadicies and restrictions as stated in
Sections 3.01, 3.02, 3.03 and 3.05 of the Partipesreement.

(b) The Adviser shall perform its dutleereunder with the degree of diligence, prudencecane which a prudent person
exercises with respect to his or her own assets.




(c) The Adviser shall render to the GahEartner such periodic and special reports imsyjt reasonably request.

(d) As provided in Section 6.10 of thetRarship Agreement, the Principals are subjecettain time commitment obligations.
However, the investment management services ohtlviser to the Partnership under this Agreemennatdo be deemed exclusive and the
Adviser shall be free to render similar servicestteers.

(e) The Adviser shall perform all of iesponsibilities and obligations under the PartmniprAgreement, which responsibilities
and obligations the Adviser hereby acknowledges.

3. Delivery of Documents

The Partnership has delivered copies of each dbllmving documents to the Adviser and will pronypotify and deliver to it all
future amendments and supplements, if any:

0] Amended and Restated Agreement ofited Partnership of the Partnership dated as of 20a 2005 (such
Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partigrak presently in effect and as amended from toriene, being herein called
the “Partnership Agreement”); and

(i) Confidential Private Placement Memodum of the Partnership (such memorandum, asnihese effect and as
amended or supplemented from time to time, beimgihealled the “Private Placement Memorandum?).

4. Rendering Services

The Adviser shall authorize and permit any of @spective members, directors, officers and empkyd® may be elected or
appointed as a manager, director, officer or enmgBayf the General Partner of the Partnership teedarthe capacities in which they are
elected.

5. Expenses

During the term of this Agreement, the Adviser spa all costs and expenses relating to the génpeaation of its business,
including administrative expenses, employment egpsnoffice expenses, subject to Section 6.05(#jeoPartnership Agreement insurance of
the Adviser and its employees, rent, and all or@any of the Adviser’s travel expenses and legpkases that are not incurred in the course o
the business, and for the benefit, of the Partiiygrshll costs and expenses incurred by the Advisebehalf of the Partnership which are not
specifically assumed by the Adviser under this gaaph 5 shall be borne by the Partnership.
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6. Remuneration

€) Pursuant to Section 6.07(b) of therfeaship Agreement, the Adviser shall be entittedeceive from the Partnership as
compensation for the Adviser's management senaocesnnual management fee (the “Management Feegbtmyguarterly in arrears on the
tenth (10th) day (or, if such day is not a Busirieag, on the next succeeding Business Day) follgvtite close of each fiscal quarter of the
Partnership. Each quarterly installment of the Mpmaent Fee shall be an amount equal to (i) if Hily @dverage Adjusted Fair Value of the
Fund Investments during such quarter is less thagwoal to $500 million, 0.25% of such daily averagjusted Fair Value, (ii) if the daily
average Adjusted Fair Value of the Fund Investmeduatisg such quarter is greater than $500 milliahless than or equal to $1 billion, the
sum of $1.25 million plus 0.2375% of such daily ge Adjusted Fair Value in excess of $500 milligi), if the daily average Adjusted Fair
Value of the Fund Investments during such quastgréater than $1 billion but less than or equ&ilt® billion, the sum of $2.4375 million
plus 0.225% of such daily average Adjusted Faiugah excess of $1 billion, (iv) if the daily avgeAdjusted Fair Value of the Fund
Investments during such quarter is greater thah illion but less than or equal to $4.0 billiohetsum of $3.5625 million plus 0.2125% of
such daily average Adjusted Fair Value in exces&ldb billion and (v) if the daily average Adjustedir Value of the Fund Investments during
such quarter is greater than $4.0 billion, the s6i$8.875 million plus 0.100% of such daily averd@gBusted Fair Value in excess of $4.0
billion; provided, however, that if any Fund Inve&nt that is a Permitted Investment (but specifiaatcluding any property level reserves,
which the parties acknowledge and agree will naréated as Permitted Investments but will insteadreated as part of the Qualified
Investment to which they relate and will be inclddie the calculation of the Adjusted Fair Valuesath Qualified Investment in accordance
with clauses (x) and (y) of the definition of “Adjied Fair Value” in the Partnership Agreement)ieen held by the Partnership as a Permitte
Investment for six (6) months or more (determinadadirst-in-first-out basis) then the portion tbef on any day thereafter that exceeds one
percent (1%) of the aggregate Adjusted Fair Valual®f the Fund Investments on such day shakbk&uded from the calculation of the
Adjusted Fair Value on that day used to deterntieedaily average Adjusted Fair Value for purpodedauses (i) through (v) of this sentenc
Installments of the Management Fee for any periddss than a full three months shall be proratethe basis of the actual number of days ir
such period.

(b) Pending determination of the Fairuéabf a Fund Investment (or the Underlying Assdu¥ar the Fund’s Percentage with
respect to a Fund Investment) in accordance witti@e14.05(d) of the Partnership Agreement, thedgement Fee shall be calculated and
paid based on the Fair Value, Underlying Asset ¥and/or Fund’s Percentage of such Fund Investasedéetermined with reference to the
prior calendar year (or if such Fund Investment aeguired during such preceding year, as deternpoesbant to Section 14.05(a) of the
Partnership Agreement). Upon final determinatibthe Fair Value, Underlying Asset Value, Fund’sdemtage and Adjusted Fair Value of a
Fund Investment pursuant to Section 14.05 of thtnBeship Agreement, (i) such valuations shall pyeliad retroactively to the preceding
January 1, (ii) any payments to the Adviser madeessuch January 1 will be recalculated to reflect
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the Fair Value, Underlying Asset Value, FunéPercentage and Adjusted Fair Value as so detednamd (i) any underpayment to the Adv
shall be promptly paid by the Partnership to theigel and any overpayment to the Adviser shallioenptly returned by the Adviser to the
Partnership.

7. Liability and Indemnification of Adviser

The Adviser shall not be liable to the Partnersttip, General Partner, any manager or directoreeXaneral Partner, to the REIT ol
the Class A Members for (i) any act or omissiorfgrened or omitted by it, or for any costs, damagelabilities arising therefrom, in the
absence of fraud, gross negligence, willful misaaricr a breach of the terms of this AgreementhigyAdviser, (ii) any tax liability imposed
on the Partnership, any entity in which the Paghigrinvests, directly or indirectly, the GenerattRer, any manager or director of the Genere
Partner, the REIT or any Class A Member, or (ifiy dosses due to the negligence of any employaekels, or other agents of the Partnershir
(whether or not such persons are directly empldoysethe Adviser). In the event that the Adviserdmaes involved in any capacity in any
action, proceeding or investigation brought by gaiast any person (including any Class A Membegadnnection with any matter arising out
of or in connection with the Partnership’s businesaffairs (including a breach of the REIT LLC A&gment by any Class A Member), the
Partnership will periodically reimburse the Advider its legal and other expenses (including thet ob any investigation and preparation)
incurred in connection therewithrovidedthat the Adviser shall promptly repay to the Parthig the amount of any such reimbursed expense
paid to it if it shall ultimately be determined thiae Adviser is not entitled to be indemnifiedtbg Partnership in connection with such action,
proceeding or investigation as provided in the pkioa contained in the next succeeding sentencethd fullest extent permitted by law, the
Partnership also will indemnify the Adviser agaiasy losses, claims, damages or liabilities to whie Adviser may become subject in
connection with (i) any matter arising out of orcionnection with the Partnership’s business oiiraffaxcept to the extent that any such loss,
claim, damage or liability results from fraud, gsasegligence or willful misconduct of, or any vitiden of any Federal or state securities law or
any other intentional or criminal wrongdoing orradich of the terms of this Agreement by, the Advigg any tax liability imposed on the
Partnership, any entity in which the Partnershiygsts, directly or indirectly, the General Partragry manager or director of the General
Partner, the REIT or any Class A Member; and &iiiy actions or omissions of any brokers or othenggof the Partnership. If for any reason
(other than fraud, gross negligence or willful neisduct of, or a breach of the terms of this Agresiny, the Adviser) the foregoing
indemnification is unavailable to the Adviser, psifficient to hold it harmless, then the Partnigrsigrees to contribute to the amount paid or
payable by the Adviser as a result of such lossmgldamage or liability in such proportion aspp@priate to reflect not only the relative
benefits received by the Partnership on the ond had the Adviser on the other hand but also tlative fault of the Partnership and the
Adviser, as well as any relevant equitable consiil@ns. The Adviser shall be liable to the Paghgr for and shall, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, indemnify the




Partnership against any losses, claims, damadebiities to which the Partnership may becomejscibin connection with any matter arising
out of or in connection with the Partnership’s Imesis or affairs that results from the Adviser'siftagross negligence, willful misconduct or
breach of the terms of this Agreement. The reirsbuonent, indemnity and contribution obligationshaf Partnership under this paragraph shal
be in addition to any liability which the Partneigsimay otherwise have (including, without limitaticany liability under Section 6.05 of the
Partnership Agreement), shall extend upon the sam®es and conditions to the directors, stockholdgfficers, managing directors, partners,
managers, employees and controlling persons (if ahthe Adviser, and shall be binding upon andénto the benefit of any successors,
assigns, heirs and personal representatives éfateaership, the Adviser and any such persons.fdrlkgoing provisions shall survive any
termination of this Agreement.

8. Term and Termination

This Agreement shall become effective on the detedf and (except as provided in paragraph 7 hesbail remain in full force and
effect with respect to the Partnership until thetiaship is dissolved or the Partnership and thheiger otherwise mutually agregrovided,
however, that this Agreement shall automatically termingten the removal of the director of the REIT parstiuto Section 7.02 of the REIT
LLC Agreement.

9. Assigns

The Adviser may not assign its duties hereunddrawit the consent of the Advisory Committee, proglitieat “assignment” shall not
include any transfer or assignment by the Advisart entity that is (i) an Affiliate of the GeneRdrtner or owned by Employees, Immediate
Family Relatives of the Principals or Employeessts for the benefit of any such Persons or faatigritable foundations over which any such
Person has direction and (ii) controlled by then€lpals. The Partnership may not assign its dimgesunder without the written consent of the
Adviser.

10. Amendment

This Agreement may not be amended without the Gurafehe REIT (with the Consent of at least sisty-and two thirds percent
(66-2/3%) of the Class A Percentage Interestsefilass A Members (excluding for this purpose tles€A Percentage Interest of any
Affiliate of the General Partner)).
11. Independent Contractor Status

The Adviser shall for all purposes herein be deetodik an independent contractor and shall, uritseswise expressly provided

herein or authorized by the General Partner frone tio time, have no authority to act for or repnéslee Partnership in any way or otherwise
be deemed an agent of the Partnership. Nothing




contained herein shall be deemed to constitutpainties hereto members of any partnership, jointure, association, syndicate or other
entity. The parties further agree that any amopatd to the Adviser pursuant to this Agreementl sfomstitute payments for services
rendered.

12. Non-Exclusivity

Nothing in this Agreement shall limit or restribietright of any partner, officer or employee of &aviser to engage in any other
business or to devote his time and attention ihtpaany other business. Nothing in this Agreensdatll limit or restrict the right of the
Adviser to engage in any other business or to neselwices of any kind to any other corporatiormfiindividual or association.

13. Notices

Notices of any kind to be given to the Adviser sbalin writing and shall be duly given if mailedaelivered to the Adviser at
6922 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 900, Hollywood, Califoa 90028, Attention: Avraham Shemesh, or at satbbr address or to such other
individual as shall be specified by the Advisethte Partnership in accordance with this paragr&hNotices of any kind to be given to the
Partnership shall be in writing and shall be duleg if mailed or delivered to the Partnership 2% Hollywood Blvd., Suite 900, Hollywood,
California 90028, Attention: Avraham Shemesh,tasuch other address or to such other individuahadl be specified by the Partnership to
the Adviser in accordance with this paragraph 13.

14, Representations and Warranties of the Adviser
The Adviser represents and warrants to the Paltipetisat, as of the date hereof:

(a) The Adviser has been duly formed iandhlidly existing in good standing as a corpanatinder the laws of the State of
California with full power and authority to enteité and perform this Agreement and to conductlitsress as required pursuant to this
Agreement.

(b) This Agreement has been duly andiiyakxecuted and delivered by the Adviser and, m#&sy the due and valid
authorization, execution and delivery on behalthaf Partnership, constitutes a valid and bindinrgement of the Adviser, enforceable against
it in accordance with its terms, except as mayirb#dd by (a) any bankruptcy, insolvency, reorgatian, moratorium or other similar laws
now or hereafter in effect relating to creditoights, (b) general equity principles, (c) the laifraudulent conveyance, (d) public policy and
(e) judicial imposition of any implied covenantgiod faith and fair dealing. The person signirig &greement on behalf of the Adviser has
been duly authorized by the Adviser to do so.

(c) The Adviser is not in default in therformance or observance of any obligation, agesgntovenant or condition contained
in any contract, indenture,




mortgage, loan agreement, note, lease or otheemgm@ or instrument to which it is a party or byiethit or any of its properties is bound
which, in the aggregate, would have a material emtveffect on the Adviser; the execution by the idelvof this Agreement and the
performance by the Adviser of its obligations unttés Agreement do not and will not result in anglation of the certificate of incorporation
of the Adviser, and do not and will not conflicttivior result in a breach of any of the terms awv®ions of, or constitute a default under, or
result in the creation or imposition of any liehacge or encumbrance upon any property or asséte @&dviser under, any indenture,
mortgage, loan agreement, note lease or otherragrdeor instrument to which the Adviser is a pantypy which any of its properties is bound
or any existing applicable law, rule, regulatiardgment, order or decree of any governmental ingniality or court, domestic or foreign,
having jurisdiction over the Adviser or any of fioperties. There is no litigation, investigatmmother proceeding pending or, to the
knowledge of the Adviser, threatened against theiged or any of its Affiliates which, if adverseatietermined, would materially adversely
affect the business or financial condition of thdviser or would impair the ability of the Adviser perform its obligations hereunder.

(d) The Adviser has obtained all authatians, consent, approvals, licenses and clearari@bkcourts, governmental agencies
and authorities, and any other Person, if any,ireddor the Adviser to enter into this Agreementido perform its obligations hereunder.

15. Headings

The headings of the Sections of this Agreementareonvenience of reference only and are not todmsidered in construing the
terms and provisions of this Agreement.

16. Governing Law

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED | N ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF DELAWARE.

17. Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in one or more eopatts, each of which shall be deemed to be gmatj but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instiime




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisisdAgreement to be duly executed as of the dateihabove written.

CIM URBAN PARTNERS, L.P

By: CIM Urban Partners GP, Inc., its general par

By: /s/ Avraham Sheme:

Name: Avraham Shemes
Title:  Treasurel

CIM URBAN REIT MANAGEMENT, INC.

By: /s/ Nicholas V. Morosof

Name: Nicholas V. Morosof
Title:  Secretary




Exhibit 10.17
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
OF

CIM URBAN PARTNERS, L.P.




1.01.

1.02.

2.01.

2.02.

2.03.

2.04.

2.05.

2.06.

3.01.

3.02.

3.03.

3.04.

3.05.

Table of Contents

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

Definitions

Rules of Constructio

Formation

Name

Mailing Address and Place of Busine
Registered Offict

Term

Withdrawal of Original Limited Partne

Business

Authorized Activities
Prohibited Activities
Title to Fund Propert

Investment Policie

ARTICLE II

FORMATION

ARTICLE Il

PURPOSE AND BUSINESS

Page

15

15
15
15
16
16

16

16
17
19
20

20




4.01.

4.02.

4.03.

4.04.

4.05.

4.06.

4.07.

4.08.

4.09.

5.01.

5.02.

5.03.

6.01.

Table of Contents

(continued)

ARTICLE IV
THE FUND INTERESTS AND CAPITAL

General Partne
Limited Partner:
Capital Contribution:
Intentionally Omittec
Interest
Capital Accoun
Withdrawal of Capital Contributior
Restoration of Negative Capital Accou
Subsequent Closing

ARTICLE V

ALLOCATIONS OF PROFITS AND LOSSES AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO PARTNERS

Allocation of Profits and Loss¢
Distributions
Form of Distributions

ARTICLE VI

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

Managemen

Page

20
20
21
21
21
22
22
22

22

23
24

26

26




6.02.

6.03.

6.04.

6.05.

6.06.

6.07.

6.08.

6.09.

6.10.

6.11.

7.01.

7.02.

7.03.

7.04.

7.05.

7.06.

Table of Contents

(continued)

Authority
Limitations on the General Partr
Business with Affiliates
Liability for Acts and Omission
Expense!
Organizational Expenses and Investment Managemess
Breakup Fee
Director¢ Fees
Key Person:
Other Activities
ARTICLE VII

ASSIGNMENTS, WITHDRAWAL AND REMOVAL OF THE GENERAL PARTNER
Assignment or Withdrawal by the General Par
Voluntary Assignment or Withdrawal of the GeneraftRer; Acquisition of the General Parti
Bankruptcy of the General Partr
Removal of the General Partr
Obligations of a Prior General Partt
Successor General Parti

Page
27

28
29
31
34
35
36
36
36

37

37
37
37
39
39

40




8.01.

8.02.

8.03.

8.04.

8.05.

9.01.

9.02.

9.03.

9.04.

10.01.

10.02.

Table of Contents

(continued)

ARTICLE VIl
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE REIT
Management of the Fur
Limitation on Liability
Power of Attorney
Waiver of Action for Partitior
Confidentiality
ARTICLE IX
VOLUNTARY TRANSFER OF THE REIT 'S INTEREST
Transfers
Substitute Limited Partne
Involuntary Withdrawal by the REI
Partial Redemption of the RE's Interes
ARTICLE X
DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION; CONTINUATION
Dissolution

Liquidation

Page

40
41
41
42

42

44
44
44

45

45

45




12.01.

12.02.

12.03.

12.04.

13.01.

13.02.

13.03.

14.01.

14.02.

14.03.

14.04.

Table of Contents

(continued)

ARTICLE XI
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE GENERAL PARTN ER
ARTICLE XII
ACCOUNTING AND REPORTS
Books and Recorc
Tax Matters Partne
Reports to Partne
Safekeeping of Func
ARTICLE Xl
AMENDMENTS AND MEETINGS
Amendment Procedu
Exceptions
Meetings and Votin
ARTICLE XIV
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Selection of the Advisory Committe
Meetings of and Action by the Advisory Commit!
Annual Meeting of Advisory Committe

Functions of the Advisory Committe

Page

47
48
49

50

50
51

52

52
53
54

54




14.05. Valuations

15.01. Operating Compan

16.01. Applicable Law

16.02. Binding Agreement; Severabili
16.03. Entire Agreemen

16.04. Record of Limited Partne|
16.05. No Bill for Partnership Accountin
16.06. Counterpart:

16.07. No Third Party Right:

16.08. Services to the Fur

16.09. Notices

SCHEDULE A

SCHEDULE B

BROKERAGE FEES

SCHEDULE C INITIAL INVESTMENTS

Table of Contents

(continued)

ARTICLE XV

CERTAIN ERISA MATTERS

ARTICLE XVI

MISCELLANEOUS

PARTNERS AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

MAXIMUM PROPERTY MANAGEMENT, DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENTAND LEASING

Vi

Page
56

58

58
58
59
59
58
58
59
59
60

A-1

B-1




Table of Contents

(continued)

Page
SCHEDULE D CALCULATION OF INCENTIVE DISTRIBUTION D-1
EXHIBIT A FORM OF INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT Exh. A-1
EXHIBIT B FORM OF GP ACQUISITION AGREEMEN Exh. B-1

Vii

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
AGREEMENT OF LIMITED PARTNERSHIP OF

CIM URBAN PARTNERS, L.P.

THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT OF LIMIED PARTNERSHIP is made as of the Xay of
December, 2005 by and among CIM Urban Partnerdr@R,a California corporation, as the Generaliarand CIM Urban REIT, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, as the LimitBartner. Each capitalized term utilized hereirl$teve the meaning ascribed to such term
in Article | hereof.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the General Partner and Avraham Shemeshgaoriginal limited partner (the “ Original Lited Partnet),
formed this limited partnership pursuant to an A&gnent of Limited Partnership dated as of FebruaB085 (the “ Original Agreemefit and
a Certificate of Limited Partnership in respectréteé was filed in the Office of the Secretary chtetof Delaware on February 4, 2005 (the “
Certificate of Limited Partnershij);

WHEREAS, the Partners amended and restated the tmthprovisions of the Original Agreement pursuarthe Amended
and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership @fhnd dated as of May 20, 2005 (the “First Ameraledl Restated Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Partners desire to amend and res$tateetms and provisions of the First Amended arstdRed Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual cws herein contained, the parties hereto, intgnii be legally
bound hereby, agree to amend and restate theAftshded and Restated Agreement in its entiretplémis:

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

1.01. Definitions The following terms have the definitions heréi@aindicated whenever used in this Agreement with
initial capital letters:

“AAA” shall have the meaning set forth in Sectiof.a5(d) hereof.

“Act” shall mean the Delaware Revised Uniform LiedtPartnership Act, as it may be amended from tiniene or any
successor statute.

“Adjustment Date” shall have the meaning specifire&ection 14.04(b) hereof.




“Adjusted Fair Value” shall mean (x) with respeatetach Fund Investment that is (I) a direct orriecti equity interest in one
or more real estate assets or (Il) a direct or@udiinterest in a mezzanine loan made to an ethidtiyholds directly or indirectly interests in one
or more real estate assets, the fair market vdltleeanterest represented by such Fund Investnoaran unleveraged basis (i.e., assuming the
such Fund Investment and its underlying real estsset(s) are unencumbered by any debt) (as deestim accordance with Section 14.05
hereof); (y) with respect to any Permitted Invesitméhe Cost of such Permitted Investment; andv({it) respect to any other Fund Investment
(that is not described in either clause (x) or séa(y) of this definition), the Fair Value of sugbnd Investment (as determined in accordance
with Section 14.05 hereof).

“Advisory Committee” shall have the meaning spexifin Section 14.01 hereof.

“Affiliate” shall mean when used with referenceaepecified Person at a specified time, (a) angdPethat, at such specified
time, directly or indirectly through one or moréermediaries controls or is controlled by or is @ndommon control with the specified Person
(b) any Person who, at such specified time, iarfipfficer or director of the specified Person(idran Immediate Family Relative of, or a trust
created by or established primarily for the bengffithe specified Person, or (c) any Person whatuch specified time, directly or indirectly,
is the beneficial owner of a majority of the votiognership interests of the specified Person, whadmition shall, as applied to the General
Partner, specifically include the Investment Mamaaged the constituent members of the General Radnd any manager, member,
shareholder, officer or director of the Generaltiaror the Investment Manager. Notwithstandirggftiregoing, the REIT shall not be
considered an Affiliate of the General Partner.

“Aggregate Tax Liability” shall have the meaningesfied in Section 5.02(d) hereof.

“Agreement” shall mean this Second Amended andaRedtAgreement of Limited Partnership, as it maptmended from
time to time.

“Bankruptcy” shall mean for purposes of this Agrea the institution by a referenced Person oflantary case in
bankruptcy, or the voluntary taking advantage bbgfarenced Person of any bankruptcy or insolveaay br the entry of an order, judgment or
decree by a court of competent jurisdiction whiohtmues in effect and unstayed for sixty (60) dafysuch Person as bankrupt or insolven
the filing by such Person of any petition or anssexking for itself any reorganization, arrangemesinposition, readjustment, liquidation,
dissolution or similar relief under any presenfudure statute, law or regulation, or the filing $iych Person of any answer admitting (or the
failure by such Person to make a required resperndeading to) the material allegations of a pmtifiled against such Person in any such
proceeding or the seeking or consenting to or @asgeince in the judicial appointment of any trudiseal agent, receiver or liquidator of such
Person or of all or any substantial part of itspemies or, if within ninety (90) days after thexmmencement of an involuntary case or action
against such Person seeking any bankruptcy, rei@aiam, arrangement, composition,
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readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similalief under any present or future statute, lawegutation, the failure of such case or action to
have been dismissed or all orders in proceedirgetimder affecting the operations or the businesaah Person stayed, or if the stay of any
such order or proceeding thereafter shall be sd¢ agr, if within ninety (90) days after the judicappointment without the consent or
acquiescence of such Person of any trustee, figgalt, receiver or liquidator of such Person aallodér any substantial part of its properties or
the insolvency of such Person, such appointmeltstiahave been vacated, or the making by suchdPeof a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors or the admission in writing $iych Person that its assets are insufficient ydtpdiabilities as they come due.

“Benefit Plan Investor” shall have the meaning $featin 29 C.F.R. Section 2510.3-101.

“Business Day” shall mean any day on which bankatied in New York, New York and Los Angeles, Catifa are not
required or authorized to close.

“Capital Account” shall mean the account maintaibgdhe Fund for each Partner as provided in Seif6 of this
Agreement.

“Capital Commitment” shall mean, with respect tale®artner, the amount set forth on Schedule Athengposite its name,
as such schedule may be amended from time to timsiant to the terms hereof.

“Capital Contribution” shall mean, with respectgach Partner, the total amount of cash contrib(dedeemed contributed
pursuant to Section 4.03 hereof) by such Partnivad-und pursuant to the terms of this Agreemalatwithstanding the foregoing, any
amounts returned by a Partner pursuant to Sectd#{l® or contributed by a Partner pursuant toi8ed.02(g) or Section 5.02(h) shall not,
except for purposes of Section 4.06(a) hereofdmsidered a Capital Contribution.

“Cause” shall mean the commission by the GenendhBaof an action, or the omission by the GenBeatner to take an
action, if such Commission or omission constitwt@gul misconduct, fraud, willful disregard for éhGeneral Partnes’duties to the Fund or t
REIT, gross negligence (determined in the contégi® Standard of Care), or the conviction of then&al Partner or any Principal, who is
Affiliated with the General Partner, of a felonyasecurities law violation, or a material breatths Agreement by the General Partner that
has not been cured within ten (10) Business Dags abtice to the General Partner, with respeet toonetary breach, or thirty (30) days after
notice to the General Partner, with respect toramonetary breach and, in the case of a commigsiomission that constitutes a non-
monetary breach of this Agreement that cannot bed;uhat (i) results in a material detriment te Fund or the REIT (i.e., causing damages il
excess of $500,000) or (ii) is part of a courseafduct which is more than negligibly injurioustte Fund or the REIT; providechowever,
that in the event that a non-monetary breach camasbnably be cured within thirty (30) days desflie General Partner’s diligent efforts to
do so, the cure period for such breach will be roeel for up to an additional ninety (90) days, dnly for so long as the General Partner’s
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efforts to cure such breach remain diligent andinaous. Notwithstanding the fact that a commissio omission that constitutes a material
breach of this Agreement that cannot be cured, moagonstitute Cause hereunder, such determinstiath have no effect on any liability
which the General Partner may have with respestith act or omission pursuant to Section 6.05.

“Certificate of Limited Partnership” shall have timeeaning specified in the Recitals hereof.

“Class A Capital ContributionsShall mean the total amount of cash contributethbyClass A Members to the REIT purst
to the terms of the REIT LLC Agreement. Notwithtang the foregoing, any amounts contributed byas€A Member pursuant to the last
paragraph of Section 5.01 of the REIT LLC Agreetwreturned by a Class A Member pursuant to 8e@i02(b) of the REIT LLC
Agreement shall not be included in the Class A @hgiontributions.

“Class A Member” shall mean any member of the Rt holds Class A Membership Units.

“Class A Membership Unit” shall mean a Class A Memnship Unit (as defined in the REIT LLC Agreemenitthe REIT.

“Class A Percentage Interest” shall have the mepsirecified in the REIT LLC Agreement.

“Closing” shall mean the First Closing or a SubsatdClosing, as the case may be.

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 188Gmended, and any successor statutory progision

“Consent’shall mean either the written consent of a Persothe affirmative vote of such Person at a meetinly called an
held pursuant to this Agreement, as the case may loe the act or thing for which the Consentiicgted, or the act of granting such Cons:
as the context may require. Reference to the Qumde stated percentage of the Class A Percemtdgiests of the Class A Members means
the Consent of a number of the Class A Membershaot in default under the REIT LLC Agreement whosmbined Class A Percentage

Interests represent at least such stated perceotalge total Class A Percentage Interests of tas<CA Members not then in default under the
REIT LLC Agreement.

“Cost” shall mean the overall cost of a Fund Inkesstt, which shall include, without limitation, tgeoss purchase price
thereof (including any purchase money debt, detitragd, or debt taken subject to) and all costseapdnses (including legal fees, transfer
taxes, title insurance premiums and brokerage casioris) incurred in the acquisition thereof.
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“Depreciation” shall mean, for each Fiscal Yearaamunt equal to the U.S. federal income tax dégtien, amortization or
other cost recovery deduction allowable with respe@@n asset for such year, except that if thes&Asset Value of an asset differs from its
adjusted basis for U.S. federal income tax purpaséise beginning of such year or other period,Beiption shall be an amount which bears
the same ratio to such beginning Gross Asset Vadube U.S. federal income tax depreciation, aaatitin or other cost recovery deduction
for such year bears to such beginning adjustetydais; provided however, that if the U.S. federal income tax depreciatemortization or
other cost recovery deductions for such year ig,Z2epreciation shall be determined with referetiocguch beginning Gross Asset Value usinc
any reasonable method selected by the GeneraldPartn

“Derivatives” shall mean a financial instrumentoguct or index which is not a direct investment, ingtead derives its
economic characteristics from the economic charistites (or changes in the value) of one or moredior derivative financial instruments,
products or indexes. By way of example, Derivaivelude interest rate, currency or exchangehatiges as well as total return swaps.

“Directors’ Fees” shall have the meaning specifire&ection 6.09 hereof.

“Disposition Period” means the period commencindgtanearlier of (x) the tenth anniversary of thedfiClosing Date and
(y) the effective date of the conversion of theeiast of the General Partner to that of a Spediteéd Partner pursuant to Section 7.03(b) or
Section 7.04(b) hereof (or such earlier date assdeeral Partner may elect in its sole discretiprjyided that a Public Transaction has not
occurred prior to such tenth anniversary or sucheszalate elected by the General Partner, andngnain the date on which the aggregate Cost
of the remaining Fund Investments ceases to equaiaeed 10% of the aggregate Capital CommitmedrttsecPartners.

“Distributable Proceeds” shall mean (x) until ttieramencement of the Disposition Period, the excé§$ the sum of Net
Disposition Profits plus Operating Income plus anyounts recontributed by the General Partner té-timel in repayment of Tax Distributions
plus any other amounts which the General Partrterménes, in its discretion, to distribute to trertRers over (ii) the sum of any amounts
determined by the General Partner, in its discnetio be necessary (a) to pay or establish reséovesr otherwise accrue for, Fund Expenses,
amounts payable in respect of Indebtedness ofuhd Bnd its subsidiaries and/or any other liabsitof the Fund and its subsidiaries or (b) to
establish reserves on account of distributionsrieat be required for the REIT to satisfy the reguients to qualify as a “real estate investmer
trust” under the Code in future periods and (yjfrand after the commencement of the DispositioiBégmcluding during the Final
Liquidation Period), the excess of (i) the sumlb&mounts received by the Fund in cash (including amounts recontributed by the General
Partner to the Fund in repayment of Tax Distribugioplus all amounts released by the General Raiimigs discretion, from reserves
established in accordance with clause (x)(ii) ausk (y)(ii) of this definition, other than amoudetermined by the General Partner, in its
discretion, to be necessary for reinvestments baece, improve, preserve or protect interests setaglirectly or indirectly owned by the Fund
over (ii) any




amounts determined by the General Partner, irnstsetion to be necessary (a) to pay or estabéisarves for, or otherwise accrue for, Fund
Expenses, amounts payable in respect of Indebtedri¢se Fund and its subsidiaries and/or any dihkilities of the Fund and its subsidiaries
or (b) to establish reserves on account of distidms that may be required for the REIT to satitiy requirements to qualify as a “real estate
investment trust” under the Code in future periods.

“Employees” shall have the meaning specified inti®ac7.02(a) hereof.

“ERISA” shall mean the U.S. Employee Retiremenbime Security Act of 1974, as amended.

“Expert” shall mean an independent MAI firm or Miadividual with experience in appraising commercedl property
interests of a type similar to the asset(s) togaised or the asset for which the market ratsdovices is being determined, which Expert, in
either such case, shall be selected in accordaithe¢he procedures described in the appropriatéasecof this Agreement.

“Fair Value” shall mean (i) for any Fund Investmeitter than a Permitted Investment, the fair mavkéie thereof as
determined in accordance with Section 14.05 he(@pfor any Permitted Investment, the Cost oftsiRermitted Investment, and (iii) for any
other asset or the Class A Membership Units, terfarket value thereof as determined by the Gérfraener.

“Final Closing Date” shall mean June 30, 2006.

“Final Contribution Date” shall mean the first amsmisary of the Final Closing Date.

“Final Liquidation Period” shall mean any time afthe expiration of the Disposition Period.

“First Amended and Restated Agreement” shall haeatieaning specified in the Recitals hereof.

“First Closing” shall mean the first date that @grson’s subscription for Class A Membership Uisisccepted by the
director of the REIT.

“Fiscal Year” shall mean the taxable year of thadrwhich, except in the case of a short taxable, el be the calendar
year.

“Fund” shall mean the limited partnership formedsuant to the Original Agreement (as the same reagniiended and/or
restated from time to time) and the Certificaté imfited Partnership.




“Fund Expenses” shall mean the sum of (i) Orgaional Expenses (but only to the extent that thedrsrobligated to
reimburse the General Partner and its Affiliatesstech expenses) and (ii) Operating Expensesjrghénderstood that any expenses incurred
by the Fund will be classified as one of the foiegdypes of expenses.

“Fund Investment” shall mean any Investment heldhgyFund from time to time.
“Fund’s Percentage” shall have the meaning spetifieSection 14.05(b) hereof.

“General Partner” shall mean CIM Urban Partners I&€, or any other Person who becomes a succgeseral partner
pursuant to the terms hereof.

“GP Acquisition Agreement” shall mean the GP Acgios Agreement between the REIT and CIM Urban et GP, Inc.,
substantially in the form attached as Exhibit Bftessame may be amended in accordance with tims thereof.

“Gross Asset Value” shall mean, with respect to asset of the Fund, such asset’s adjusted basis $orfederal income tax
purposes, except that in the discretion of the GaiirRartner, the Gross Asset Value of each of thedfassets shall be adjusted to equal their
respective gross fair market value, as reasonaibrahined by the General Partner, immediately gddhe following events:

0] a Capital Contribution (other thademinimisCapital Contribution) to the Fund by a new or arigt
Partner as consideration for an Interest or areas®d Interest;

(i) the distribution by the Fund to art@r of more than a de minimésnount of the Fund property as
consideration for the redemption of an Interestt an

(iii) the liquidation of the Fund withilhé meaning of Regulations § 1 .704-1 (b)(2)(iiXigkluding, for this
purpose, the commencement of the Final Liquidaferiod).

The Gross Asset Value of each of the Fund ass&tishdited to any Partner shall be the gross faikataralue of such asset
reasonably determined by the General Partner teeafate of distribution.

At all times, Gross Asset Values shall be adjustedny Depreciation taken into account with respethe Fund’s assets for
purposes of computing Profits and Losses. GrosgtAgalues shall be further adjusted to reflectistjients to Capital Accounts pursuant to
Section 1.704-1 (b)(2)(iv)(m) of the Regulationgte extent not otherwise reflected in adjustmémiSross Asset Values. Any adjustment to
the Gross Asset Values of the Fund property skgllire an adjustment to the Partners’ Capital Antoas described in the definition of
“Capital Account.”




“Gross Contract PriceShall mean, with respect to any project, all ctsdevelop the project, including all hard costd aaft
costs (including payments to general contractarg,aiher payments to contractors and/or profestsaesained separately from general
contractors, and costs and fees for legal servimesred to develop the project). Gross ContraitePshall not include any land costs, building
acquisition costs or finance costs.

“Immediate Family Relative” shall mean an indivitlsassue (including by adoption), siblings, paseritrst cousins, aunts,
uncles, grandparents, current household partnerswament or former spouses.

“Incentive Distribution” shall have the meaning f&th in Schedule D attached hereto.

“Indebtedness” shall mean with respect to any Ref§oall indebtedness (whether secured or unsewf such Person for
borrowed money or for the deferred purchase priggaperty, goods or services, including reimbureatand all other obligations contingent
or otherwise of such Person with respect to suretyds, letters of credit and bankers’ acceptanvelesther or not matured, and hedges and
other derivative contracts and financial instrunse(t) all obligations of such Person evidencechbies, bonds, debentures, loan agreements
reimbursement agreements or similar instrumentdu@ing senior, mezzanine and junior borrowingsiclwimay provide the lender with a
participation in profits), (iii) all indebtednesgeated or arising under any conditional sale oewotitle retention agreement with respect to
property acquired by such Person (even thoughighésrand remedies of the seller or lender undeh sigreement in the event of default are
limited to repossession or sale of such propefiy) all capital lease obligations of such Pergepall indebtedness referred to in clause (i),
(i), or (iv) above secured by (or for which theltler of such Indebtedness has an existing riginticgent or otherwise, to be secured by) any
lien upon or in property (including accounts andtcact rights) owned by such Person, even though Berson has not assumed or become
liable for the payment of such Indebtedness, aijdvindebtedness of others guarantied by suakdPeor for which such Person has
otherwise assumed responsibility on, before orr &ffie date such Indebtedness is incurred.

“Indemnified Liabilities” shall have the meaningegjified in Section 6.05(a) hereof.

“Indemnified Parties” shall have the meaning spedifn Section 6.05(a) hereof.

“Initial Period” shall have the meaning specifi@ddection 5.01 hereof.

“Interest” shall mean the ownership interest obatifer in the Fund at any particular time, inclgdihe right of such Partner
to any and all benefits to which such Partner magittitied as provided in this Agreement and in&hg together with the obligations of such

Partner to comply with all the terms and provisiohhis Agreement and of the Act.
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“Investment” shall mean any investment, whethahaform of debt, equity or otherwise, in a corpior, partnership, trust,
limited liability company or other entity, or in amther asset or a group of assets, including Rerthinvestments.

“Investment Company Act” shall mean the U.S. Inwestt Company Act of 1940, as amended.

“Investment Management Agreement” shall mean thestment Management Agreement between the Funthand
Investment Manager, substantially in the form di¢atas Exhibit A.

“Investment Management Fee” shall have the measyegified in Section 6.07(b) hereof.

“Investment Manager” shall mean CIM Urban REIT Mgement, Inc. or such other entity affiliated witle tGeneral Partner
which is acting as Investment Manager pursuartiedrivestment Management Agreement entered inuput to Section 6.01(b) hereof.

“IRS” shall mean the U.S. Internal Revenue Senéciranch of the U.S. Treasury Department or angessor thereto.
“Liens” shall mean, collectively, any mortgagesdues, security interests, hypothecations, encumbsaor other liens.

“Limited Partner” shall mean the REIT and any Sitbi# Limited Partner(s) admitted to the Fund inadance with the
terms of this Agreement and any Special Limitedriar

“Liquidator” shall mean the General Partner, dfi)ithe General Partner'withdrawal or Bankruptcy caused the dissolutib
the Fund or (ii) the Fund is dissolved pursuar$éction 6.08 hereof, such other Person who mappeirted by the REIT ( providettiat no
such appointment shall be effective unless it ing@oted to by a majority of the Class A Percentatgeests of the Class A Members), who
shall be responsible for taking all action necessamppropriate to wind up the affairs and disttéthe assets of the Fund following its
dissolution.

“Majority-owned Subsidiary” shall mean an entityvithich the Fund owns, directly or indirectly, mahan fifty percent
(50%) of the equity interests.

“Marketable Securities” shall mean securities Hrattraded on a national securities exchange, mquatation system or
electronic trading system in the United Statestbemvise actively traded o\-the-counter in the United States and are not subje@stiction:



on transfer as a result of applicable contractigions, or the provisions of the Securities Acthe provisions of any other
applicable securities laws or regulations (othantrestrictions reasonably required by the undégvgrior financial advisors in connection with
a Public




Transaction and the volume and method-of-saleicdstis set forth, or comparable to those, in Rui#d promulgated under the Securities Act
or any successor thereto).

“Minimum Distribution” shall have the meaning spféil in Section 5.02(b) hereof.
“MSA” shall mean a metropolitan statistical areadafined by the United States Office of Managenagmt Budget.

“Net Disposition Profits” shall mean the excessrif, of (x) the proceeds received by the Fund filoendisposition or
refinancing of a Fund Investment other than a Pegechinvestment over (y) (i) the aggregate amonvested by the Fund in such Fund
Investment and (ii) all losses incurred by the Fupdn the disposition or refinancing of any Fundelstment other than a Permitted Investn
that have not previously reduced Net Dispositioofi. In the case of a partial disposition ofum# Investment, Net Disposition Profits shall
be calculated assuming that the portion of the Homdstment so disposed was a separate Fund Ineesfrom that retained and that the
amount invested by the Fund in such Fund Investiisaaltocated between the disposed portion of $uetd Investment and the retained
portion of such Fund Investment based on the weaibst basis of each portion of such Fund Investifas determined by the General Partnel
in its discretion).

“Operating Expenses” shall mean, except as otherspecifically provided in this Agreement, inclugli§ection 6.06 hereof,
all costs and expenses of maintaining the opemiiéthe Fund, the REIT and/or the Fund Investmelatermined, for this purpose, on a cash
basis, including (i) taxes, fees and other govemaleharges levied against the Fund Investmemtst-tind and/or the REIT, (ii) insurance
costs, litigation costs and indemnification obligas, (iii) administrative fees and expenses assediwith the distribution of notices and
reports to the REIT and the Class A Members, {@9s and costs for outside services, audits, cistedoutside counsel and accountants, (v)
costs incurred in connection with meetings of thes€ A Members and meetings of the Advisory Congaijtthe out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by Advisory Committee members in the perniance of their responsibilities in their capasités members of the Advisory Commit
that are reimbursable by the Fund pursuant to &edt.01 hereof, (vi) costs and expenses incurrelgveloping, negotiating, structuring,
acquiring, financing, monitoring, disposing of,atherwise dealing with, Fund Investments, includamg travel, legal and accounting exper
brokerage commissions and other fees and out-dégiecosts related thereto, (vii) Unconsummated Beats and (viii) the Investment
Management Fee, but specificaflycluding Organizational Expenses and any obligatwf the REIT under a promissory note deliveredhiey
REIT pursuant to Section 14.02(b) of the REIT LLGréement.

“Operating Income” shall mean all amounts receifpgdhe Fund in cash in respect of interest, diviligroperating cash flow,
fee income and from any other source other thahdge amounts described in clause (x) of the tiefinof “Net Disposition Profits” herein
and (ii) the proceeds received by the Fund frondibkposition of a Permitted Investment. For theidance of doubt, all cash receipts of the
Fund shall be classified as (x) Operating
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Income, (y) proceeds from the disposition, or r@ficing of a Fund Investment other than a Permitteestment or (z) proceeds from the
disposition of a Permitted Investment.

“Opportunity Fund” shall mean CIM Urban Real Estatend, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership.

“Organizational Expenses” shall mean out-of-poekgienses incurred by the General Partner or itiiskéfs in connection
with the organization and formation of the Fund #melREIT and the offering of the Class A Membaudbinits and the class B membership
units therein, including legal and accounting faed expenses, printing costs, filing fees andridresportation, meal and lodging expenses of
the personnel of the General Partner, excludingielver, all fees and costs due any Placement Agemtjded that the amount of
Organizational Expenses for which the Fund is @ltéd to reimburse the General Partner is subjdbittimitation set forth in Section 6.07(a)
hereof.

“Original Agreement” shall have the meaning specifin the Recitals hereof.

“Original Limited Partner” shall have the meanimgesified in the Recitals hereof.

“Partners” shall mean the General Partner and imitéd Partners, and “Partner” shall mean either ofthem individually.

“Permitted Investments” shall mean cash or caslvatpnts, investments in U.S. government obligajonsured obligations
which are rated not lower than AA by Standard & Poor have a comparable rating from a nationadlyognized rating agency, collateralized
bank time deposits, repurchase agreements, moneggetiands, commercial paper which is rated notdothan P-1, certificates of deposit
which are rated not lower than AA by Standard & Poor have a comparable rating from a nationadigognized rating agency and banker’s
acceptances eligible for purchase by the U.S. e¢&eserve.

“Permitted Transferee” shall have the meaning $jgecin Section 7.02 hereof.

“Person” shall mean any individual, partnershigpeoation, limited liability company, trust or othentity.

“Placement Agent” shall mean any placement agerential consultant or finder retained by the GahBartner in
connection with the sale and offering of the Claddembership Units.

“Plan Asset Regulations” shall mean the regulatipmenulgated under ERISA at 29 C.F.R. Section 2Z5101.
“Portfolio Nominal Hurdle Rate” shall have the maanspecified in Schedule D attached hereto.
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“Portfolio Nominal Internal Rate of Return” shalve the meaning specified in Schedule D attachestde

“Prime Rate"shall mean the rate of interest publicly annourfceih time to time by JPMorgan Chase & Co., New Y,ddkew
York, or its successor, as its “prime rate.”

“Principal” shall mean each of Shaul Kuba, RichRessler and Avraham Shemesh.

“Prior Investments” shall mean all investments imafified Investments made prior to the date offhist Amended and
Restated Agreement by the Principals or any Af8liaf the General Partner or the Principals, inclgdeal estate development projects that
may not have been completed as of the date ofitbteAMmended and Restated Agreement.

“Profits and Losses” shall mean, respectively,dach Fiscal Year or other period, the Fund’s incomess for such Fiscal
Year or other period, determined in accordance ®ie § 703(a) (for this purpose, all items of meo gain, loss, deduction or credit requirec
to be stated separately pursuant to Code § 703@)éll be included in the Fund’s income or loasljusted as follows:

(1) any income of the Fund that is exefrgon U.S. federal income tax and not otherwisetainto account in
computing Profits or Losses shall be taken intamant,

(2) in lieu of the depreciation, amortiaa and other cost recovery deductions takenaectmunt in computing the
Fund’s Profit or Loss, there shall be taken intccamt the amount of Depreciation for such FiscarYa other period;

3 any expenditures of the Fund desdribeCode § 705(a)(2)(B) (or treated as such uRdgulations § 1.704-1(b)(2)
(iv)(i)) and not otherwise taken into account imputing Profits or Losses shall be deducted froenRtind’s Profit or Loss;

4 in the event the Gross Asset Valuargf Fund asset is adjusted, the amount of suctstmagnt shall be taken into
account as gain or loss from the disposition ohdeend asset for purposes of computing Profitsasskes; and

(5) gain or loss resulting from any disjion of any Fund asset with respect to which gaitoss is recognized for U.
federal income tax purposes shall be computed feyaece to the Gross Asset Value of the propespatied of, notwithstanding the
fact that the adjusted tax basis of such Fund @#ets from its Gross Asset Value.

Profits and Losses shall be further determinedaafjgsted in accordance with the Regulations issuelér Section 704 of tt
Code. An allocation of Fund Profits or Losses taatner shall be treated as an allocation to Baectner of the same share of each item of
income, gain, loss and deduction that has beem talte account in computing such Profits or Losses.
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“Property Related Contract” shall mean any propernagement agreement, leasing brokerage agreemaevelopment
management agreement.

“Project Costs’shall mean (a) with respect to any Fund Investrttettis a Qualified Investment in an asset in whighFun:
owns, directly or indirectly, all of the equity erests, all costs expended by the Fund and/or ity subsidiaries in the acquisition and/or
redevelopment of such Fund Investment (including @apital Contributions and the principal amounany acquisition or construction
financing obtained by the Fund and/or any of itssstiaries and used to acquire and/or redevelop Buad Investment, but specifically
excluding construction period and other intereshtdervice, and any loan fees, commissions, poingsher financing costs (including legal
fees)) and (b) with respect to any other Fund Itnaest that is a Qualified Investment, all amountsested by the Fund in such Fund
Investment.

“Public Transaction” shall mean (i) an initial pidobffering (whether a primary offering, a secondaffering or both) of
membership units or other equity interests of tB¢TRoursuant to a registration statement undeSieurities Act or any similar law then in
effect pursuant to which the Class A Membershipt&¥Jnecome Marketable Securities or the Class A Magmbave the right to convert their
Class A Membership Units for Marketable Securitéthe REIT or (ii) a merger of the REIT or the Eunith and into, or other acquisition of
the REIT or the Fund by, a Person in exchangedshcMarketable Securities of such Person andéarrisies of such Person immediately and
without restriction convertible into Marketable 8dties of such Person.

“Qualified Investment” shall mean any (i) individuaal estate asset or real estate portfoliop{dytgage or other real estate
related loan or extension of credit, including naime debt instruments or (i) equity, debt orestinterests in, secured by or related to real
estate, including interests in real estate comgamigeal estate operating or service companiespolar assets or interests. Qualified
Investments may relate to real estate assets pfadlct types, including retail, industrial, ressidial, sighage, office and parking properties.

“Regulations” shall mean the regulations of the.I.®asury Department promulgated under the Code.

“REIT” shall mean CIM Urban REIT, LLC, a Delaware limitebility company, as such limited liability compamay from
time to time be constituted.

“REIT LLC Agreement” shall mean the limited lialtyficompany agreement of the REIT, as the same mayiended and/or
restated from time to time.

“Removal Notice” shall have the meaning specifie&ection 7.04(a) hereof.
“REOC” shall mean a “real estate operating compasysuch term is defined in the Plan Asset Regulati
“Review Notice” shall have the meaning set forti05(c) hereof.
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“Securities Act” shall mean the U.S. Securities 8£1933, as amended, and all rules, rulings agdlagions thereunder.
“Special Limited Partner” shall have the meaningfegh in Section 7.03(b) hereof.
“Standard of Care” shall have the meaning specifie8ection 6.01(c) hereof.

“Subsequent Closing” shall mean a closing with eespo the REIT which occurs after the First Clgsamd on or before the
Final Closing Date at which any existing Class AmMber increases its capital commitment with respette REIT, or any other Person’s
subscription for Class A Membership Units is acedty the director of the REIT other than in corioecwith a Public Transaction or
pursuant to Section 7.03 of the REIT LLC Agreement.

“Substitute Limited Partner” shall mean any Peradmitted to the Fund as a Limited Partner purst@a8ection 9.02 hereof.

“Targeted Capital Account” shall mean, with resgecany Partner, an amount equal to the distributh@t such Partner
would receive if at the end of the relevant yepaliiFund Investments were sold for cash equ#iéd Fair Values, (i) all liabilities of the
Fund were satisfied for cash according to themtgrand (iii) the net proceeds of such transactmsall other available cash were distributed
in full pursuant to the provisions of Section 5&2jereof.

“Tax Distribution” shall have the meaning specifiadsection 5.02(d) hereof.

“Tax Rate”shall mean, with respect to any item of incomenglaiss or deduction allocated to the General Bgrthe highes
combined marginal federal, state and local persioicaime tax rate for an individual resident in 8tate of California (as such rates were in
effect at the time such items were allocated to@bkaeral Partner and taking into account (i) thetudgbility of state and local income taxes,
(ii) the character of the items of income, gairsslor deduction at the time of allocation and the-deductibility of all or any portion of any
allocated loss or deduction and (iii) the allocatizy the Fund to the General Partner of tax craéditespect of the items of income, gain, los
deduction).

“Terminal Value” shall mean, (a) as of any date aiitth respect to any Fund Investment in an assetich the Fund owns,
directly or indirectly, all of the equity interesthe aggregate Adjusted Fair Value of such Funddtment as of such date and (b) as of any
and with respect to any other Fund Investmentatgregate Fair Value of such Fund Investment asicii date.

“TMP” shall have the meaning specified in Secti@x0R(a) hereof.

“Transfer” shall mean a sale, assignment, trar@fether disposition, or pledge, hypothecationtbeoencumbrance, of an
Interest, whether voluntary or involuntary.
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“Unconsummated Deal Costs” shall mean fees andrsgse(including travel expenses) paid to thirdipaih connection
with an unconsummated transaction.

“Underlying Asset Value” shall have the meaningafied in Section 14.05(b) hereof.
“Valuation Report” shall have the meaning speciiie&@ection 14.05(b) hereof.
“VYCOC” shall mean a “venture capital operating camy’ as such term is defined in the Plan Asset Reiguas.

1.02. Rules of ConstructionAll other defined terms used in this Agreemdralshave the respective meanings assignec
to them in the Sections in which they appear. digourposes of this Agreement, except as exprgsslyided or unless the context otherwise
requires, the words “including,” “includes,” “inale,” and other words of similar import shall be miee to be followed by the phrase “without
limitation.” Except as expressly provided, in amase where the General Partner is authorized airegtito take an action or give an approval
in its discretion or its judgment, it may do sdtmsole discretion or sole judgment; provided thatforegoing shall not negate (i) the General
Partner’s fiduciary duty to the Limited Partner(idy any obligation of the General Partner to acgood faith. For all purposes of this
Agreement, a “creditor of the Fund” shall includey&erson extending credit to the Fund and anyoReso is entitled to the benefit of a
guaranty, indemnity or other assurance of payment the Fund. All terms defined in this Agreemienthe singular shall have comparable
meanings when used in the plural, amzk versa unless otherwise specified herein. It is intehdhat the terms of this Agreement be const
in accordance with their fair meanings and notrgaany particular Person, including the Generaineéa All section headings in this
Agreement are for convenience of reference onlyaadot intended to qualify the meaning of anyisac

ARTICLE Il
FORMATION

2.01. Formation The Fund has been formed as a limited partnergier the laws of the State of Delaware. The
General Partner shall, and shall be authorizethke, all necessary action required by law to mairttee Fund as a limited partnership unde!
Act and in all other jurisdictions in which the Fumay elect to conduct business.

2.02. Name The name of the Fund is “CIM Urban Partners, I’ ®hich name may be changed by the General Partne
upon at least ten (10) Business Days’ notice tdRBEEl and the Class A Members.

2.03. Mailing Address and Place of Busine3$ie mailing address of the Fund shall be 692@ytvood Boulevard, Suite
900, Hollywood, California 90028, or such other g as the General Partner may determine. Theipel place of business of the Fund
shall be such place within the United States a$theeral Partner may determine. Upon at least ten
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(10) Business Days' notice to the REIT and the €Radembers, the General Partner may change tlaidocof the Fund’s principal office
and/or the Fund’s mailing address and may establish additional offices of the Fund as it may friomme to time determine.

2.04. Reqistered OfficeThe address of the registered office of the Harttle State of Delaware is c/o Corporation
Service Company, 2711 Centerville Road, Suite ¥0ilmington, DE 19808, and the registered agenstwice of process on the Fund in the
State of Delaware at such registered office iSdbeporation Service Company.

2.05. Term The Fund shall continue in full force and effrotn the date the Certificate of Limited Partnépshas filed
through the date of dissolution and terminatiothef Fund as provided in Article X hereof. At suithe as the Fund is terminated, a statemen
of cancellation shall be filed with the approprigtavernmental office of the State of Delaware,eagiired by law.

2.06. Withdrawal of Original Limited PartneiThe REIT was admitted to the Fund as a limitadrer thereof, effective
as of the date of the First Amended and Restatedefgent, and upon such admission, the OriginalteiniPartner a) received a return of his
original capital contribution, if any, (b) withdreas the Original Limited Partner of the Fund anjdh@s no further right, interest or obligatior
any kind whatsoever as a partner in the Fund bgoreaf having been the Original Limited Partner.

ARTICLE Il

PURPOSE AND BUSINESS

3.01. Business

(a) The primary purpose of the Fund, pidothe occurrence of a Public Transaction, isabguisition, management,
improvement, holding, maintenance, operation, tegdinancing, foreclosing upon, restructuringesalansfer and other disposition of and
otherwise dealing with Qualified Investments that lacated, or that are, directly or indirectlyygarised of assets or businesses that are lo
in North America. In this regard, the Fund mayagein open market purchases, privatedgotiated transactions or other means of pursa
Qualified Investment, and may acquire and hold @iadlinvestments directly or indirectly, throughbsidiaries, partnerships, joint ventures,
joint investment entities or otherwis

(b) The Fund may engage in any othewiiets permitted by law and related or incidentathiose referred to in this
Section 3.01, including making temporary investragnirsuant to Section 3.02(k) hereof.

(c) The Fund shall operate (and shalicstire its investment activities and operations) manner that will permit the
REIT to comply with all of the requirements neceggsa enable the REIT to qualify as a “real estatestment trust” for U.S. federal income
tax purposes.
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3.02. Authorized Activities In carrying out the purposes of this Agreembnt,subject to all other provisions of this
Agreement and applicable law, the Fund is and steafiermitted, empowered and authorized to engadeke and carry out any and all of the
following activities as the General Partner shatiedmine in its discretion:

€) to acquire, invest in, manage, imprdwld, maintain, operate, lease, finance, moggplgdge, hypothecate,
foreclose upon, restructure and otherwise deat iithh the Fund Investments and any real or pelgommgerty which may be necessary,
convenient or incidental to the accomplishmenthefpurposes of the Fund, whether directly or iraliyethrough subsidiaries or any other
entity or any interest therein or otherwise, andetb, transfer or otherwise dispose of the Funes$tments, including a transfer of all or any
portion of the Fund Investments to an existing@wly formed publicly traded company;

(b) to construct, operate, develop, naimtfinance, refinance, improve, own, sell, con\essign, mortgage, lease,
foreclose upon, take control of or realize upon @&} or personal property necessary, convenieimoatental to the accomplishment of the
purposes of the Fund;

(c) (i) to incur Indebtedness (whetherwsed or unsecured) including to finance or refagaone or more of the Fund
Investments, (ii) to secure any such evidencesdéitedness by Liens and (iii) to give guarantrdademnities of other Persons’ obligations,
including for the purpose of acquiring, disposirigrefinancing, operating and otherwise dealinghwite assets of the Fund, its subsidiaries or
investment vehicles;

(d) to enter into, perform and carry cantracts of any kind necessary or incidental éoadbcomplishment of the
purposes of the Fund, including contracts with lfsffes of the General Partner entered into in caanpk with the terms of this Agreement;

(e) to bring, sue, prosecute, defendleset compromise actions at law or in equity redhto the purposes of the Fund;

() to purchase, redeem, cancel or etfser retire or dispose of the Interest of any Rarpursuant to the express
provisions of this Agreement;

(9) to lease, sublease or otherwise gights of occupancy with respect to those Fun@é$tments in the form of real
properties and collect all rents, profits, expersmbursements and other income and to pay thenedogenses of the Fund, including expe
relating to such Fund Investments;

(h) to prepay in whole or in part, refice, recast, assume, increase, reduce, modifynéf@reclose, realize upon,
transfer and otherwise deal in or with any mortgiagas or other loans constituting or affecting ahthe Fund Investments, and in connectiot
therewith to execute any extensions, renewalsngssons or modifications of any mortgage, deedastt security agreement or other
document evidencing, securing, relating to, comstiy or affecting any of the Fund Investments;
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() to open, maintain and close banloaots and/or accounts with brokers and draw chaoBsother orders for the
payment of money;

)] to incur and pay fees, costs andeeges of any type or nature necessary, conveniémtidental to the
accomplishment of the purposes of the Fund, inalmdhose expenditures and fees more particuladgri®ed in Sections 6.06 and 6.07 her

(k) to make, hold and sell or otherwisgpdse of Permitted Investments;

()] to purchase and sell Derivativestfa purpose of managing, hedging or minimizingrtble to the Fund or its
subsidiaries associated with movements in inteetes, stock prices or other fluctuations in thieegor value of financial instruments or
markets affecting the Fund or Fund Investmentsyigeml, however, that, other than for the purposes describedinSbction 3.02(1), the
Fund shall not utilize Derivatives for the purpadespeculating or trading in the foregoing;

(m) to make debt, equity or hybrid investits, including the acquisition of Marketable Séws, in real estate
companies or real estate operating or service aoiep, whether public or private;

(n) either by itself or by cont

(0) ract with others, including corpocais, limited liability companies or partnershipsosh stockholders, members,
partners, officers or employees include partneenbers, officers or employees of the General Padnany Affiliate of the General Partner,
to maintain for the conduct of Fund affairs onemare offices and in connection therewith to renacguire office space, engage personnel,
whether part-time or full-time, and to do, or catsée done, such other acts as the General Pantedeem necessary or desirable in
connection with the maintenance and administratifathe affairs of the Fund;

(p) to register or qualify the Fund unday applicable U.S. federal or state or foreigmslaor to obtain exemptions
under such laws, if such registration, qualificatior exemption is deemed necessary or desirabileeb§general Partner;

(@) to form one or more subsidiary cogiimms, partnerships, real estate investment frlistised liability companies,
or other domestic entities for the purpose of mgkholding, financing or disposing of any Investrneninvestments (including with other
investors), and to register or qualify such corgiores, partnerships, real estate investment triistged liability companies, or other entities as
provided in clause (0) above, or to obtain thérgsttrading or quotation thereof on one or moreusigies exchanges, trading or quotation
systems;

n to engage attorneys, accountantssuitants, appraisers, and such other Persong &etheral Partner may deem
necessary or desirable; and
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(s) to engage in any kind of lawful aityi and perform and carry out contracts of anydkas the General Partner
deems necessary or advisable in connection withdhemplishment of the purposes of the Fund.

3.03. Prohibited Activities Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agneent, the Fund and the General Partner
shall not be empowered or authorized as follows:

(a) from and after the Final Closing Datecept with the approval of the Advisory Comnett invest more than the
lesser of (x) twenty-five percent (25%) of the aggate Capital Commitments of all Partners and §@)0#million of Capital Contributions in
any one asset or company; providdmwever, that the foregoing limitation shall not applyan investment consisting of a portfolio of, or a
company or other entity owning, multiple asset®éing understood that the foregoing limitationlishpply to each individual asset in any s
portfolio or entity);

(b) from and after the Final Closing Daecept with the approval of the Advisory Commatteo (i) invest more than
twenty-five percent (25%) of the aggregate Ca@tammitments of all Partners in any MSA with a p@ian of one million (1,000,000) or
less or in any recognized real estate submarkan &iSA with a population of more than one millidnQ00,000) or (ii) invest more than fifty
percent (50%) of the aggregate Capital Commitmeh#sl Partners in any MSA with a population of mdhan one million (1,000,000);

(c) except with the approval of the Advis Committee, to invest in the securities of aljplyptraded company, except
as part of a transaction or series of transacti@sggned for the purpose of acquiring control ef¢bmpany and/or its underlying assets;

(d) to take any actions in violation gpdicable laws;
(e) to enter into any transaction with/dfiliate in violation of Section 6.04;
() to take any actions, or make anyestments, that the General Partner reasonablybslis likely to cause the RE

not to qualify as a “real estate investment trést’U.S. federal income tax purposes;

(9) at any time prior to the occurrenéa ®ublic Transaction, to incur (or cause a May-owned Subsidiary thereof



incur) additional Indebtedness that will be treadsdiebt by the Fund’s auditors, or to acquireartity as a Majority-owned
Subsidiary that has Indebtedness that will remaistanding immediately following such acquisitiordehat will be treated as debt by the
Fund’s auditors, if the incurrence of such Indeh&ss or the acquisition of such entity would cahseotal outstanding amount of
Indebtedness of the Fund that is treated as dethteblyund’s auditors (i.e., such Indebtedness reduny the Fund directly plus, without
duplication, the portion of any such Indebtedndddajority-owned Subsidiaries allocable to the Fi{ad determined by the General Partner it
its discretion)) to exceed thirty percent (30%)4och greater percentage up to fifty percent (58%¢he Advisory Committee may approve) of
the sum of the aggregate Adjusted Fair Value ofafid Investments, other than Permitted Investmehis any property level reserves with
respect to
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Qualified Investments (to the extent such propketgl reserves have not been included by the agigbcExpert(s) as part of the Adjusted Fair
Value of any such Qualified Investment); providedyever, that prior to the Final Contribution Dateg foregoing debt restriction shall not
prohibit the Fund from making any Investment if thdebtedness assumed by the Fund in connectidntiét acquisition of such Investment
either is not prepayable or is prepayable on tehasthe General Partner determines are detrimenthe Fund or

(h) except with the approval of the Advis Committee, to acquire or originate any sengtdi.e., first mortgage
loans) if the acquisition or origination by the Busf such senior debt would cause the aggregateséelj Fair Value of all Fund Investments
that are senior debt to equal or exceed twentygareent (25%) of the aggregate Adjusted Fair Valugl Fund Investments (including,
without duplication, any property level reservesiwespect to Qualified Investments).

3.04. Title to Fund PropertyAll property owned by the Fund, whether reapersonal, tangible or intangible, shall be
deemed to be owned by the Fund as an entity, afhrtaer, individually, shall have any ownershigoéh property. The Fund may hold any
of its assets in its own name or in the name daéradh acting as nominee for the Fund as long dssomminee shall be at the direction of the
Fund.

3.05. Investment Policies

€)) The General Partner intends to conthecbusiness of the Fund in a manner such tieaEtimd will not be required
to register as an investment company under thestmant Company Act.

(b) The General Partner will not causeFlind to focus as its primary investment objeabivéhe acquisition or the
origination of senior debt (i.e., first mortgagahs) other than for the purpose of acquiring thededying real estate.

ARTICLE IV

THE FUND INTERESTS AND CAPITAL

4.01. General Partner

(a) The name of the General Partner M GOtban Partners GP, Inc., a California corporatioaving a mailing address
at 6922 Hollywood Boulevard, Suite 900, Hollywo@#lifornia 90028.

(b) The Capital Commitment of the Gen&aitner shall be $1,000.

4.02. Limited Partners The name, address and Capital Commitment dfithéed Partner are set forth on Schedule A
hereto, as amended from time to time in accordaritethe terms hereof. A transferee acquiringmiteéd Partnes Interest through a Trans
shall become a Substitute Limited Partner wherptbgisions of Article IX of this Agreement
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have been complied with. For purposes of the thet Limited Partners shall constitute one (1) ctasgroup of limited partners.

4.03. Capital Contributions

€)) The General Partner contributedritire Capital Commitment to the Fund on the datthefFirst Amended and
Restated Agreement.

(b) Except as provided in Section 4.03(gthe REIT LLC Agreement, on each date that tB¢TReceives capital
contributions from its Class A Members, the REIalshontribute to the Fund an amount equal to ¢i@ tamount of capital contributions
received by the REIT from its Class A Members ochsdiate; provided, however, that (i) the REIT shall make any contribution to the Fund
until the date that the Fund acquires its firsgléerm qualifying investment for purposes of theQREprovisions of the Plan Asset Regulations
and (ii) on the date that the Fund acquires it fong term qualifying investment for purposeshaf REOC provisions of the Plan Asset
Regulations, the REIT shall contribute to the Falaf the capital contributions that it has re@al\from the Class A Members prior to such
date less the amount of any Organizational Expefsségect to the limitation set forth in Sectio@Ba) hereof) reimbursed by the REIT. The
parties hereto acknowledge and agree that (x) twithe date that the Fund acquires its first ltavgh qualifying investment for purposes of the
REOC provisions of the Plan Asset RegulationsRE¢&T shall be permitted to reimburse the Generainea and its Affiliates for
Organizational Expenses subject to the limitatieinfsrth in Section 6.07(a) hereof and (y) any satounts so reimbursed by the REIT shall
be treated for all purposes hereof and the REIT Bgteement as if they had been contributed by tBElRo the Fund on the date that the
Fund acquires its first long term qualifying invesint for purposes of the REOC provisions of thenPlaset Regulations and reimbursed by
Fund.

(c) On the day immediately precedingdhte that any capital contributions are due tdREET as set forth in a
“Capital Call Notice” (as defined in the REIT LLCgheement), to the extent such due date is on or twithe Final Closing Date, the Fund
shall distribute to the REIT an amount equal togresater of (x) the accrued and unpaid Minimum filistion through such date and (y) the
excess of the accrued and unpaid Operating Inchroagh such date over amounts determined by thei@keRartner, in its discretion, to be
necessary (i) to pay or establish reserves foottegrwise accrue for, Fund Expenses, amounts paymalbéspect of Indebtedness of the Fund
and its subsidiaries and/or any other liabiliti€she Fund and its subsidiaries or (ii) to estdblisserves on account of distributions that may b
required for the REIT to satisfy the requirementgualify as a “real estate investment trust” urtierCode in future periods.

4.04. Intentionally Omitted

4.05. Interest Interest earned on the Fund'’s funds shall inoitbe benefit of the Fund. The Partners shalrective
interest on their Capital Contributions or Caphatounts.
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4.06. Capital Account The Fund shall maintain a book account in acmoed with the following provisions for each
Partner (and any other person who acquires arester

€) To each Partner’s Capital Accountdtshall be credited (i) the Capital Contributi@isuch Partner,
(ii) such Partner’s distributive share of Profitaldiii) the amount of any Fund liabilities assunigdthe Partner or secured by
distributed assets that such Partner assumeses saibject to; and

(b) To each Partner’'s Capital Accountéhghall be debited (i) the amount of cash distdtuo the Partner,
(i) the Gross Asset Value of any Fund asset digted to such Partner pursuant to any provisiaghisfAgreement (net of liabilities
secured by such distributed property that suchnBagssumes or takes subject to) and (iii) suctn®as distributive share of Losses.

In the event that a Partner’s Interest or portim@reof is transferred within the meaning of Regafet § 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f),
the transferee shall succeed to the Capital Accolitite transferor to the extent that it relatethInterest or portion thereof so transferred.

The foregoing provisions and the other provisiohthis Agreement relating to the maintenance ofiéapccounts are
intended to comply with Regulations § 1.704-1(bd ahall be interpreted and applied in a manneristarg therewith.

4.07. Withdrawal of Capital ContributionsExcept as otherwise provided in this Agreememequired by law, (i) no
Partner shall have the right to withdraw or rediie€apital Contributions or its Capital Commitmemt to demand and receive property other
than property distributed by the Fund in accordamitie the terms hereof in return for its Capitalf@itbutions, and (ii) any return of Capital
Contributions to the Limited Partner shall be spfebm the Fund assets, and the General Partnémgitidoe personally liable for any such
return.

4.08. Restoration of Negative Capital AccaunNeither the General Partner nor the Limited farshall be obligated to
restore any deficit balance in its Capital Accoonshall be personally liable for the return of @&pital Contributions of any Partner, or any
portion thereof, it being expressly understood {kpiny such return shall be made solely fromRbed assets and (y) a deficit in a Partner’s
Capital Account shall not constitute a Fund asset.

4.09. Subsequent Closing$a) In connection with each Subsequent CloghmgREIT shall increase its Capital
Commitment such that, after giving effect to suatréase, its Capital Commitment is equal to theeggie capital commitments of all of the
Class A Members to the REIT (after giving effecst@h Subsequent Closing).

(b) Schedule A shall be amended by thee@s Partner after any Subsequent Closing toatetfites revised Capital
Commitment of the REIT.
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ARTICLE V

ALLOCATIONS OF PROFITS AND LOSSES AND DISTRIBUTIONBO PARTNERS

5.01. Allocation of Profits and Losse®uring the period commencing on the First Clgsamd ending on the day
immediately prior to the Final Closing Date (theitial Period”), 100% of the Profits and Losseslisba allocated to the REIT. For purposes
of determining Profits and Losses for this perit, Fund shall use a closing-of-the-books method.

(a) Allocation of Profits After the Initial Period, Profits shall be allded as follows:

0] First, 100% to the REIT until the aumt allocated and previously allocated pursuathitoSection 5.01(a)
(i) equals the amounts allocated and previoustcatied pursuant to Section 5.01(b)(iii) hereof;

(i) Second, to the REIT and the Gen®aitner pro rata in a manner to reduce proportayn#te respective
difference between each Partner’'s Capital Accondtsaich Partner’s Targeted Capital Account asegtid of the relevant year; and

(iii) Thereafter, 100% to the REIT.
(b) Allocation of LossesAfter the Initial Period, Losses shall be allichas follows:
0] First, 100% to the REIT until the aunt allocated and previously allocated pursuathigSection 5.01(b)

(i) equals the amounts allocated and previousbcatied pursuant to Section 5.01(a)(iii) hereof;

(i) Second, to the REIT and the Gen®tdtner pro rata in accordance with the allocatioade pursuant to
Section 5.01(a)(ii) hereof until the amount all@shaind previously allocated pursuant to this Sedi@1(b)(ii) equals the amounts
allocated and previously allocated pursuant toiSe&.01(a)(ii) hereof; and

(iii) Thereafter, 100% to the REIT.

(c) Sections 5.01(a) and 5.01(b) hereefi@ended to comply with Sections 514(c)(9) afd(B) of the Code and
Regulations promulgated thereunder as in effe¢herdate hereof, and shall be considered to indutfgualified Income Offset” and
“Minimum Gain Chargeback,” as defined in such Ragjahs, and if any Profits or Losses are allocgi@guant to such a “Qualified Income
Offset” or “Minimum Gain Chargeback,” then, subsently, Profits and Losses shall, to the extent jigethby Sections 514(c)(9) and 704
(b) of the Code and Regulations promulgated thateyrbe allocated among the Partners in the mamukto the extent necessary to effectuat
the intent of the Partners as indicated in Sectim@2(c)(iii) hereof, and the provisions of thixSen 5.01 and Section 5.02 hereof shall
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be adjusted accordingly. If and to the extent difieation of the allocations under Sections 5.0Hfd 5.01(b) hereof is necessary to comply
with such Sections of the Code and Regulationsdoce or minimize “unrelated business taxable ireams defined in Section 512 of the
Code and Regulations promulgated thereunder, toduimplement the provisions of Section 10.02(i¢)fiereof or to reflect a recontribution
or deemed recontribution by the General Partnétdd-und pursuant to Section 5.02(g) hereof, thee@s Partner is authorized to perform
such a modification in a manner consistent to aghan allocation consistent with the distributigoypsions of Section 5.02 hereof, subject to
Section 13.01 hereof.

5.02. Distributions

(a) Subject to Section 5.02(b) heredd,dmount and timing of distributions from the Fuodhe Partners shall be at 1
discretion of the General Partner, but generalblidie made quarterly.

(b) During the period commencing on tlirstFClosing and ending on the day immediately iprgothe Final Closing
Date, (i) all Distributable Proceeds shall be distied to the REIT and (ii) the Fund shall makerdsitions to the REIT such that the Class A
Members receive pursuant to the REIT LLC Agreenmeinimum quarterly distributions equal to 2.1309%ha#ir unreturned Class A Capital
Contributions during such quarter (each such mamgalistribution is referred to herein as the “Mimim Distribution”). To the extent
necessary, the Fund will use Capital Contributi@nsddition to Distributable Proceeds) to make ikinm Distributions and any Capital
Contributions so distributed will not be subjectécall and will not be treated as returned capital

(c) Subject to Sections 5.02(d) and 1@)pBereof, from and after the Final Closing Date frior to the
commencement of the Disposition Period, all Distidtile Proceeds shall be distributed to the REIT.

(d) If, as of any date, the Aggregate Tability of the General Partner exceeds the agate amounts previously
distributed to the General Partner pursuant toSkigtion 5.02(d) or Section 5.02(e) hereof throsigth date, such excess shall be distributed
the General Partner from the next amounts othersiggbutable under Section 5.02 (each such 8igtions a “Tax Distribution”). Each Tax
Distribution shall be treated as an advance ofitigions that otherwise would be made to the Galreartner during the Disposition Period.
For this purpose, the_* Aggregate Tax Liabilityas of any date, shall mean the product of (®)gbim of all Profits allocated to the General
Partner pursuant to Section 5.01 hereof on or poisuch date less the sum of all Losses allodatdiie General Partner pursuant to
Section 5.01 hereof on or prior to such date miigtipby (y) the Tax Rate. Prior to any date onchhthe General Partner is required to make
payments of estimated federal, state or local irectar, the General Partner may timely submit aimes¢ made in good faith of any such
excess of the Aggregate Tax Liability over the agate distributions and be entitled promptly teree the distribution to which the General
Partner is entitled pursuant to this Section 5.02fhch year, within thirty (30) days followingetlllate on which the General Partner files its
annual tax
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returns, the General Partner shall calculate itgrégate Tax Liability for all periods ending ontm@fore the period covered by such tax retu

In the event that the sum of (1) all Tax Distrilmnts received by the General Partner on or pritineédast day of the period covered by such tax
returns that have not previously been repaid by&eeeral Partner or offset against amounts thatdvatherwise have been distributed to the
General Partner plus (Il) all other distributioeseived by the General Partner pursuant to thestbereof on or prior to the last day of the
period covered by such tax returns exceeds the minodthe General Partner's Aggregate Tax Liabilityall such prior periods, the General
Partner shall promptly recontribute to the Fundgipayment of Tax Distributions, the amount of segbess.

(e) During the Disposition Period, Dibtriable Proceeds shall be distributed to the Partrefollows:

(1) First, 100% to the REIT until the Bolio Nominal Internal Rate of Return is equalthe Portfolio
Nominal Hurdle Rate;

(2) Second, 100% to the General Partn8fitihas received, after taking into account émeount of all prior
distributions pursuant to this clause (2), $1,000;

3) Third, 100% to the REIT until it heeceived on the applicable distribution date, pansuo this clause (3),
an amount equal to the excess, if any, of (x) trtign of the aggregate Distributable Proceedsetdibtributed on the applicable
distribution date remaining after the distributimm such date of amounts, if any, required to biidiged pursuant to clauses (1) and
(2) of this Section 5.02(e) over (y) the Incentivistribution as of such date; and

4 Thereafter, with respect to the batato be distributed on the applicable distributiate (i.e., an amount
equal to the Incentive Distribution as of such §at®80% to the General Partner; provided that sumbunts shall be subject to offset
to the extent that the General Partner has recdiagdistributions that have not been previouspaid by the General Partner or
offset against other amounts that would otherweeetbeen distributed to the General Partner.

During the Final Liquidation Periodjstributable Proceeds shall be distributed toRheners in accordance with
Section 10.02(c)(iii) hereof.

(9) Prior to the commencement of the Hinguidation Period, the General Partner shalbredbute to the Fund for tt
benefit of the Partners an amount equal to the &fuell Tax Distributions received by the GenerattRar that have not been previously
recontributed by the General Partner or offsetresja@mounts which would otherwise have been diggibto the General Partner. All such
amounts recontributed by the General Partner beaileated as Distributable Proceeds and distdbot¢he Partners pursuant to the
distribution provisions hereof in effect at the ¢irof such recontribution.
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(h) The General Partner may withhold framy amounts distributable to any Partner any artsoofrany tax required to
be withheld by the Fund under the Code or the Reiguis or the tax laws of any jurisdiction. Suchoaints withheld by the General Partner
shall, except for purposes of Section 5.02(e) Helmptreated as distributed to such Partner arditpasuch Partner to the relevant tax
authority. If the Fund is required to withhold ¢émxwith respect to any amounts that are not cuyrdidtributed to a Partner, the Partner shall
pay to the Fund an amount equal to the amountredjto be withheld by the General Partner. Thermay of this amount by the Partner to
Fund shall not be considered a Capital Contribution

5.03. Form of Distributions The General Partner shall use commercially re@tse efforts to convert the assets of the
Fund to cash prior to the distribution thereof,asslthe General Partner believes, in its judgntleat,such conversion could have a materially
adverse effect on the value of such assets. Nutainding the foregoing, distributions may takeydhe form of cash or, with the approval of
the Advisory Committee, Marketable Securities ausities immediately and without restriction cortilde into Marketable Securities;
provided however that Advisory Committee approval shall not beuieed for the distribution of Marketable Securit@ssecurities
immediately and without restriction convertibledi¥larketable Securities in connection with a Publiansaction. Distributions of assets in
kind shall be allocated in accordance with Secid)? as if such assets were Distributable Proceeds.

ARTICLE VI

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE GENERAL PARTNER

6.01. Management(a) Subject to the provisions of this Agreetm#éme General Partner has the full, exclusive and
complete right, power, authority, discretion ansp@nsibility vested in or assumed by a generahpaxf a limited partnership under the Act
and as otherwise provided by law, including thoseessary to make, affirmatively or negatively daitisions affecting the business of the F
and to take and cause the Fund to take those adjmtified in Section 3.02 hereof. Subject toother provisions of this Agreement, the
General Partner is hereby vested with the fulljiesice and complete right, power and discretionfierate, manage and control the affairs of
the Fund to the best of its ability and shall cany the business of the Fund.

(b) The General Partner shall have thegsmn behalf of and in the name of the Fund taagegCIM Urban REIT
Management, Inc. (or another Affiliate of the Gelétartner) as the Investment Manager for the Funttito execute and deliver the Investr
Management Agreement with the Investment Manag@ray other documents contemplated thereby, aflowit further act, vote or approval
of the REIT or any Class A Member. The Investmidahagement Agreement shall provide that such aggaeshall automatically terminate
upon the removal of the director of the REIT purdua Section 7.02 of the REIT LLC Agreement. Fhend and the General Partner may not
amend the Investment Management Agreement witheu€onsent of the REIT (with the Consent of attlsbdy-six and two thirds percent
(66-2/3%) of the Class A Percentage Interestsefilass A Members (excluding for
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this purpose the Class A Percentage Interest oRffiliate of the General Partner)). Advisory Coriti@e approval shall be required for an
assignment of the Investment Manager’s duties utidemvestment Management Agreement to an efiiitlyis not (i) an Affiliate of the
General Partner or owned by Employees, ImmediatailiF&Relatives of the Principals or Employees, tsuer the benefit of any such Persons
or family charitable foundations over which anys&erson has direction and (ii) controlled by thied#pals.

(c) In managing the affairs of the Fuadd in its dealings with the Limited Partner, excepexpressly provided
otherwise in this Agreement, the General Partnall skve the same fiduciary duty to the Limited Rartas a general partner owes each other
partner in a general partnership under the lawtkeState of Delaware, including: a duty of loyaltshich requires the General Partner to carry
out its responsibilities hereunder with loyalty nlesty, good faith, and fairness toward the Furdthe Limited Partner. Furthermore, the
General Partner shall invest the Fund'’s asseterartise all of its powers and duties hereundacaordance with a degree of diligence,
prudence and care that a prudent person exercifesaspect to his or her own assets. (The staisdsat forth in this Section 6.01(c) are
referred to herein as the “ Standard of Care

6.02. Authority (a) The General Partner has authority to biredRund, by execution of agreements, instrumentshar
documents or otherwise, to any obligation not irsistent with the provisions of this Agreement ahdlishave the full, exclusive and complete
right, power, authority and discretion to executid deliver on behalf of the Fund and to cause tirelRo perform its obligations under any
such agreements, instruments and documents. $tbj@nd except as otherwise provided in Sect®03 and 6.04, the General Partner may
contract or otherwise deal with any Person fortthesaction of the business of the Fund, whichdPensay, under the supervision of the
General Partner, perform any acts or serviceh®Fund as the General Partner may approve.

(b) Except as limited by Section 6.03(g)kiereof, the General Partner shall have theaitthto make or not to make
any elections for tax purposes in its discretion.

(c) The General Partner may rely on dradl e protected in acting or refraining from agtupon any resolution,
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, repootice, request, consent, order, bond, debeotuogher paper or document reasonably
believed by it to be genuine and to have been digngresented by the proper party or parties.

(d) The General Partner may consult Wagal counsel, accountants, appraisers, manageroastiltants, investment
bankers and other consultants and advisers selbgtiédand any act or omission suffered or takgthe General Partner on behalf of the Func
believed by the General Partner to be in furthexasfdhe interests of the Fund in good faith anceliance upon and in accordance with the
advice of such Persons shall be deemed to be rafalsosnd proper, and the General Partner shallllyepirotected in so acting or omitting;
provided, however, that (x) such Persons were selectedeiathed with reasonable care and (y) such Pemensrelied upon only with
respect to matters believed by the General Pairirgwod faith to be within the scope of their extjser.
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(e) Persons dealing with the Fund aréledtto rely conclusively upon the power and auitlymf the General Partner
as herein set forth.

® The General Partner shall endeavaratuse the Fund to maintain cash reserves foatipgrexpenses, capital
expenditures, repairs, replacements, contingercidselated items in such amount as the Generadd?an its discretion deems necessary or
advisable.

(9) From and after the commencementefiisposition Period, the General Partner shaleaudr to dispose of the
Fund Investments promptly and in an orderly fasltonsistent with the Standard of Care.

6.03. Limitations on the General Partner
€)) Anything contained in any other Sactdf this Agreement notwithstanding, the Geneeatrier and its Affiliates
shall not have any authority or be entitled:
0] to perform any act in violation afyaapplicable law or regulation thereunder, inchgdapplicable
securities laws;
(i) to perform any act in violation dfa@ Act or this Agreement;
(iii) to perform any other act expresstguiring the Consent of the REIT or the Advisoryn@uittee under this
Agreement without first obtaining such Consent;
(iv) to avoid its ultimate obligations werdhis Agreement by delegation of authority opssibility;
(v) to commingle funds of the Fund wittéls of any other Person, except in connection kuitid
Investments made with other parties; or
(vi) to cause the Fund to make an eledtidoe treated as other than a partnership foptagoses.
(b) Notwithstanding anything to the camyrherein, for so long as the Fund is requiredp®rate as a REOC in

accordance with Section 15.01 hereof and the REHA subsidiary thereof is not the general partfi¢ghe Fund, the Fund shall not undertake
any of the following actions without the approvétite REIT, acting through its director; providedowevetrthat (x) if the taking of any such
actions requires the Consent of a specified peagendf the Class A Members pursuant to any ottmiigion of this Agreement, such Consent
shall be required for the taking of such actioaddition to the Consent of the director of the RBHH (y) if at any time the General Partner
the director of the REIT are the same Person.akiag of an action at such time by the Generalrieason behalf of the Fund, shall be deemec
to be an approval by the director of the REIT t® tidking of such action by the Fund and no
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additional action on the part of the director af REIT shall be necessary to evidence such deepprdal:
0] the dissolution and winding up oéthund or an election to continue the Fund or tigress thereof;

(i) the sale, exchange, lease, mortgagsignment, pledge or other transfer of, or gngntif a security intere
in, any asset or assets of the Fund or any subgitfiareof in a transaction having a dollar valuexcess of $50,000;

(iii) the incurrence, renewal, refinancimgpayment or other discharge of Indebtednessi®yund or any
subsidiary thereof in an amount in excess of $51),00

(iv) the execution of any contract for ffrevision of goods or services to the Fund or sulysidiary thereof
requiring aggregate payments by the Fund in exae$%0,000 per annum.

(v) a change in the nature of the busireéghe Fund,;
(vi) a transaction or other matter invalyian actual or potential conflict of interest;
(vii) an amendment to this Agreement or@wetificate of Limited Partnership of the Fundgan

(viii) the merger or consolidation of therfelwith or into any Person.

6.04. Business with Affiliates

(a) Except as otherwise provided in $#c6.04(b) below, the General Partner shall naingehe Fund or any of its
subsidiaries to enter into any transaction with@Gemeral Partner or its Affiliates, acquire anyeds$rom the General Partner or its Affiliates or
engage the General Partner or its Affiliates tost® goods or services for additional compensatiaiess all of the following criteria are
complied with:

0] The fees and other terms and coongtiunder which the goods or services are to kdered or the
transaction is to be entered into are embodiedwritten contract executed and delivered befordr giands and services are rendered
and describing the transaction or the goods oiics\to be rendered and the compensation, priteedherefor;

(i) The terms and conditions of the cant are at least as favorable to the Fund asthestgenerally
available in arm’s-length transactions with quatifindependent third parties;
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(iii) The compensation, price, fees anteotbenefits, including expense recoveries, td2areral Partner and
its Affiliates and the formula or method by whidtey are to be calculated, and the goods, servicether benefits to be provided
therefor, are fully disclosed to the Advisory Corttee and Consented to in writing by the Advisoryr@aittee (which Consent shall
not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) in advarfiexecution of the written contract; and

(iv) Such transaction or contract for $egg is entered into principally for the benefitioé Fund and in the
ordinary course of its business.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions d§tection 6.04(a) shall not apply from and after dccurrence of a Public Transacti
(b) Notwithstanding Section 6.04(a) ahdiie General Partner or an Affiliate thereof shale the right:

0] to cause the Fund or one or morisosubsidiaries or other entities in which the rlias made an
investment to enter into one or more Property Rdl&ontracts with an Affiliate of the General Partrin connection with Fund
Investments, pursuant to which such Affiliate witbvide services to the Fund, any subsidiary tHeseany other entity in which the
Fund has made an investment, and any such agreshrahbe deemed approved by the Advisory Commitekto satisfy the
requirements of Sections 6.04(a)(ii) and 6.04(x}{ereof (but Sections 6.04(a)(i) and 6.04(a)ligjeof shall still apply) providetthat
(x) any compensation payable thereunder does mateekthe limit set forth on Schedule B hereto lfassame may be amended from
time to time pursuant to Section 14.04(b) herefpject to the Advisory Committee’s rights to adgisch amounts to the extent
permitted pursuant to Section 14.04(b) hereof gipthe other terms and conditions of the contraetad least as favorable to the Fund
as the terms generally available in arm’s-lengdihngactions with qualified independent third parties

(i) to cause the Fund, a subsidiaryebéor any other entity in which the Fund has maléinvestment to
purchase from the General Partner and its Affifidgtes interests of the General Partner and itdiétffis in the Investments identified
on Schedule C hereto, if any, for the purchaseepgé@t forth on such Schedule without any apprbyahe Advisory Committee and
without the satisfaction of any other conditionstmflict of interest transactions set forth heraind

(iii) to receive the amounts describe@attions 6.06 and 6.07 hereof, subject to thediioits set forth
therein, without Advisory Committee approval andheut the satisfaction of any other conditionsdaftict of interest transactions !



forth herein.
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6.05. Liability for Acts and Omissions

€) None of the General Partner, the stment Manager, or any member of the Advisory Catteminor any of their
respective Affiliates, members, shareholders, pastrmanagers, officers, directors, employees,tagem representatives shall have any
liability, responsibility or accountability in damges or otherwise to any other Partner, any Clastember or the Fund for, and the Fund
agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by lawntemnify, pay, protect and hold harmless the Garieartner, the Investment Manager, each
member of the Advisory Committee and their respeciffiliates, members, shareholders, partners,agars, officers, directors, employees,
agents and representatives (collectively, the &indified Partie§) from and against, any and all liabilities, oldigpns, losses, damages,
penalties, actions, judgments, suits, proceedrmts, expenses and disbursements of any kindwrenahatsoever (including all costs and
expenses of attorneys, defense, appeal and setti@iany and all suits, actions or proceedingstirted or threatened against the Indemnifiec
Parties or the Fund) and all costs of investigaitioconnection therewith which may be imposed nayired by, or asserted against the
Indemnified Parties or the Fund in any way relatmgr arising out of, or alleged to relate to as@ out of, any action or inaction on the pat
the Fund, on the part of the Indemnified Partiesnvlcting on behalf of the Fund (or any of the Fiméstments) or on the part of any brok
or agents when acting on behalf of the Fund (orddriie Fund Investments) (collectively, the “Indgfied Liabilities”); provided, however,
that (x) the Fund shall not be liable to any Inddmd Party for any portion of any Indemnified Listies that results from such Indemnified
Party’s fraud, gross negligence (determined incthrgext of the Standard of Care), willful miscondacbreach of the terms of this Agreement
or any other agreement between such Indemnifiety Bad the Fund or its Affiliates and (y) the Gexid?artner shall be liable, responsible ant
accountable for and shall indemnify, pay, protext hold harmless the Fund from and against anynimifeed Liabilities which result from the
General Partner’s, the Investment Manager’s or tlespective Affiliates’ fraud, gross negligencet@mined in the context of the Standard of
Care), willful misconduct or breach of the termgtié Agreement or any other agreement between Isutemnified Party and the Fund or its
Affiliates; provided, further, however, nothing in this provision shall create persoraility on the part of any of the General Parteer’
Affiliates or its or their respective members, gtariders, partners, managers, officers, direcemmployees, agents or representatives nor sha
this provision relieve any of them of liability aimg under any other agreement or document to whig are parties. In any action, suit or
proceeding against the Fund or any IndemnifiedyRafating to or arising, or alleged to relate tadse, out of any such action or non-action,
the Indemnified Parties shall have the right tatlgiemploy, at the expense of the Fund, counsdi®indemnified Parties’ choice (reasonably
satisfactory to the Fund) in such action, suitrmcpeding, which counsel shall be reputable andifiathin matters of the type that are the
subject of such action, suit or proceeding, proditihet if retention of joint counsel by the IndemediParties would create a conflict of inter
each group of Indemnified Parties which would renise such a conflict shall have the right to empidyhe expense of the Fund, separate
counsel of such group of Indemnified Partieisbice in such action, suit or proceeding, whichrsel shall be reputable and qualified in ma
of the type that are the subject of such actioit,asproceeding; providedhowever, that if any indemnitor shall acknowledge in wriiits
liability to the relevant Indemnified Party for
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any action, suit or proceeding brought by a thitypin connection with which such Indemnified Rast seeking indemnification, then such
indemnitor shall be entitled to select counseldfedd such action, suit or proceeding, subjedi¢capproval of such Indemnified Party, which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Tatesgaction of the obligations of the Fund undés Bection 6.05(a) shall be from and limited
to the assets of the Fund and no Limited Partrat khve any personal liability on account thereof.

(b) The provision of advances from Fuadds to an Indemnified Party for legal expensesadher costs incurred as a
result of any legal action or proceeding is periblesf (i) such suit, action or proceeding relate®r arises out of, or is alleged to relate to or
arise out of, any action or inaction on the parthef Indemnified Party in the performance of iti&kior provision of its services on behalf of
the Fund or any of the Fund Investments or the Busubsidiaries or in its capacity as a membehefAdvisory Committee; and (i) the
Indemnified Party undertakes to repay any fundsiaded pursuant to this Section 6.05(b) in casesioh it is ultimately determined that st
Indemnified Party is not entitled to indemnificatiander Section 6.05(a). If advances are maderuhideSection 6.05(b), the Indemnified
Party shall furnish the Fund with an undertakingetsforth in clause (i) of this paragraph andlishareafter have the right to bill the Fund 1
or otherwise request the Fund to pay, at any tingefeom time to time after such Indemnified Pattals become obligated to make payment
therefor, any and all reasonable amounts for @aisexpenses of the types described in Sectiorfed.@% which such Indemnified Party
believes in good faith that such Indemnified Pé&tgntitled to indemnification under Section 6.Q54éth the approval of the General Partner,
or if the General Partner or its Affiliate is thedemnified Party, the Advisory Committee, which egyal shall not be unreasonably withheld.
The Fund shall pay any and all such bills and hamgrand all such requests for payment within si€8) days after such bill or request
(together with supporting information reasonabltystactory to the General Partner) is receivedhey®eneral Partner, and the Fund’s rights t
repayment of such amounts shall be secured byntteninified Party’s Interest, if any, or by suchesthdequate security as the General
Partner, or if the General Partner or its Affilisdehe Indemnified Party, the Advisory Committeayntletermine. In the event that a final
determination is made that the Fund is not so al#igjin respect of any amount paid by it to a paldr Indemnified Party, such Indemnified
Party shall refund such amount within sixty (60yslaf such final determination. In the event thdihal determination is made that the Fur
so obligated in respect of any amount not paidhleyftund to a particular Indemnified Party, the Fshall pay such amount to such
Indemnified Party within sixty (60) days of suchdl determination. In either of the foregoing caske party obligated to pay shall include
with such payment interest at the greater of fipmercent (9%) or (ii) the Prime Rate plus twacpat (2%) from the date paid by the Fund
until repaid by the Indemnified Party or the dateas obligated to be paid by the Fund until thiee detually paid by the Fund to the
Indemnified Party.

(c) All judgments against the Fund or imyemnified Party wherein an Indemnified Partgmitled to indemnification
must first be satisfied from the Fund assets baforeéseneral Partner or such other IndemnifiedyRantesponsible for these obligations.
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(d) With respect to the liabilities oktlrund for which the General Partner is not obéidab indemnify the Fund,
whether for the consummation of Investments, psifegl and other services rendered to it, loansent@dt by Partners or others, injuries to
persons or property, indemnity to the Indemnifiedtiés, contractual obligations, guaranties, eretoents or for other reasons similar or
dissimilar to any of the foregoing, and withoutaedjto the manner in which any liability of any ura may be incurred by the person to whom
it may be owed, all such liabilities:

(@ shall be liabilities of the Fund as entity, and shall be paid or otherwise satidfiech Fund assets (and 1
Fund shall sell or liquidate all assets as necgdsagatisfy such liabilities);

(i) to the extent and only to the extBond assets are insufficient to satisfy any lighishall be payable by
the General Partner, but, to the fullest extentnitéed by law, only to the extent it may be reqdite make additional contributions to
the Fund pursuant to the other terms of this Agesgpand

(iii) shall not in any event be payablenhole or in part by the REIT, or by any directoffjcer, trustee,
employee, agent, shareholder, beneficiary or padhany Partner.

Nothing in this Section 6.05(d) shall be constrteednpose upon the General Partner, its members)qrg, directors,
officers, employees, agents or shareholders ahifitiain circumstances in which the liability aeis from a written document which the Gen
Partner has properly entered into or caused thd Fuanter into if the written document expresstyits liability thereon to the Fund or
expressly disclaims any liability thereunder onplagt of any such Person but this exculpation st@lrelieve the General Partner from liabi
to the Fund pursuant to clause (y) of Section @pbéreof.

(e) The General Partner may cause the Fairthe Fund’s expense, to purchase insuranosuece the General Partner
and the other Indemnified Parties against liabliggeunder (including liability arising in connextiwith the operation of the Fund), including
for a breach or an alleged breach of their respdiigs hereunder However, the Fund shall not incur the costs of gmation of any insuranc
other than public liability insurance, which inssi@ny Indemnified Party for any liability as to whisuch person is prohibited from being
indemnified under Section 6.05(a).

) If the Indemnified Party is entitléal indemnification hereunder and is entitled tdeimnification from another
source or to recovery by insurance policies, sadefnnified Party shall diligently and continuouplyrsue such other source, provided that
(i) such obligation shall not in any manner limith Indemnified Party’s right to seek indemnificatior advances under this Agreement and
(i) such Indemnified Party shall remit to the Fuarty funds it recovers from another source to #ierg that the sum of the amounts recovere
from such other source plus the amounts recoveosd the Fund exceeds the aggregate losses it @etfor which it is entitled to
indemnification hereunder.
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(9) The reimbursement, indemnity and gbation obligations of the Fund under this Secio@5 shall (i) be in
addition to any liability which the Fund may othéserhave, (ii) not be deemed to be exclusive ofahgr rights to which any Indemnified
Party may be entitled to under any agreement,naateer of law or otherwise, both as to action inrademnified Partys official capacity and t
action in another capacity, (iii) continue as toakemnified Party who shall have ceased to haveffarial capacity for acts or omissions
during such official capacity and (iv) be bindingam and inure to the benefit of any successorfgrassheirs and personal representatives of
the Fund, the General Partner and any such otderninified Party.

(h) The indemnification rights provideat fn this Section 6.05 shall survive the termioatof the Fund or this
Agreement, except that no claim may be assertethipyndemnified Party against any indemnitor urttlex Section 6.05 after the third
anniversary of the termination of the Fund unlegten notice of such claim (describing such clamneasonable detail) shall have been
provided by the Indemnified Party to the indemnjtapr to such third anniversary and such claimisi®prosecuted promptly thereafter and
pursued diligently to completion.

6.06. Expenses(a) The Fund shall pay all Operating Expensesrired by or for the account of the Fund or th¢TRE
The Fund shall also reimburse the General Partnédperating Expenses paid by the General Parttisech Operating Expenses are out-of-
pocket expenses; providetiowever, that Operating Expenses payable to Affiliatethef General Partner for services rendered or goods
provided by such Affiliates to the Fund or the RERall be reimbursable only to the extent theypamenitted by Section 6.04(a) or
Section 6.04(b)(i).

(b) The General Partner shall not be beireed for any costs and expenses relating toghergl operation of the
General Partner’s business, including administea¢ixpenses, employment expenses (including emplayoosts of the General Partner with
respect to the preparation of the reports deliverpbirsuant to Article XII hereof (it being understl and agreed, however, that the General
Partner may engage, at the expense of the Funoigtants to prepare, or assist in the preparafioihase reports and any financial statement
contained therein)), office expenses, subject twi®e 6.05(e) hereof insurance of the General Radnd its employees, rent, and all or any
part of the General Partner’s travel expenses ega expenses that are not incurred in the coddedusiness, and for the benefit, of the
Fund or the REIT.

(c) It is the intention of the partiegédte that all expenses and obligations of the Riigluding any indemnification
obligations but excluding any obligations underanpissory note delivered by the REIT pursuant tcti®a 14.02(b) of the REIT LLC
Agreement) be paid by the Fund and to the extertttie REIT pays or is obligated to pay any sugieasges or obligations all such amounts
shall be paid or reimbursed by the Fund. Any ueyment of, or reimbursement for, the expensedbligations of the REIT, shall be treated
as a distribution to the REIT for all purposesto$ tAgreement other than for the purposes of Seéi62 hereof and the definition of
“Operating Expenses” herein (i.e., any such paymentimbursement shall be treated as an Opergtipgnse of the Fund).
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(d) In no event shall any payments toGemeral Partner under this Section 6.06 or Seétior be deemed a
distribution to the General Partner.

6.07. Organizational Expenses and InvestiWEmagement Fees

(a) The General Partner and its Affileaghall be reimbursed by the Fund for all Orgaioratl Expenses incurred by
the General Partner and its Affiliates up to a nmaxn of $1,750,000; providechowever, that if, after giving effect to the final Closinthe
amount of Organizational Expenses paid by the Faxogeds 0.2% of the aggregate capital commitménltedClass A Members to the REIT,
the General Partner shall return the excess antouhé Fund, which refund may be effected by ofiisgtthe Investment Management Fee
otherwise payable to the Investment Manager. Téee@l Partner shall bear the fees of any PlaceAgpstt.

(b) Pursuant to the Investment Managemgntement, the Fund shall pay to the Investmentadar an annual
investment management fee (the “Investment ManageRex") for the services rendered by the Investiviamager in managing the assets of
the Fund. The Investment Management Fee shalhpahpe quarterly in arrears on the tenth day {@uch day is not a Business Day, on the
next succeeding Business Day) following the cldseagh fiscal quarter of the Fund. Each quartedyallment of the Investment Managemen
Fee shall be an amount equal to (i) if the dailgrage Adjusted Fair Value of the Fund Investmeuntind such quarter is less than or equal to
$500 million, 0.25% of such daily average Adjuskedr Value, (i) if the daily average Adjusted F®lue of the Fund Investments during
such quarter is greater than $500 million but thas or equal to $1 billion, the sum of $1.25 roifliplus 0.2375% of such daily average
Adjusted Fair Value in excess of $500 million,)(ifithe daily average Adjusted Fair Value of thenBl Investments during such quarter is
greater than $1 billion but less than or equallt® $illion, the sum of $2.4375 million plus 0.22%fssuch daily average Adjusted Fair Value
in excess of $1 billion, (iv) if the daily averagedjusted Fair Value of the Fund Investments dugngh quarter is greater than $1.5 billion but
less than or equal to $4.0 billion, the sum of 2% million plus 0.2125% of such daily average Asdia Fair Value in excess of $1.5 hillion
and (v) if the daily average Adjusted Fair Valuate Fund Investments during such quarter is grelaéa $4.0 billion, the sum of $8.875
million plus 0.100% of such daily average Adjuskadr Value in excess of $4.0 billion; provided, remer, that (1) if any Permitted Investment
(but specifically excluding (x) any property levekerves with respect to Qualified Investments tlage been included by the applicable Expe
(s) as part of the Adjusted Fair Value of any sQelalified Investment and (y) any receipts repraagrdistributable Proceeds) has been held
by the Fund as a Permitted Investment for six (6tins or more (determined on a first-in-first-oasts) then the portion thereof on any day
thereafter that exceeds one percent (1%) of theeggte Adjusted Fair Value of all of the Fund Irtw@snts on such day shall be excluded fron
the calculation of the Adjusted Fair Value on ttlay used to determine the daily average Adjustédvédue for purposes of clauses
(i) through (v) of this sentence; and (Il) for eoidance of doubt, any property level reservel véspect to Qualified Investments that have
been included by the applicable Expert(s) as datteoAdjusted Fair Value of any such Qualifiedéstment shall not also be separately va
as stand-alone Permitted Investments (i.e., so asdure that there is no double counting of such
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reserves for purposes of calculating the aggrefydiiested Fair Value of all of the Fund Investmears! the Investment Management Fee).
Installments of the Investment Management Feerfgmeriod of less than a full three months shalpfrated on the basis of the actual nur
of days in such period.

6.08. Breakup FeesAny breakup fees received by the General Padnany Affiliate thereof in connection with an
Investment intended to be made by the Fund thattisonsummated shall be paid to the Fund (and Isbaleemed to have been received by
the General Partner or its Affiliate as nomineetfa Fund); providedhowever, if the General Partner determines that any seeh $vould nc
constitute income described in Section 856(c){2Zhe Code, the General Partner shall retain aotyithstanding anything in Article V hereof
to the contrary, be specially allocated an amaduateof such that income not described in Secti@{@8) of the Code equals no more than
4.9% of the total income allocated to the REIT heder.

6.09. DirectorsFees. The Fund’s individual representatives on anyrtdad directors of any entity related to a Fund
Investment shall not be entitled to retain anycatoes’ fees or similar compensation received byhgeersons from such entity as consideration
for their service on such board of directors orottoverning body (such fees or other similar comspéon being hereinafter referred to as “
Directors Fees’). All such Directors’ Fees shall be paid to thend.

6.10. Key PersonsPrior to the acquisition of the General Partnethe REIT (or a subsidiary thereof) pursuanti® GF
Acquisition Agreement, each Principal, for so lasghe remains Affiliated with the General Partsbgll devote a substantial portion of his
business time and attention to (i) the affairshef Fund, (ii) the affairs of the Opportunity Fufid) Prior Investments, (iv) co-investment
opportunities with respect to the Opportunity Fufwi fundraising and marketing activities with respto, and the affairs of, any subsequent
opportunity fund and (vi) from and after the dateen at least 95% of the aggregate Capital Commisrafthe Partners (excluding the port
thereof attributable to “Defaulting Members” (adided in the REIT LLC Agreement) of the REIT) haween invested by the Fund in
Qualified Investments, the affairs of any subsetjfiemd having an investment objective that is sémib the Fund’s investment objective.
Further, if the Principals raise another fund hgwam investment objective that is similar to thadFa investment objective, then the new fund
shall reimburse the Fund for such new fund'’s pta share (based upon relative time commitmentt)eofalaries of all employees of CIM
Group, Inc. hired after the First Closing to worcleisively on the Fund’s business. In additiongipto the acquisition of the General Partner
by the REIT (or a subsidiary thereof) pursuanti® &P Acquisition Agreement, the Principals (fot@tg as they remain Affiliated with the
General Partner) shall spend at all times such imEund affairs as is reasonable in order to perthe obligations of the General Partner,
consistent with the Standard of Care. Prior toabguisition of the General Partner by the REITasubsidiary thereof) pursuant to the GP
Acquisition Agreement, in the event that any of Brancipals ceases to be Affiliated with the GehBwartner, the General Partner shall provide
prompt notice of such cessation to each Class A b&gm
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6.11. Other Activities Subject to Sections 6.01 and 6.09 above, thin&ar the members of the REIT and their Affilie
may engage in or possess an interest in otherdassirentures of every nature and description f&ir twn account, independently or with
others, including real estate business venturesthehn or not such other enterprises shall be inpatition with any activities of the Fund; and
neither the Fund nor the other Partners shall bayeright by virtue of this Agreement in and to lsiredependent ventures or to the income or
profits derived therefrom.

ARTICLE VII

ASSIGNMENTS, WITHDRAWAL AND REMOVAL OF THE GENERAIPARTNER

7.01. Assignment or Withdrawal by the Gen®aitner. The General Partner may not Transfer its Intenesvhole or in
part, or withdraw from the Fund, except as permitig this Article VII.

7.02. Voluntary Assignment or Withdrawal bétGeneral Partner; Acquisition of the Generalrieart (a) Except as
provided below or in Section 7.03 hereof or Seclid hereof, the General Partner may not Traritsfénterest or voluntarily withdraw from
the Fund, without the Consent of the Advisory Cotteei Notwithstanding the foregoing or any oth@vjsion herein to the contrary, the
following shall not be considered violations ofstlection 7.02 or any other provision of this Agneet, shall not require the Consent of the
Advisory Committee and are expressly permittedla (T'ransfer pursuant to Section 7.02(b), (ii) @ngnsfer by the General Partner to one or
more Affiliates of the General Partner, employefethe General Partner or its Affiliates (* Emploge® Immediate Family Relatives of the
Principals or Employees, trusts for the benefiam§ such Persons or family charitable foundatiores avhich any such Person has direction
(any such Person, a * Permitted Transféjemd (iii) a pledge by the General Partner of diwributions receivable by it hereunder that does
not give the pledgee the right to be admitted siscaessor General Partner or other Partner; prdyidewever, that the foreclosure of any s
pledge shall be treated as a material breach bg#meral Partner of this Agreement. In the evesit the General Partner intends to Transfi
Interest to a Permitted Transferee in accordante elause (ii) above, such Permitted Transfere#t Bhaadmitted as a successor General
Partner immediately prior to the effective timetleé Transfer and such successor General Partnecshtinue the business of the Fund
without dissolution. Such Permitted Transferedl sfemsubject to the provisions of this SectionZ7abd all other provisions of this Agreement
applicable to the General Partner.

(b) At any time in connection with a Fgblransaction, the General Partner may Transsdnterest pursuant to the
terms of the GP Acquisition Agreement. Immediafaipr to the effective time of such Transfer, aoli§rowned subsidiary of the REIT shall
be admitted as a successor General Partner andscosssor General Partner shall continue the éssiof the Fund.

7.03. Bankruptcy of the General Partnéa) Upon the Bankruptcy or dissolution of heneral Partner, (x) the General
Partner or its legal representative shall give
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notice to the REIT and the Class A Members of sagnt and shall automatically, with or without glefly of such notice, cease to be the
general partner of the Fund and shall no longee lpewer, authority or responsibility to bind thenBor to make decisions concerning, or
manage or control, the affairs of the Fund or htheeobligations or liabilities of a general partoéthe Fund under this Agreement or under
applicable law, and the recorded certificate offhad shall be amended to reflect such fact, apdt(the election of the REIT_( providéuat
no such election shall be effective unless it ingamted to by a majority of the Class A Percentaggests of the Class A Members, excluding
for this purpose any Class A Percentage Interdsiffitiates of the General Partner), within ningt§0) days of the date of the event that ca
such cessation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of théTR#hall be admitted to the Fund as a successoef@eRartner (effective as of the date of
the Bankruptcy or dissolution of the prior Gendtalttner) and such successor shall continue thedsssbf the Fund without dissolution. If a
successor General Partner is not admitted to thd Rithin such ninety (90) day period, the Fundistiasolve in accordance with Article X.
If a successor General Partner is selected andtadinhd the Fund within such ninety (90) day peritbén on the date of such admission the
REIT (or a subsidiary thereof) shall acquire therfer General Partner (or, if the former Generatriearhas been dissolved, the REIT shall
acquire its Interest in the Fund) in accordancé Wit terms of the GP Acquisition Agreement. Théeg, all distributions hereunder shall be
made to the REIT and the successor General Pamn&ipro rata basis in accordance with their Ce@ibmmitments, Article V hereof shall
automatically, and without any further action, leeihed amended to reflect such change and thiso8é&c03(a) shall automatically, and
without any further action, be deemed amended leteléhe penultimate sentence thereof.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, ifecsessor General Partner is selected and admittise =und within the ninety
(90) day period referred to in Section 7.03(a) beeamd prior to the date of the admission of sugttessor General Partner, the Class A
Members have elected to defer the acquisition byREIT of the former General Partner or its Intefestwo (2) years and to convert the
Interest of the former General Partner to that binaited Partner pursuant to Section 7.02(a) ofRiEdT LLC Agreement, then on the date of
such admission (i) the Interest of the former Geheartner shall be converted to the Interestldgfrated Partner having the same rights as to
distributions (including the right to receive threeéntive Distribution pursuant to Section 5.02(@)eof) and allocations of Profits and Losses
hereunder and the same recontribution obligati@ensunder as the former General Partner (upon suorecsion the former General Partner
if it has been dissolved, the holders of the irgiréherein) shall be referred to herein as a “@Bpeanited Partner” and such Interest as so
converted shall be referred to herein as the Iasterea Special Limited Partner), (ii) Article Vieof and Schedule D hereto shall automatic
and without any further action, be deemed amendleefiect such conversion and (iii) the DispositReriod shall commence (in the event that
it has not previously commenced in accordance thighterms hereof). If the Interest of the formen€ral Partner is converted to that of a
Special Limited Partner pursuant to this Secti@38{h), then on the second anniversary of the dateecadmission of the successor General
Partner the REIT (or a subsidiary thereof) shaliuixe the former General Partner (or if the fori@@neral Partner has been dissolved, the
REIT shall acquire its Interest in the Fund) in@dance with the terms of the GP Acquisition Agreain

38




7.04. Removal of the General Partnéa) Upon a removal of the director of the RBLirsuant to Section 7.02(b),
Section 7.02(c) or Section 7.02(d) of the REIT LA@reement, with the Consent of sixty-six and twieth percent (66-2/3%) of the Class A
Percentage Interests of the Class A Members (exgjudr this purpose the Class A Percentage Intefsany Affiliates of the General
Partner), the REIT may send notice (a “Removal ¢é¢djito the General Partner that it shall be rendoa® general partner of the Fund. Upon
delivery of a Removal Notice to the General Parinexccordance with the immediately preceding se@eéhe General Partner shall resign as
general partner of the Fund provided that no seofowal shall be effective earlier than (x) fiftg@®) days after receipt of such notice by the
General Partner and (y) the date that a successwer@l Partner is admitted pursuant to the pravisaf Section 7.06 hereof. Any such
successor General Partner shall be a wholly-ownbsdidiary of the REIT.

(b) On the effective date of a removaihaf General Partner pursuant to Section 7.04¢&phehe REIT (or a
subsidiary thereof) shall acquire the removed Garfeartner in accordance with the terms of the @Rufsition Agreement. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, if the Class A Members have eletbedefer the acquisition by the REIT of the remo@heral Partner for two (2) years and to
convert the Interest of the removed General Pattntrat of a Limited Partner pursuant to Sectidi2{b), Section 7.02(c) or Section 7.02(d
the REIT LLC Agreement, then on the effective daftéhe removal (i) the Interest of the removed GahBartner shall be converted to the
Interest of a Special Limited Partner having thmeaights as to distributions (including the righhtreceive the Incentive Distribution pursuant
to Section 5.02(e) hereof) and allocations of Bsafind Losses hereunder and the same recontritafflayations hereunder as the removed
General Partner, (ii) Article V hereof and Schedilkereto shall automatically, and without anyliertaction, be deemed amended to reflect
such conversion and (iii) the Disposition Periodlsbommence (in the event that it has not prejoaemmenced in accordance with the te
hereof). If the Interest of the removed Generatrigal is converted to that of a Special LimitedtPar pursuant to this Section 7.04(b), then on
the second anniversary of the effective date ofé¢heoval the REIT (or a subsidiary thereof) sheatjudre the removed General Partner in
accordance with the terms of the GP Acquisitionegnent.

7.05. Obligations of a Prior General Partném the event that the General Partner Trangfeentire Interest in
accordance with Section 7.02 or is acquired (oritsdsiterest acquired) by the REIT pursuant to@keAcquisition Agreement, it shall have
further obligation or liability as a general partioé the Fund pursuant to this Agreement in corinaatith any obligations or liabilities arising
from and after such Transfer or acquisition, ah@wath future obligations and liabilities shall auatically cease and terminate and be of no
further force or effect; providechowever, that nothing contained herein shall be deemedlieve the former General Partner of any
obligations or liabilities (i) arising prior to sadransfer or acquisition or (ii) resulting fromdesolution of the Fund caused by the act of the
General Partner to the extent liability is impos@dn the General Partner by law or by the provsiofthis Agreement.
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7.06. Successor General Partnér Person shall be admitted as a General Paotrigrif the following terms and
conditions are satisfied:

€) the Person shall have accepted arekddo be bound by all the terms and provisiorthisfAgreement by
executing a counterpart hereof and such other dentsvor instruments as may be required or apprtegnaorder to effect the admission of
such Person as a General Partner;

(b) a certificate evidencing the admiesid such Person as a General Partner shall hareftbed in accordance with
the Act;

(c) if the successor General Partnerdsraoration, it shall have provided counsel fa Bund with a certified copy o
resolution of its Board of Directors and, if reqady the consent of the shareholders, authorizitghecome a General Partner;

(d) if the successor General Partneptsarcorporation but is a partnership, limited iliocompany or other entity, it
shall provide counsel for the Fund with a certifesgy of its organizational documents, togethehwgrtified copies of any actions authorizing
it to become a General Partner; and

(e) with respect to an admission in catioe with a Transfer of the General Partner’s fi@$¢ pursuant to Section 7.02
(a) hereof, counsel for the Fund shall have rertlaneopinion that such Transfer will result in athouation of the Fund as a non-publicly-
traded partnership for U.S. federal income tax pses.

The former General Partner shall reasonably cotpéodacilitate the substitution of the succesSeneral Partner, even
where the General Partner was removed for Caudestaall be reimbursed for its reasonable costsapdnses relating thereto.

ARTICLE VIII

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE REIT

8.01. Management of the Fund’he REIT may not take part in the managemenbatrol of the business of the Fund or
transact any business in the name of the Funeifigbunderstood that this restriction is not inthtb limit the ability of a Class A Member
that is a member of the Advisory Committee to jggptite in its capacity as such in the activitieshef Advisory Committee). The REIT shall
not have the power or authority to bind the Funtbaign any agreement or document in the nameeoFund. The REIT shall not have any,
power or authority with respect to the Fund, ex@spprovided in the Act and insofar as the Conseapproval of the REIT shall be expressly
required by this Agreement. The exercise of anthefrights and powers of the REIT pursuant toAbeor the terms of this Agreement shall
not be deemed taking part in the day-to-day affaithe Fund or the exercise of control over Fulffigiics.
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8.02. Limitation on Liability

€) The REIT shall not have any liabilitycontribute money to the Fund, nor shall the RIe# personally liable for al
obligations of the Fund, except to the extent®fdapital Commitment and as otherwise providedeictiSns 5.02(h) and 8.02(b) hereof. No
Partner shall be obligated to make loans to thallumd no Partner shall be obligated to repay td-thwl, any Partner or any creditor of the
Fund all or any fraction of any amounts distributeduch Partner, except as specifically requirggymnt to Section 5.02(g), Section 5.02
(h) and/or Section 8.02(b) hereof.

(b) In accordance with state law, a ledipartner of a partnership may, under certairunistances, be required to
return to the partnership for the benefit of panrth@ creditors amounts previously distributedttasi a return of capital. It is the intent of the
Partners that a distribution to any Partner be @égkeacompromise within the meaning of Section 1Zd50of the Act and not a return or
withdrawal of capital, even if such distributiorpresents, for U.S. federal income tax purposest@raise (in full or in part), a distribution of
capital, and the REIT shall not be obligated to aay such amount to or for the account of the Famahy creditor of the Fund, except as
provided in this Section 8.02. However, if any kaf competent jurisdiction holds that, notwitheding the provisions of this Agreement, the
REIT is obligated to make any such payment, sudigation shall be the obligation of the REIT and nbthe General Partner.

8.03. Power of Attorney

€) The REIT hereby makes, constitutesappoints the General Partner and/or its authdigfiicers and agents,
successors and assigns, as its true and lawfuhajten-fact with full power and authority in iteme, place and stead to make, complete,
execute, sign, acknowledge, deliver, file and ré@irthe appropriate public offices such documaatmay be necessary or appropriate to cari
out the provisions of this Agreement, including fokkowing with respect to the Fund:

() all certificates, other agreememntd amendments thereto which the General Partnenslaecessary to
form, continue or otherwise qualify the Fund asratéd partnership in each jurisdiction in whicke thund conducts or may conduct
business or in connection with any tax filingsloé Fund and any election to treat the Fund astagyahip for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, and the REIT specifically authorizesGbeeral Partner to execute, sign, acknowledgeyeatelile and record any
amendments to the Certificate of Limited Partngrstiithe Fund as required by the A



(i) this Agreement, counterparts heraofl amendments hereto authorized pursuant to rimes teereof
(including any amendments automatically effectedspant to Section 7.03 or Section 7.04 hereof);

(iii) all instruments which the Generartdar deems necessary to effect the admissiorGafreeral Partner
pursuant to Section 7.06, the redemption or
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transfer of the Interest of the REIT (or a portibareof) pursuant to Article IX hereof or the disdimn and liquidation of the Fund in
accordance with the provisions hereof;

(iv) all appointments of agents for seevaf process and attorneys for service of procddéshithe General
Partner deems necessary or appropriate in connagtib the organization and qualification of thenBuand the conduct of its
business; and

(v) all certificates, consents, instrutsemgreements and other documents (and any ametgitoeany of the
foregoing) which the General Partner deems necgssa&ffect a Public Transaction, to sell all obstantially all of the assets of the
Fund or to cause the Fund to merge with anothesdRer

(b) The foregoing power of attorney isdi®y declared to be irrevocable and coupled witmterest, and it shall
survive the Bankruptcy, dissolution or cessatiopxist of the REIT to the fullest extent permittadlaw and shall extend to its successors anc
assigns.

(c) The power of attorney granted to@eneral Partner shall not apply to Consents oRIBE or the Advisory
Committee provided for in this Agreement.

(d) The REIT further agrees to executamgtly any and all documents or instruments refetoein this Section 8.03 if
the power of attorney granted hereunder is rendaegftective by the provisions of the Act or if teneral Partner in its reasonable discretior
S0 requests execution by the REIT and the samersitdbe inconsistent with the provisions hereof.

8.04. Waiver of Action for Partition Each of the parties hereto irrevocably waivesnduthe term of the Fund any right
that it may have to maintain any action for pastitivith respect to any assets of the Fund.

8.05. Confidentiality (a) The REIT and its members agree that, exceptsifped in Section 8.05(b) below neither
REIT nor its members shall disclose without th@pcdonsent of the General Partner (other thanddBIT's or any of its members’
employees, auditors, consultants, or counsel peaviiat such disclosure is made in confidence halll Ise kept in confidence) (i) the identity
of other members of the REIT and their Affiliates (ii) any information with respect to the FunldetGeneral Partner or the REIT (including
this Agreement, the REIT LLC Agreement, any amenus® either thereof, the terms hereof and themadfall exhibits and schedules heretc
and thereto and information regarding any Fundstment and/or any Person in which the Fund holdspotemplates acquiring, any Fund
Investment) received by the REIT or such membesymmt to this Agreement or the REIT LLC Agreemeardrmy other information disclosed
to the REIT or such member about the Fund or thE' RE each case to the extent any such informatarot generally available to the public
(collectively, “Non-Public Information”), it beinggreed that such Non-Public Information is striciyfidential and proprietary.
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(b) Notwithstanding Section 8.05(a) ahdine REIT and any of its members may disclose Rohlic Information if
each of the conditions described in the followitases (i), (i) and (iii) is satisfied:

0] such Non-Public Information (A) isquired for submission to any municipal, stateatramal (including
foreign) regulatory body having or claiming to hawasdiction over the REIT or such member, (Bjaguired in response to any
summons or subpoena or in connection with anyaliitio or other legal process (including pursuarthe®United States Freedom of
Information Act, as amended, any similar state &ime” law or any other comparable law or regutgtinvolving the REIT or such
member, or (C) is otherwise necessary in ordeotopty with any law, order, regulation, ruling ohet governmental request
applicable to the REIT or such member;

(i) prior to any such disclosure pursiuanclauses (i)(A), (i)(B), or (i)(C) above, thé&eR” or such member, as
the case may be, shall provide the General Pantitieradvance written notice so that the Generalreamay seek a protective order,
other appropriate remedy, or other reliable assirdimat confidential treatment will be accordedrgmuested or required information
(and the REIT or such member will cooperate with@eneral Partner’s efforts to obtain an appropiabtective order, other
appropriate remedy, or other reliable assurandecth#idential treatment will be accorded the resjad or required information); and

(iii) in the event that the General Partisaunable to obtain such a protective order bentemedy or
assurance, and as a result the REIT or such méamiegyally compelled to disclose any NBmblic Information, then the REIT or st
member, as applicable, shall (x) disclose only pmation of the information (including, without litation, by way of redaction) which
is legally required to be disclosed, and (y) consith the General Partner regarding the extehefinformation that is legally
required to be disclosed.

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, in #ent that, as a result of a Class A Member's oginp of Class A
Membership Units, and after reasonable attempthéyund to mitigate the circumstances, the Fuid ieay be constrained in any respect in
its ability to make any Qualified Investment oraietany Fund Investment, then, to the fullest ebxgpemmitted by applicable law, such Class A
Member shall not be entitled to have access targoymation or documents with respect to the partid the business of such Qualified
Investment or Fund Investment, as the case mathakegives rise to such constraint, to the exteasonably necessary to remove such
constraint, and such Class A Member and the GeRaraher shall use their reasonable efforts in daitd to negotiate an arrangement with
objective of permitting the Fund to make or retsuich Investment. In addition, to protect the demsnature of the information described in
Section 8.05(a), the General Partner and the direttthe REIT may make all or certain confideniidbrmation unavailable to all or certain
Class A Members, in some cases based on the sfatusse Class A Members.
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(d) Notwithstanding anything in the fooéng or anything else contained in this Agreemtrd,REIT LLC Agreement,
the Subscription Agreements (as defined in the REIT Agreement) or the Private Placement Memoranémthe REIT to the contrary,
except as reasonably necessary to comply with ggigdé securities laws, each of the parties hesatd its employees, representatives or other
agents) may disclose to any and all Persons, witiraitation of any kind, the tax treatment and &sucture of the offering and ownership of
the Interests and the membership units of the RiBduding the tax treatment and tax structurergf Bund transactions) and all materials of
any kind (including opinions and other tax analyskat are provided to such party with respeciuchdax treatment and tax structure.

ARTICLE IX

VOLUNTARY TRANSFER OF THE REITS INTEREST

9.01. Transfers The REIT may not Transfer its Interest in the@&without the prior written Consent of the General
Partner which Consent the General Partner may gramithhold in its discretion.

9.02. Substitute Limited PartneA transferee of the whole or any portion of REEIT’s Interest in the Fund pursuant to
Section 9.01 hereof shall have the right to becarBeibstitute Limited Partner in place of its transf only if all of the following conditions a
satisfied:

€) the fully executed and acknowledgeitt@n instrument of Transfer, in a form reasonadayisfactory to the General
Partner, has been filed with the Fund,;

(b) the transferee executes, adopts ekoavliedges this Agreement and a Subscription Agege without condition ¢
modification;

(c) any reasonable costs of Transferriecuby the Fund are paid to the Fund; and

(d) the General Partner shall have Caeskin writing to the substitution, which Consem General Partner may gr:

or withhold in its discretion.

9.03. Involuntary Withdrawal by the REIT

(a) Upon the Bankruptcy or dissolutiorotiier cessation of existence of the REIT, the@nighd representative of su
entity shall have all the rights of a Limited Partrfior the purpose of effecting the orderly windiqgand disposition of the business of such
entity and such power as such entity possessegkigrihte a successor as a transferee of its Interdgo join with such transferee in making
application to substitute such transferee as atfutiesLimited Partner.

(b) The Bankruptcy, dissolution or otkessation to exist of the REIT shall not dissolvéeominate the Fund.
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9.04. Partial Redemption of the RETnterest If the REIT is required, pursuant to Section0P4b) of the REIT LLC
Agreement, to redeem all or a portion of the Claddembership Units of any Class A Member, then, iedmtely prior to the effective date of
such redemption, the Fund shall redeem the podidhe REIT’s Interest attributable to the ClasMAmbership Units to be redeemed for a
price equal to the price required to be paid byRE&T for such Class A Membership Units, which meg¢ion shall be effected in the manne
which the redemption of such Class A Membershipdwill be effected by the REIT.

ARTICLE X

DISSOLUTION AND LIQUIDATION; CONTINUATION

10.01. _Dissolution The Fund shall be dissolved upon the first touo©f any one of the following:

€)) an election to dissolve the Fund &lmby the General Partner with the Consent oR&EE ( providedthat no such
Consent shall be effective unless a majority ofGifess A Percentage Interests of the Class A Mesrtieere Consented thereto);

(b) an election to dissolve the Fund &by the General Partner after the reductiomasb of all or substantially all
the Fund Investments of the Fund,;

(c) subject to the provisions of Artidld, the Bankruptcy, dissolution, removal or otlvéthdrawal of the General
Partner or the sale, transfer or assignment btreeral Partner of its Interest in the Fund; or

(d) any other event causing dissolutibthe Fund under the Act.

10.02. _Liquidation

€) Upon dissolution of the Fund, thedidator shall wind up the affairs of the Fund apegditiously as business
circumstances allow and proceed within a reasonadaied of time to sell or otherwise liquidate #esets of the Fund and, after paying or
making due provision by the setting up of resefeesll Indebtedness and other liabilities of then#, distribute the assets among the Partner
in accordance with the provisions for the makinglistributions set forth in this Article X. Notwistanding the foregoing, in the event that the
Liguidator shall, in its absolute discretion, detére that a sale or other disposition of part bohthe Fund Investments would cause undue
loss to the Partners or otherwise be impractibal Liquidator may either defer liquidation of amyck Fund Investments and withhold
distributions relating thereto for a reasonablestior distribute part or all of such Fund Investisen the Partners in kind (utilizing the
principles of Section 5.03 and the valuation praced described herein). If the General Partneoighe Liquidator, the Fund shall not be
obligated to make any further payment of the Inwestt Management Fee effective as of the appointofesuch Liquidator.
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(b) No Partner shall be liable for theura of the Capital Contributions of other Parth@revided that this provision
shall not relieve any Partner of any other dutliaility it may have under this Agreement.

(c) Upon liquidation of the Fund, alltbe assets of the Fund, or the proceeds therefbafl, be distributed or used as
follows and in the following order of priority:
() for the payment of the debts andiliies of the Fund and the expenses of liquidatio
(i) to the setting up of any reservedahitthe Liquidator may deem reasonably necessargrfp contingent or

unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Fund;

(iii) to the Partners in proportion to thesitive balances in their Capital Accounts (deiaed after giving
effect to adjustments and anticipated adjustmen@alpital Accounts through completion of liquidatiof the Fund;_provided
that, for the purposes of determining the amoumtsetallocated in accordance with Section 5.01didoz the year in which
the liquidation occurs, amounts to be distributadspant to this Section 10.02(c)(iii) after sudlo@dtions are properly made
shall be treated as if such amounts had beenldig#d pursuant to Section 5.02(e) hereof withogiaure to this Section;
provided, further, that in such circumstances, to the extent carsistith the requirements of Sections 704(b) art{&1
(9) of the Code, the provisions of Section 5.0kbéshall be interpreted in each year during whiighFund operates in a
manner that will result in Capital Accounts beindeaels so that distributions among the Partne@cicordance with this
Section 10.02(c)(iii) will equal as closely as pbksthe distributions that would have been madsyant to Section 5.02
(e) hereof if Section 5.02(e) controlled all ligatohg distributions).

(d) When the Liquidator has complied vilike foregoing liquidation plan, the Partners skaéicute, acknowledge and
cause to be filed an instrument evidencing the eiaton of the Certificate of Limited Partnerstipthe Fund, at which time the Fund shall be
terminated.

ARTICLE Xl

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE GENERAL PARHR

The General Partner represents, warrants and cotgettathe REIT that as of the date hereof (or sthbr date as is set forth
below):

€) The Fund is a duly formed and valielkjsting corporation under the laws of the Stdt€alifornia with full power
and authority to conduct its business as contemgliat this Agreement.
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(b) The General Partner is a duly forraad validly existing corporation under the lawgtef State of California, with
full power and authority to perform its obligationsreunder.

(c) The REIT is a duly formed and valiélyisting limited liability company under the lawbkthe State of Delaware,
with full power and authority to perform its obligans hereunder.

(d) All action required to be taken by tBeneral Partner, the Fund and the REIT, as at@mmntb the issuance and si
of the Class A Membership Units being purchasethbyClass A Members has been taken and all negessasents relating thereto have beer
obtained; the Interest of the REIT represents g dnél validly issued limited partnership interesttie Fund; the REIT is entitled to all the
benefits of a Limited Partner under this Agreensent the Act; the Class A Interest (as defined @RIEIT LLC Agreement) of each Class A
Member represents a duly and validly issued limiigility company interest in the REIT; and eadass A Member is entitled to all the
benefits of a Class A Member under the REIT LLC égnent and the Delaware Limited Liability Comparst.A

(e) This Agreement has been duly autledrizxecuted and delivered by the General Partrterugpon due
authorization, execution and delivery by the REAil| constitute the valid and legally binding agneent of the General Partner enforceable in
accordance with its terms against the General 8artn

As of the date thereof and as ofdaée hereof, the Private Placement MemorandurthéoREIT (together with ar
and all amendments thereto and restatements thetlees not contain any untrue statement of a mahfact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made thereightrof the circumstances in which they were manbé¢ misleading, except that the
descriptions therein of this Agreement and the RHEIT Agreement and the provisions hereof and thesie® superseded in their entirety by
this Agreement and the REIT LLC Agreement.

(9) Assuming the accuracy of the repret@ms made by each Class A Member pursuant tboBetl.01 of the REIT
LLC Agreement and the Subscription Agreements &ismed in the REIT LLC Agreement) of the Class Ariteers, the offer and sale of the
Class A Membership Units do not require registrattb such membership units under the Securities Act
ARTICLE XII

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTS

12.01. _Books and RecordsThe General Partner shall maintain at the officehe Fund (a) full and accurate books of the
Fund (which at all times shall remain the propeiftthe Fund), in the name of the Fund and separadeapart from the books of the General
Partner and its Affiliates, showing all receiptslaxpenditures, assets and liabilities, profits lasdes, and (b) all other books, records and
information required by the Act or necessary faoreing
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the Fund’s business and affairs. The Farmboks and records shall be maintained in accosdaith generally accepted accounting princip
The books of account and records of the Fund bleadludited as of the end of each Fiscal Year bgifbel& Touche LLP or another nationally
recognized independent certified public accountimg selected by the General Partner, in its disone

Each Class A Member shall, upon not less than BL8)ness Days’ prior written notice to the Gen&aittner, be afforded
full and complete access to all records and bodkscount of the Fund during reasonable businessstend, at such hours, shall have the |
of inspection and copying of such records and badkscount, at its expense. Each Class A Mentiat Bave the right to audit such records
and books of account by an accountant of its chaiiées expense. The General Partner shall reaonaoperate with any Class A Member or
its agents in connection with any review or auélithe Fund or its records and books. The GeneaghBr shall retain all records and books
relating to the Fund for a period of at least f{ge years after the termination of the Fund andl shereafter destroy such records and books a
the General Partner shall determine, in its digumet

12.02. _Tax Matters Partne(a) The General Partner shall be designadtathmatters partner of the Fund (“* TR)P
within the meaning of Section 6231(a)(7) of the €Eod’he REIT agrees that, to the extent permitield, (i) any action taken by the TMP in
connection with any administrative or judicial peeding in relation to taxes with respect to th@me of the Fund will be binding upon the
REIT, (i) the REIT will not act independently imenection with any administrative or judicial predéng in relation to taxes with respect to
the income of the Fund and (iii) the REIT will ric¢at any Fund item of income, gain, loss, deductiocredit on any tax return in a manner
that is inconsistent with the treatment of suchd-it@m on a tax return filed by the Fund.

(b) The Fund shall indemnify and reimleutise TMP and the Investment Manager for (i) aflenses, including legal
and accounting fees, claims, liabilities, losses damages incurred in connection with any admiatiste or judicial proceeding with respect to
the tax liability of the Partners or in connectisith any audit of the Fund’s income tax returng;ept to the extent such expenses, claims,
liabilities, losses and damages are attributabtaeagyross negligence or willful misconduct of iHdP, or the breach by the TMP of its
obligations set forth in this Agreement to the aktguch breach results in a material loss to thedrand (ii) any taxes imposed on the Fund, th
General Partner or the Investment Manager in résgebe Fund$ operations or activities (other than income tgpasble in respect of Prof
properly allocated to the General Partner or Irmestt Management Fees payable to the InvestmentdéanaThe payment of all such
expenses to which the indemnification applies dalnade before any distributions pursuant to 8ecéi02. Neither the General Partner, nor
any of its Affiliates, nor any other Person shall/é any obligation to provide funds for such pugo$he taking of any action and the incur
of any expense by the TMP in connection with arghsoroceeding, except to the extent required by isa matter in the reasonable discretiol
of the TMP and the provisions on limitations obiliity of the General Partner and indemnificati@t rth in Section 6.05 of this Agreement
shall be fully applicable to the TMP in its capgas such.
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12.03. _Reports to Partners(a) The General Partner shall cause to beapee and furnished to the REIT and, other than
the information described in clause (i) below, dole Class A Member, at the Fund’s expense but sutgjeSection 6.06(b) hereof, with respect
to each Fiscal Year of the Fund:

0] the information necessary for thegaration by the REIT of its U.S. federal and staité other income tax
returns;

(i) an audited balance sheet, incomeestant, statements of cash flows and Partners't@lapicounts
prepared in accordance with generally accepteduaticy principles and a copy of the auditor’s lettemanagement; and

(iii) such other information as the Geh&artner deems reasonably necessary for the Bldssmbers to be
advised of the current status of the Fund andusiness.

The General Partner shall use reasonable effodause the foregoing to be furnished to the REd the Class A Members within one hunc
twenty (120) days after the close of each Fiscarté the Fund.

(b) The General Partner shall cause tprepared and furnished to the REIT and each Gladember, at the Fund'’s
expense but subject to Section 6.06(b) hereof, redpect to each fiscal quarter (other than, végipect to the unaudited financial statements,
the Fund’s last fiscal quarter) of each Fiscal Yaaunaudited report prepared in accordance witlergdly accepted accounting principles,
which includes for the quarter and year to datalarite sheet, an income statement, a statemeasbflows and:

0] time-weighted returns for the Furadoulated in a manner consistent with industry déads;

(i) summaries of the material termsanfd other participants (if any) in, the Fund Inwestits acquired by the
Fund during such fiscal quarter and the identifarabf any entities formed by the Fund in connettidth such acquisitions;

(iii) a list of Fund Investments disposs#diuring such fiscal quarter and a summary ofrtfa¢erial terms of the
disposition transactions relating thereto;

(iv) a statement of Investment Managenfe®s paid during such fiscal quarter; and

(v) a tracking report stating the Funcbsnpliance with the debt limit set forth in Sect@@3(e) hereof

including an explanation of how the General Parteached such determination and the General Pargsimate as to the
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Fund’s projected debt levels and projected compéaor nonecompliance with the debt limit set forth in Secti®03(e) herec
as of the close of the fiscal quarter in whichdliarterly report is issued.

The General Partner shall use reasonable effodause the foregoing to be furnished to the REd @lass A Members within forty-five (45)
days after the close of each of the first threeafisjuarters, and within ninety (90) days afterdluse of the final fiscal quarter.

(c) The General Partner shall promptltifpghe Class A Members of (i) any lawsuit or légeoceeding filed against
the General Partner or any of its Affiliates oriagaany Principal that is Affiliated with the GeakPartner at such time, (ii) any Securities an
Exchange Commission or other governmental bodysstigation of the General Partner or its Affileiter of any Principal that is Affiliated
with the General Partner at such time, (iii) anphraptcy filing by or against the General Partneit® Affiliates or by any Principal that is
Affiliated with the General Partner at such timel &iv) any filings by the General Partner with ®ecurities and Exchange Commission or
similar governmental bodies (and shall supply toG@ttass A Members copies of such filings), in eaath case described in clauses (i) througl
(iv), only to the extent the General Partner reabbndetermines the same may have or may disclosetaal or likely material adverse effect
on the General Partner’s ability to perform itsigéfions hereunder.

12.04. _Safekeeping of Fundd'he General Partner shall have fiduciary resibditg for the safekeeping of all funds of the
Fund and the General Partner shall not employ &uwais in any manner except for the benefit of thad= All funds of the Fund not otherwise
invested shall be deposited in one or more accauaistained in such banking institution as the Galneartner shall determine in the name of
the Fund and not in the name of the General Parkmwithdrawals from the Fund’s accounts shadltbade upon checks or instructions
signed by the General Partner (or by electroniastier authorized electronically by an authorizespe of the General Partner). The Fund’s
funds shall not be commingled with the funds of athyer Person nor shall such funds be employetidyseneral Partner as compensating
balances other than in respect of the Fund’s bongsv

ARTICLE XllI

AMENDMENTS AND MEETINGS

13.01. _Amendment Proceduré’he amendment procedure is as follows:

(a) Amendments to this Agreement mayfop@sed by the General Partner or, with the Congfethiirty-three and one-
third percent (33-1/3%) of the Class A Percentagerésts of the Class A Members (excluding for phigpose the Class A Percentage Interes
of any Affiliate of the General Partner), by thelRE

(b) A proposed amendment will be adopted effective only if it receives the Consent @ tBeneral Partner and the
Consent of the REIT ( providetat no such Consent shall be effective unlessjarityeof the Class A Percentage Interests of thes€A
Members
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(excluding for this purpose the Class A Percentatgrest of any Affiliate of the General Partneayh Consented thereto), except that

(i) amendments may be adopted solely upon the @or$e¢he General Partner to (A) effect changes ofinisterial nature which do not
increase the authority of the General Partner vemsetly affect the rights of the REIT and (B) delet add any provision of this Agreement
required to be so deleted or added by a stateiseswdommission or similar agency, which addit@rdeletion is deemed by such commission
or agency to be for the benefit or protection & timited Partner, (ii) any provision requiring @esified Consent may only be amended with
the same Consent, (iii) in the event that the Garfeartner is required pursuant to Section 15.0&df¢o operate the Fund so that it will be
treated as a REOC, any amendment of this Agreethahtvould have material adverse consequences@uisider ERISA for ERISA Membe
(as defined in the REIT LLC Agreement) shall alsquire the Consent of at least sevelintg-percent (75%) of the Class A Percentage Iste
of the ERISA Members, and (iv) no amendment sinalidase the liability or Capital Commitment of atRer, or change (A) the capital
contributions required by a Partner, (B) exceghtoextent permitted pursuant to Section 13.01€c@df, the rights and interests of a Partner i
the Profits, Losses or Distributable Proceeds eftfind, (C) the voting rights of a Partner or (¥ tights of a Partner with respect to the
continuation or liquidation of the Fund, in eacls&awithout the Consent of such affected Partnat flasuch Partner is the REIT, without the
consent of each affected Class A Member).

(c) In addition to any amendments othsenauthorized herein, and notwithstanding anyttortye contrary in
Section 13.01, the General Partner, without thesennof the REIT, shall amend the provisions of thijreement relating to the allocations of
Profits or Losses or items thereof (including narable receipts or non-deductible expendituresy@dits among the Partners in a manner
having the least possible effect on such provisibtie Fund is advised at any time by the Fundtependent certified public accountants or
legal counsel that in their opinion such amendmargsnecessary to give such provisions a basishichveuch allocations would be respected
for U.S. federal income tax purposes or if necgssaras to cause the Capital Accounts of the Partetethe time of liquidation of the Fund to
be in proportion to the amounts which would beritisted if liquidating proceeds available to betdlmited to Partners were distributed in
accordance with Section 5.02(e) hereof rather 8extion 10.02(c) hereof; providetiowever, that no such amendments shall affect the ci
contribution or distribution provisions of this Aggment or cause the cash distributions to any &atdrfail to satisfy the intent of
Section 10.02(c)(iii) hereof. Any such amendmentimby the General Partner in reliance upon thizaad the accountants or legal counsel
described above shall be deemed to be made in @moplwith the obligations of the General Partoghe Fund and the REIT, and no such
amendment shall give rise to any claim or causectbn by the REIT.

13.02. _Exceptions (a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Secti@01, the Consent of all the REIT (with the Cons#n
all of the Class A Members) will be required to pdan amendment if such amendment would:

0] expand the purposes of the Fundei$osth in Section 3.01(a) or amend Sections 2)03(3.01 or 13.02
hereof;
51
(i) directly or indirectly affect or jeopardize thetsimof the Fund as a partnership for U.S. fede@me tax
purposes; or
(iii) amend Section 6.05 hereof.
(b) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisr&gment, in connection with a Public Transactibe,General

Partner may amend any provision of this Agreemeiat inanner that is reasonably necessary or adeisabdetermined by the underwriters or
financial advisors with respect to the Public Temt®n, to (x) effect the Public Transaction anel ¢bntinuation of the Fund, as a public
company or a subsidiary thereof and (y) achievehigbest value for the Class A Membership Units/anthe Interests in the Fund, without
Consent of the REIT or any Class A Member; provithed the material terms of each such amendmer begn disclosed in writing to the
Advisory Committee in accordance with Section 14eQ4ereof.

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contraryy amendments that are effected automatically puisioa
Section 7.03 or Section 7.04(b) hereof shall nqtire the Consent of any Partner.

13.03. Meetings and Voting

(a) Meetings of the Class A Members may be called byGkneral Partner for any purpose permitted by this
Agreement. The General Partner shall give all ChasMembers notice of the purpose of each propaseeting and any votes to be conducted
at such meeting not less than thirty (30) dayseetite meeting. Meetings shall be held at a time@ace reasonably selected by the Genera
Partner. Class Members may participate in meetiygsonference call provided that all parties caartand speak with each other.

(b) The General Partner shall, where feasible, saligjtired Consents of the Class A Members unde®fiisement b
written ballot or, if a written ballot is not fed$®, at a meeting held pursuant to Section 13.03(&yonsents are solicited by written ballot, the
Class A Members shall return said ballots to thadgeal Partner within thirty (30) days after receigtith respect to any such Consent, the
General Partner may, without holding a meetingestdbed in Section 13.03(a), obtain the Consetti®lass A Members holding the
percentage interests required for such Consent,ugmh obtaining such Consent and delivering ndtieeeof to the Class A Members, the
REIT and the Class A Members shall be bound thereby

ARTICLE XIV



ADVISORY COMMITTEE

14.01. Selection of the Advisory CommitteeThe General Partner shall select a committesistimg of between one
(1) and fifteen (15) members representing certd@is<CA Members (an “ Advisory Committ&e provided, however, that no member of the
Advisory Committee shall be an Affiliate of the Geal Partner. Any member of the Advisory Committee
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may resign by giving the General Partner thirty) (@8ys’ prior written notice. Additionally, if an§lass A Member whose representative is a
member of the Advisory Committee becomes a “DefiagiilMember” under the REIT LLC Agreement, the Gah&artner may, in its
discretion, remove such Person’s representativa fhee Advisory Committee. Any vacancy in the Advis Committee (other than those
resulting from a change in a Class A Member's repnéative on the Advisory Committee, which shalfibbed by such Class A Member) shall
be promptly filled by the General Partner. The rhers of the Advisory Committee shall not receivg aampensation in connection with th
membership on the Advisory Committee; providédweveithat the members of the Advisory Committee shakiiitled to reimbursement
the Fund for their reasonable out-of-pocket expeirseurred in the performance of their respondibdiin their capacities as members of the
Advisory Committee. Each Class A Member seleotetthé Advisory Committee shall designate an indigidand a replacement thereof) tc
on the Advisory Committee as such Class A Memhepsesentative who shall (and shall be conclusipesumed to) have authority to act on
behalf of such Class A Member. The Advisory Conteitwill be formed within one hundred twenty (18@ys after the First Closing and rr
be increased in size after each Subsequent Closing.

14.02. Meetings of and Action by the Advisory Committed meeting of the Advisory Committee shall bechet least
once in every Fiscal Year, which will be referredas the “Annual Meeting,” and additional meetingsy be called by the General Partner on
not less than fifteen (15) days’ notice to all memsh(or such lesser time as is provided hereinghlvhotice shall include an agenda and a
summary of all matters to be considered or disclas¢hat meeting and shall also be called prompiyn the request of any two members of
the Advisory Committee. The General Partner siedignate the date, time and location of each mggetind shall make reasonable
accommodations for conflicts in schedules of AdssBommittee members, a majority of which shallst@ate a quorum. Members may
participate by conference call provided that attipa can hear and speak with each other and masewatice of any meeting before or after it
is held. Except as provided herein, in all instenahere an approval is required by the Advisorgpn@ittee, the Advisory Committee shall act
by affirmative vote of a majority of its memberEhe members of the Advisory Committee shall alevas a single class. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, (x) any and all actions and decisionthefAdvisory Committee may be taken and made litgamrconsent in lieu of a meeting (such
written consent to be by the requisite number ofnimers of the Advisory Committee whose consentdsiired) and (y) the Advisory
Committee may choose to appoint a designated reypiasv/e to act on its behalf with respect to gogcsfied issue or decision. Except where
approval of the Advisory Committee is required bg terms of this Agreement, the recommendatioriseoAdvisory Committee shall be
advisory only and shall not obligate the Generatriea to act in accordance therewith. NeitherAdgisory Committee nor any member
thereof shall have the power to bind or act foolbehalf of the Fund in any manner and in no esball a member of the Advisory
Committee be considered a general partner of thel By agreement, estoppel or otherwise, or be dééongarticipate in the control of the
business of the Fund as a result of the performahdaties hereunder or otherwise. The GenerahBaor its designated representative shall
be entitled to be present at all meetings of theigaty Committee although the General Partner stalbe entitled to vote on matters
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requiring the vote of the Advisory Committee an@uipequest of the Advisory Committee shall exctsefifrom the meeting until recalled.

14.03. Annual Meeting of Advisory Committee(a) At the Annual Meeting of the Advisory Conttae and to the extent
appropriate at other Advisory Committee meetinigs,General Partner and the Advisory Committee shisduss:

() the performance and operations of the Fund foptkeeding Fiscal Year, including fees paid, sewice
provided by, and transactions with Affiliates oét@eneral Partner, with all such information preddn accordance with AIMR
standards;

(i) all matters then requiring the Advisory Committegfroval;

(iii) new acquisitions and financings of Fund Investments

(iv) dispositions of Fund Investments;

(v) the financial statements and any appraisals andtiahs of the Fund and/or Fund Investments; and

(vi) any material defaults by the Fund or any subsidiaeyeof which have been declared by any lendéreo

Fund or a subsidiary thereof under the relevant ti@cuments.

(b) The General Partner shall use its best effortsdvige the members of the Advisory Committee astidifteen
(15) days prior to any meeting with written repartsall matters to be discussed at such meeting.

14.04. FEunctions of the Advisory CommitteeThe Advisory Committee shall have the followifngctions in addition to
those set forth elsewhere in this Agreement:

€) Except as provided in Section 6.04(b), the Advisbommittee shall promptly review and approve oagfgove in
advance any transactions by the Fund with the GéRerrtner or its Affiliates.

(b) On March 31, 2006 and annually on each March 3iEsetfter (the “Adjustment Date”), the Advisory Quittee
will have the right, by providing written notice the General Partner no later than 30 days follguwlre Adjustment Date, to suggest
amendments to Schedule B to this Agreement in dodegvise fees that, in the opinion of the Advis@ommittee, represent then-current
market rates for the types of services describefdmedule B, taking into account the nature ofréevant properties and the special services
required. In any instance in which the Generatriegairand the Advisory Committee cannot agree onhtee-current market rate for any such
service, taking into account the nature of thevaaié¢ properties and the special services requagch rate shall be determined by Experts ir
procedural manner set forth in Section 14.05 hemedfsuch rate, as so determined, shall then be
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substituted for the rate set forth on Schedule @sdrall be the fee schedule for all existing PrigpBelated Contracts entered into with
Affiliates of the General Partner effective astad Adjustment Date, and for all future Propertya®ed Contracts entered into with Affiliates of
the General Partner; providetiowever, that this position shall not alter the right b&tAdvisory Committee, as set forth in the firstteace o
this subsection, to suggest amendments to SchBdalkowing the next annual Adjustment Date.

(c) The Advisory Committee shall resolve issues invaivconflicts of interest to the extent not otheeysovided for
under this Agreement.

(d) 0] The General Partner shall submit to the Advisoryn@uttee the name of the initial auditors of the &un

Within thirty (30) days following June 1 of eachaydother than June 1, 2005), the Advisory Commigieall have the right
request that the General Partner provide the AdyiSommittee with the names of three (3) audit firfwhich may include
the Fund’s existing auditors and any former audittfrthe Fund). Upon its receipt of the nameshodd (3) audit firms from
the General Partner, the Advisory Committee shaliptly select one (1) of such firms to be the Fsididitors.

(i) With respect to each Fund Investment that is aifedlnvestment that has been included in at least
Valuation Report, within thirty (30) days followirtune 1 of each year, the Advisory Committee dfalke the right to reque
that the General Partner provide the Advisory Cottemiwith the names of three (3) Experts (which inajude any Expert
that has previously appraised such Fund Investfoetihe Fund). Upon its receipt of the names of¢h(3) Experts from the
General Partner, the Advisory Committee shall salae (1) of such Experts to be the Expert whoseatins will be
included in the Valuation Report with respect tats&und Investment.

(e) In connection with the occurrence of a Public Teati®n of the type described in clause (i) of tkéndtion of this
term herein, the Advisory Committee shall havertpht to approve the first chief executive offiadrthe REIT if he is not one of the
Principals. In addition, in connection with thecarence of any such Public Transaction, the GéRendner and the director of the REIT shall
consult with the Advisory Committee with respecttie terms of such transaction (it being understbatithe Advisory Committee shall have
no consent, approval, veto or similar rights witbgect to the occurrence of any such transactitimeeaerms thereof), and the Advisory
Committee shall have the right to engage advisdrdie expense of the Fund, to assist it with retsjpeany such consultation.

) The Advisory Committee shall have the right to ecéothe indemnification obligations of the Genédtaftner with
respect to the Fund under Section 6.05(a) herebibalf of the Fund and the indemnification obligas of the director of the REIT with
respect to the REIT under Section 6.04(a) of théTREC Agreement on behalf of the REIT.
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14.05. Valuations. Prior to the occurrence of a Public Transactiba,valuation methods set forth in this Sectior0%4
shall be used in determining the Fair Value (wlsbhll represent the Fund’s net value of each Famestment) and the Adjusted Fair Value
(which the gross value of each Fund Investmeng€agh Fund Investment and for any other purpodaisndgreement where there is a specific
reference to this Section 14.05. Both shall regmethe Fair Value and the Adjusted Fair Valuerof Bermitted Investment shall at all times
equal to the Cost of such Permitted Investment.

(a) The Fair Value of each Fund Investment (other th&ermitted Investment) will initially (from the quasition date
thereof to but excluding the first January 1 thétszaor, with respect to any Fund Investment acggiion or prior to December 31, 2005, the
second January 1 thereafter) be such Fund Invessr@ost (excluding any purchase money debt, detirmed, or debt taken subject to). For
the period from the acquisition date of any Fungebtment to but excluding the first January 1 thttee (or, with respect to any Fund
Investment acquired on or prior to December 315206 second January 1, thereafter), (w) the AéguBair Value of any Fund Investment
that is (i) a direct or indirect equity interestane or more real estate assets or (ii) a direttdirect interest in a mezzanine loan made to an
entity that holds directly or indirectly interestsone or more real estate assets, will be theymtoof the Underlying Asset Value (as hereina
defined) of such Fund Investment multiplied by Fusd’s Percentage (as hereinafter defined) witheetsto such Fund Investment, (x) the
“Fund’s Percentage” with respect to any such Furedtment shall be the Fusdelative portion of the total capital (i.e., éguand debt that
subordinate to, or pari passu with, the Fund’'s tyqui the Fund’s mezzanine loan, as applicablegsted in such Fund Investmentinderlyinc
real estate asset(s), (y) the Underlying Asset &alith respect to any Fund Investment that is ¢jract or indirect equity interest of less than
100% in one or more real estate assets or (iijecdor indirect interest in a mezzanine loan ntaden entity that holds direct or indirect
interests in one or more real estate assets sh#fidosum of (1) the Cost thereof (but excluding dabt assumed or taken subject to) grossed
by the Fund’s Percentage with respect thereto(plluall debt on the underlying real estate as3ék(at is senior to the Fund Investment and
(z) the Underlying Asset Value with respect to &mnd Investment that is a direct or indirect equitgrest in one or more real estate assets
and that represents 100% of the equity interestsich real estate asset(s) shall be the Cost bffsured Investment.

(b) Within forty-five (45) days after each January fipaing January 1, 2007, the General Partner dletilter a report
(a “Valuation Report”) to the Advisory Committeentaining: (i) a list of all Permitted Investmentsdathe Cost of each such Permitted
Investment; (i) a list of all Fund Investments @thhan Permitted Investments; and (iii) an apptaas of the immediately preceding
December 31, of (x) the Fair Value of each suchdHurestment (other than Permitted Investmentshedsrmined in accordance with the
definition of “Fair Value” herein, (y) the Adjustdehir Value of each Fund Investment (other thamftezd Investments) as determined in
accordance with the definition of “Adjusted Fairli@’ herein, and (z) the value of the underlyingl restate asset(s) determined on a fair
market value basis (the “Underlying Asset Valud@gpplicable, of each Fund Investment (other tRammitted Investments). Each such
appraisal shall be prepared (i) by an Expert seteby the General Partner or, if the Advisory Cotterihas exercised its rights with respect tc
any Fund
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Investment in accordance with Section 14.04(dig@deof, selected by the Advisory Committee anddiithe extent applicable, in accordance
with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraidactice.

The Fair Value and Adjusted Fair Value of each Fum@stment shall be its Fair Value and Adjustenl Walue, as applicable, as set forth in
such Valuation Report for the calendar year in joe®xcept to the extent that the Advisory Comesitelects to exercise its right to review
such Fair Value or Adjusted Fair Value as describgmhragraphs (c) and (d) below.

(c) The Advisory Committee may elect to object to tlaér Walue or Adjusted Fair Value of one or more &un
Investments set forth in any Valuation Report bying the General Partner a notice (a “Review Ndjioe later than thirty (30) days after the
Advisory Committees receipt of such Valuation Report. If it doestbe, Advisory Committee and the General Partnelt attampt to agree ¢
the Fair Value or Adjusted Fair Value, as applieabf the Fund Investments specified in the Re\litice. Any resolution of such Fair Val
or Adjusted Fair Value shall be in writing. If tielvisory Committee objects, in a timely deliveiRdview Notice, to the Fair Value of any
Fund Investment (other than a Permitted Investnodyribed in clause (z) of the definition of “Adfad Fair Value” herein, then the Advisory
Committee shall also be deemed to have objectdtetéddjusted Fair Value with respect to such Funstment.

(d) If the Advisory Committee and the General Partraarehnot agreed upon the Fair Value or Adjusted ¥alue, as
applicable, of any Fund Investment specified inRexiew Notice within ten (10) days after the die Review Notice was sent by the
Advisory Committee, the Advisory Committee shad), later than ten (10) days after the end of suat{16) day period, select and engage an
Expert who shall independently determine the Failue or Adjusted Fair Value, as applicable (inahgda determination of the Underlying
Asset Value), of such Fund Investment within twe2§) days of being retained. The Advisory Comesitshall deliver a copy of such
Expert’s report to the General Partner. If the Mailue or Adjusted Fair Value for a Fund Investingmecified in the Valuation Report is the
same as the Fair Value or Adjusted Fair Value timhs=und Investment contained in the Expert’s repbtained by the Advisory Committee,
then the Fair Value or Adjusted Fair Value, as @pile, of such Fund Investment shall be as sét forthe Valuation Report. If the Fair
Values or Adjusted Fair Values for such a Fund stiwent from these two sources are not the saméhéinigher of the Fair Values or
Adjusted Fair Values, as the case may be, is ne itham ten percent (10%) greater than the lowsuoti Fair Values or Adjusted Fair Values,
as applicable, then the Fair Value or Adjusted Faiue of such Fund Investment shall be the aveshgech amounts contained in the
Valuation Report and in the Expert’s report obtdibg the Advisory Committee. However, if neithéthee foregoing two sentences applies,
then the parties shall attempt to agree on a ngueExwho shall be promptly retained by the Funddtermine independently the Fair Value o
Adjusted Fair Value, as applicable (including aedetination of the Underlying Asset Value), of thenB Investment in question and who will
deliver its determination within twenty (20) dayfsbeing retained. The retention document shalhkgeform reasonably acceptable to both the
General Partner and the Advisory Committee. TheVaue or Adjusted Fair Value of each Fund Inwesht in question shall be the average
of the
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two (2) such amounts, contained in the Valuatiopd®e in the Expert’s report obtained by the AdvisGommittee, and in the report prepared
by the new Expert, which are closest to one anotidor any reason the parties cannot agree nevaExpert within ten (10) days after first
attempting to do so, or if the parties cannot agreéhe form of the retention document, eitheryaray apply to the local office of the
American Arbitration Association or any organizati@hich is the successor thereof (the “AAA”) fopaintment of the new Expert or
determination of the form of the retention documefihy decision of the AAA shall be binding uporet&eneral Partner and the Advisory
Committee. The Fund shall pay the expenses of éle Experts. In the event of any dispute withpect to the Fair Value of any Fund
Investment (other than a Permitted Investment)ritesat in clause (z) of the definition of “Adjust&a@ir Value”herein, the Adjusted Fair Vali
of such Fund Investment shall be the Fair Valusugh Fund Investment as determined pursuant t&#dson 14.05.

(e) If the Fair Value of a Fund Investment (or the Asld Fair Value with respect to a Fund Investmisrtging
determined in accordance with paragraph (d) abalapplicable payments to the General Partneraaridé Investment Manager and
applicable tests shall be made or applied basdbeoRair Value and/or Adjusted Fair Value of sucimdr Investment as determined with
reference to the prior calendar year (or if suchd=imvestment was acquired during such precediag, ys determined pursuant to
Section 14.05(a) hereof). Once the Fair Value/Adidsted Fair Value of a Fund Investment is finalBtermined in accordance with this
Section 14.05, the valuations shall be appliedegtively to the preceding January 1. Accordinglyy payments to the General Partner and/c
the Investment Manager made since such Januarglllbghrecalculated to reflect the Fair Value amjusted Fair Value as so determined, an
underpayment shall be promptly paid to the Gerleaainer and/or the Investment Manager, as appécabld any overpayment shall be
promptly returned by the General Partner and/otrthiestment Manager, as applicable, to the Fund.

ARTICLE XV

CERTAIN ERISA MATTERS

15.01. Operating Company The General Partner shall use commercially regtde efforts to conduct the affairs and
operations of the Fund in such a manner that timel kull qualify as a REOC, if the REIT is requiremlqualify as a VCOC pursuant to
Section 14.01 of the REIT LLC Agreement.

ARTICLE XVI

MISCELLANEOUS

16.01. Applicable Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and constrdén accordance with the laws of the Stai
of Delaware without reference to the conflicts ofdw principles thereof.
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16.02. Binding Agreement; Severability This Agreement and all terms, provisions andd@@ns hereof shall be binding
upon the parties hereto, and shall inure to thefiteof the parties hereto and, except as otherpiisgided herein, to their respective heirs,
executors, personal representatives, successofawfud assigns. Each provision of this Agreensmll be considered separate and, if for an
reason, any provision or provisions not essertigthé¢ effectuation of the basic purposes of thises&gient is or are determined to be invalid,
illegal or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegglor unenforceability shall not impair the opevatiof or affect those provisions of this
Agreement which are otherwise valid. To the extegally permissible, the parties shall substifotethe invalid, illegal or unenforceable
provision a provision with a substantially simimonomic effect and intent.

16.03. Entire Agreement This Agreement, the REIT LLC Agreement, the Quiptsion Agreements (as defined in the
REIT LLC Agreement) and any other written agreeradagtween the General Partner, the REIT or the Badda Class A Member (it being
acknowledged and agreed that the General ParteeREIT and the Fund may enter into other writtgreaments with Class A Members,
executed contemporaneously with the admission df §llass A Members to the REIT, affecting the tehaseof in order to meet certain
requirements of such Class A Members), contairetiige understanding among the parties hereto @persede all prior written or oral
agreements among them respecting the within suijatier, unless otherwise provided herein.

16.04. Record of Limited Partners The General Partner shall maintain at the officthe Fund a record showing the
names and addresses of all the Limited PartnelisPaitners and their duly authorized represengatshall have the right to inspect such
record.

16.05. No Bill for Partnership Accounting Subject to mandatory provisions of law applieatol a Limited Partner and to
circumstances involving a breach of this Agreemeath of the Partners covenants that it will netépt with the Consent of the General
Partner) file a bill for partnership accounting.

16.06. Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in several copaitts, and all so executed shall constitute one
Agreement, binding on all of the parties heretawitbstanding that all the parties are not sigria®to the original or the same counterpart.

16.07. No Third Party Rights This Agreement is intended to be solely fortikeefit of the parties hereto and, except as
expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreenfarciuding the rights of Indemnified Parties hamnder), is not intended to confer any
benefits upon, or create any rights in favor of; Berson other than the parties hereto. The pomsaf this Agreement are not intended fol
benefit of any creditor or other Person (other thdartner in such Partner’s capacity as suchhtmwany debts, liabilities or obligations are
owed by (or who otherwise has any claim againg)Rhnd or any of the Partners.

16.08. Services to the Fund The parties hereto hereby acknowledge and répedmat the Fund has retained, and may in
the future retain, the services of various persensties and professionals, including legal coyregcountants, architects and
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engineers, for the purposes of representing andding services to the Fund in connection with itheestigation, consummation and operatior
of the Fund Investments or otherwise. The pah@gby acknowledge that such persons, entitiepafdssionals may have in the past
represented and performed and currently and ifutiuee may represent or perform services for thadgeal Partner or its Affiliates.
Accordingly, each party hereto consents to theesgmtation or provision of services by such persemiities and professionals to the Fund an
waives any right to claim a conflict of interestedp on the grounds of such relationship. Nothingtained herein shall relieve the General
Partner of any duty or liability it would otherwisave to the Fund, including the duty to monitod direct such persons, entities and
professionals for the best interests of the Fund.

16.09. Notices. Any notice, request for consent or report reglito be provided hereunder to a Partner shaldieeased
to such Partner at the address set forth on Sobédal such other address as such Partner shalspecified in writing to the Fund, and any
notice required to be provided hereunder to thedRinall be addressed to the Fund at its mailingesddset forth in Section 2.03 or such other
mailing address as determined by the General Rarpun notice to the REIT. In addition, any notiguest for consent or report required to
be provided hereunder to the REIT shall also beigenl to each Class A Member at the address st dor Schedule A of the REIT LLC
Agreement or such other address as such Class Abkteshall have specified in writing to the REITnyAsuch notice, request for consent or
report shall be in writing and shall be sent (i)daytified mail, return receipt requested, (ii)d@yecognized overnight courier service providing
confirmation of delivery, or (iii) by facsimile tremission (with confirmation of receipt). All no#s, requests for consents and reports shall b
deemed to have been received on the date of delieestablished by the return receipt, couriericerconfirmation (or the date on which the
return receipt, or courier service confirms thategatance of delivery was refused by the addresseéggcsimile confirmation received by the
sender. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any repmay be sent by electronic mail to the applicabldrask set forth on Schedule A or Schedule
A of the REIT LLC Agreement or such other addresstaall have been specified in writing to the Fanthe REIT, as applicable, and any
report that is sent by electronic mail shall bendeé to have been received on the date that inis se
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exeatthis Agreement as of the date first above written
General Partne:
CIM Urban Partners GP, In
By: /s/ Avraham Shemes

Name: Avraham Sheme
Title: Presiden

Limited Partner

CIM Urban REIT, LLC
By: CIM Urban Partners GP, Inc., its mana

By: /s/ Nicholas V. Morosof
Name: Nichloas V. Morsof
Title: Secretan
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Exhibit 21.1

CIM COMMERCIAL TRUST CORPORATION

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Entity State of Formation
PMC Commercial Lending, LL¢ Delaware
Western Financial Capital Corporati Florida
PMC Investment Corporatic Florida
PMC Funding Corporatio Florida
PMC Properties, Inc Delaware
PMC Asset Holding, LLC Delaware
PMCT Asset Holding, LLC Delaware
PMC Preferred Capital Trust Delaware
PMC Mortgage Corp., LL( Delaware
First Western SBLC, Inc Florida
Urban Partners GP, LL Delaware
CIM Urban Partners, L.P Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties Ill, L.P Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties VIII, L.P Delaware
CIM/Oakland Downtown, L.P Delaware
Union Square 825 Property | Delaware
Union Square 941 Property | Delaware
CIM/Oakland 2353 Webster, L Delaware
CIM/Oakland 1333 Broadway, L Delaware
CIM/Oakland 1901 Harrison, L Delaware
CIM/Oakland 1 Kaiser Plaza, L Delaware
CIM/980 9th Street (Sacramento), Delaware
CIM/11600 Wilshire (Los Angeles), L Delaware
47 East 34th Street (NY), L.F Delaware
9901 La Cienaga (Los Angeles) Owner, L Delaware
4750 Wilshire Blvd. (LA) Owner, LLC Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties I, L.F California
CIM Urban REIT Properties Il, L.P California
CIM/J Street Hotel Sacramento, L. California
47 East 34th Street (NY) GP, LL Delaware
CIM/11600 Wilshire (Los Angeles) GP, LL Delaware
CIM/J Street Hotel Sacramento GP, L California
CIM Urban REIT Properties XllII, L.P Delaware
CIM Urban REIT GP I, LLC California
CIM/Oakland 1333 Broadway GP, LL Delaware
CIM/Oakland Office Portfolio, LF Delaware
CIM/Oakland Office Portfolio GP, LL( Delaware
CIM/Oakland 1901 Harrison GP, LL Delaware
CIM/Oakland Office Properties GP, LL Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties X, L.F Delaware
CIM/Union Square 825 GP LL Delaware
CIM Urban REIT GP I, LLC Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties XI, L.P Delaware
CIM/Union Square 941 GP LL Delaware
CIM Urban REIT GP II, LLC Delaware
CIM Urban REIT GP IV, LLC Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties VIl Holdings, L.F Delaware
CIM Urban REIT Properties VIII GP, LLt Delaware
Entity State of Formation
CIM/Oakland Center 21, L Delaware
CIM/Texas Apartments GP 1, LL Delaware
CIM/4649 Cole Avenue (Dallas), L Delaware
CIM/3636 McKinney Avenue (Dallas), L Delaware

CIM/3839 McKinney Avenue (Dallas), L Delaware



CIM/4200 Scotland Street (Houston),
CIM Urban REIT Properties IX, L.P

CIM Urban REIT Properties XII, L.P
CIM/Union Square Plaza GP LL

Union Square Plaza Owner |

CIM Wilshire (Los Angeles) Manager, LL
CIM Wilshire (Los Angeles) Investor, LL
CIM 11620 Wilshire (Los Angeles) GP, LL
CIM 11620 Wilshire (Los Angeles), L
CIM Urban REIT 211 Main St. (SF) GP, LL
CIM Urban REIT 211 Main St. (SF), L
CIM Urban REIT Properties V, L.F

CIM Urban REIT Properties VI, L.P

CIM REIT Newco 1 GP, LLC

CIM REIT LP Newco 1, LF

9901 LA Cienaga (Los Angeles) TRS, LI
Lindblade Media Center (LA) Owner, LL
4750 Wilshire Blvd. (LA) Owner, LLC
CIM Real Estate Credit, LL!

CIM Urban Holdings, LLC

CIM Urban REIT Holdings LLC

CIM Real Estate Credit, LL

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
California
Delaware
Delaware
California
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

Board of Directors and Stockholders
CIM Commercial Trust Corporation
Dallas, TX

We hereby consent to the incorporationdfgnence in the Registration Statements on For® \®. 333-24767) and Form S-8
(No. 333-127531) of CIM Commercial Trust Corporatiaf our reports dated March 16, 2015, relatintheoconsolidated financial statements
and financial statement schedules, and the effsotiss of CIM Commercial Trust Corporation's inteomatrol over financial reporting, which
appear in this Form 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Los Angeles, CA
March 16, 2015
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Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe following Registration Statements of eepart dated March 16, 2015, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of CIM Urban g, LP and the 2013 and 2012 financial infornrmaitneluded in schedule Il (which report
expresses an unqualified opinion and includes ataagatory paragraph regarding the merger of CIMadrBartners, LP with CIM Commerc
Trust Corporation (formerly PMC Commercial Trusgppearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K ofGTommercial Trust Corporation
for the year ended December 31, 2014.

We consent to the incorporation by refeecincthe following Registration Statements:

. Form S-8, File No. 333-127531

. Form S-3D, File No. 333-24767
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Los Angeles, California
March 16, 2015
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Exhibit 31.1
Certification
Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Charles E. Garner I, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 2014 of CIM Commercial TQgporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and proesdarbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
€) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ocbotrer financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ CHARLES E. GARNER I

Charles E. Garner Il
Chief Executive Office
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Exhibit 31.2
Certification
Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, David Thompson, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K for tharyended December 31, 2014 of CIM Commercial TQgporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitéde a material fact necessary to

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@eponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proesgor caused such disclosure controls and proesdarbe designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial répgr, or caused such internal control over finahi@gorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimggport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repod tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | kalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):
€) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal ocbotrer financial reporting which

are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize aport financial information; ar

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ DAVID THOMPSON

David Thompson
Chief Financial Officel




QuickLinks
Exhibit 31.2

Certification Pursuant to Section 302 of the Saesa@xley Act of 2002



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350), the unideed officer of CIM Commercial Trust
Corporation (the "Company"), hereby certifies ttit Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryanded December 31, 2014 (the
"Report") fully complies with the requirements af@ion 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934 and that the
information contained in the Report fairly preseiisall material respects, the financial conditaord results of operations of the Company.

/s/ CHARLES E. GARNER Il
Dated: March 16, 201

Name Charles E. Garner
Title: Chief Executive Office

The foregoing certification is being furlmégl solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb&ndsy Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)
and is not being filed as part of the Report oa agparate disclosure document.
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Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOktt of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350), the unideed officer of CIM Commercial Trust
Corporation (the "Company"), hereby certifies ttit Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryanded December 31, 2014 (the
"Report") fully complies with the requirements af@ion 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934 and that the
information contained in the Report fairly preseiisall material respects, the financial conditaord results of operations of the Company.

/s/ DAVID THOMPSON
Dated: March 16, 201

Name David Thompsor
Title: Chief Financial Officel

The foregoing certification is being furlmégl solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb&ndsy Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350)
and is not being filed as part of the Report oa agparate disclosure document.
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